
 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

             
 

AGENDA 
Board of Supervisors Room - County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards, Independence, California 
 

NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC:  (1) This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and, for convenience, via Zoom webinar. The Zoom webinar is accessible to the 
public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; 
(929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general 
public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item may do so by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will 
call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes. Remote participation for members of the public is provided for convenience only. In 
the event that the remote participation connection malfunctions for any reason, the Board of Supervisors reserves the right to conduct the meeting without remote 
access. Regardless of remote access, written public comments, limited to 250 words or fewer, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at 
boardclerk@inyocounty.us. (2) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the 
Clerk of the Board at (760) 878-0373 (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the 
Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 
54954.2).  (3) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, 
California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1). 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
September 5, 2023 

 

(Unless otherwise specified by time, items scheduled for either the morning or afternoon 
sessions will be heard according to available time and presence of interested persons.) 
  

 Start Time 
 

 9 A.M. 1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s)  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo 
County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees 
Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association 
(ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Administrators Sue 
Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, 
County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Senior Budget Analyst Denelle Carrington, 
Health and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer 
Jeff Thomson. 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS  •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY  

 

 
DAN TOTHEROH   •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I NG S LE Y  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NATE GREENBERG 
CO U NT Y ADM I NI ST R AT IV E O FF IC ER  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DARCY ELLIS 
AS S T .  CLE RK  O F T HE  BO ARD  

 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, which cannot be heard prior to their scheduled 
time, all open-session items may be considered at any time and in any order during the meeting in 
the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 3) Pledge of Allegiance 
  

 

  4) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law 
  

 

  5) Introductions - The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: 
Julie Berry, Public Health Nurse-Corrections, and Leticia L. Gonzales, 
Prevention Specialist, HHS; and Deputy Sheriff Rashell Gosvener. 

  
 

  6) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  7) County Department Reports 
  

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; 
approval recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
 

   

 8) 2023-2024 GANN Appropriation Limit 

  Auditor-Controller | Amy Shepherd 
 

Recommended Action: Approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign 
Resolution No. 2023-25, accepting the calculations of the appropriation 
limitation for the County of Inyo for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.  

 

   

  
9) 

 
2023-2024 Property Tax Rates 

  Auditor-Controller | Amy Shepherd 
 

Recommended Action: Approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign 
Resolution No. 2023-26 setting the property tax rates for 2023-2024, per 
California Government Code Section 29100.  

 

   

  
10) 

 
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 

  Clerk of the Board | Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the minutes from the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of August 15, 2023 and the special Board of Supervisors 
meeting of August 25, 2023.  

 

   

  
11) 

 
Mt. Whitney Cemetery District Appointments 

  Clerk of the Board | Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 

Recommended Action: Reappoint Ms. Marlene Cierniak, Ms. Irene Kritz, and 
Ms. Donna Gruenewald to the Mt. Whitney Cemetery District Board of 
Trustees, each to three-year terms ending May 31, 2027. (Notice of Vacancy 
resulted in requests for reappointment from the three individuals listed.)  

 

   

  
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

12) Certified Unified Program Agency (CUPA) Agreement Approval 

  Environmental Health | Jerry Oser 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify and approve the contract between the County 
of Inyo and County of Mono for the provision hazardous materials program 
management services, in an amount not to exceed $300,000 (or $100,000 in 
any fiscal year) for the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2026, contingent upon 
the Board's approval of future fiscal year budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign. 

 

    

   

 13) CDA Digital Connections No-Cost Agreement 

  Health & Human Services - Social Services | Darcia Blackdeer-Lent, Deputy 
Director, Aging and Social Services 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the no-cost Standard Agreement with the 
California Department of Aging for the Digital Connections program for the term 
beginning February 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024, and authorize the 
HHS Director to sign the contract documents. 

 

   

  
14) 

 
Correction to Board Order and Minutes Regarding Fountainhead 
Consulting Agreement Amendment No. 4 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action: Approve amendments to the February 21, 2023 Board 
Order and corresponding meeting minutes regarding approval of Amendment 
No. 4 to the consulting agreement between the County of Inyo and 
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, to reflect the scope of 

the amendment.  
 

   

  
15) 

 
Construction Contract for the Lone Pine Airport Taxiway A Resurfacing 
Project 

  Public Works - Airports | Ashley Helms 
 

Recommended Action:  
A) Award the contract for the Taxiway A Resurfacing Project at the Lone 

Pine Airport to Maxwell Asphalt, Inc. of Salt Lake City, UT as the 
successful bidder; 

B) Approve the construction contract between the County of Inyo and 
Maxwell Asphalt, Inc. of Salt Lake City, UT in the amount of 
$158,627.50, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained and approval of the 2023-2024 
budget;  

C) Authorize the Public Works Director to execute all other project contract 
documents, including contract change orders, to the extent permitted by 
Public Contract Code Section 20142 and other applicable laws; and 

D) Approve Resolution No. 2023-27, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the 
Submittal of Applications, Accepting Allocation of Funds, and 
Authorizing the Execution of Grant Agreements with the California 
Department of Transportation for an Airport Improvement Program (AIP) 
Matching Grant," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

 

      



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

16) Commercial Hangar Lease Agreement with REACH Air Medical at the 
Bishop Airport 

  Public Works - Airports | Ashley Helms, Deputy Public Works Director - Airports 
 

Recommended Action: Approve and ratify the lease agreement between the 
County of Inyo and REACH Air Medical Services, LLC DBA Cal-Ore Life Flight, 
LLC of Sacramento, CA for the real property described as 770 Airport Rd., 
Bishop CA, for an amount in year one of $3,800 per month for the period of 
January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2027, with four two-year options to extend 
through December 31, 2035, and authorize the Public Works Director to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  

 

REGULAR AGENDA  

  
 

   

 17) Support for Caltrans' Reconnecting Communities: Highways to 
Boulevards Grant Application 

  County Administrator | Elaine Kabala 
15 minutes (5min. Presentation / 10min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:   
A) Consider the Concept Application for the State of California, Caltrans, 

Reconnecting Communities: Highways to Boulevards Grant (Cal 
RC:H2B Grant); 

B) Approve Resolution No. 2023-28 authorizing the Eastern Sierra Council 
of Governments to submit an application for the California Department 
of Transportation Reconnecting Communities: Highways to Boulevards 
Grant; and 

C) Authorize the Chairperson to sign a Letter of Support as a grant Co-
Applicant for the California Department of Transportation Reconnecting 
Communities: Highways to Boulevards Grant. 

 

   

  
18) 

 
Letter to Housing and Community Development on Veterans Housing 
Program 

  County Administrator | Jeff Griffiths 
10 minutes (5min. Presentation / 5min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  Approve the letter to the state Department of Housing 
and Community Development (HCD) raising concerns about the Lead Service 
Provider Requirements of the Veterans Housing and Homelessness Prevention 
Program (VHHP) and authorize the Chairperson to sign.  

 

   

  
19) 

 
Request to Change Ownership for Commercial Cannabis Permit 000140 

  Agricultural Commissioner | Nathan Reade 
5 minutes (2min. Presentation / 3min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  Approve a request a change in ownership for 
commercial cannabis business license number 000140, NanoFarms, LLC.  

 

   

  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

20) Emergency Medical Services Update 

  County Administrator | Nate Greenberg 
10 minutes (5min. Presentation / 5min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  This is an informational item, however, the Board 
may provide direction to staff as appropriate. 

 

   

  
21) 

 
Tropical Storm Hillary Update 

  County Administrator | Nate Greenberg, Mikaela Torres, Tim Bachman, Shannon 
Platt, Anna Scott 
20 minutes (10min. Presentation / 10min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  This is an informational item, however, the Board 
may provide direction to staff as appropriate. 

 

   

 
 
22) 

 
Presentation on Regional Air Service and the Bishop Airport from Inyo 
County Airport Management, Mammoth Lakes Tourism, and Airplanners 
Consultants 

  Public Works | Ashley Helms 
60 minutes (30min. Presentation / 30min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  Receive joint presentation on regional air service and 
the Bishop Airport. 
  

 

CORRESPONDENCE - ACTION  
  

 

   

 23) Request from Inyo Fish & Game Commission 

  Board of Supervisors | Assistant Clerk of the Board 
  

Recommended Action:  A) Direct staff to draft and send a letter to the 
California Fish and Game Advisory Commission requesting the reinstatement 
of printed copies of the California Fishing Regulations Booklet; and B) authorize 
the Inyo County Fish and Wildlife Advisory Commission to send a similar letter. 
  

 

ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT & REPORTS  
  

 

  24) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  25) Board Member and Staff Reports 
Receive updates on recent or upcoming meetings and projects 

  
 

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL  
  

 

  26) Auditor-Controller - Actual count of money in the hands of the Treasurer 
made on August 24, 2023. 

  
 

  27) Treasurer-Tax Collector - Treasury Status Report for the Quarter Ending June 
30, 2023. 

   
 

  28) California Highway Patrol - Report regarding the release of hazardous 
material into Bishop Canal on August 19, 2023 as a result of a vehicle collision, 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 25180.7 (Proposition 65). 

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4021  

 

2023-2024 GANN Appropriation Limit 
Auditor-Controller 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Amy Shepherd, Auditor/Controller Amy Shepherd, Auditor/Controller 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign Resolution No. 2023-25, accepting the calculations of the 
appropriation limitation for the County of Inyo for Fiscal Year 2023-2024. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The “appropriation limit” established by Article XIII-B of the State Constitution, effective July 1, 1980, and 
amended by Proposition 111 as of June 1990 has been calculated by the Auditor-Controller for the 2023-
2024 fiscal year. The calculation was performed pursuant to the “Article XIII-B Appropriation Procedure 
Guidelines for California Counties” written by the Accounting Standards and Procedures Committee, 
November 1990. The County is well within its appropriation limit using the Prop. 111 alternative indexes. 
The current “cushion” between the 2023-2024 proposed proceeds of taxes and the calculated 2023-2024 
limitation is  $ 22,612,810.00. 
 
 On November 6, 1979, the California Electorate approved Proposition 4, also known as the Gann 
Amendment. At that time, Proposition 4 then became Article XIII-B of the California Constitution. On 
June of 1990 the voters passed Proposition 111, which updates the States’ appropriation limit to allow for 
new funding for priority State programs, while still providing an overall limit on State and local spending. 
The Prop. 111 amendment allowed for an alternative index and additional appropriation exemptions. 
  
After reviewing the County’s Proposed Budget including estimated tax revenues and associated costs by 
functional grouping, the Auditor-Controller has determined that the 2023-2024 Proposed Budget is within 
the “appropriation limit.” 
  
Periodic review of actual revenues and expenditures will be made during the year in order to insure that 
the County remains in compliance with Article XIII-B. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund  Budget Unit 011900 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code various 
Recurrence Annually  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Not adopt the resolution accepting the Gann limit calculation. This is not recommended since the Gann 
limit applies under Article XIII of the California Constitution whether the calculation has been accepted by 
resolution or not. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. GANN Limit 2023-2024 -Attachment A 
2. GANN Limit 2023-2024 -Workbook 2023 Attachment B GANN Calculation 
3. GANN Limit Resolution 2023-2024 
  
APPROVALS: 
Christie Martindale Created/Initiated - 8/24/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/24/2023 
Christie Martindale Approved - 8/24/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/24/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/31/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 8/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2021-2022 Population Per Capita 2022-2023 Population Per Capita 2023-2024

Limit Change Change Limit Change Change Limit

-                     

-                     

INYO COUNTY 50,265,823.00   0.99960 1.0755 54,039,268         0.9984 1.0444 56,348,310        

-                      

-                      

                                                                                  ATTACHMENT A                                                                               

STATEMENT OF INYO COUNTY GANN LIMIT CALCULATIONS

FOR THE TAX YEAR 2023-2024

1



Projected 

FY 23-24

Current Secured Taxes - 4001 15,605,000   

Current Unsecured Taxes - 4004 1,164,000     

Current Unsecured Aircraft Tax - 4005 25,000          

SB813 Distributions - 4008 200,000        

Sales Tax - 4062 & 4063 1,750,000     

Real Property Transfer Tax - 4082 125,000        

Transient Occupancy Tax - 4083 4,000,000     

Transaction & Use Tax - 4085 1,600,000     

Interest on Tax Funds - 4303 500               

Homeowners Property Tax Relief - 4472 66,000          

State Subventions Pursuent to Government Code Section 7903 9,200,000     

33,735,500   

2022-2023 Limitation (Using Per Capita personal Income % Change) 54,039,268   

2023 2024 Population Factor 0.99840

2023-2024 Per Capita Factor 1.0444

2023-2024 Appropriation Limit 56,348,310   

2022-2023 Proceeds of Taxes (33,735,500)  

     Amount Under Limitation 22,612,810   

GANN Limit Calculation Updated to Include State Subventions

Based on Projected Revenues

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024



1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE COUNTY OF INYO, CALIFORNIA 

ESTABLISHING FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 APPROPRIATION LIMIT UNDER 
ARTICLE XIII OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION, AND ESTABLISHING 

PERIOD FOR CONTESTING SUCH LIMITS FOR THE COUNTY AND BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS GOVERNED SPECIAL DISTRICTS 

 

 
 WHEREAS Article XIII B of the California Constitution provides that the 
state and each local government shall be subject to an annual appropriation limit 
as defined in that Article; and 
 
 WHEREAS Article XIII B Section 8(e)(2) requires the Governing Body to 
select the Change in Cost-of-Living methodology each year by recorded vote; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS the percentage change in California Per Capita Income 
provides the greatest result rather than using the change in the Local 
Assessment roll from the preceding year due to the addition of non-residential 
new construction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Auditor-Controller of the County of Inyo has computed the 
appropriations limit for the fiscal year 2023-2024; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Auditor-Controller of the County of Inyo has prepared the 
applicable Statement showing the calculation and such detail Statement are 
available for public review during reasonable hours and after reasonable notice in 
the Auditor-Controller’s Office: 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County of Inyo selects 
the percentage change in California Per Capita Income and the percentage 
change in the population of the contiguous counties methodology for use in 
calculating its appropriation limit for fiscal year 2023-2024 and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 
appropriations limit for the County of Inyo for the fiscal year 2023-2024 as shown 
on Attachment A is hereby established as $  56,348,310.00. 
and such appropriations limit may be adjusted at a later date in accordance with 
Sections 3 and 11 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution and 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the appropriations limit for the County 
for the fiscal year 2023-2024 may be adjusted at a later date in the event that 
revenues which are unanticipated and classified as proceeds of taxes in 
accordance with Section 8(c) of Article XIII B of the California Constitution, are 
received and appropriated. 
 
 



2 of 2 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any judicial action or proceeding to 

attach, review, set aside, void or annul the appropriations limits established by 
this resolution shall be commenced within 45 days from the date of this resolution 
in accordance with Section 7910 of the Government Code. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Inyo, State of California this      , by the following 
vote: 
 

          AYES: 
          NOES: 
          ABSENT: 
          ABSTAIN: 
            
                                                                    

                                                                 Jennifer Roeser, Chairperson 
                                                                       Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
 
Attest:  Nate Greenberg 
        Clerk of the Board 
 
By:         

 Darcy Ellis 
            Assistant Clerk of the Board                                        

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4099  

 

2023-2024 Property Tax Rates 
Auditor-Controller 
 NO ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Amy Shepherd, Auditor/Controller Amy Shepherd, Auditor/Controller 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign Resolution No. 2023-26 setting the property tax rates for 
2023-2024, per California Government Code Section 29100. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Each fiscal year, the Auditor-Controller’s Office calculates the appropriate tax rate necessary to collect 
the amount needed for debt service for that year.  This is accomplished through use of assessed 
valuation reports from the Assessor’s Office and the State Board of Equalization in conjunction with fund 
balances available and debt repayment schedules.  The tax rates, as calculated by the Auditor-
Controller’s Office, including the countywide rate of 1.000000%, are in the attached resolution. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund / Non-General Fund / Grant Funded 
(list grant funding sources here) 

Budget Unit various 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code N/A 
Recurrence  Ongoing Revenue  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Each year the County of Inyo collects and disperses revenues to various schools and districts. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
If your Board did not adopt the tax rates, the tax proceeds for the County would be $0. The estimated 
amount for FY 2023-2024 General Fund revenue through Secured Taxes totals $15,605,000. To not 
adopt the rates will have a significant negative fiscal impact on many agencies, departments, programs, 
and special districts. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

School districts and many special districts receive property tax revenues as they are distributed to each 
tax-receiving agency based on a schedule developed by the Auditor-Controller’s Office in accordance 
with R & T Codes pertaining to property tax. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Tax Rate Resolution 2023 
  
APPROVALS: 
Christie Martindale Created/Initiated - 8/28/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/28/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/28/2023 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 8/30/2023 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE COUNTY OF INYO, CALIFORNIA  

ADOPTING TAX RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 29100 

 
          WHEREAS, Section 29100 of the California Government Code requires that the Board 
of Supervisors adopt rates of taxes on the secured roll not to exceed the 1-percent limitation 
specified in Article XIII A of the Constitution of the State of California and Sections 93 and  
100 of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California; and 
 
          WHEREAS, the Auditor-Controller has caused to be calculated the amount of tax 
needed to be raised to support the annual debt requirements of voter-approved indebtedness 
after due allowance for delinquency and other matters, as specified in Government Code 
Section 29100. 
 
          NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
does hereby adopt the tax rates on the Secured Property Tax Roll for the fiscal year 2023-
2024 as follows: 

 County Wide        1.00000000% 

 Big Pine Unified School District - 2005 Debt   0.04137267%  

 Bishop Elementary – 2000 Debt and 2016 Refunding        0.01636995%  

 Bishop Unified – 2000 Debt and 2016 Refunding               0.00493254%        

 Owens Valley Unified School District – 2014 Refunding     0.03805893%  

 Round Valley Elementary – 1999 Debt                  0.01780871%  

 Northern Inyo Hospital District – 2005 & 2015 Refunding  0.04136127%  

 Unitary & Operating Non-Unitary                                         0.22950333%  

 Northern Inyo Hospital – Gann Limit Refund                          (0.01248926) %  

        

          PASSED AND ADOPTED this        September 2023 by the following vote: 

          AYES: 

          NOES: 

          ABSENT: 

          ABSTAIN: 

                                                             
                                                                            Jennifer Roeser, Chairperson 
                                                                     Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Attest:   Nate Greenberg, Clerk of the Board 

 

By:              

            Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board                                        



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4096  

 

Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
Clerk of the Board 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Clerk of the Board Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the minutes from the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of August 15, 2023 and the special 
Board of Supervisors meeting of August 25, 2023. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, 
www.inyocounty.us. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft August 15, 2023 Minutes 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D

https://www.inyocounty.us/government/publications-reports-plans-proclamations/meeting-agendas-minutes


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

2. Draft August 25, 2023 - Special Meeting 
  
APPROVALS: 
Hayley Carter Created/Initiated - 8/21/2023 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 8/23/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  1                                                                                                                                     August 15, 2023      

    

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

August 15, 2023
 
The Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in regular session at the hour of 8:32 a.m., on 
August 15, 2023, in the Board of Supervisors Room, County Administrative Center, Independence, with the following 
Supervisors present: Chairperson Jennifer Roeser, presiding, Trina Orrill, Scott Marcellin, Matt Kingsley, and Jeff 
Griffiths. Also present: County Administrator Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, and Office 
Technician Hayley Carter. 

Closed Session 
Public Comment

The Chairperson asked for public comment related to closed session items and there was 
nobody wishing to speak.

Closed Session Chairperson Roeser recessed open session at 8:32 a.m. to convene in closed session with 
all Board members present to discuss the following item(s): No. 2 Conference with 
County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6 – Regarding 
employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County 
Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association 
(ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). 
Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – Administrative Officer 
Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Administrators Sue Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Senior Budget 
Analyst Denelle Carrington, Health and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief 
Probation Officer Jeff Thomson; and No. 3 Public Employee Performance Evaluation – 
Pursuant to Government Code §54957 – Title: County Administrator.

Open Session Chairperson Roeser recessed closed session and reconvened the meeting in open session 
at 10:06 a.m. with all Board members present.

Pledge of Allegiance Office Technician Hayley Carter led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Report on Closed 
Session

County Counsel Vallejo reported that no action was taken during closed session that is 
required to be reported.

Public Comment Chairperson Roeser asked for public comment related to items not calendared on the 
agenda and public comment was heard from Independence resident Lauralyn Hundley and 
Chairperson Roeser.

County Department 
Reports 

Public Works Director Mike Errante provided updates on road conditions in various areas of 
the County.

County Wildfire Preparedness Coordinator Kristin Pfeiler spoke about recent Community 
Wildfire Protection Plan meetings and encouraged the public to participate in the survey for 
wildfire preparedness which is available on the Ready Inyo website. 

Clerk of the Board –
Approval of Minutes

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve an 
amendment to the regular Board of Supervisors meeting minutes for August 1, 2023, to 
include the action taken on Item 22 and approve the minutes from the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of August 8, 2023. Motion carried unanimously.

CAO-Emergency 
Services – 

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to continue the local 
emergency proclaimed in response to the 2023 storms and projected spring runoff in March 
2023. Motion carried unanimously. 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  2                                                                                                                                     August 15, 2023      

Local Emergency 
Continuation 

CAO-Personnel –
Atkinson, Loya, Ruud & 
Romo Contract

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve and ratify 
the contract between the County of Inyo and Atkinson, Loya, Ruud & Romo for the provision 
of Legal Services - General Labor and Employment Advice, in the amount of $320,000 for 
the term July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize Chairperson to sign the contract and HIPPA 
Business Associate Agreement. Motion carried unanimously. 

CAO-Personnel –
Hanson Bridgett LLP 
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to ratify and approve 
the contract between the County of Inyo and Hanson Bridgett LLP for the provision of 
Specialized Law Enforcement Legal Services and Employment Advice, in the amount of 
$100,000 for the term of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board's 
adoption of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, authorize the Chairperson to sign the contract 
and HIPPA Business Associate Agreement. Motion carried unanimously. 

HHS-Behavioral 
Health –
DHCS Drug Medi-Cal 
Agreement

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve and ratify 
the standard agreement between the County of Inyo and the California Department of Health 
Care Services (DHCS) for the provision of substance abuse treatment in an amount not to 
exceed $1,076,000 for the period of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2027, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the HHS Acting Director to sign the 
Standard Agreement, Contractor Certification Clauses, and the California Civil Rights Laws 
Certification. Motion carried unanimously. 

HHS-Behavioral
Health –
Ordinance 1300 (DDP 
Fees)

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve Ordinance 
1300, titled, "An Ordinance of the board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of 
California, Repealing Ordinance No. 1172 (2012) Regarding Fees for the Inyo County Driving 
Under the Influence Program." Motion carried unanimously. 

HHS-Behavioral
Health –
Annual 22/23 & 23/24 
MHSA Agreement 
Updates
 

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the Mental 
Health Services Act (MHSA) 2022-2023 Annual Update and approve the MHSA 2023-2024 
Annual Update in order to access funds under the approved MHSA Agreement, and 
authorize the HHS Deputy Director, Behavioral Health Division, as the County's Mental 
Health Director, to sign. Motion carried unanimously. 

HHS-ESAAA –
Mono County ESAAA 
Contract Amendment 
No. 1

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the Mental 
Health Services Act (MHSA) 2022-2023 Annual Update and approve the MHSA 2023-2024 
Annual Update in order to access funds under the approved MHSA Agreement, and 
authorize the HHS Deputy Director, Behavioral Health Division, as the County's Mental 
Health Director, to sign. Motion carried unanimously. 

Planning Department –
USGS Joint Funding 
Agreement

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the Joint 
Funding Agreement with the U.S. Geological Survey for wells and springs monitoring in the 
Amargosa Desert in the amount of $8,000 for the period of October 1, 2023 through 
September 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously. 

Public Works –
Shelter Construction 
Plans & Specs

At the request of Supervisor Griffiths, item # 17 was pulled from the Consent Agenda to 
highlight the project and make the public fully aware of progress being made.

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to approve the plans and 
specifications for the Big Pine Animal Shelter Project and authorize the Public Works Director 
to advertise the project. Motion carried unanimously. 

Item Postponed At the request of CAO Greenberg, the following item was postponed until the September 5 
Board of Supervisors meeting:

18) Request for Landfill Fee Waiver
Public Works - Recycling & Waste Management | Michael Errante



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  3                                                                                                                                     August 15, 2023      

Recommended Action: Approve a waiver up to the historical cap of $100 toward the 
Bishop Paiute Tribe Friends of the Conservation Open Space Area pilot project.   

CAO –
Cal-Ore Life Flight LLC 
(Sierra Lifeflight) 
30-Day Contract 
Extension

CAO Greenberg provided the Board with a brief update on the status of EMS services in the 
greater Bishop area.

Chairperson Roeser asked if there was anyone wishing to speak and public comment was 
given by Olancha Fire Chief Chelsea Benbrook.

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by supervisor Orrill to authorize an amendment 
to the current agreement with Cal-Ore Life Flight LLC (dba Sierra Lifeflight) for the provision 
of 911 Emergency Medical Services in the greater Bishop area, extending the term for an 
additional 30 days – until September 22, 2023. Motion carried unanimously.

Sheriff –
Department 
Presentation

Board members received a presentation from Sheriff Rennie regarding the functions, core 
services, mission, and projects of the Sheriff’s Office.

Board members thanked Sheriff Rennie and requested a presentation in the future to include 
information on the Animal Control and Correctional divisions of the department.

Board of Supervisors –
Indian Wells Valley 
Groundwater Authority 
EIR Public Process

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to authorize the County 
Administrative Officer to provide comments on the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority 
(IWVGA) Environmental Impact Report public process consistent with Inyo County’s prior 
expressions of support for an IWVGA water import project utilizing water sources from other 
than the Owens Valley River and groundwater systems. Motion carried unanimously.

CAO-Personnel –
Water Director 
Personal Services 
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to:
A) Approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Dr. Holly Alpert for the 

provision of personal services as the Water Director at Range 155, Step B, $10,463 
per month effective August 17, 2023, and authorize the Chairperson to sign; and 

B) Approve Resolution 2023-23, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo, State of California, Amending Resolution 2021-52, Changing Salary and/or 
Terms and Conditions of Employment for Appointed Officials Employed in the 
Several Offices of Institutions of the County of Inyo," and authorize the Chairperson 
to sign. 

Motion carried unanimously.

Public Comment Chairperson Roeser asked if there was any public comment pending for items not 
calendared on the agenda and there was no one wishing to speak.

Board Member & Staff 
Reports

CAO Greenberg said he continues to work on EMS issues as well as the FY 23-24 budget 
and mentioned that the Board will be dark until September 5. Greenberg also said he will be 
traveling to Sacramento this Wednesday to teach a class for the California State Association 
of Counties.

Supervisor Griffiths said he attended meetings with constituents, the California State 
Association of Counties Executive Board, and Bishop City Council and noted that previously 
scheduled meetings for the Eastern Sierra Transportation Authority and the Tribal 
Consultation were both cancelled. Griffiths said he will be attending the Eastern Sierra 
Council of Governments meeting this Thursday.

Supervisor Roeser said she met with constituents and community service district 
representatives recently, then briefly discussed a resolution passed at the Northern Inyo 
Airport Advisory Commission meeting supporting maintenance improvements.  Roeser also 
informed the public of the Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery annual dinner taking place on August 
19.

Supervisor Orrill said she attended meetings with constituents, a meeting on the Community 
Wildfire Protection Plan, and a virtual meeting with the Lieutenant Governor’s office. Orrill 
encouraged participation in the survey for wildfire preparedness and wished Supervisor 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  4                                                                                                                                     August 15, 2023      

Griffiths a happy birthday.

Supervisor Marcellin said he had lunch with Supervisor Griffiths after the Tribal Consultation 
meeting was cancelled, attended a Northern Inyo Airport Advisory Committee meeting, and 
had meetings with constituents. 

Supervisor Kingsley said that he met with the new Lone Pine Superintendent of Schools and 
local volunteer fire chiefs and said he will be leaving the meeting early to travel to the Rural 
County Representatives of California Executive Meeting in Sacramento.

Closed Session Chairperson Roeser recessed open session at 11:32 a.m. to convene in closed session with 
all Board members present to continue discussion and possible action as appropriate on 
previously noted closed session items. 

Report on Closed 
Session

No action was taken in closed session that is required to be reported.

Recess/Reconvene –
Board of Equalization/
Attendance Change

Chairperson Roeser reconvened from closed session as the Inyo County Board of 
Equalization (separate minutes) at 1:01 p.m. with all Board members present. The 
Chairperson adjourned the Board of Equalization meeting at 1:39 p.m. to reconvene as the 
Board of Supervisors with all Board members present except Supervisor Kingsley.

Adjournment The Chairperson adjourned the meeting at 1:40 p.m. to 8:30 a.m. Tuesday, September 5, 
2023, in the County Administrative Center in Independence.

                                                                                    Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors

Attest:   N A T E  G R E E N B E R G
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d
              
           
 

 by:       _____________________________________
 Darcy Ellis, Assistant



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  1                                                                                                                                     August 25, 2023      

    

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

August 25, 2023
 
The Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in special session at the hour of 11:00 a.m., on 
August 25, 2023, in the Consolidated Office Building – Downstairs Meeting Room, 1360 N. Main St., Bishop California, 
with the following Supervisors present: Trina Orrill, Scott Marcellin and Jeff Griffiths. Also present from this location: 
County Administrator Nate Greenberg. Supervisor Roeser, presiding, attended the meeting remotely via Zoom from 850 
Black Rock Springs Rd., Independence, CA, pursuant to California Government Code 54953(b)(1). Also present remotely 
via Zoom, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo and Assistant Clerk of the Board Darcy Ellis. Supervisor Matt Kingsley and 
Office Technician Hayley Carter attended the meeting remotely from the County Administrative Center in Independence, 
California. 

CAO –
Tropical Storm Hilary 
Update & Local 
Emergency 
Proclamation/ 
Reso. No. 2023-24

CAO Greenberg introduced the emergency item, providing a briefing on severe damages 
sustained throughout the County as a result of the recent Tropical Storm Hilary, and 
explained that he declared a State of Emergency on Monday, August 21, 2023, that now 
needs to be ratified by the Board.

Sheriff Stephanie Rennie said that evacuation orders are currently in place for the Oak Creek 
area of Independence and residences located north of Mt. Whitney Portal Road in Lone Pine 
and reported major flooding with damage to residential structures. 

Public Works Director Mike Errante and Deputy Public Works Director-Roads Shannon Platt 
reported moderate to severe flood damages and widespread road closures from the Big Pine 
area south to Death Valley. Errante noted that initial damage assessment reports are being 
completed for submittal to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the Federal 
Highway Administration, the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services, and the 
California Department of Transportation.

Death Valley National Park representative Jeannette Jurado said that an administrative 
closure of the park has been implemented due to significant damage/destruction of roads 
and infrastructure, repairs needed for utility system failures, and downed land line phone 
service to the area. 

Acting Health & Human Services Director Anna Scott said that the department is monitoring 
isolated communities affected in the southeast county and providing outreach to those in 
need of access to essentials such as food, water, medication, and temporary shelter. 

Emergency Services Manager Mikaela Torres said she has been in contact throughout the 
week with CalOES to get information on obtaining additional assistance and working on 
updates to the Ready Inyo website.  

The Chairperson asked if there were any first responder agencies wishing to speak and 
updates were provided by Olancha Fire Chief Chelsea Benbrook, Big Pine Fire Chief Damon 
Carrington and Independence Assistant Fire Chief Michael Capello.

The Chairperson asked if there was anyone else wishing to speak and comment was given 
by Shoshone resident Judy Palmer, Lone Pine Tribal representative Mel Joseph, and 
Margaret Padilla.

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to approve Resolution No. 
2023-24, ratifying the Inyo County Director of Emergency Service’s local emergency 
proclamation of August 21, 2023. Motion carried 4-0-1 with Supervisor Kingsley abstaining.



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  2                                                                                                                                     August 25, 2023      

Adjournment The meeting was adjourned at 12:02 p.m. to Tuesday, September 5, 2023, in the County 
Administrative Center in Independence.

                                                                                    Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors

Attest:   N A T E  G R E E N B E R G
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d
              
           
 

 by:       _____________________________________
 Darcy Ellis, Assistant



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4094  

 

Mt. Whitney Cemetery District Appointments 
Clerk of the Board 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Clerk of the Board Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Reappoint Ms. Marlene Cierniak, Ms. Irene Kritz, and Ms. Donna Gruenewald to the Mt. Whitney 
Cemetery District Board of Trustees, each to three-year terms ending May 31, 2027. (Notice of Vacancy 
resulted in requests for reappointment from the three individuals listed.) 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Your Board has appointing authority over the Mt. Whitney Cemetery District Board of Trustees. Three 
terms on the board expired May 31. Per Board policy, the vacancies were advertised and requests for 
reappointment were received from Ms. Marlene Cierniak, Ms. Irene Kritz, and Ms. Donna Gruenewald. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Make any of the appointments, or none and direct staff to continue the recruitment process.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

1. Irene Kritz - Whitney Cemetery 2023 
2. Donna Gruenewald - Whitney Cemetery 2023 
3. Marlene Cierniak - Whitney Cemetery 2023 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 8/18/2023 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 8/18/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



July 31, 2023

Clerk of the Board
Board of Supervisors
County of Inyo
P.O. Box N

Independence, CA 93526

Dear Board Members

Subject: Re-appointment to the
Cemetery District

Board of the Mt. Whitney

FECEVFD

AUG ! 2023

lnvo Countv Admrnrstralor
Clerk ol the Boerd

My current term of service
Cemetery in Lone pine ended
term as a Trustee.

on the Board of the Mt. Whitney
May 31. I am requesting another

There are a number of
completed, and f feel
on these projects but
District.

projects in the process of being
I can be a valuable contributor,
also with the long-term goals of

not
the

only

Thank you for considering renewing my term of service.

Sincerely,

frene KriLz

650 Alabama Dr_ive
Lone Pine, CA 93545



July 3L, 2023

RECEIVED

Clerk of the Board
Board of Supervisors
County of Inyo
P.O. Box N

Independence, CA 93526

AUG

tnvo Countv
Clerk of

Dear Board Members:

Subject: Re-appointment to the Board of the Mt. Whi-tney
Cemetery District

My current term of servj-ce on the Board of the Mt. Whitney
Cemetery in Lone Pine ended May 31. f am requesting another
term as a Trustee.

I 2023

Admtnlstlator
the Board

There are a number of projects in the process of being
completed, and I feel I can be a valuabl-e contributor,
on these projects but al-so with the long-term goals of
District.

Thank you for considerj-ng renewing my term of service.

Sincerely,

not only
the

8/"4r^L-burt"-t -"lL
Donna Gruenewald



July 31, 2A23

Clerk of the Board
Board of Supervisors
County of Inyo
P.O. Box N
Independence, CA 93526

My current term on
Pine ended May 31,
term as a Trustee-

ffirro
l','*t'2 2023

*dtu#gffi*

Dear Board Members:

Subject: Re-appointment t.o the Board of the Mt. Whitney
Cemetery District

the Board of the Mt. Whitney Cemetery in Lone
and I woul-d like to be appointed to another

There are a number of projects j-n the process of being
completed, and being familiar with the District's needs, f feel-
I can be a valuabl-e contributor -

Thank you for

SincereJ-y,

considering renewi-ng my term of .service.

Yn^"f"^"
Marlene Cierniak

P.O. Box |12
Lone Pine, CA 93545



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4093  

 

Certified Unified Program Agency (CUPA) Agreement 
Approval 

Environmental Health 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Jerry Oser, Environmental Health Director Jerry Oser, Environmental Health Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Ratify and approve the contract between the County of Inyo and County of Mono for the provision 
hazardous materials program management services, in an amount not to exceed $300,000 (or $100,000 
in any fiscal year) for the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2026, contingent upon the Board's approval 
of future fiscal year budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The existing agreement between Inyo and Mono Counties for the shared cost of Certified Unified 
Program Agency (CUPA) services expired on June 30, 2023. Your board approved an amendment in 
July 2023 via the Consent Agenda which would extend that agreement. Rather than sign, Mono County 
decided to draft a new agreement using their standard contract. The terms of the new agreement are the 
same as the Inyo contract.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

This is Mono County reimbursing Inyo for CUPA 
services. 

Budget Unit 045400 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4819 
Recurrence 3-year contract  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
We budgeted $70,000 in revenue for FY 23/24. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Certified Unified Program Agency (CUPA) services and associated costs would not be shared between 
the two Counties, requiring Inyo County to bear the entire cost of employment. This would negatively 
impact the Environmental Health budget for FY 23-24. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Mono County Environmental Health.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Inyo County Environmental Health Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Jerry Oser Created/Initiated - 8/17/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/17/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/17/2023 
Keri Oney Approved - 8/17/2023 
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 8/17/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/23/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 8/30/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF MONO  
AND COUNTY OF INYO 

FOR THE PROVISION OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
 WHEREAS, the County of Mono (hereinafter referred to as “County”) may have the need for the 
services of the County of Inyo of Independence, CA (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), and in 
consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby 
agree as follows: 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK 

Contractor shall furnish to County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in Attachment A, attached 
hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by County to Contractor to perform under this 
Agreement will be made by the Mono County Director of Environmental Health, or an authorized 
representative thereof.  Requests to Contractor for work or services to be performed under this Agreement will 
be based upon County's need for such services.  County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that 
any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of Contractor by County under this 
Agreement.  By this Agreement, County incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the 
performance of any services or work at all, even if County should have some need for such services or work 
during the term of this Agreement. 
 
Services and work provided by Contractor at County's request under this Agreement will be performed in a 
manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, state, and county laws, 
ordinances, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited to, 
those that are referred to in this Agreement. 
 
This Agreement is subject to the following Exhibits (as noted) which are attached hereto, following all 
referenced Attachments, and incorporated by this reference. In the event of a conflict between the terms of an 
attached Exhibit and this Agreement, the terms of the Exhibit shall govern: 
 
  Exhibit 1: General Conditions (Construction) 
  Exhibit 2: Prevailing Wages 
  Exhibit 3:  Bond Requirements 
  Exhibit 4:  Invoicing, Payment, and Retention 
  Exhibit 5:  Trenching Requirements 
  Exhibit 6:  FHWA Requirements  
  Exhibit 7:  CDBG Requirements 
  Exhibit 8:  HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 
  Exhibit 9: Other _________________ 

 
2. TERM 

The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2023, to  June 30, 2026, unless sooner terminated as 
provided below. 
 



2 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

 
3. CONSIDERATION 

A. Compensation. County shall pay Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees (set forth as 
Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A that are performed by Contractor at 
County’s request. 

B. Travel and Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per diem that 
Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement, unless otherwise 
provided for in Attachment B.  
 
C. No Additional Consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor shall not be 
entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, or other type 
of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not be entitled, by 
virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, retirement 
benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves of absence 
of any type or kind whatsoever. 
  
D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by County to 
Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed $300,000, not to exceed 
$100,000 in any twelve-month period, plus the amount of any change order(s) approved in accordance with 
authority delegated by the Board of Supervisors (hereinafter referred to as "Contract Limit").  County expressly 
reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work 
performed that is in excess of the Contract Limit. 
 
E.  Billing and Payment. Contractor shall submit to County, on a monthly basis, an itemized statement of 
all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at County’s request.  The statement to be 
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last 
day of the preceding month.  Alternatively, Contractor may submit a single request for payment 
corresponding to a single incident of service or work performed at County’s request.  All statements 
submitted in request for payment shall identify the date on which the services and work were performed 
and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.  Invoicing shall be 
informative but concise regarding services and work performed during that billing period.  Upon finding 
that Contractor has satisfactorily completed the work and performed the services as requested, County shall 
make payment to Contractor within 30 days of its receipt of the itemized statement.  Should County 
determine the services or work have not been completed or performed as requested and/or should Contractor 
produce an incorrect statement, County shall withhold payment until the services and work are satisfactorily 
completed or performed and/or the statement is corrected and resubmitted. 
 
If Exhibit 4 (“Invoicing, Payment, and Retention”) is attached to this Agreement, then the language 
contained in 4 shall supersede and replace this Paragraph 3.E. in its entirety. 
 
F. Federal and State Taxes.  
 

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state 
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  

 
(2) County shall withhold California state income taxes from payments made under this 

Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual payments 
to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed One Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-Nine dollars ($1,499.00). 

 



3 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from 
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such 
sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of 
Contractor’s taxes or assessments. 

  
(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-

California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California State 
Franchise Tax Board. 

 
4. WORK SCHEDULE 

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in Attachment A 
that are requested by County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of these services and work 
will require a varied schedule.  Contractor, in arranging his/her schedule, will coordinate with County to ensure 
that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be performed within the time frame 
set forth by County. 

 
5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS 

Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal governments, for 
Contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by Contractor and be 
valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement.  Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor 
must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits 
may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. 
Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense 
to County.  Contractor will provide County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and 
valid licenses, certificates and permits that are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. 
Where there is a dispute between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are 
required to perform the services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such 
determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 

 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC 

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, support services 
and telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor for any expense or cost incurred by 
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 

 
7. COUNTY PROPERTY 

A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or safety 
devices, badges, identification cards, keys, uniforms, vehicles, reference materials, furniture, appliances, etc. 
provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement is, and at the termination of this Agreement 
remains, the sole and exclusive property of County.  Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard 
and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible 
for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, that is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 
B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans, designs, 
specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, videotapes, computer programs, 
computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 



4 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual 
properties of any kind that are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or 
manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this 
Agreement shall remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  At the termination of the Agreement, 
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 

 
8. INSURANCE 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries 
to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder and the results of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors. 

A. Minimum Scope and Limit of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as broad as (please select all 
applicable): 

 Commercial General Liability (CGL):  Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering 
CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, 
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required 
occurrence limit.   
 

 Automobile Liability:  ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if 
Contractor has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9), with limit no less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 
 

 Workers’ Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 
or disease.  
 

 Worker’s Compensation Exempt: Contractor is exempt from obtaining Workers’ 
Compensation insurance because Contractor has no employees.  Contractor shall notify County and 
provide proof of Workers’ Compensation insurance to County within 10 days if an employee is 
hired.  Such Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor 
of County for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents, and subcontractors.  
Contractor agrees to defend and indemnify County in case of claims arising from Contractor’s 
failure to provide Workers’ Compensation insurance for employees, agents and subcontractors, as 
required by law. 
 

 Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): Insurance appropriate to the Contractor’s 
profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $1,000,000 aggregate. 
 

 Contractors’ Pollution Legal Liability and/or Asbestos Legal Liability and/or Errors and 
Omissions (if project involves environmental hazards) with limits no less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence or claim, and $1,000,000 policy aggregate. 

 
If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, 
the County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained 
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of 
insurance and coverage shall be available to the County. 

 



5 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

B. Other Insurance Provisions. The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the 
following provisions: 
 

(1) Additional Insured Status: The County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are 
to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of 
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or 
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage 
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad 
as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 
20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if a later edition is used). 

(2) Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance 
coverage shall be primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 
as respects the County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or 
self-insurance maintained by the County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall 
be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall 
also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies. 

(3) Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide 
the liability limits as required in this agreement.  This form of insurance will be acceptable 
provided that all of the Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the 
insurance coverages herein required, including, but not limited to, primary and non-
contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions (SIRs), indemnity, and defense 
requirements.  The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true “following form” 
or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the underlying 
Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional 
Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall 
be called upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess liability 
policies are exhausted. 

(4) Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage 
shall not be canceled, except with notice to the County. 

(5) Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to County a waiver of any right to 
subrogation which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against the County by virtue of 
the payment of any loss under such insurance.  Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement 
that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless 
of whether or not the County has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the 
insurer.   

(6) Self-Insured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the 
County. The County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention 
or provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and 
defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to 
provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or County. 
The CGL and any policies, including Excess liability policies, may not be subject to a self-
insured retention (SIR) or deductible that exceeds $100,000 unless approved in writing by 
County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole responsibility of Contractor or 
subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the Indemnified Additional 
Insured Parties. County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due Contractor to fund the 
SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) provision that 
limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense 



6 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. 
County reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification. 

(7) Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct 
business in the state with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise 
acceptable to the County. 

(8) Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide claims-made coverage:  

a. The Retroactive Date must be shown, and must be before the date of the contract 
or the beginning of contract work. 

b. Insurance must be maintained, and evidence of insurance must be provided for at 
least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 

c. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the 
Contractor must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five 
(5) years after completion of work.   

(9) Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish the County with original certificates and 
amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage 
required by this clause and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsements Pages of the CGL 
and any Excess policies listing all policy endorsements.  All certificates and endorsements and 
copies of the Declarations & Endorsements pages are to be received and approved by the 
County before work commences. However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to 
the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to provide them. The County 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, 
including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. County reserves the right 
to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior 
experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  

(10) Special Risks or Circumstances: County reserves the right to modify these requirements, 
including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other 
special circumstances. 

 
9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR 

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this Agreement, shall 
be performed as an independent contractor, and not as an agent, officer, or employee of County.  Contractor, 
by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of, or exercise any right 
or power vested in, County, except as expressly provided by law or set forth in Attachment A.  No agent, 
officer, or employee of County is to be considered an employee of Contractor.  It is understood by both 
Contractor and County that this Agreement shall not, under any circumstances, be construed to create an 
employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 
 
A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and services to be 
provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 
B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in this 
Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County’s control 
with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 
C. Contractor, its agents, officers and employees are, and at all times during the term of this Agreement 
shall represent and conduct themselves as, independent contractors, and not employees of County. 



7 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

Contractor shall defend with counsel acceptable to County, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, 
officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other 
costs, including litigation costs and attorney’s fees, arising out of, resulting from or in connection with, the 
performance of this Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor’s agents, officers, or employees. Contractor’s 
obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any 
actual or alleged personal injury, death, damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the 
loss of use.  Contractor’s obligation under this Paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, 
or other costs that are caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of Contractor, its agents, employees, 
supplier, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts or omissions any 
of them may be liable. 
 
Contractor’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless 
under the provisions of this Paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this Agreement for 
Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance and shall survive any termination or expiration of this 
Agreement. 
 
11. RECORDS AND AUDIT 

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various provisions of this 
Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  Contractor shall maintain 
these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of this Agreement.  
Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this Paragraph by substitute photographs, 
micrographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.  
 
B. Inspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any books, 
documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, that County 
determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, 
excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  Further, County 
has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being 
performed under this Agreement.  

 
12. NONDISCRIMINATION 

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not unlawfully 
discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for employment, 
or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religious creed, color, ancestry, national 
origin, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, age, or sexual orientation.  
Contractor and its agents, officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment 
and Housing Act (Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated 
thereunder in the California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act 
of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant 
to said Act. 

13. TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be terminated by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to Contractor 
thirty (30) calendar days written notice of such intent to terminate. Contractor may terminate this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving to County thirty (30) calendar days written 
notice of such intent to terminate.   
 



8 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if this Agreement is subject to General Conditions (set forth as an Exhibit 
hereto), then termination shall be in accordance with the General Conditions and this Paragraph shall not apply. 

 
14. ASSIGNMENT 

This is an agreement for the personal services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  Further, 
Contractor shall not assign any moneys due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of County. 

 
15. DEFAULT 

If Contractor abandons the work, fails to proceed with the work or services requested by County in a timely 
manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by County, then County 
may declare Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written notice to Contractor.  
Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to Contractor for services 
and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   

 
16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT 

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent 
default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other 
or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless this 
Agreement is modified as provided in Paragraph 22. 

 
17. CONFIDENTIALITY 

Contractor agrees to comply with various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, regulations, and 
ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by Contractor in the course 
of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or confidential.  Contractor 
agrees to keep confidential, all such privileged, restricted or confidential information and records obtained in 
the course of providing the work and services under this Agreement. Disclosure of such information or records 
shall be made by Contractor only with the express written consent of County. 

 
18. CONFLICTS 

Contractor agrees that he/she has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that would 
conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.  
Contractor agrees to complete and file a conflict-of-interest statement. 

 
19.  POST-AGREEMENT COVENANT 

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information that is gained from County 
in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or 
enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two (2) years after the termination of this Agreement, 
not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the term 
of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with County, or who has been an adverse party in 
litigation with County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this Agreement has gained access to 
County’s confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 

 



9 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

20. SEVERABILITY 

If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared invalid 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or county statute, 
ordinance, or regulation, then the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application thereof, shall not 
be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this 
Agreement are severable. 

 
21.  FUNDING LIMITATION 

The ability of County to enter into this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  In 
the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the option 
to terminate, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of notifying Contractor 
of the termination, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification of this 
Agreement effective pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of Paragraph 22. 

 
22. AMENDMENT 

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of 
the parties hereto, if such amendment or change order is in written form, and executed with the same formalities 
as this Agreement or in accordance with delegated authority therefor, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  

 
23.  NOTICE 

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions or deletions to this Agreement, including change of 
address of any party during the term of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be required, or may 
desire to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first-class mail or email (if 
included below) to the respective parties as follows: 

 
  County of Mono: 
   Director of Environmental Health, County of Mono 

Attn: Louis Molina 
   1290 Tavern Road, PO Box 3329 
   Mammoth Lakes, CA  93546 
   lmolina@mono.ca.gov 
 
  Contractor: 
   Director of Environmental Health, County of Inyo 
   Attn:  Jerry Oser 
   PO Box 427 
 Independence, CA  93526 
 joser@inyocounty.us 
 
24. COUNTERPARTS 
This Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts (including by electronic transmission), each 
of which shall constitute an original, and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. For purposes of the agreement a photocopy, facsimile, .pdf, and electronically scanned signatures, 



10 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

including but not limited Docusign or similar service, shall as deemed to be as valid and as enforceable as an 
original.  

 
25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, promises, 
or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by reference, shall be 
of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, or terminated, 
unless executed in writing by the parties hereto. 

  
IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS, 
EFFECTIVE AS OF THE DATE LAST SET FORTH BELOW, OR THE COMMENCEMENT 
DATE PROVIDED IN PARAGRAPH 2 OF THIS AGREEMENT, WHICHEVER IS EARLIER. 
 
COUNTY OF MONO     CONTRACTOR 
 
 
By:        By:       
 
Title:        Title:       
 
Dated:        Dated:       
 

  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
         
      
County Counsel  
 
 
APPROVED BY RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
      
Risk Manager 
  

Stacey Simon (Aug 16, 2023 16:02 PDT)

Stacey Simon (Aug 16, 2023 16:02 PDT)

Rhonda Duggan (Aug 16, 2023 16:02 PDT)

Supervisor

Aug 16, 2023

https://monocounty.na2.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAxcg41Rn7PRKG7hIqiAucW-MK-BYXrLIh
https://monocounty.na2.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAxcg41Rn7PRKG7hIqiAucW-MK-BYXrLIh
https://monocounty.na2.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAxcg41Rn7PRKG7hIqiAucW-MK-BYXrLIh


11 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF MONO 
AND COUNTY OF INYO 

FOR THE PROVISION OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES  
 

TERM: 
 

FROM:  July 1, 2023 TO: June 30, 2026 
 
 

SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
 
When performing the following services for and on behalf of Mono County, Employee will 
receive assignments from, and report directly to, the Mono County Director of Environmental 
Health. 
 
• Conduct inspections of all regulated hazardous materials facilities; 
• Manage and maintain the CERS software program, including keeping all CERS facility  
information up to date, and the review and approval of all business plan submittals; 
• Prepare all budgetary requirements of the Certified Unified Program Agency (CUPA) 
programs; 
• Oversee the CUPA permitting and invoicing obligations; 
• Maintenance and submittal of all required reports to CalEPA; 
• Development and implementation of CUPA enforcement program; 
• Investigation of and creation and implementation of appropriate response to hazmat 
incidents and complaints; 
• Coordinate with consultants and other agencies on clean-up proposals and environmental 
site assessments; 
• Maintenance and cleanup of paper files (CUPA); 
• Any other associated tasks that may arise and are deemed appropriate and necessary by 
Mono's Environmental Health Director for the implementation of CUPA requirements.  
 
For the planning purposes of both Mono and Inyo Counties,  it is assumed  that Mono County 
will require Inyo County's services for approximately twenty (20) hours per week; or, half of the 
working hours of Inyo County's staff assigned to perform the work in the Agreement (the 
"Employee").  
 
Services and work provided by Employee will be performed in a manner consistent with the  
requirements  and standards established by applicable federal, state, and county laws, ordinances,  
and  resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited 
to, those that are referred to in this Agreement. 
 
The services provided by Inyo County to Mono County under this Agreement shall be provided 
in a manner consistent with reaching Mono County's objectives of providing CUPA services in 
and for Mono County and shall include taking regulatory action on outside entities and 
individuals within Mono County's jurisdiction on behalf of Mono County. 



12 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

 
Office space and office supply needs for work performed for Mono County will be furnished by 
Mono County. 
 
Contractor will utilize a Mono County vehicle for work performed for Mono County in 
accordance with this Scope of Work.   
  



13 
Standard Agreement 

Version 06.21.23 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF MONO 
AND COUNTY OF INYO FOR  

THE PROVISION OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS MANAGEMENT SERVICES  
 

TERM: 
 

FROM:  July 1, 2023 TO: June 30, 2026 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 
 
 
The total sum of all payments made by Mono to Inyo for services and work performed under this 
Agreement shall not exceed three-hundred thousand dollars ($300,000), or one-hundred thousand 
dollars ($100,000) in any fiscal year during which this Agreement is operative. 
 
Mono County shall reimburse Inyo for the work performed by Inyo County’s employee(s) 
assigned to fulfill the Scope of Work under this Agreement at the rate set forth in the Inyo 
County Schedule of Fees, which rate is currently set at eighty-eight dollars per hour ($88.00 per 
hour) (Hourly Rate), including travel time. Inyo shall provide written notice to Mono County of 
any change in Hourly Rate set forth in the Inyo County Schedule of Fees.    
 
Expenses for approved travel outside Mono County, and in accordance with the Mono County 
travel policy, to attend training or conferences associated with the Mono County CUPA program 
will be paid directly by Mono County. 
  
Mono County shall reimburse Inyo County at actual cost for all expenses for materials used in 
providing work and services to Mono County under this Agreement.   
 
The Hourly Rate is understood to cover all salary and benefit costs of the employee(s) assigned 
to fulfill the Scope of Work under this Agreement, as well as Inyo County’s costs for any 
management, technical and administrative personnel and any overhead costs.   
 

 See Attachment B1, incorporated herein by this reference (optional). 



















 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4124  

 

CDA Digital Connections No-Cost Agreement 
Health & Human Services - Social Services 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Darcia Blackdeer-Lent, Deputy Director, Aging and 
Social Services 

Darcia Blackdeer-Lent, Deputy Director, Aging and 
Social Services 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the no-cost Standard Agreement with the California Department of Aging for the Digital 
Connections program for the term beginning February 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024, and 
authorize the HHS Director to sign the contract documents. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The California Department of Aging (CDA) is distributing Apple iPads to all Area Agencies on Aging 
(AAAs) in California. Digital Connections (DC) is a program that provides tablet devices, virtual basic 
literacy skills training, and broadband connection to eligible members of the target population in 
California, which are adults 60 years or older, or individuals 18 years of age and older with disabilities as 
defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  Program Service Area 16 (Inyo and Mono 
Counties) will receive 20 iPads through the program.  The iPads will be utilized for fostering internet 
literacy within the target population, as well as providing opportunities for virtual socialization via on-line 
platforms to see and interact with family members, friends and peers.  The Senior Centers in the 
communities of Walker, Tecopa, Lone Pine and Bishop will receive half of the iPads for use at those 
facilities.  The remaining iPads will be provided to individuals identified as having the most need due to 
isolation and income restrictions. 
 
Each iPad will come with a case and AT&T broadband connectivity with 10GB of data allowance through 
December 31, 2023 (as iPads can connect to Wi-Fi at any time prior to and after December 31, 2023). 
All iPads will be covered by the Mobile Iron Mobile Device Management (MDM) system, Honeywell help 
desk with Language Support, and Remote Admin services through December 31, 2023. CDA will also 
authorize a Connectivity Fund allocation to the AAAs only, that can be used for Broadband service 
support, Digital literacy support, and program outreach as additional support for iPad users.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this agenda item. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve this Standard Agreement which will result in PSA 16's  inability 
to access equipment and internet services, including training, which would benefit aged and disabled 
individuals in our service area that fall within the category of greatest economic and social need within 
the meanings of the Older Americans Act and the Older Calfornians Act. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
California Department of Aging 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. CDA Standard Agreement 
2. Exhibits A, A1, B, D 
3. Contractor Certification Clauses 
4. Information Integrity and Security Statement 
5. California Civil Rights Laws Certification 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 8/31/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/31/2023 
Tyler Davis Approved - 8/31/2023 
Darcia Blackdeer-Lent Approved - 8/31/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 8/31/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 8/31/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/31/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/31/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 8/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA – DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES SCO ID: 4170-DC222316 
STANDARD AGREEMENT 
STD 213 (Rev. 04/2020) 

AGREEMENT NUMBER 
DC-2223-16

PURCHASING AUTHORITY NUMBER (If Applicable) 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the Contracting Agency and the Contractor named below:
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME 
California Department of Aging 
CONTRACTOR NAME 
County of Inyo 
2. The term of this Agreement is:
START DATE 
2/1/2023 
THROUGH END DATE 
9/30/2024 
3. The maximum amount of this Agreement is:

$ 0.00  Zero Dollars and 00/100 dollars
4. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits, which are by this reference made a part of the Agreement.

Exhibits Title Pages 
Exhibit A Scope of Work 6 pages 
Exhibit A, 
Attachment 1 

General Information 1 page 

Exhibit B Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 7 pages 
Exhibit B, 
Attachment 1 

Budget Display 1 page 

Exhibit C General Terms and Conditions – GTC-4/2017* 0 pages 
Exhibit D Special Terms and Conditions 32 pages 

Items shown with an asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED BY THE PARTIES HERETO.  

CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACTOR NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 
County of Inyo 

CONTRACTOR BUSINESS ADDRESS 
1360 North Main Street, Suite 201 

CITY 
Bishop 

STATE 
CA 

ZIP 
93514-
3013 

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING TITLE 

CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE DATE SIGNED 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME 
California Department of Aging 
CONTRACTING AGENCY ADDRESS 
 2880 Gateway Oaks Dr., Suite 200 

CITY 
 Sacramento 

STATE 
 CA 

ZIP 
 95833 

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 
Nate Gillen 

TITLE 
Chief, Business Management Bureau 

CONTRACTING AGENCY AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE DATE SIGNED 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES APPROVAL EXEMPTION (If Applicable) 

AG OP 80-111 

Page 1 of 1

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources


California Department of Aging                                                        DC-2223 Contract  
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

1. PROGRAM DEFINITIONS 

A. Digital Connections (DC) means a program that provides tablet devices, virtual 
basic literacy skills training, and broadband connection to eligible members of the 
target population in California. 

B. Eligible Service Population means individuals defined as older Californians 60 
years of age and older, or 18 years of age and older with disabilities as defined 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Additionally, an unpaid 
informal/family caregiver of an older Californian 60 years of age and older, or for an 
adult 18 years of age and older with disabilities as defined by the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA), may be eligible for services provided under the Connectivity Fund 
only. 

2. PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 

A. Through this program, the California Department of Aging (CDA) will distribute 
Apple iPads (“devices” or “iPad”) to Area Agencies on Aging (AAAs) in California, 
hereafter referred to as Contractor or Contractors. 

B. Each iPad will come with a case and AT&T broadband connectivity with 10GB of 
data allowance through December 31, 2023 (all iPads can connect to Wi-Fi at 
any time prior to and after December 31, 2023).  

C. All iPads will be covered by the Mobile Iron Mobile Device Management (MDM) 
system, Honeywell help desk with Language Support, and Remote Admin 
services through December 31, 2023. 

D. The California Department of Aging (CDA) will also authorize a Connectivity 
Fund allocation to the AAAs only, that can be used for Broadband service 
support, Digital literacy supports, and Program outreach. The Connectivity Fund 
is not limited to supporting individuals with a DC Program iPad. Rather, the 
Connectivity Fund is meant to support all individuals affected by the digital divide, 
as outlined under the Eligible Service Population 

3. SCOPE OF WORK 

A. CDA and the Contractor agree to work collaboratively to ensure successful 
delivery and receipt of devices to the agreed upon location. CDA acknowledges 
Contractor may begin distribution of said devices upon receipt to eligible DC 
program participants.  

 



California Department of Aging                                                        DC-2223 Contract  
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

B. Contractor Responsibilities for Program Oversight and Administration:  

(1) Program Participant Eligibility  

a) Contractors shall accept ownership and authority of the digital devices to 
local programs, to allow assets to be effectively administered at the local 
level. 

b) To qualify for receiving an iPad, the Contractor shall confirm that an 
individual meets the following eligibility criteria:   

(1) Adults 60 years of age and older, or 18 years of age and older with 
disabilities as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).   

(2) Does not currently own a mobile computerized device that can 
maintain the following features:  

(a) General Digital Application Compatibility (i.e., telehealth resources, 
Zoom capability, etc.)   

(b) Mobility (i.e., easy to carry, can move around to different areas as 
needed to ensure access)  

(c) Connectivity (either Wi-Fi capable or 5G broadband capable)   

NOTE: If a prospective participant has access to broadband, but no 
device to connect, then they would be eligible. If the individual has 
a device but no access to broadband, then they would also be 
eligible. 

(d) Resides within the Contractor’s jurisdiction and can be supported 
by other services offered by the Contractor as needed. 

c) To qualify for receiving services under the Connectivity Fund allocated to 
the AAAs, the Contractor shall confirm that an individual meets one of the 
following eligibility criteria: 

(1) Adults 60 years of age and older, or 18 years of age and older with 
disabilities as defined by the by the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA).  

(2) An unpaid informal/family caregiver of an older Californian 60 years of 
age and older, or for an adult 18 years of age and older with 
disabilities as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 
may be eligible for services provided under the Connectivity Fund 
only. 



California Department of Aging                                                        DC-2223 Contract  
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

d) Priority should be given to adults who are low-income, disabled, or 
otherwise fall within the category of greatest economic and social need 
within the meanings of the Older Americans Act, the Older Californians 
Act, and their respective regulatory counterparts. 

C.   Contractor Responsibilities for Equipment and Asset Management: 

a) Pursuant to the funding authority underlying the DC Program, title and 
ownership of the devices shall immediately and unconditionally transfer to 
the Contractor upon delivery from CDA, to allow for effective program 
administration at the local level.  

b) Based on transfer of title and ownership, and the underlying authority 
(Budget Act of 2021, Chapter 21, Item 4170-102-0001, provision 5) to do 
so, the Contractor shall manage all DC Program devices as follows:  

(1) Maintain detailed property records that include, among other things:   

(a) a description of the device 

(b) an identifying number for the device 

(c) the location of the device; and 

(d) the ultimate disposition data, including the date of disposal.  

(2) Develop and implement a control system to ensure adequate 
safeguards are in place to prevent and investigate any loss, damage, 
or theft.  

(3) Implement measures to care for the device and keep it in good 
condition.  

(4) Contractor acknowledges and agrees to adhere to these maintenance 
restrictions on a per unit basis until disposal of the associated device.  

(5) Contractor agrees and understands that iPads do not depreciate to $0 
value until after 5-years of activation. Therefore, Contractor agrees that 
a functioning iPad shall be maintained for the purposes of the DC 
Program until it fully depreciates to $0. 

c) Upon notification or realization of a device becoming lost, stolen, broken, 
or disposed, Contractor shall perform the following:   

(1) Notify AT&T Customer Service by contacting 855-563-0055.   

(2) Update Contractor’s property log for the DC Program.  



California Department of Aging                                                        DC-2223 Contract  
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 

(3) Notify CDA to allow CDA to turn off connectivity for that device.  

(a) If after December 31, 2023, Contractor shall only perform items (1) 
and (2) above. 

Note: Contractors are not required to replace the lost, stolen, broken, 
or disposed of iPad devices.   

d) If a device is going to a new program participant, the Contractor shall 
perform the following:  

(1) Ensure the device is reset so that all personal information and data is 
deleted from the device for any previous users.   

(2) Notify CDA for any iPad, if prior to December 31, 2023, as CDA can 
support updating the iPad device through the Mobile Iron MDM system 
as well. Similarly, AT&T Customer Service 855-563-0055 can support 
this need as well.  

(3) Update Contractor’s property log for the DC program.  

D.  Contractor Responsibilities for Connectivity Fund: 

a) The Connectivity Fund shall only be used by the Contract for at least one 
of the following services:  

(1) Broadband service support.  

(2) Digital literacy supports.  

(3) Program outreach.  

b) The contractor shall establish in writing the eligibility criteria for any 
supportive services established through the connectivity fund. The 
Connectivity Fund is not limited to supporting individuals with a DC 
Program iPad. Rather, the Connectivity Fund is meant to support all 
individuals affected by the digital divide (i.e., older adults, individuals with 
disabilities, unpaid informal/family caregivers, etc.). 

(1) The eligibility criteria shall be developed by the associated local entity.  

(2) The eligibility criteria may include caregivers. 

 



California Department of Aging                                                        DC-2223 Contract  
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

4. CDA RESPONSIBILITIES: 

A. CDA will purchase and ship the number of iPad devices to Contractor 
established in 1. Program Definitions, Part A.  

B. CDA shall vest title ownership of the purchased devices to the Contractors.  

a. This shall include all CHAT devices that shall be grandfathered into the full 
scope of this agreement. 

b. All CHAT devices grandfathered into the full scope of this agreement shall 
be transferred from CDA to the Contractors. 

c. CDA will email each of the participating Contractors the following:  

i. An inventory spreadsheet of their CHAT devices; and STD 158 
Property Transfer Report form.  

ii. Upon receipt of the inventory spreadsheet and STD 158, the 
Contractor shall review the inventory spreadsheet and, if any 
discrepancy is noted, submit an email to property@aging.ca.gov 
detailing the discrepancy. Please include in the email subject line: 
PSA # Inventory Discrepancy Noted.  

iii. CDA will work with the Contractor to address and resolve the 
discrepancies. If no discrepancies are identified, sign and date STD 
158 as the Property Custodian in box number 6 in the signatures 
section of the form. Once signed, email the STD 158 to 
property@aging.ca.gov and include in the email subject line: PSA # 
Signed STD 158 CHAT Devices.  

iv. Once CDA receives the signed STD 158 from the Contractors, CDA 
will route the STD 158 for internal signatures, and remove the 
CHAT devices from the CDA inventory. CDA will email a completed 
copy of the STD 158 to the participating Contractor and no longer 
track the CHAT devices.  

C. CDA shall pay and manage connectivity of digital devices through AT&T.  

D.  CDA Contract Manager shall provide guidance, information, and access to CDA 
staff as required by the Contractor to provide services under this Agreement. 

 

 

 



California Department of Aging                                                        DC-2223 Contract  
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

5. CONTRACTOR REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

A. The purpose of this project is to reduce isolation, increase connections, and 
enhance self-confidence for older adults by bridging the digital divide through 
providing access to digital resources and information. A third-party evaluator will 
reach out to the Contractor directly to collect available program data information 
in a one-time effort during 2023.   

B. CDA will provide Contractor with a form listing iPads that the Contractor receives. 
Contractor shall update this form monthly and send updates to CDA until all 
iPads have been distributed. The data requested on this form shall include but 
need not be limited to:  

1) Demographic information of iPad recipients, if provided by the participants.  

2) Contact information for iPad recipients.  

3) Confirmation if the iPad recipient would like a digital literacy training provider 
to contact them regarding using the iPad device and accessing other digital 
online resources more effectively.  

C. The Contractor shall provide a summary report within two-months of December 
31, 2023 to describe the planning, implementation and effectiveness of the 
Connectivity Funds. 



California Department of Aging  DD-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A, Attachment 1, Project Representatives 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

EXHIBIT A, ATTACHMENT 1 
PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES 

1. THE PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT 
WILL BE: 

A. PROJECT MANAGER/COORDINATOR 

 Department of Aging Contractor:  
Section/Unit: Division of Home and 

Community Living 
 

Name: Brian Carter  
Title: Project Manager  
Address: 2880 Gateway Oaks Dr. 

Ste 200 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

 

Phone: (916) 928-4669  
Email: brian.carter@aging.ca.gov   

 

B. DIRECT OTHER INQUIRIES TO: 

 Department of Aging Contractor:  
Section/Unit: Division of Home and 

Community Living 
 

Name: Brian Carter  
Title: Project Manager  
Address: 2880 Gateway Oaks Dr. 

Ste 200 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

 

Phone: (916) 928-4669  
Email: brian.carter@aging.ca.gov   

The parties may change their representatives upon providing ten days written notice to 
the other party. Said changes do not require an amendment to this agreement. 

mailto:brian.carter@aging.ca.gov
mailto:brian.carter@aging.ca.gov


DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 
 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS 
 

A. Expenditure of Funds 
 

1. The Contractor shall expend all funds received hereunder in accordance 
with this Agreement, no later than December 31, 2023. 
 

2. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all contracts it 
enters into with subcontractors to provide services pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
 

3. CDA reserves the right to refuse payment to the Contractor or disallow 
costs for any expenditure, as determined by CDA to be: out of compliance 
with this Agreement, unrelated or inappropriate to contract activities, when 
adequate supporting documentation is not presented, or where prior 
approval was required but was either not requested or not granted. 
 

B. Accountability for Funds 
 
1. The Contractor shall maintain accounting records for funds received under 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement. These records shall be 
separate from those for any other funds administered by the Contractor 
and shall be maintained in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles and Procedures.  
 

2. Financial Management Systems: The Contractor shall meet the following 
standards for its financial management systems:  
 
a. Financial Reporting. 
b. Accounting Records. 
c. Complete Disclosure. 
d. Source Documentation. 
e. Internal Control. 
f. Budgetary Control. 
g. Cash Management (written procedures). 
h. Allowable Costs (written procedures). 

 
C. Unexpended Funds 

 
Upon termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement, or dissolution of 
the entity, the Contractor shall return to the State immediately upon written 
demand, any funds provided under this Agreement, which are not payable for 
goods or services delivered prior to the termination, cancellation, or expiration of 
this Agreement, or the dissolution of the entity. 

 



DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
 

D. Funding Contingencies 
 
1. It is understood between the parties that this Agreement may have been 

written before ascertaining the availability or appropriation of funds, for the 
mutual benefit of both parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays 
that would occur if this Agreement were executed after that determination 
was made. 

 
2. This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made 

available to the State through the Budget Acts of the appropriate fiscal 
years for purposes of this program(s). In addition, this Agreement is 
subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by 
the Congress or the Legislature that may affect the provisions, terms, or 
funding of this Agreement in any manner. 

 
3. Limitation of State Liability 

 
Payment for performance by the Contractor shall be dependent upon the 
availability of future appropriations by the Legislature or Congress for the 
purposes of this Contract and approval of an itemized Budget. No legal 
liability on the part of the State for any payment may arise under this 
Contract until funds are made available; the itemized Budget is received 
and approved by the State and the Contractor has received an executed 
contract. 

 
4. Funding Reduction(s) 

 
a. If funding for any State fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the 

Department of Finance, Legislature, or Congress for the purposes 
of this program, the State shall have the option to either: 
 
i. Terminate the Contract pursuant to Exhibit D, Article XII., A 

of this Agreement, or 
 

ii. Offer a contract amendment to the Contractor to reflect the 
reduced funding for this Contract. 

 
b. In the event the State elects to offer an amendment, it shall be 

mutually understood by both parties that: 
 
i. The State reserves the right to determine which contracts, if 

any, under this program shall be reduced. 
 
 
 



DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 
 

ii. Some contracts may be reduced by a greater amount than 
others, and 

 
iii. The State shall determine at its sole discretion the amount 

that any or all of the contracts shall be reduced for the fiscal 
year. 

 
ARTICLE II.  BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION 
 

A. The Contractor shall be compensated for expenses only as itemized in the 
approved Budget and shall not be entitled to payment for these expenses until 
this Agreement is approved and executed by CDA. The approved Budget is 
hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement as part of Exhibit B. 
 

B. The Budget must set forth in detail the items, unit rates and extended total 
amounts for each line item. The Contractor's Budget shall include, at a minimum, 
the following items under this Agreement: 

 
1. Personnel Costs. For each personnel classification, monthly, weekly, or 

hourly rates, as appropriate together with the percentage of time to be 
charged to this Agreement and personnel classifications. 
 

2. Fringe Benefits 
 

3. Contractual costs – subcontract and consultant cost detail. 
 

4. Indirect costs - costs incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting 
more than one cost objective and not readily assignable to the cost. 
 

5. Rent 
 

6. Supplies 
 

7. Equipment/Property - detailed descriptions and total costs. 
 

8. Training. 
 

9. Other Costs - a detailed list of other operating expenses. 
 

10. Connectivity Funds Services – Broadband service support, Digital literacy 
supports, and Program outreach as detailed in Exhibit A. 

 
 
 
 



DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 
 

ARTICLE III.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC FUNDS 
 

A. Program Income 
No Program Income is required under the terms and conditions of this 
agreement. 
 

B. One-Time-Only (OTO) Funds 
No One-Time-Only funding is associated with the terms and conditions of this 
agreement. 

 
C. Matching Contributions 

No match is required under the terms and conditions of this agreement. 
 

D. Administration 
Contractor Administration shall be no more than ten percent (10%) of the total 
program allocation. 
 

E. Equipment 
Equipment/Property with per unit cost over $5,000 or any computing devices, 
regardless of cost, must be included in the Digital Connections 
Equipment/Property pages. 
 

F. Indirect Costs 
1. The maximum reimbursement amount allowable for indirect costs is 

ten percent (10%) of the Contractor’s and/or Subcontractor’s Modified 
Total Direct Costs (MTDC), excluding in-kind contributions and 
nonexpendable equipment, unless there is an accepted negotiated rate. 
[45 CFR 75.414 (c) (1) and (f)]. Indirect costs shall not exceed 10% of the 
Contractor’s MTDC per funding category. 

 
2. Contractors requesting reimbursement for indirect costs shall retain on file 

an approved indirect cost rate or an allocation plan documenting the 
methodology used to determine the indirect costs. 
 

3. For major Institutes of Higher Education and major nonprofit 
organizations, indirect costs must be classified within two broad 
categories: “Facilities” and “Administration.” “Facilities” is defined as 
depreciation on buildings, equipment and capital improvement, interest on 
debt associated with certain buildings, equipment and capital 
improvements, and operations and maintenance expenses.  
“Administration” is defined as general administration and general 
expenses such as the director's office, accounting, personnel and all other 
types of expenditures not listed specifically under one of the subcategories 
of “Facilities” (including cross allocations from other pools, where 
applicable).  [45 CFR 75.414(a)] 



DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
 

ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION 
 

A. The original Contract budget is due electronically to the Contractor’s CDA Local 
Finance Analyst no later than thirty (30) days from the date of the transmission of 
the Budget Display and Contract. 
 

B. The final date to submit a revised budget shall be no later than sixty (60) days 
prior to the end of the Contract period unless otherwise specified by CDA. 

 
C. The Contractor shall ensure that the Subcontractor shall submit a budget, which 

shall be incorporated by reference into the Subcontract and will have, at a 
minimum, the categories listed in Exhibit B above. 
 

D. Funds made available under this agreement shall supplement, and not supplant, 
any federal, State, or local funds expended by a State or unit of general-purpose 
local government. 
 

E. Categorical Budget Transfers 
The Contractor may transfer contract funds between budget categories (Direct 
Costs, Administration, Indirect Costs and Contractual Costs) under the following 
terms and conditions: 
 
1. The Contractor shall submit a revised budget to CDA when one or the 

cumulative categorical budget transfers exceeds twenty-five percent 
(25%) of the total budget. 
 

2. The Contractor shall maintain a written record of all budget changes and 
clearly document all budget changes. Such record shall include the date, 
amount, and purpose of the transfer. This record shall be available to CDA 
upon request and shall be maintained in the same manner as all other 
financial records of the Contractor. 

 
ARTICLE V.  PAYMENTS 
 
The State shall reimburse Contractor with Digital Connections funding that has been 
appropriated, designated, encumbered, or otherwise made available for payment by the State 
under this Agreement. The following applies to all funding within this Agreement: 

 
A. The Contractor shall submit monthly expenditures in an electronic format, 

utilizing the CDA online Local Finance Reporting System (LoFRS), no later than 
the last business day of each month unless otherwise specified by CDA, 
reporting costs and funding for the month prior. 

 
 

 



DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 

B. Payments will be made to reimburse monthly expenditures reported. CDA shall 
process and approve reported expenditures that are based upon actual, not 
estimated expenditures. CDA shall notify the Contractor of any disputed 
expenditures. 
 

C. Contractors shall notify CDA if they wish to be on a reimbursement or advanced 
payment. 

 
1. If Contractor requests reimbursement payment, CDA shall not advance 

one-sixth of the approved total allocated budget amount for the initial 
month of the contract. Payments shall be based on monthly expenditure 
reports as outlined in this section. 
 

2. If Contractor requests an advance payment, CDA shall advance one-sixth 
of the approved total allocated budget amount for the initial month of the 
contract. Future payments shall be based on monthly expenditure reports 
as outlined in this section. 

 
D. The Contractor shall submit timely expenditures to CDA. Late expenditures may 

lead to a delay in payment until the following month. 
 

E. Upon written request by CDA, Contractor shall submit additional documentation 
or justification to support the reported expenditure. 

 
F. Contractor shall be charged $75 per program funding source(s) for expedited 

payments to recover the fees charged by the State Controller’s Office.  CDA may 
waive the fees on a case-by-case basis as appropriate. 
 
1. Expedite Fees 
 

a. If the contract is executed late to no fault of CDA then the 
contractor may be liable for the incurred processing fees. 
 

b. If the contract is executed late due to CDA’s handling then CDA 
shall cover the incurred processing fees. 

 
G. The Contractor shall ensure, to the extent feasible, that all budgeted funds are 

expended by the expiration of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE VI.  CLOSEOUT 
 

A. A Financial Closeout Report for Digital Connections shall be submitted when 
either the total contract allocation has been expended, or 30 days after the 
expiration of this Agreement, whichever is earlier.  
 



DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 

B. Final expenditures must be reported to CDA in accordance with the Budget 
Display in Exhibit B. If the expenditures reported by the Contractor exceed the 
advanced amount, CDA will reimburse the difference to the Contractor up to the 
contract amount. If the expenditures reported by the Contractor are less than the 
advanced amount, CDA will invoice the Contractor for the unspent funds. 
 
The payment on the invoice is due immediately upon receipt or no later than 30 
days from the date on the invoice.  

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 1 of 32 
EXHIBIT D 

Special Terms and Conditions 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF LANGUAGE CONFLICTS 

A. General Definitions 

1. “Agreement” or “Contract” means the Standard Agreement (Std. 213), Exhibits A, 
B, C, D and E, an approved Budget Display as identified in Exhibit B, and if 
applicable, a Work Plan or Budget Summary, which are hereby incorporated by 
reference; amendments, and any other documents incorporated by reference, 
unless otherwise provided for in this Article. 

2. “Contractor” means the Area Agency on Aging (AAA) awarded funds under this 
Agreement and is accountable to the State and/or federal government for use of 
these funds and is responsible for executing the provisions for services provided 
under this Agreement. 

3. “CCR” means California Code of Regulations. 

4. “CFR” means Code of Federal Regulations. 

5. “UEI” means the Unique Entity ID - a 12-character alphanumeric ID assigned to 
an entity by SAM.gov on April 4, 2022. As part of this transition, the DUNS 
number has been removed from SAM.gov and entity registration, searching, and 
data entry in SAM.gov now require use of the new Unique Entity ID.  

6. “Cal. Gov. Code” means California Government Code. 

7. “OMB” means the federal Office of Management and Budget. 

8. “Cal. Pub. Con. Code” means the California Public Contract Code. 

9. “Cal. Civ. Code” means California Civil Code 

10. “Reimbursable item” also means “allowable cost” and “compensable item.” 

11. “State” and “Department” mean the State of California and the California 
Department of Aging (CDA) interchangeably. 

12. “Subcontractor” means the legal entity that receives funds from the Contractor to 
carry out any part of a federal award identified in this Agreement. 

13. “Subcontract” means any form of legal agreement between the Contractor and 
the Subcontractor, including an agreement that the Contractor or subcontractor 
would consider to be a contract, including vendor type agreements for providing 
goods or services under this Agreement. 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 2 of 32 
14. “Vendor” means an entity selling goods or services to the Contractor or 

Subcontractor during the Contractor or Subcontractor’s performance of the 
Agreement. 

15. “USC” means United States Code. 

16. “HHS” means United States Department of Health and Human Services. 

17. “Allocation” means the process of assigning a cost, or a group of costs, to one or 
more cost objective(s), in reasonable proportion to the benefit provided or other 
equitable relationship. The process may entail assigning a cost(s) directly to a 
final cost objective or through one or more intermediate cost objectives. (2 CFR 
200.1 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

18. “Disallowed costs” means those charges determined to be unallowable, in 
accordance with the applicable Federal statutes, regulations, or the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award. (2 CFR 200.31 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

19. “Questioned Costs” means a cost that is questioned by the auditor because of an 
audit finding which resulted from a violation or possible violation of a statute, 
regulation, or the terms and conditions of a Federal award, including for funds 
used to match Federal funds; where the costs, at the time of the audit, are not 
supported by adequate documentation; or where the costs incurred appear 
unreasonable and do not reflect the actions a prudent person would take in the 
circumstances. (2 CFR 200.1 and 45 CFR 75.2). 

20. “Recoverable cost” means the state and federal share of the questioned cost. 

B. Resolution of Language Conflicts 

The terms and conditions of this federal award and other requirements have the 
following order of precedence, if there is any conflict in what they require: 

1. The Interagency Agreement Terms and Conditions. 

2. Other applicable federal statutes and their implementing regulations. 

3. If applicable, other California State codes and regulations. 

4. Standard Agreement (Std. 213), all Exhibits and any amendments thereto. 

5. Any other documents incorporated herein by reference including, if applicable, 
the federal HHS terms and conditions found in Part II of the HHS Grant Policy 
Statement. The HHS Grant Policy Statement is available under the HHS Policy 
Requirements Topic at https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-
regulations/index.html  

6. Program memos and other guidance issued by CDA. 

  

https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-regulations/index.html
https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-regulations/index.html


California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 3 of 32 
ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES 

A. Law, Policy and Procedure, Licenses, and Certificates 

The Contractor agrees to administer this Agreement and require any subcontractors to 
administer their subcontracts in accordance with this Agreement, and with all applicable 
local, State, and federal laws and regulations including, but not limited to, discrimination, 
wages and hours of employment, occupational safety, and to fire, safety, health, and 
sanitation regulations, directives, guidelines, and/or manuals related to this Agreement 
and resolve all issues using good administrative practices and sound judgment.  The 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall keep in effect all licenses, permits, notices, and 
certificates that are required by law. 

B. Subcontracts 

The Contractor shall require language in all subcontracts to require all subcontractors to 
comply with all applicable State and federal laws. 

C. Nondiscrimination  

The Contractor shall comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination.  
These include those statutes and laws contained in the Contractor Certification Clauses 
(CCC 307), which is hereby incorporated by reference.  In addition, the Contractor shall 
comply with the following: 

1. Equal Access to Federally-Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities 

The Contractor shall ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 [42 USC 2000d; 45 CFR 80], which prohibits recipients of federal financial 
assistance from discriminating against persons based on race, color, religion, or 
national origin. 

2. Equal Access to State-Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities 

The Contractor shall, unless exempted, ensure compliance with the requirements 
of Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 et seq., and 2 CCR § 11140 et seq., which prohibit 
recipients of state financial assistance from discriminating against persons based 
on race, national origin, ethnic group identification, religion, age, sex, sexual 
orientation, color, or disability.  [22 CCR § 98323] 

3. California Civil Rights Laws 

The Contractor shall, ensure compliance with the requirements of California 
Public Contract Code § 2010 by submitting a completed California Civil Rights 
Laws Certification, prior to execution of this Agreement. The certificate is 
available at: http://www.dgs.ca.gov/ols/Forms.aspx  

 

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/ols/Forms.aspx


California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 4 of 32 
The California Civil Rights Laws Certification ensures Contractor compliance with 
the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Cal. Civ. Code § 51) and the Fair Employment and 
Housing Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 12960), and ensures that Contractor internal 
policies are not used in violation of California Civil Rights Laws. 

4. The Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to 
the ADA.  [42 USC 12101 et seq.] 

5. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all contracts it enters into 
with subcontractors to provide services pursuant to this Agreement. 

D. Standards of Work 

The Contractor agrees that the performance of work and services pursuant to the 
requirements of this Agreement shall conform to accepted professional standards. 

E. Conflict of Interest 

1. The Contractor shall prevent employees, consultants, or members of governing 
bodies from using their positions for purposes including, but not limited to, the 
selection of subcontractors, that are, or give the appearance of being, motivated 
by a desire for private gain for themselves or others, such as family, business, or 
other ties.  In the event that the State determines that a conflict of interest exists, 
any increase in costs associated with the conflict of interest may be disallowed 
by the State and such conflict may constitute grounds for termination of the 
Agreement. 

2. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit employment of persons with 
whom the Contractor’s officers, agents, or employees have family, business, or 
other ties, so long as the employment of such persons does not result in a 
conflict of interest (real or apparent) or increased costs over those associated 
with the employment of any other equally qualified applicant, and such persons 
have successfully competed for employment with the other applicants on a merit 
basis. 

F. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 

1. The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or 
retained to solicit this Agreement.  There has been no agreement to make 
commission payments in order to obtain this Agreement. 

2. For breach or violation of this warranty, CDA shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement without liability or at its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price 
or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, 
percentage, brokerage, or contingency fee. 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 5 of 32 
G. Payroll Taxes and Deductions 

The Contractor shall promptly forward payroll taxes, insurances, and contributions, 
including State Disability Insurance, Unemployment Insurance, Old Age Survivors 
Disability Insurance, and federal and State income taxes withheld, to designated 
governmental agencies as required by law. 

H. Facility Construction or Repair 

This section applies only to Title III funds and not to other funds allocated to other Titles 
under the OAA.  Title III funds may be used for facility construction or repair. 

1. When applicable for purposes of construction or repair of facilities, the Contractor 
shall comply with the provisions contained in the following and shall include such 
provisions in any applicable agreements with subcontractors: 

a. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act.  [18 USC 874, 40 USC 3145] [29 CFR 3] 

b. Davis-Bacon Act.  [40 USC 3141 et seq.] [29 CFR 5] 

c. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. [40 USC 3701 et seq.] 
[29 CFR  5, 6, 7, 8] 

d. Executive Order 11246 of September 14, 1965, entitled “Equal 
Employment Opportunity” as amended by Executive Order 11375 of 
October 13, 1967, as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations.  
[41 CFR 60] 

2. Payments are not permitted for construction, renovation, alteration, improvement, 
or repair of privately-owned property which would enhance the owner’s value of 
such property except where permitted by law and by CDA. 

3. When funding is provided for construction and non-construction activities, the 
Contractor must obtain prior written approval from CDA before making any fund 
or budget transfers between construction and non-construction. 

I. Contracts in Excess of $100,000 

If all funding provided herein exceeds $100,000, the Contractor shall comply with all 
applicable orders or requirements issued under the following laws: 

1. Clean Air Act, as amended.  [42 USC 7401] 

2. Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended.  [33 USC 1251 et seq.] 

3. Environmental Protection Agency Regulations.  [40 CFR 29] [Executive Order 
11738] 

4. State Contract Act [Cal. Pub. Con. Code §10295 et seq.] 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 6 of 32 
5. Unruh Civil Rights Act [Cal. Pub. Con. Code § 2010] 

J. Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters 

1. The Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 
subcontractors: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by 
any federal department or agency.   

b. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this Agreement, been 
convicted of, or had a civil judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, 
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, State, or local) 
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or 
State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or 
receiving stolen property. 

c. Are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 
a governmental entity (federal, State, or local) with commission of any of 
the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification. 

d. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this Agreement, had one or 
more public transactions (federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or 
default. 

2. The Contractor shall report immediately to CDA in writing, any incidents of 
alleged fraud and/or abuse by either the Contractor or subcontractors. 

3. The Contractor shall maintain any records, documents, or other evidence of fraud 
and abuse until otherwise notified by CDA. 

4. The Contractor agrees to timely execute any and all amendments to this 
Agreement or other required documentation relating to the Subcontractor’s 
debarment/suspension status. 

K. Agreement Authorization 

1. If a public entity, the Contractor shall submit to CDA a copy of an approved 
resolution, order, or motion referencing this Agreement number authorizing 
execution of this Agreement.  If a private nonprofit entity, the Contractor shall 
submit to CDA an authorization by the Board of Directors to execute this 
Agreement, referencing this Agreement number. 

2. These documents, including minute orders must also identify the action taken. 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 7 of 32 
3. Documentation in the form of a resolution, order, or motion by the Governing 

Board of the AAA is required for the original and each subsequent amendment to 
this Agreement.  This requirement may also be met by a single resolution from 
the Governing Board of the Contractor authorizing the AAA Director or designee 
to execute the original and all subsequent amendments to this Agreement. 

L. Contractor’s Staff 

1. The Contractor shall maintain adequate staff to meet the Contractor’s obligations 
under this Agreement. 

2. This staff shall be available to the State for training and meetings which the State 
may find necessary from time to time. 

M. UEI Number and Related Information 

1. The Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) changed from the DUNS Number to the UEI 
(generated by SAM.gov) on April 4, 2022.  The UEI number must be provided to 
the CDA prior to the execution of this Agreement.  Business entities may register 
for a UEI number at http://sam.gov/content/duns-uei.  

2. The Contractor must register the UEI number and maintain an “Active” status 
within the federal System for Award Management available online at 
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1.  

3. If CDA cannot access or verify “Active” status the Contractor’s UEI information, 
which is related to this federal subaward on the Federal Funding Accountability 
and Transparency Act Subaward Reporting System (SAM.gov) due to errors in 
the Contractor’s data entry for its UEI number, the Contractor must immediately 
update the information as required. 

N. Corporate Status 

1. The Contractor shall be a public entity, private nonprofit entity, or Joint Powers 
Authority (JPA).  If a private nonprofit corporation or JPA, the Contractor shall be 
in good standing with the Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that 
status throughout the term of this Agreement. 

2. The Contractor shall ensure that any subcontractors providing services under this 
Agreement shall be of sound financial status. 

3. Any subcontracting private entity or JPA shall be in good standing with the 
Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that status throughout the term 
of this Agreement. 

 

 

https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1


California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 8 of 32 
4. Failure to maintain good standing by the contracting entity shall result in 

suspension or termination of this Agreement with CDA until satisfactory status is 
restored.  Failure to maintain good standing by a subcontracting entity shall result 
in suspension or termination of the subcontract by the Contractor until 
satisfactory status is restored. 

O. Lobbying Certification 

The Contractor, by signing this Agreement, hereby certifies to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, that: 

1. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 
or employee of any agency; a Member of Congress; an officer or employee of 
Congress; or an employee of a Member of Congress; in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract; the making of any federal grant; the making of 
any federal loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement; and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

2. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Contractor shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, 
in accordance with its instructions. 

3. The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in 
the award documents for all subcontracts at all tiers (including contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements which exceed $100,000) and that all 
subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

4. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was made or entered into. 

5. This certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by 31 USC 1352. 

6. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil 
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such 
failure. 

P. The Contractor and its Subcontractor/Vendors shall comply with Governor’s Executive 
Order B-06-11 which bans expenditures on promotional and marketing items 
colloquially known as “S.W.A.G.” or “Stuff We All Get.” 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 9 of 32 
ARTICLE III.  AGREEMENT 

A copy of this executed Agreement is on file and available for inspection at the California 
Department of Aging, 2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, California 95833. 

ARTICLE IV.  COMMENCEMENT OF WORK 

Should the Contractor or subcontractor begin work in advance of receiving notice that this 
Agreement is approved, that work may be considered as having been performed at risk as a 
volunteer and may not be reimbursed or compensated. 

ARTICLE V.  SUBCONTRACTS 

A. The Contractor is responsible for carrying out the terms of this Agreement, including the 
satisfaction, settlement, and resolution of all administrative, programmatic, and fiscal 
aspects of the program(s), including issues that arise out of any subcontracts, and shall 
not delegate or contract these responsibilities to any other entity.  This includes, but is 
not limited to, disputes, claims, protests of award, or other matters of a contractual 
nature.  The Contractor’s decision is final and the Subcontractor has no right of appeal 
to CDA. 

B. The Contractor shall, in the event any subcontractor is utilized by the Contractor for any 
portion of this Agreement, retain the prime responsibility for all the terms and conditions 
set forth, including but not limited to, the responsibility for preserving the State’s 
copyrights and rights in data in accordance with Article XIX of this Exhibit, for handling 
property in accordance with Article VII. of this Exhibit, and ensuring the keeping of, 
access to, availability of, and retention of records of subcontractors in accordance with 
Article VI. of this Exhibit. 

C. The Contractor shall not obligate funds for this Agreement in any subcontracts for 
services beyond the ending date of this Agreement. 

D.  The Contractor shall have no authority to contract for, or on behalf of, or incur 
obligations on behalf of the State. 

E. The Contractor shall maintain on file copies of subcontracts, memorandums and/or 
Letters of Understanding which shall be made available for review at the request of 
CDA. 

F. The Contractor shall monitor the insurance requirements of its subcontractors in 
accordance with Article XI of this Exhibit. 

 

 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 10 of 32 
G. The Contractor shall require language in all subcontracts to require all subcontractors to 

indemnify, defend, and save harmless the Contractor, its officers, agents, and 
employees from any and all claims and losses accruing to or resulting from any 
subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and any other person, firm, or corporation furnishing 
or supplying work services, materials, or supplies in connection with any activities 
performed for which funds from this Agreement were used and from any and all claims 
and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm, or corporation who may be injured 
or damaged by the Subcontractor(s) in the performance of this Agreement. 

H. The Contractor shall ensure that the Subcontractor will complete all reporting and 
expenditure documents requested by CDA.  These reporting and expenditure 
documents shall be sent to the Contractor in a timely manner and at intervals as 
determined by CDA. 

I. The Contractor shall, prior to the awarding of a subcontract to any for-profit entity, 
submit the following to CDA for review and approval: 

1. The Request for Proposal (RFP) or Invitation for Bid. 

3. All bid proposals received. 

4. The proposal or bid evaluation documentation, along with the Contractor’s 
rationale for awarding the subcontract to a for-profit entity.  [22 CCR 7362] 

5. Description and documentation of dissemination of information concerning the 
RFP to elicit adequate competition. [22 CCR 7356] 

Where a program may be subcontracted to a for-profit organization, the Contractor 
should include in its contract with the for-profit entity, a requirement for performance of a 
program-specific audit of the subcontracted program by an independent audit firm. 

J. The Contractor shall require all subcontractors to maintain adequate staff to meet the 
Subcontractor’s Agreement with the Contractor.  This staff shall be available to the 
State for training and meetings which the State may find necessary from time to time. 

K. If a private nonprofit corporation, the Subcontractor shall be in good standing with the 
Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that status throughout the term of the 
Agreement. 

L. The Contractor shall refer to 2 CFR 200.331, Subpart D - Subrecipient and Contractor 
Determinations and 45 CFR 75.351, Subpart D - Subrecipient and Contractor 
Determinations in making a determination if a subcontractor relationship exists.  If such 
a relationship exists, then the Contractor shall follow the procurement requirements in 
the applicable OMB Circular. 

 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 11 of 32 
M. The Contractor shall utilize procurement procedures as follows: 

1. The Contractor shall obtain goods and services through open and competitive 
awards.  Each Contractor shall have written policies and procedures, including 
application forms, for conducting an open and competitive process, and any protests 
resulting from the process. 

2. For goods and services purchased with Title III or Title VII funds, the procurement 
procedures must include, at a minimum, the requirements set forth in 22 CCR 7352.  
The only exception is contained in 22 CCR 7360(a).  The Contractor issuing a 
noncompetitive award must comply with 22 CCR 7360(b)-(d). 

ARTICLE VI.  RECORDS 

A. The Contractor shall maintain complete records which shall include, but not be limited to, 
accounting records, contracts, agreements, a reconciliation of the “Financial Closeout 
Report” (CDA Closeout) to the audited financial statements, single audit report, and 
general ledgers, and a summary worksheet identifying the results of performing an audit 
resolution of its subcontractors in accordance with Article X. of this Exhibit.  This includes 
the following: Letters of Agreement, insurance documentation, memorandums and/or 
Letters of Understanding, patient or client records, and electronic files of its activities and 
expenditures hereunder in a form satisfactory to CDA.  All records pertaining to this 
Agreement must be made available for inspection and audit by the State or its duly 
authorized agents, at any time during normal business hours.  The reconciliation of the 
CDA Closeout to the Contractor general ledger must be submitted with the CDA Closeout 
package.   

B. All such records, including confidential records, must be maintained and made available 
by the Contractor: (1) until an audit has occurred and an audit resolution has been 
issued or unless otherwise authorized in writing by CDA’s Audit Branch, (2) for such 
longer period, if any, as is required by applicable statute, by any other clause of this 
Agreement, or by Sections A and C of this Article, and (3) for such longer period as 
CDA deems necessary. 

C. If this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the work 
terminated shall be preserved and made available for the same periods as specified in 
Section A above.  The Contractor shall ensure that any resource directories and all client 
records remain the property of CDA upon termination of this Agreement, and are returned to 
CDA or transferred to another contractor as instructed by CDA. 

D. In the event of any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit exception, or other action involving 
the records, all records relative to such action shall be maintained and made available 
until every action has been cleared to the satisfaction of the State and is so stated in 
writing to the Contractor. 

 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 12 of 32 
E. Adequate source documentation of each transaction shall be maintained relative to the 

allowability of expenditures reimbursed by the State under this Agreement.  If the 
allowability of expenditures cannot be determined because records or documentation of 
the Contractor are nonexistent or inadequate according to guidelines set forth in 2 CFR 
200.302 and 45 CFR 75.302, the expenditures will be questioned in the audit and may 
be disallowed by CDA during the audit resolution process. 

F. All records containing confidential information shall be handled in a confidential manner 
in accordance with the requirements for information integrity and security, and in 
accordance with guidelines set forth in this Article, and Article XVIII.  After the 
authorized period has expired, confidential records shall be shredded and disposed of in 
a manner that will maintain confidentiality. 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY 

A. Unless otherwise provided for in this Article, property refers to all assets used in 
operation of this Agreement. 

1. Property includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery, vehicles, furniture, 
tools, and intangibles, etc. 

2. Property does not include consumable office supplies such as paper, pencils, 
toner cartridges, file folders, etc. 

B. Property acquired under this agreement, which meets any of the following criteria is 
subject to the reporting requirements: 

1. Has a normal useful life of at least one (1) year and has a unit acquisition cost of 
at least $5,000 (a desktop or laptop setup, is considered a unit, if purchased as a 
unit). 

2. All computing devices, regardless of cost (including but not limited to, 
workstations, servers, laptops, personal digital assistants, notebook computers, 
tablets, smartphones and cellphones). 

3. All Portable electronic storage media, regardless of cost (including but not limited 
to, thumb/flash drives and portable hard drives). 

C. Additions, improvements, and betterments to assets meeting all of the conditions in 
Section B above must also be reported.  Additions typically involve physical extensions 
of existing units.  Improvements and betterments typically do not increase the physical 
size of the asset.  Instead, improvements and betterments enhance the condition of an 
asset (e.g., extend life, increase service capacity, and lower operating costs).  
Examples of assets that might be improved and bettered include roads, bridges, curbs 
and gutters, tunnels, parking lots, streets and sidewalks, drainage, and lighting systems. 

 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 13 of 32 
D. Intangibles are property which lack physical substance but give valuable rights to the 

owner.  Examples of intangible property include patents, copyrights, leases, and 
computer software.  By contrast, hardware consists of tangible equipment (e.g., 
computer printer, terminal, etc.).  Costs include all amounts incurred to acquire and to 
ready the intangible asset for its intended use.  Typical intangible property costs include 
the purchase price, legal fees, and other costs incurred to obtain title to the asset. 

E. The Contractor shall keep track of property purchased with funds from this Agreement 
that meet the requirements as defined in Exhibit D, Article VII, item B, and submit to 
CDA a Property Acquisition Form (CDA 9023) for all property furnished or purchased by 
either the Contractor or the Subcontractor with funds awarded under the terms of this 
Agreement, as instructed by the CDA.  The Contractor shall certify their reported 
property inventory annually with the Closeout by completing the Program Property 
Inventory Certification (CDA 9024), unless further restricted by Exhibit E, where 
applicable. 

The Contractor shall record, at minimum, the following information when property is 
acquired: 

1. Date acquired. 
2. Item description (include model number). 
3. CDA tag number. 
4. Serial number (if applicable). 
5. Purchase cost or other basis of valuation. 
6. Fund source 

 
F. Disposal of Property 

1. Prior to disposal of any property purchased by the Contractor or the Subcontractor 
with funds from this Agreement or any predecessor Agreement, the Contractor 
must obtain approval from CDA for all reportable property as defined in Section B 
of this Article. Disposition, which includes sale, trade-in, discarding, or transfer to 
another agency may not occur until approval is received from CDA.  The 
Contractor shall submit to CDA a Request to Dispose of Property (CDA 248).  
CDA will then instruct the AAA on disposition of the property.  Once approval for 
disposal has been received from CDA and the AAA has reported to CDA the 
Property Survey Report’s (STD 152) Certification of Disposition, the item(s) shall 
be removed from the Contractor’s inventory report.  Contractor will be liable for 
repayment of purchase price of equipment if Contractor disposes of equipment 
without prior approval from CDA. 

 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 14 of 32 
2. The Contractor must remove all confidential, sensitive, or personal information 

from CDA property prior to disposal, including removal or destruction of data on 
computing devices with digital memory and storage capacity.  This includes, but 
is not limited to magnetic tapes, flash drives, personal computers, personal digital 
assistants, cell or smart phones, multi-function printers, and laptops. 

G. Any loss, damage, or theft of equipment shall be investigated and fully documented, 
and any theft of equipment shall be promptly reported to the police The Contractor shall 
promptly notify CDA of any loss, damage, or theft of equipment and shall provide copies 
of investigative documentation and police reports.   

H. The State reserves title to all State-purchased or financed property not fully consumed 
in the performance of this Agreement, unless otherwise required by federal law or 
regulations or as otherwise agreed by the parties. 

I. The Contractor shall exercise due care in the use, maintenance, protection, and 
preservation of such property during the period of the project, and shall assume 
responsibility for replacement or repair of such property during the period of the project, 
or until the Contractor has complied with all written instructions from CDA regarding the  

J. In the event of the Contractor’s dissolution or upon termination of this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall provide a final property inventory to the State.  The State reserves the 
right to require the Contractor to transfer such property to another entity, or to the State. 

K. To exercise the above right, no later than one hundred twenty (120) days after 
termination of this Agreement or notification of the Contractor’s dissolution, the State will 
issue specific written disposition instructions to the Contractor. 

L. The Contractor shall use the property for the purpose for which it was intended under 
the Agreement.  When no longer needed for that use, the Contractor shall use it, if 
needed, and with written approval of the State for other purposes in this order: 

1. For another CDA program providing the same or similar service. 

2. For another CDA-funded program. 

M. The Contractor may share use of the property and equipment or allow use by other 
programs, upon written approval from CDA.  As a condition of the approval, CDA may 
require reimbursement under this Agreement for its use. 

N. The Contractor or subcontractors shall not use equipment or supplies acquired under 
this Agreement with federal and/or State monies for personal gain or to usurp the 
competitive advantage of a privately-owned business entity. 

O. If purchase of equipment is a reimbursable item, the equipment to be purchased will be 
specified in the Budget Summary. 

P. The Contractor shall include the provisions contained in this Article in all its 
subcontracts awarded under this Agreement. 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 15 of 32 
ARTICLE VIII.  ACCESS 

The Contractor shall provide access to the federal or State contracting agency, the California 
State Auditor, the Comptroller, General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized 
federal or State representatives to any books, documents, papers, and records of the 
Contractor or subcontractor which are directly pertinent to this specific Agreement for the 
purpose of making an audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.  The Contractor shall 
include this requirement in its subcontracts. 

ARTICLE IX.  MONITORING AND EVALUATION 

A. Authorized State representatives shall have the right to monitor and evaluate the 
Contractor’s administrative, fiscal and program performance pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Said monitoring and evaluation may include, but is not limited to, 
administrative processes, fiscal, data and procurement components.  This will include 
policies, procedures, procurement, audits, inspections of project premises, interviews of 
project staff and participants, and when applicable, inspection of food preparation sites. 

ARTICLE IX.  MONITORING AND EVALUATION (Continued) 

B. The Contractor shall cooperate with the State in the monitoring and evaluation 
processes, which include making any administrative, program and fiscal staff available 
during any scheduled process. 

C. The Contractor shall monitor contracts and subcontracts to ensure compliance with 
laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts that may have a direct and/or material 
effect on each of its CDA funded programs. 

D. The Contractor is responsible for maintaining supporting documentation including 
financial and statistical records, contracts, subcontracts, monitoring reports, and all 
other pertinent records until an audit has occurred and an audit resolution has been 
issued or unless otherwise authorized in writing by CDA. 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 

A. General 

1. Any duly authorized representative of the federal or State government, which 
includes but is not limited to the State Auditor, CDA Staff, and any entity selected 
by State to perform inspections, shall have the right to monitor and audit 
Contractor and all subcontractors providing services under this Agreement 
through on-site inspections, audits, and other applicable means the State 
determines necessary. In the event that CDA is informed of an audit by an 
outside federal or State government entity affecting the Contractor, CDA will 
provide timely notice to Contractor. 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 16 of 32 
2. Contractor shall make available all reasonable information necessary to 

substantiate that expenditures under this agreement are allowable and allocable, 
including, but not limited to books, documents, papers, and records. Contractor 
shall agree to make such information available to the federal government, the 
State, or any of their duly authorized representatives, including representatives of 
the entity selected by State to perform inspections, for examination, copying, or 
mechanical reproduction, on or off the premises of the appropriate entity upon a 
reasonable request. 

3. All agreements entered into by Contractor and subcontractors with audit firms for 
purposes of conducting independent audits under this Agreement shall contain a 
clause permitting any duly authorized representative of the federal or State 
government access to the supporting documentation of said audit firm(s). 

4. The Contractor shall cooperate with and participate in any further audits which 
may be required by the State, including CDA fiscal and compliance audits. 

B. CDA Fiscal and Compliance Audits 

1. The CDA Audits Branch shall perform fiscal and compliance audits of 
Contractors in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing 
Standards (GAGAS) to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations, 
grants, and contract requirements. 

2. The CDA fiscal and compliance audits may include, but not be limited to, a 
review of: 
 
a. Financial closeouts (2 CFR 200.1 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

b. Internal controls (2 CFR 200.303 and 45 CFR 75.303) 

c. Allocation of expenditures (2 CFR 200.1 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

d. Allowability of expenditures (2 CFR 200.403 and 45 CFR 75.403) 

e. Equipment expenditures and approvals, if required (2 CFR 200.439 and 
45 CFR 75.439) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 17 of 32 
C. Single Audit Reporting Requirements (2 CFR 200 Subpart F and 45 CFR 75 Subpart F) 

1. Contractor Single Audit Reporting Requirements 

a. Contractors that expend $750,000 or more in federal funds shall arrange 
for an audit to be performed as required by the Single Audit Act of 1984, 
Public Law 98-502; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, Public Law 
104-156; 2 CFR 200.501 to 200.521 and 45 CFR 75.501 to 75.521.  A 
copy shall be submitted to the: 

California Department of Aging 
Attention:  Audits Branch 
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 
Sacramento, California 95833 

b. The copy shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after receipt of the 
Auditor’s report or nine (9) months after the end of the audit period, 
whichever occurs first, or unless a longer period is agreed to in advance 
by the cognizant or oversight agency. 

c. For purposes of reporting, the Contractor shall ensure that State-funded 
expenditures are displayed discretely along with the related federal 
expenditures in the single audit report’s “Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards” (SEFA) under the Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance (CFDA) number. 

d. For State contracts that do not have CFDA numbers, the Contractor shall 
ensure that the State-funded expenditures are discretely identified in the 
SEFA by the appropriate program name, identifying grant/contract 
number, and as passed through CDA. 

2. The Contractor shall perform a reconciliation of the “Financial Closeout Report” 
to the audited financial statements, single audit, and general ledgers.  The 
reconciliation shall be maintained and made available for CDA review.  The 
reconciliation must be submitted with the CDA Closeout package. 

3. Contract Resolution of Contractor’s Subrecipients 

The Contractor shall have the responsibility for resolving its contracts with 
subcontractors to determine whether funds provided under this Agreement are 
expended in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and provisions of 
contracts or agreements.  The Contractor shall, at a minimum, perform Contract 
resolution within fifteen (15) months of the "Financial Closeout Report." 

4. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontractor single audit reports meet 2 CFR 
200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F-Audit Requirements 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 18 of 32 
5. Contract resolution includes: 

a. Ensuring that subcontractors expending $750,000 or more in federal 
awards during the subcontractor’s fiscal year have met the audit 
requirements of 2 CFR 200.501 - 200.521 and 45 CFR 75.501 to 75.521. 

b. Issuing a management decision on audit findings within six (6) months 
after receipt of the Subcontractor’s single audit report and ensuring that 
the Subcontractor takes appropriate and timely corrective action. 

c. Reconciling expenditures reported to the Contractor to the amounts 
identified in the single audit or other type of audit if the Subcontractor was 
not subject to the single audit requirements.  For a subcontractor who was 
not required to obtain a single audit and did not obtain another type of 
audit, the reconciliation of expenditures reported to CDA must be 
accomplished through performing alternative procedures (e.g., risk 
assessment [2 CFR 200.332 and 45 CFR 75.352], documented review of 
financial statements, and documented expense verification, including 
match, etc.). 

6. When alternative procedures are used, the Contractor shall perform financial 
management system testing, which provides, in part, for the following: 

a. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each 
federal award or program. 

b. Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds for 
each federally funded activity. 

c. Effective control over, and accountability for, all funds, property, and other 
assets to ensure these items are used solely for authorized purposes. 

d. Comparison of expenditures with budget amounts for each federal award. 

e. Written procedures to implement the requirements of 2 CFR 200.305. 

f. Written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in accordance 
with 2 CFR Part 200 and 45 CFR Part 75, Subparts E - Cost Principles. 

[2 CFR 200.302 and 45 CFR 75.302] 

g. The Contractor shall document system and expense testing to show an 
acceptable level of reliability, including a review of actual source 
documents. 

h. Determining whether the results of the reconciliations performed 
necessitate adjustment of the Contractor’s own records. 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 19 of 32 
7. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontractor single audit reports meet 

2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F - Audit Requirements: 

a. Performed timely – not less frequently than annually and a report 
submitted timely.  The audit is required to be submitted within thirty (30) 
days after receipt of the Auditor’s report or nine (9) months after the end of 
the audit period, whichever occurs first.  [2 CFR 200 512 and 45 CFR 
75.512] 

b. Properly procured – use procurement standards for auditor selection.  
[2 CFR 200.509 and CFR 75.509] 

c. Performed in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing 
Standards.  [2 CFR 200.514 and 45 CFR 75.514] 

d. All inclusive – includes an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) of the financial 
statements; a report on internal control related to the financial statements 
and major programs; an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on compliance 
with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts; and the schedule of 
findings and questioned costs.  [2 CFR 200.515 and 45 CFR 75.515] 

e. Performed in accordance with provisions applicable to this program as 
identified in 2 CFR Part 200, and 45 CFR Part 75, Subpart F, Audit 
Requirements. 

8. Requirements identified in Sections D and E of this Article shall be included in 
contracts with the Subcontractor.  Further, the Subcontractor shall be required to 
include in its contract with the independent Auditor that the Auditor will comply 
with all applicable audit requirements/standards; CDA shall have access to all 
audit reports and supporting work papers, and CDA has the option to perform 
additional work, as needed. 

9. The Contractor shall prepare a summary worksheet of results from the contract 
resolutions performed of all subcontractors.  The summary worksheet shall 
include, but not be limited to, contract amounts; amounts resolved; amounts of 
match verified, resolution of variances; recovered amounts; whether an audit was 
relied upon or the Contractor performed an independent expense verification 
review (alternative procedures) of the Subcontractor in making a determination; 
whether audit findings were issued; and, if applicable, issuance date of the 
management letter; and any communication or follow-up performed to resolve 
the findings. 

 

 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 20 of 32 
10. A reasonably proportionate share of the costs of audits required by, and 

performed in, accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, as 
implemented by requirements of this part, are allowable.  However, the following 
audit costs are unallowable: 

a. Any costs when audits required by the Single Audit Act and 2 CFR 200 
and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements have not been 
conducted or have been conducted but not in accordance therewith; and 

b. Any costs of auditing a non-federal entity that is exempted from having an 
audit conducted under the Single Audit Act and 2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 
75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements because its expenditures under 
federal awards are less than $750,000 during the non-federal entity’s 
fiscal year. 

i. The costs of a financial statement audit of a non-federal entity that 
does not currently have a federal award may be included in the 
indirect cost pool for a cost allocation plan or indirect cost proposal. 

ii. Pass-through entities may charge federal awards for the cost of 
agreed-upon-procedures engagements to monitor subcontractors 
who are exempted from the requirements of the Single Audit Act 
and 2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements.  
This cost is allowable only if the agreed-upon procedures 
engagements are conducted in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) attestation 
standards, paid for and arranged by the pass-through entity, and 
limited in scope to one or more of the following types of compliance 
requirements: activities allowed or not allowed; allowable costs/cost 
principles; eligibility; and reporting. [2 CFR 200.425] 

ARTICLE XI.  INSURANCE 

A. Prior to commencement of any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide 
for the term of this Agreement, the following insurance: 

1. General liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and 
property damage combined.  Higher limits may be required by the State in cases 
of higher than usual risks. 

2. Automobile liability including non-owned auto liability, of not less than $1,000,000 
for volunteers and paid employees providing services supported by this 
Agreement. 

 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 21 of 32 
3. If applicable, or unless otherwise amended by future regulation, the Contractor 

and subcontractors shall comply with the Public Utilities Commission General 
Order No. 115-F which requires higher levels of insurance for charter-party 
carriers of passengers and is based on seating capacity as follows: 

a. $750,000 if seating capacity is under 8 

b. $1,500,000 if seating capacity is 8 – 15 

c. $5,000,000 if seating capacity is over 15 

4. Professional liability of not less than $1,000,000 as it appropriately relates to the 
services rendered.  Coverage shall include medical malpractice and/or errors and 
omissions. (All programs except Title V). 

B. The insurance will be obtained from an insurance company acceptable to the 
Department of General Services, Office of Risk and Insurance Management (DGS, 
ORIM), or be provided through partial or total self-insurance acceptable to the 
Department of General Services (DGS). 

C. Evidence of insurance shall be in a form and content acceptable to DGS, ORIM. 

D. The Contractor shall notify the State within five (5) business days of any cancellation, 
non-renewal, or material change that affects required insurance coverage. 

E. Insurance obtained through commercial carriers shall meet the following requirements: 

1. The Certificate of Insurance shall provide the statement: “The Department of 
Aging, State of California, its officers, agents, employees, and servants are 
included as additional insureds, with respect to work performed for the State of 
California under this Agreement.”  Professional liability coverage is exempt from 
this requirement. 

2. CDA shall be named as the certificate holder and CDA’s address must be listed 
on the certificate. 

F. The insurance provided herein shall be in effect at all times during the term of this 
Agreement.  In the event the insurance coverage expires during the term of this 
Agreement, the Contractor agrees to provide CDA, at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
expiration date, a new Certificate of Insurance evidencing insurance coverage as 
provided herein for a period not less than the remaining Agreement term or for a period 
not less than one (1) year.  In the event the Contractor fails to keep in effect at all times 
said insurance coverage, CDA may, in addition to any other remedies it may have, 
terminate this Agreement. 

 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 22 of 32 
G. The Contractor shall require its subcontractors under this Agreement, other than units of 

local government which are similarly self-insured, to maintain adequate insurance 
coverage for general liability, Worker’s Compensation liabilities, and if appropriate, auto 
liability including non-owned auto and professional liability, and further, the Contractor 
shall require all of its subcontractors to hold the Contractor harmless.  The 
Subcontractor’s Certificate of Insurance for general and auto liability shall also name the 
Contractor, not the State, as the certificate holder and additional insured.  The 
Contractor shall maintain Certificates of Insurance for all of its subcontractors. 

H. A copy of each appropriate Certificate of Insurance or letter of self-insurance, 
referencing this Agreement number shall be submitted to CDA with this Agreement. 

I. The Contractor shall be insured against liability for Worker’s Compensation or 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the California Labor Code 
and the Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the 
performance of the work under this Agreement.  [Cal. Labor Code § 3700] 

ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION 

A. Termination Without Cause 

CDA may terminate performance of work under this Agreement, in whole or in part, 
without cause, if CDA determines that a termination is in the State’s best interest.  CDA 
may terminate the Agreement upon ninety (90) days written notice to the Contractor.  
The Notice of Termination shall specify the extent of the termination and shall be 
effective ninety (90) days from the delivery of the Notice.  The parties agree that if the 
termination of the Contract is due to a reduction or deletion of funding by the 
Department of Finance (DOF), Legislature or Congress, the Notice of Termination shall 
be effective thirty (30) days from the delivery of the Notice.  The Contractor shall submit 
to CDA a Transition Plan as specified in Exhibit E of this Agreement.  The parties agree 
that for the terminated portion of the Agreement, the remainder of Agreement shall be 
deemed to remain in effect and is not void. 

B. Termination for Cause 

CDA may terminate, in whole or in part, for cause the performance of work under this 
Agreement.  CDA may terminate the Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to 
the Contractor.  The Notice of Termination shall be effective thirty (30) days from the 
delivery of the Notice of Termination unless the grounds for termination are due to 
threat to life, health or safety of the public and in that case, the termination shall take 
effect immediately.  The Contractor shall submit to CDA a Transition Plan as specified 
in Exhibit E of this Agreement.  The grounds for termination for cause shall include, but 
are not limited to, the following: 

1. In case of threat of life, health or safety of the public, termination of the 
Agreement shall be effective immediately. 

2. A violation of the law or failure to comply with any condition of this Agreement. 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 23 of 32 
3. Inadequate performance or failure to make progress so as to endanger 

performance of this Agreement. 

4. Failure to comply with reporting requirements. 

5. Evidence that the Contractor is in an unsatisfactory financial condition as 
determined by an audit of the Contractor or evidence of a financial condition that 
endangers performance of this Agreement and/or the loss of other funding 
sources. 

6. Delinquency in payment of taxes or payment of costs for performance of this 
Agreement in the ordinary course of business. 

7. Appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator for all or a substantial part of the 
Contractor’s property, or institution of bankruptcy, reorganization or the 
arrangement of liquidation proceedings by or against the Contractor. 

8. Service of any writ of attachment, levy of execution, or commencement of 
garnishment proceedings against the Contractor’s assets or income. 

9. The commission of an act of bankruptcy. 

10. Finding of debarment or suspension.  [Article II J] 

11. The Contractor’s organizational structure has materially changed. 

12. CDA determines that the Contractor may be considered a “high risk” agency as 
described in 2 CFR 200.205 and 45 CFR 75.205.  If such a determination is 
made, the Contractor may be subject to special conditions or restrictions. 

C. Contractor’s Obligation After Notice of Termination 

After receipt of a Notice of Termination, and except as directed by CDA, the Contractor 
shall immediately proceed with the following obligations, as applicable, regardless of 
any delay in determining or adjusting any funds due under this clause. 

The Contractor shall: 

1. Stop work as specified in the Notice of Termination. 

2. Place no further subcontracts for materials or services, except as necessary, to 
complete the continued portion of the Contract. 

3. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated. 

4. Settle all outstanding liabilities and termination settlement proposals arising from 
the termination of subcontracts, (the approval or ratification of which will be final 
for purposes of this clause). 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 24 of 32 
D. Effective Date 

Termination of this Agreement shall take effect immediately in the case of an 
emergency such as threat to life, health, or safety of the public.  The effective date for 
Termination with Cause or for funding reductions is thirty (30) days and Termination 
without Cause is ninety (90) days subsequent to written notice to the Contractor.  The 
notice shall describe the action being taken by CDA, the reason for such action and, 
any conditions of the termination, including the date of termination. 

E. Voluntary Termination of Area Plan Agreement (Title III Only) 

Pursuant to 22 CCR 7210, the Contractor may voluntarily terminate its contract prior to 
its expiration either by mutual agreement with CDA or upon thirty (30) days written 
notice to CDA.  In case of voluntary termination, the Contractor shall allow CDA up to 
one hundred eighty (180) days to transition services.  The Contractor shall submit a 
Transition Plan in accordance with Exhibit E of this Agreement. 

F. Notice of Intent to Terminate by Contractor (All other non-Title III Programs) 

In the event the Contractor no longer intends to provide services under this Agreement, 
the Contractor shall give CDA Notice of Intent to Terminate.  Such notice shall be given 
in writing to CDA at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the proposed 
termination date.  Unless mutually agreed upon, the Contractor does not have the 
authority to terminate the Agreement.  The Notice of Intent to Terminate shall include 
the reason for such action and the anticipated last day of work.  The Contractor shall 
submit a Transition Plan in accordance with Exhibit E. 

G. In the Event of a Termination Notice 

CDA will present written notice to the Contractor of any condition, such as, but not 
limited to, transfer of clients, care of clients, return of unspent funds; and disposition of 
property, which must be met prior to termination. 

ARTICLE XIII.  REMEDIES 

The Contractor agrees that any remedy provided in this Agreement is in addition to and not in 
derogation of any other legal or equitable remedy available to CDA as a result of breach of this 
Agreement by the Contractor, whether such breach occurs before or after completion of the 
project. 

ARTICLE XIV.  DISSOLUTION OF ENTITY 

The Contractor shall notify CDA immediately of any intention to discontinue existence of the 
entity or to bring an action for dissolution. 

 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 25 of 32 
ARTICLE XV.  AMENDMENTS, REVISIONS OR MODIFICATIONS 

A. No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing, signed and approved through the State amendment process in accordance with 
the State Contract Manual.  No oral understanding or agreement not incorporated in this 
Agreement is binding on any of the parties. 

B. The State reserves the right to revise, waive, or modify the Agreement to reflect any 
restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by Congress or the Legislature or as 
directed by the Executive Branch of State government. 

ARTICLE XVI.  NOTICES 

A. Any notice to be given hereunder by either party to the other may be effected by 
personal delivery in writing or by registered or certified mail, overnight mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested, provided the Contractor retains receipt, and shall be 
communicated as of actual receipt. 

B. Any notice given to CDA for the Contractor’s change of legal name, main address, or 
name of the Director shall be completed by submitting a Std. 204 form to 
AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. 

C. All other notices with the exception of those identified in Section B of this Article shall be 
addressed to the California Department of Aging, AAA Based Teams, 2880 Gateway 
Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, California, 95833.  Notices mailed to the Contractor 
shall be to the address indicated on the coversheet of this Agreement. 

D. Either party may change its address by written notice to the other party in accordance 
with this Article. 

ARTICLE XVII.  DEPARTMENT CONTACT 

A. The name of CDA’s contact to request revisions, waivers, or modifications affecting this 
Agreement, will be provided by the State to the Contractor upon full execution of this 
Agreement. 

B. Contractor shall submit to CDA changes to Contractor’s legal name, main address, 
Director, or any key staff to be added or removed from the distribution list by submitting 
a Contact Report to AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. You may request the Contact 
Report by emailing AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov
mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov
mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 26 of 32 
ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY 

A. Information Assets 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall have in place operational 
policies, procedures, and practices to protect State information assets, including those 
assets used to store or access Personal Health Information (PHI), Personal Information 
(PI) and  any information protected under the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA), (i.e., public, confidential, sensitive and/or personal 
identifying information) herein referred to as Personal, Sensitive and Confidential 
Information (PSCI) as specified in the State Administrative Manual, 5300 to 5365.3; Cal. 
Gov. Code § 11019.9, DGS Management Memo 06-12; DOF Budget Letter 06-34; and 
CDA Program Memorandum 07-18 Protection of Information Assets and the Statewide 
Health Information Policy Manual. 

Information assets may be in hard copy or electronic format and may include but is not 
limited to: 

1. Reports 
2. Notes 
3. Forms 
4. Computers, laptops, cellphones, printers, scanners 
5. Networks (LAN, WAN, WIFI) servers, switches, routers 
6. Storage media, hard drives, flash drives, cloud storage 
7. Data, applications, databases 

B. Encryption of Computing Devices 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, are required to use 128-Bit encryption 
for PSCI data that is collected and stored under this Agreement that is confidential, 
sensitive, and/or personal information including data stored on all computing devices 
(including but not limited to, workstations, servers, laptops, personal digital assistants, 
notebook computers and backup media) and/or portable electronic storage media 
(including but not limited to, discs, thumb/flash drives, portable hard drives, and backup 
media). 

C. Disclosure 

1. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all PSCI is 
protected from inappropriate or unauthorized access or disclosure in accordance 
with applicable laws, regulations and State policies.   

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall protect from unauthorized 
disclosure, PSCI such as names and other identifying information concerning 
persons receiving services pursuant to this Agreement, except for statistical 
information not identifying any participant. 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 27 of 32 
2. “Personal Identifying information” shall include, but not be limited to: name; 

identifying number; social security number; state driver’s license or state 
identification number; financial account numbers; and symbol or other identifying 
characteristic assigned to the individual, such as finger or voice print or a 
photograph. 

3. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall not use PSCI above for 
any purpose other than carrying out the Contractor’s obligations under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor and its Subcontractors are authorized to disclose 
and access identifying information for this purpose as required by OAA. 

4. The Contractor and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall not, except as otherwise 
specifically authorized or required by this Agreement or court order, disclose any 
identifying information obtained under the terms of this Agreement to anyone 
other than CDA without prior written authorization from CDA.  The Contractor 
may be authorized, in writing, by a participant to disclose identifying information 
specific to the authorizing participant. 

5. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, may allow a participant to 
authorize the release of information to specific entities, but shall not request or 
encourage any participant to give a blanket authorization or sign a blank release, 
nor shall the Contractor accept such blanket authorization from any participant. 

D. Security Awareness Training 

1. The Contractor’s employees, Subcontractors/Vendors, and volunteers handling 
PSCI must complete the required CDA Security Awareness Training module 
located at https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources within thirty 
(30) days of the start date of the Contract/Agreement, within thirty (30) days of 
the start date of any new employee, Subcontractor, Vendor or volunteer’s 
employment and annually thereafter. 

2. The Contractor must maintain certificates of completion on file and provide them 
to CDA upon request. 

E. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 

The Contractor agrees to comply with the privacy and security requirements of HIPAA 
and ensure that Subcontractors/Vendors comply with the privacy and security 
requirements of HIPAA. 

F. Information Integrity and Security Statement 

The Contractor shall sign and return an Information Integrity and Security Statement 
(CDA 1024) form with this Agreement.  This is to ensure that the Contractor is aware of, 
and agrees to comply with, their obligations to protect CDA information assets, including 
PSCI, from unauthorized access and disclosure. 

 

https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources


California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 28 of 32 
G. Security Incident Reporting 

A security incident occurs when CDA information assets are or reasonably believed to 
have been accessed, modified, destroyed, or disclosed without proper authorization, or 
are lost or stolen.  The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, must comply with 
CDA’s security incident reporting procedure located at 
https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources. 

H. Security Breach Notifications 

Notice must be given by the Contractor, and/or its Subcontractors/Vendors to anyone 
whose PSCI could have been breached in accordance with HIPAA, the Information 
Practices Act of 1977, and State policy. 

I. Software Maintenance 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall apply security patches and 
upgrades in a timely manner and keep virus software up-to-date on all systems on 
which State data may be stored or accessed. 

J. Electronic Backups 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all electronic 
information is protected by performing regular backups of files and databases and 
ensure the availability of information assets for continued business.  The Contractor, 
and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all data, files and backup files are 
encrypted. 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY 

K. Provisions of this Article 

The provisions contained in this Article shall be included in all contracts of both the 
Contractor and its Subcontractors/Vendors. 

ARTICLE XIX.  COPYRIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA 

A. Copyrights 

1. If any material funded by this Agreement is subject to copyright, the State 
reserves the right to copyright such material and the Contractor agrees not to 
copyright such material, except as set forth in Section B of this Article. 

2. The Contractor may request permission to copyright material by writing to the 
Director of CDA.  The Director shall grant permission, or give reason for denying 
permission to the Contractor in writing within sixty (60) days of receipt of the 
request. 

3.  

https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources


California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 29 of 32 
4. If the material is copyrighted with the consent of CDA, the State reserves a 

royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, prepare 
derivative works, publish, distribute and use such materials, in whole or in part, 
and to authorize others to do so, provided written credit is given to the author. 

5. The Contractor certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in place to 
ensure that State funds will not be used in the performance of this contract for 
the acquisition, operation, or maintenance of computer software in violation of 
copyright laws. 

B. Rights in Data 

1. The Contractor shall not publish or transfer any materials, as defined in 
paragraph 2 below, produced or resulting from activities supported by this 
Agreement without the express written consent of the Director of CDA.  That 
consent shall be given, or the reasons for denial shall be given, and any 
conditions under which it is given or denied, within thirty (30) days after the 
written request is received by CDA.  CDA may request a copy of the material for 
review prior to approval of the request.  This subsection is not intended to 
prohibit the Contractor from sharing identifying client information authorized by 
the participant or summary program information which is not client-specific. 

2. As used in this Agreement, the term “subject data” means writings, sound 
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, designs or graphic representations, 
procedural manuals, forms, diagrams, workflow charts, equipment descriptions, 
data files and data processing or computer programs, and works of any similar 
nature (whether or not copyrighted or copyrightable) which are first produced or 
developed under this Agreement.  The term does not include financial reports, 
cost analyses and similar information incidental to contract administration, or 
theexchange of that information between AAAs to facilitate uniformity of contract 
and program administration on a statewide basis. 

3. Subject only to other provisions of this Agreement, the State may use, duplicate, 
or disclose in any manner, and have or permit others to do so subject to State 
and federal law, all subject data delivered under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XX.  BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES 

A. Needs Assessment 

1. The Contractor shall conduct a cultural and linguistic group-needs assessment of 
the eligible client population in the Contractor’s service area to assess the 
language needs of the population and determine what reasonable steps are 
necessary to ensure meaningful access to services and activities to eligible 
individuals.  [22 CCR 98310, 98314] 

 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 30 of 32 
The group-needs assessment shall take into account the following 
four (4) factors: 

a. Number or proportion of persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 
eligible to be served or encountered by the program. 

b. Frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with the program. 

c. Nature and importance of the services provided. 

d. Local or frequently used resources available to the Contractor. 

This group-needs assessment will serve as the basis for the Contractor’s 
determination of “reasonable steps” and provide documentary evidence of 
compliance with Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 et seq.; 2 CCR 11140, 2 CCR 11200 et 
seq., and 22 CCR98300 et seq. 

2. The Contractor shall prepare and make available a report of the findings of the 
group-needs assessment that summarizes: 

a. Methodologies used. 

b. The linguistic and cultural needs of non-English speaking or LEP groups. 

c. Services proposed to address the needs identified and a timeline for 
implementation.  [22 CCR 98310] 

3. The Contractor shall maintain a record of the group-needs assessment on file at 
the Contractor’s headquarters at all times during the term of this Agreement.  [22 
CCR 98310, 98313] 

B. Provision of Services 

1. The Contractor shall take reasonable steps, based upon the group-needs 
assessment identified in Section A of this Article, to ensure that “alternative 
communication services” are available to non-English speaking or LEP 
beneficiaries of services under this Agreement. 

[22 CCR 11162] 

2. “Alternative communication services” include, but are not limited to, the provision 
of services and programs by means of the following: 

a. Interpreters or bilingual providers and provider staff. 

b. Contracts with interpreter services. 

c. Use of telephone interpreter lines. 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 31 of 32 
d. Sharing of language assistance materials and services with other 

providers. 

e. Translated written information materials, including but not limited to, 
enrollment information and descriptions of available services and 
programs. 

f. Referral to culturally and linguistically appropriate community service 
programs. 

3. Based upon the findings of the group-needs assessment, the Contractor shall 
ensure that reasonable alternative communication services are available to meet 
the linguistic needs of identified eligible client population groups at key points of 
contact.  Key points of contact include, but are not limited to, telephone contacts, 
office visits and in-home visits. 

[22 CCR 11162] 

The Contractor shall self-certify to compliance with the requirements of this 
section and shall maintain the self-certification record on file at the Contractor’s 
office at all times during the term of this Agreement.  [22 CCR 98310] 

4. The Contractor shall notify its employees of clients’ rights regarding language 
access and the Contractor’s obligation to ensure access to alternative 
communication services where determined appropriate based upon the needs 
assessment conducted by the Contractor.  [22 CCR 98324] 

5. Noncompliance with this section may result in suspension or termination of funds 
and/or termination of this Agreement.  [22 CCR 98370] 

C. Compliance Monitoring 

1. The Contractor shall develop and implement policies and procedures for 
assessing and monitoring the performance of individuals and entities that provide 
alternative communication services to non-English and LEP clients.  [22 CCR 
98310] 

2. The Contractor shall monitor, evaluate, and take effective action to address any 
needed improvement in the delivery of culturally and linguistically appropriate 
services.  [22 CCR 98310] 

3. The Contractor shall permit timely access to all records of compliance with this 
section.  Failure to provide access to such records may result in appropriate 
sanctions.  [22 CCR 98314] 

 

 



California Department of Aging  DC-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

                                  Page 32 of 32 
D. Notice to Eligible Beneficiaries of Contracted Services 

1. The Contractor shall designate an employee to whom initial complaints or 
inquiries regarding national origin can be directed.  [22 CCR 98325] 

2. The Contractor shall make available to ultimate beneficiaries of contracted 
services and programs information regarding CDA’s procedure for filing a 
complaint and other information regarding the provisions of Cal. Gov. Code § 
11135 et seq.  [22 CCR 98326] 

3. The Contractor shall notify CDA immediately of a complaint alleging 
discrimination based upon a violation of State or federal law.  [2 CCR 11162, 
22 CCR 98310, 98340] 



Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

Contractor Certification Clauses 
CCC 04/2017 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am 
duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed 
below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the
nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2,
Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with the
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free
workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying
actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,

4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,



2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment 
on the Agreement. 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under 
the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible 
for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the 
following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 
certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et 
seq.)  

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies that 
no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period 
because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders 
Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract 
Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the 
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 
2003.   

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of 
pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 
multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the 
number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full 
year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for 
legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future 
contracts with the State for legal services. 

5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an 
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of 
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the 
State of California. 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, 
other than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of 
perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or 
supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced 
in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, 
or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  
The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree 
Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations website 
located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the 
contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial 
Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with the 
requirements under paragraph (a). 

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts of $100,000 or more,  Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

8. GENDER IDENTITY:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions 
regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has any questions on the 
status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from 
which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and 
which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent 
contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state 
officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the 
negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making 
process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former 
state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was 
employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject 
area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall 
render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive 
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for 
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e)) 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the 
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and 



Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of 
the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it complies 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant 
to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the 
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of 
the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented 
with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting 
agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in 
California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any 
transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are 
some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing within 
the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must 
be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will 
determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary 
of State. 

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State 
with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which 
by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the agreement. 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor shall 
not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the 
State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and 
desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for 
violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally 
determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 
 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all 
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT  
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)                                                                       

In compliance with California Government Code Section 11019.9, California Civil 
Code Section 1798 et seq., Department of General Services Management Memo  
06-12, and Statewide Information Management Manual (SIMM) 5300 the California 
Department of Aging (CDA) hereby requires the Contractor/Vendor to: 

ACKNOWLEDGE: 

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, or disclosure of Personal, Confidential or 
Sensitive Information (PSCI) is a crime and is prohibited under state and federal 
laws, including but not limited to California Penal Code Section 502, California 
Government Code Section 15619, California Civil Code Section 1798.53 and 
1798.55, and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. 
Acknowledge.  

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, disclosure, or modification of PSCI 
information may result in termination of this Contract/Agreement. 

MEET THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS: 

• PSCI information shall be protected from disclosure in accordance with all 
applicable laws, regulations, and policies.  

• PSCI data be protected by authorized access using the principles of least privilege. 
• Any occurrence that actually or potentially jeopardizes the confidentiality, integrity, 

or availability of an information system or the information the system processes, 
stores, or transmits or that constitutes a violation or imminent threat of violation of 
security policies, security procedures or acceptable use policies will immediately be 
reported to CDA by completing a Security Incident Report CDA (1025A and 1025B). 

• All access codes which allow access to confidential information will be properly 
safeguarded. 

• Obligations to protect PSCI information obtained under this Contract/Agreement will 
continue after termination of the Contract/Agreement with CDA.  

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor will complete the required 
Security Awareness Training module located at 
https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/ within 30 days of the start date of the 
Contract/Agreement or within 30 days of the start date of any new employee or 
subcontractor.   This training must be completed annually. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor must comply with CDA’s 
confidentiality and data security requirements as outlined in the 
Contract/Agreement. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contract/Vendor must comply with the 
Appendix D, section XVIII encryption and self-certification requirements as outlined 
in the contract.  

https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/


Page 2 of 2 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT 
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)         

CERTIFY: 

To protect PSCI information by: 

• Accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing or modifying PSCI information only for the 
purpose of performing official duties.

• Never accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing, or modifying PSCI information for 
curiosity, personal gain, or any non-business-related reason.

• Securing PSCI information in approved locations.
• Never removing PSCI information from the work site without authorization. 

Meets the encryption requirements in Exhibit D Article 18: 

Is in full compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements.

Is not in compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements and will achieve 
compliance by ___________. 

I hereby certify that I have reviewed this Confidentiality Statement and will comply 
with the above statements.  

Contractor/Vendor Printed Name and Title 

Contractor/Vendor Signature Date 

CDA Program/Project Contract Number 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS CERTIFICATION 
CDA 9026 (NEW 04/2018)                                                     

 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, a person that submits a bid or 
proposal to, or otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract with, a state 
agency with respect to any contract in the amount of $100,000 or above shall certify, 
under penalty of perjury, at the time the bid or proposal is submitted or the contract is 
renewed, all of the following: 

 
1. CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS:  For contracts executed or renewed after 

January 1, 2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act 
(Section 51 of the Civil Code) and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 
12960 of the Government Code); and 

 
2. EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES: For contracts executed or renewed 

after January 1, 2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy against a sovereign 
nation or peoples recognized by the United States government, the Contractor 
certifies that such policies are not used in violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act 
(Section 51 of the Civil Code) or the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 
12960 of the Government Code). 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State 
of California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Contractor Name (Printed): Federal ID Number: 

By (Authorized Signature): 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 

Date Executed: Executed in the County and State of: 

Indicate all California Department of Aging contracts your organization participates in: 

 Area Plan (AP)  Financial Alignment (FA) 

 HICAP (HI)  MIPPA (MI) 

 MSSP (MS)  SNAP-Ed (SP) 

 Title V (TV)   
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4095  

 

Correction to Board Order and Minutes Regarding 
Fountainhead Consulting Agreement Amendment No. 4 

Public Works 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve amendments to the February 21, 2023 Board Order and corresponding meeting minutes 
regarding approval of Amendment No. 4 to the consulting agreement between the County of Inyo and 
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, to reflect the scope of the amendment.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Amendment No. 4 was previously approved at the February 21, 2023 Board meeting. However, the 
motion - captured in the item Board Order and meeting minutes - did not reference the contract time 
extension to December 1, 2023. The purpose of this agenda Item is to amend the Board Order and 
minutes to recognize the time extension to December 1, 2023 so that the Inyo County Auditor's Office 
will pay Fountainhead Consulting Corporation's closing invoices. The amendment itself was correct and 
the contract does not need to be adjusted. 
 
Draft amended minutes and Board Order are attached, with the corrections highlighted. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund Budget Unit 034600 

Budgeted? Yes   Object Code 5717 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts - None 
 
Additional Information 
California Office of Emergency Services (75%) and Road Maintenance and Repair Act (RMRA) (25%). 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

The board could choose not to approve the document amendments. However, this would not remedy the 
issue with the Auditor's internal requirements. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Board Order - Fountainhead Consulting Agreement Amendment No. 4 - AMENDED 
2. February 21, 2023 Minutes - AMENDED 
3. Fountainhead Amendment No. 4  
  
APPROVALS: 
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 8/18/2023 
Greg Waters Approved - 8/18/2023 
Michael Errante Approved - 8/18/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 8/22/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/23/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/31/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/31/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 8/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



In the Rooms of the Board of Supervisors 
County of Inyo, State of California 

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, t hat at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of t he County of Inyo, State of California, held 

in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 2 I st day of February 2023 an order was duly made and 

entered as follows: 

Public Works -
Fountainhead 
Consulting 
Agreement 
Amendment No. 4 

I Routing 

cc 

Purchasing 
Personnel 
Auditor 
CAO 
Other: PW 
DATE: March 4, 2023 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve 
Amendment No. 4 to the consulting agreement between the County of Inyo and 
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, increasing the contract by 
$137,327.86 to an amount not to exceed $808,366.97 and extending the contract to 
December 1, 2023, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously. 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 21st 

Day of February, 2023 

NATHAN GREENBERG 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

By:----------

AMENDED 

dellis
Highlight

dellis_1
Highlight



INVO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
TRINA ORRILL• JEFF GRIFFITHS• SCOTT MARCELLIN • JENNIFER ROESER• MATT KINGSLEY 

NATE GREENBERG DARCY ELLIS 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER ASST. CLERK OF THE BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

February 21, 2023 
Reference ID: 

2023-3499 

Amendment No. 4 to Fountainhead Consulting 
Agreement 
Public Works 

ACTION REQUIRED 

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 

Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Request Board approve Amendment No. 4 to the consulting agreement between the County of Inyo and 
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, increasing the contract by $137,327.86 to an 
amount not to exceed $808,366.97 and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

BACKGROUND/ SUMMARY/ JUSTIFICATION: 

North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state (2017-11) and 
county emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a 
significantly larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works has secured a Construction 
Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site inspections, monitoring, and 
contractor management. 

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can 
perform inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead 
Consultant Corporation is contracted with Inyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances 
beyond the control of the consultant, the project schedule has been extended. Additionally, the California 
Department of Fish & Wildlife is now requiring a biological monitor on-site through the completion of the 
project. The biological monitor is required on-site one day per week, now that the creek diversion has 
been removed. 

Contract Summary: 
Original Contract $339,928.37 
Amendment #1 $121,829.20 
Amendment #2 Time Extension Only 
Amendment #3 $209,281.54 
Amendment #4 $137,327.86 

Total 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$808,366.97 

P. 0. Drawer N I 224 N. Edwards Street I Independence, CA 93S26 

(760) 878-0292



Funding Non-General Fund Budget Unit 034600 
Source 

Budgeted? Yes (adjustment with Mid-Year) Object Code 5717 

Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure 

Current Fiscal Year Impact 

The FY 22-23 budget was increased by $100,000 in December to cover the projected remaining costs 
for Fountainhead Consulting. Exhibit 10-H1 Cost Proposal dated 1-29-23 from Fountaihead requests 
$137,327.86, a $37,327.86 increase over previous mid-year adjustment. This adjustment is being 
handled with mid-year. 

Future Fiscal Year Impacts - None 

Additional Information 

California Office of Emergency Services (75%) and Road Maintenance and Repair Act (RMRA) (25%). 

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The board could choose not to approve the contract amendment. However, this would prevent the 
project from being completed. 

OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Fountainhead Amendment No. 4
2. Fountainhead Consulting Contract
3. Fountainhead Contract Amendment No. 1
4. Fountainhead Amendment No. 2
5. Fountainhead Amendment No. 3

APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis 
Greg Waters 
Michael Errante 
Breanne Nelums 
John Vallejo 
Amy Shepherd 
Nate Greenberg 

Created/Initiated - 2/8/2023 
Approved - 2/8/2023 
Approved - 2/8/2023 
Approved - 2/8/2023 
Approved - 2/8/2023 
Approved - 2/8/2023 
Final Approval - 2/16/2023 

P. 0. Drawer N I 224 N. Edwards Street I Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 



AMENDMENT NUMBER _4_ TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

FOUNTAINHEAD CONSUL TING CORPORATION 

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Fountainhead Consulting 
Corporation of Anaheim, CA (hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), have entered into an Agreement for the 
provision of engineering services dated July 7, 2020 , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the 
term from July 7, 2020 to December 31, 2021. 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and 
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain 
continuity. 

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below. 

1. Amend Attachment B to the contract, titled "Schedule of Fees," to replace the current schedule
of fees with the document titled "Exhibit 10-Hl Cost Proposal," which is attached hereto.

2. Amend section 2 of the contract, titled "Term," to modify the end date of the contract from July
1, 2023 to December 1, 2023 to allow for project closeout beyond the end of the construction
period.

3. Amend section 3(D) of the contract, titled "Limit upon amount payable under Agreement," to
increase the not to exceed amount by $137,327.86 to a new not to exceed amount of$808,366.97

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is October 1st, 2022 

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same. 

County of Inyo Standard Contract- No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 
Amendment4 

Page 1 



AMENDMENT NUMBER 4 TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

FOUNTAINHEAD CONSULTING CORPORATION 

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULT ANT SERVICES 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HA VE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
DAY OF _______ __, 2023. 

COUNTY OF INYO 

By: _____ _ 

(Yi 

Dated: __ 0_2/_2_1/_2 _02_3 ____ _ _ __ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY: 

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING 
FORM: 

County Auditor 

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL 
REQUIREMENTS: 

f P rsonnel Services 

County Risk 

CONSULTANT 

By: ____________ _ 

Dated: ____________ _ 

County oflnyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 
Amendment4 

Page2 



Local Assistance Procedures Manual 

EXHIBIT 10-Hl COST PROPOSAL l'agc I of3 

COST-PLUS-FIXED FEE OR LUMP SUM OR FIRM FIXED PRICE CONTRACTS 

(DESIGN, ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES) 

EXHIBIT 10-H1 
Cost Proposal 

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed 0 Prime Consultant □ Subconsultant □ 2nd Tier Subconsultant 

Consultant Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 

Contract No. 156 Date Project No. 4_8�C�0�0_ 4_4 _____ _ --------- ---------

DIRECT LABOR 

Classificatioo/fitle 

Project Manager/Resident Engine, Ivan Benavidez 

SINCluros Roproeontallva Javid Sharifi 

lnapeclor/Offlce Engineer Brian French 

LABOR COSTS 
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

Name 

b) Anticipated Salary lncreascs (see page 2 for calculation)

Hours Actual Hourly Rate 

30.00 $ 81.00 

65.00 $ 78.00 

520.00 $ 60.90 

$39,168.00 

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS ((a)+ (b)]
INDIRECT COSTS 
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 0.00% )
f) Overhead (Rate: 0.00% )

e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)]
g) Overhead [(c) x (t)]

$ 0.00 
$0.00 

h) General and Administrative (Rate: 104.0(Vt) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)] $40,734.72 

FIXED FEE 

j) TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS ((e) + (g) + (i)]

k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [(c) + G)] x fixed fee 5.00% J

Total 

$2,430.00 

$5,070.00 

$31,668.00 

$0.00 

$39,168.00 

$40,734.72 

$3,995.14 

I) CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS (ODC)- ITEMIZE (Add additional pages if necessary)
Description of Item Quantity Unit I Unit Cost 

Mileage Costs 
Eauicment Rental and Sucolies 
Permit Fees 
Plan �ho,:,tc 

Test 
1) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS 

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages ifnecessary)
Subconsultant l: Geode Environmental
Subconsultant 2: 
Subconsultant 3: 

Subconsultant 4: 

Total 
$0.00 
$0.00 
9i0.0C 
$0.00 

$ 0.00 
$0 on 

$53,430.00 

m)TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS ____ �$�53=.4�3�0�.0.._0 

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSUL TANTS [(l)+(m)] $ 53 430 00 

TOTAL COST [(c) + (j) + (k) + (n)] ----"$
"""'1-=-37

'"'",3=2"""
7.

=--
86 

NOTES: 
I. Key personnel must be marked with an asterisk(•) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked

with two asterisks (0). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.
2. The cost proposal fonnat shall not be wnended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the

consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.
3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

Page 1 of 9 
January 2020 



Fountainhead Staffing Plan 

12/6/2022 

2022 2023 

Staff Unit July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan-23 23-Feb 23-Mar Total

Biologist 8 Hr/Day for Oct. Bhr/month for Nov 22 - Mar. 23 161 98 32 40 40 40 411 

Inspector 8 Hr/Day 176 160 184 520 

Struc. Rep 1 Hr/Day zz 20 23 65 

RE 2 Hr/Week 10 10 10 30 



In the Rooms of the Board of Supervisors 
County of [nyo, State of California 

l, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, 

he ld in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 7'h day of July 2020 an order was duly made 

and entered as follows: 

Public Works -
Fountainhead 
Consulting Contract 

!Routing

cc 

Purchasing 
Personnel 
Auditor 
CAO: 
Other: Public Worlcs 
DATE: July 7, 2020 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Tillemans to approve the contract 
between Inyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim, CA for the 
performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge 
Construction Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7, 2020 
through December 31, 2021, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously. 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 7th 

Day of JULY, 2020 

� 

\;9 
CLINT G. QUILTER 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

By:---------



#-l.l

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: July 7,2A20

FROM:

SUBJECT: North Round Valley Bridge Construction Management Contract

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim,
CA for the performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge Construction
Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7 , 2020 through Decernber 31, 2021 , and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARYIJ USTIFICATION:
North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead construction will
perform the work described in the attached 'Scope of Work' including but not limited to: contractor management,
budget and schedule tracking, inspection of work, structural representation, biological monitoring, and source
material inspection.

BACKGROUNDIHISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state(2017-1 1) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from moving
fonrvard.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The State of California Office of Emergency Services is funding this project at a reimbursement rate af 75To.

FINANCING:
The cost of the contract will be paid through budget unit 034600 (Road Budget), object code 5717 (Construction
lnspection). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75% by the California Office of Emergency Services (DSR
3602).



Agenda Request 
Page2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Fountainhead CM Contract - 18 Signed

APPROVALS: 

Jacob Trauscht 
Darcy Ellis 
Marshall Rudolph 
Amy Shepherd 
Aaron Holmberg 
Michael Errante 

Created/Initiated - 6/29/2020 
Approved - 6/30/2020 
Approved - 6/30/2020 
Approved - 6/30/2020 
Approved - 6/30/2020 
Final Approval - 6/30/2020 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

fiflp Fountainhead Consulting Corporslion

FOR THE PROVISION OF construclionManssemsnl

INTRODUGTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafier referred to as "Countt'') has the need for the
Construclion Managament of Fountainhesd Consulting Corporation

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), and in consideration the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1, SCOPEOFWORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by thg Dir€clor olPubllcWork$,

Michael Errants Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the
Consultant by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the Count/s request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and, as applicable, as
set forth, in Attachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM

The term of this Agreement Shall be frgm July 7th, 2020 la Dcesmbor 31th, 2021 unless
sooner terminated as provided below. ln addition, County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for
additional one-year periods as follows:

A. From through

B. From through

County shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contraclor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specify the period of lhe options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation, County shall pay Consultant in accordance with tho Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Aftachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Consultant at the Count/s request.

B. Travel and oer diem.. County shall reimburse Consultant for lhe travel expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 1 of 12 
ro1o2o17



Consultant shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests 
by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the 
Director or Public Worl<o, Michael Errante Travel and per diem 
expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem 
Payment (Attachment C). County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per 
diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in 
Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County. 

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, 
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 

D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the County
to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed

$ m.02&.37 (initial term) ________ (option 1) and$ (option 2) for a
total of $ 339.928,37 Dollars {hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly reserves
the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed
which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billing and payment. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 
statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which 
were done at the County's request. This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth 
(5th) day of the month. The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the 
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the 
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day. 
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses, 
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period. The itemized 
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental 
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the 
statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the 
month. 

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant's
when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Consultant under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibility of Consultant. County has no responsibility or liability
for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the
Internal Revenue Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To

County of Inyo Standard Contract- No. 156 

(Independent Consultant - Professional) 

Page 2 of 12 

10102017 



facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultanfs obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A, which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUTRED L|CENSES, CERT|FICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into ihis Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, drive/s
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits wltich are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: b!!B/\,rAwrg&!!Lgov.

6. OFFTCE SPACE, SUppLlES, EQU|PMENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the seruices identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Personal Prooerty of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive propefi of County.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, speeifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the terminalion

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 3 of 12

10102017



of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to Coung.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
Coun$. Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligalion on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in lhis Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fullillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agents, ofiicers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

For professional services rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemniff, including
the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all
claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of Consuftant and its employees or agents in the performance of professional services
under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence,
active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemniff County and its officers, officials, employees,
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including attorney fees arising
out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole
negligence, or willful misconduct of lhe County.

Consultanfs obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the Coung, its agents, officers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement
in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant maintains
higher limits than the minimum required on the Insurance aftachment to this Agreement, the County requires
and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, Coun$ shall defend, indemniff, and hold harmless Consultant, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and altorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or vwongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

County of Inyo Standard Conlract - Nq. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professlonal)

Page 4 of 12

10]'A20t7



,'1. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, mioophotographs, or other authentie reproduction of such records.

B. lnspeclions and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County detennines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be mainiained by Consultant^
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violalion of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex, Consultant and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shallalso abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L, S8-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thirly (30) days vwitten notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days w'iften nolice of such intent to
cancelto Coung.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for lhe services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Consultant shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Consultant shall nol assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior wriften consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, Coun$ may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
wriften notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consultant for seruices and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subseguent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 5 of 12

10fi2017



17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and coun$ laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of provlding services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express wriften
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the Coun$'s written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Tifle 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portabilig and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and M1AA.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. coNFLtcTs.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of lhe work and services under this Agreement.

'9. 
POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the Coung in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years afier the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any Coun$, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option lo cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notiffing
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
nno Q2) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

Counly of lnyo Standard Conlract - No. 156
(lndependent ConEultant - Professional)

Page 6 of 12

10102417



23. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consultant or Coun$ shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo:
Publlc Works Department

Address
City and State

P,O. Dr*er O

Consultant:
Fountalnhgad Consultlng Corporatlon Name

Address
Ci$ and State

2400 E. Katella, Sulto 800

lndopendence, CA

Anahoim, CA 92806

24. ENTIRE AGREEi'ENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements othenlrise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
diseharged, or terminated, unless the same be in w'iting executed by the parties hereto.

lil ilil

County of lnyo Standard Conkact - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

PageT ol 12

1U02417



FOR THE PROVIEIOiI OF Cfiafuodontihrilmnl

AOREEMEIIT EETWEEN COUNIY OF INYO

SERVICEB

HERETO HAVE SFT THEIR HANDS Af{D SEALS TTIIS*u

AND Flt{fnlll'ktrf0r! CoOordb0

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES

'N DAY OF ,tutc

gOUllTYOFlltlYO

By:

lvan

DeEd:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAIIW:

0t^AL

APPRO\IED AS TO ACCOIJNTING FORM:

( '*' vtfuad*&A

Dsl€d:

CqJnlyArdltor

APPROVEDAS

TO

Counly ot lnyo Elrrdld ConLrct - flo. tS6
(lndcpdtd€d Comuffad - Ptofs$lonal)

Prgo I of 12

lo1uo17



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July 7th, 2020

SCOPEOFWORK:

December 31,2Q21

SERVICES

County of lnyo Slandard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 9 of 12

14142417



lnya Caunty Public Works
Page 7 af 16 N o r th Ro un d, **, o" rl";oliiifil ;;::f::t
business relationship with the construction contractor(s) who are working on the projects that are assigned
for material Quality Assurance services through task orders on the contract.

Similar to the disclosures regarding contractors, all firms are also required to disclose throughout the term of
the awarded contract, any Design Engineering services including claim services, Lead Project Management
services and Construction Engineering Services provided to all other clients on any local project tisted in this
Scope of Work.

In addition to the disclosures, the Consultant shall also provide possible mitigation efforts, if any, to eliminate
or avoid any actual or perceived conflicts of interest.

The Consultant shall ensure that there is no conflict before providing services to any construction contractor
on any of the agency's projects' listed in this Scope of Work. The submitted documentation will be used for
determining potential conflicts of interesl

If a Consultant discovers a conflict during the execuHon of an assigned task order, the Consultant must
immediately notify the Contract Manager regarding the conflicts of interesl The Contract Manager may
terminate the Task Order involving the conflict of interest and may obtain the conflicted services in any way
allowed by law. Failure by the Consultant to notify the Contract Manager may be grounds for termination of
the contracl

Some examples of conflict of interest are the followingl
. Certified Materials Tester(s) or Plant Inspectorfs] from the same company that performs Quality

Control for the Contractor and Quality Assurance for the County on the same project,

Providing services to construction contractor's subcontractors, fabricators, equipment installer,
material suppliers and other firms associated with the projects listed in the Contract can be a
potential conflict of interest when such contractor teams are identified.

Scope of Work
The scope of work defined below is based on the County's current understanding of the work to be
performed. The consultant shall review the design documents and environmental permits to identiff any
components not explicitly or implicitly included in this SOW.

Phase I - Pre-Construction
r Review RE Files provided by MGE Engineering, make or request any changes necessary
e Review plans for constructability, advise the County and design engineer
. Review contractors proposed schedule, advise the County and design engineer on potential issues
r Pre-ConstructionlKick-off meeting - Attend and Participate in a Pre-construction meeting
r Veriir all permits are acquired and present at site

o Review all permit requirements
r Produce Construction oversite Plan

o Include construction oversite schedule, to be updated weekly in coordination with
contractor

o Identify inspection and material testing requirements, frequencies, personnel required {i.e.
material tester, structural inspector, bio monitor), and schedule [to be included in the
construction oversite schedule)

Phase II - Construction
r Schedule, lead, and attend weekly [or as needed) construction progress meetings

o Provide minutes and action items, to be sent to stake-holders
o Review contractor supplied critical path management schedule, update on weekly or as-needed

basis



lnyo County Public Worles
Page I af16

Request for Proposals
North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement

r Process Progress Payments
o Prepare monthly quantity estimates, check against contractor invoice statements, make

recommendations to the County regarding payment
. Negotiate and prepare contract change orders, in conjunction with design engineer if needed
r Provide and coordinate with additional required personnel, including but not limited to:

o Structuralrepresentative
o Material Tester
o Biological monitor

r Submittals & RFIs
o Review submittals and RFIs, including responses from design engineer, and incorporate any

changes that effect required inspectionsf testing
o Coordinate with design engineer regarding submittallRFl responses, and potential changes

to inspectionsltesting based on responses
e Provide full-time inspection services

o Produce daily RE diaries, including but not limited to:
r Track Contractor days
r Track Contractor working hours including employee names
r Subs on site
r Maior equipment on site and status
I Description of work completed and task completion status (estimated Yo of total)
r Weather
r Catalog of stop-work and causes
. Any QAIQC work performed including any test/inspection results, pass/fail status

of test/inspection, and any comments that are important for explaining observed
results

o Keep record of all as-built changes for inclusion into the final proiect as-built drawings
o Track quantities of materials used/installed
o Ensure and document compliance with all environmental permits
o Collect, review, and cornpile contractor labor compliance documents
o Inspect construction staking to assure compliance to relevant standards

r Provide sub-contractor to perform quality control material testing services, review results for
compliance with construction contract specifications.

o Notify contractor ofany failingtests
o Provide material tester with weekly schedule up-dates and projections of coming testing

requirements for following week
o Veriff material tests are performed in compliance with the County QAP

o Provide structural inspectionwhen required
e Provide a on-site biological monitor to fulfill requirements of all environmental permits
e Public Outreach

o Provide information to County Project manager to be distributed to public via mailings,
website, or other media

Phase III - Post-Construction
o Proiect Closeout Tasks {Following substantial completion of work)

o Perform site walk and create a punchlist of items to be completed by contractor {or
deducted from final payment)

o Ensure sign-off from outside agencies confirming that restoration has been completed as far
as practicable

o Generate a final quantity estimate, review final contractor payment and provide
recommendations regarding payment to the County

r Generate Final Project Reportto include:
o Summary and results of all QA/QC activities [inspections, material test results, etc)
o Incorporate submittal and RFI logs [provided by design engineer)
o Summary of monthly progress reports



lnyo Caunty Public Works
Page 9 of16 N o rth Ro un d r^ *, rr rl"fliiix;;::tr:::,

o Daily Reports
o Catalogofall as-builtchanges
o Summary/catalog of environmental monitoring compliance

APPENDIXA - PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

These guidelines are provided for standardizing the preparation and submission of Proposal/Proposals by all
responding Consultants, The intent of these guidelines is to assist Consultants in preparation of their
proposals, to simplify the review process, and to help assure consistency in format and content,

Proposals shall contain the following information in the order listed:

l. lntroductoryLetter

The introductory [or transmitta| letter shall be addressed to:

facob Trauscht
Inyo County Public Works
PO Drawer Q
Independenc e, CA 93526

The letter shall be on Consultant letterhead and include the Consultant's contact name, mailing address,
telephone number, facsimile number, and email address. The letter will address the Consultant's
understanding of the services being requested and any other pertinent information the Consultant believes
should be included. AII addendums received must be acknowledged in the transmittal letter,

The letter shall be wet-signed in blue ink by the individual authorized to bind the Consultant to the proposal.

2. Executive Summary

3. Consultant Information, Qualifications & Experience

The County will only consider submittals from Consultants that demonstrate they have successfully
completed comparable projects. These projects must illustrate the quality, type, and past performance of the
proiect team. Submittals shall include a detailed description of a minimum of three (3) proiects within the
past five [5J years which include the following information:

1. Contracting agency
2. Contracting agency Project Manager
3. Contracting agency contact information
4, Contractamount
5. Funding source
6, Date ofcontract
7. Date of completion
8. Consultant Project Manager and contact information
9. Project Objective
10. Project Description
11. Project Outcome

4. OrganizationandApproach



ATTACHIIIIENT B

AGREEIIIENT BETWEEN COUNTYOF INYO

gpp Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FORTHE pROVtStON gp Construction Management SERV|CES

TERM:

FROM: July7lh,2A2Q December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

This contract shall allow the Director of Public Works to add to or modiff the approved job classification list as
necessary to account for personnel changes. The Director of Public Works may only approve changes to the
Schedule of Fees that are not associated with an increase to the contract Not-to-Exceed amount.

County oflnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consullant - Professional)

Page '10 of 12

1clA2A17



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT {0.H1
Cost Proposal

Exruntr lO-Hl Cosr Pnoposal page l or3

Cosr-PLUs-FrxEp F'EE oRu.!!ro oR F|RM X'rxED PRrcE coNTRAcrs
(DESICN, ENGTNEERING AND ENVIRoNMENTAL STI.'DIES)

Note: Markups arsNotAllowed g Prime Consultant n Subconsultant n 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultino Co

Proj ect No. 48COO44 Contract No. 156 Daft 4612612020

DIRNCT LABOR

LABORCOSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs $ 119,784.00

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR cosTs [(a) + (b)]
INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringc Benefits (Rate: O.0q%- ) e) Total Fringe Benefits t(c) x (d)l $ 0.00

0 Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) g) Overhead [(c) x (01 $ 0.00

h) General and Administrative (Rate: 104.q0o/ ) i) Gen & Admin [c) x (h)] $ 124,575,36

j) ToTAL TNDTRECT COSTS (e) + (s) + (i)l

FIXED FEE k) TOTAL I'IXED FEE (c) + (i)] x fixed fee 5.00% l
CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS -ITEMI?,E additional if

l) ToTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add addttional pages if necessary)
Subconsultant I I 7T Cnner rtrinn

Subconsultant 2: Farthcna^tirrcc
Subconsultant 3: Jericho Systems
Suhconsultant 4: Sierra Geotechnieal Serviens

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS TNCLUDTNC SUBCONSULTANTS Kt)+(m)l

NorES: 
TOTAL COST I(c) + (i) + (k) + (n)l

$ 119,784.00

$ 124,575.36

$ 12,217.97

sonn

$ 42,863.04
$ 8,436.00

$ 18.500.00

$ 13,552.00

$ 83.351.04

!* 83 351 0/

$ 339,928.37

L Key personnel 4gg be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked
with trro asterisks (**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.

2, T\e cost proposal format shall not be amended, Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the
consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans,

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

Page 1 of9
January 2020

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total

Prol€ci Msnager/Resld6nt En0.

Slrudures R€pr€ssntativs

lnspsclor/Ofli€ Englnoer

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

Salvador Valdovinos

224.00

6'r6.00

880.00

$ 81.00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

$ 18,144.00

$ 48,048.00

$ 53,592.00

$ 0.00

Description of ltem 0uantitv Unit Unit Cost Total
Mileage Costs $ 0.00
Eouiomenl Rental and Sunnlies $ 0.0c
Permit Fees soorl
Plan Sheels $ 0.00

Test



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 1(l-Ht
Cost Proposal

Exngtr 10-Hi Cosr Pnoposnl pase 2 or3

Cosr-PLus.Frxeo Fee oRLuMp Suu on Frnm Frxeo PncE Cor{TRAcrs
(CnlcuuroNs FoR ArunspRreo SALARv lmcnenses)

1. Calculate Average Hourly Raie for lst year of the conlract (Direct Labor Subtotal dlvldad by tolal hours)

Direct Labor
Subtotal per Cost

Proposal

$250,000 00

Total Hours per
Cost Proposal

500

Proposed Escalation

+ 2o/o =
+ 2o/o =+2%:
+ 2o/o =

Avg
Hourly
Rate

$50.00

5 Year
Contsact
Duratlqn

Year 1 Avg
Hourly Rate

2. Calculata hourly rate for all year: $ncrease the Average Hourly Rate for a year by propced escalation %)

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

Avg Hourly Rate

$50,00
$51.00
$52.02
$53.08

Estimated % Compleled
Each Year
20,Aa/o '
40.0% t
15.0% .
15.0% +

1A.A%
'100%

Avg Hourly Rate
(calculated above)

$50.00
$51.00
$52,02
$53.06
$54.12

$51.00
$52.02
$53.06
$5{.12

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

3. Calculate estlmated hours per year (Multlply estimete % each year by total hours)

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year4
Year S

Total

Estimaled hours
(calculated above)* 1000

' 2000. 750* 700
" 500

Total Hours per
Year
1000 Estimated Hours Year '1

2000 Estimated Hours Year 2
750 Estimated Hours Year 3
750 Estimated Hours Year 4
500 Estimated Hours Year 5

5000

Estimated Hours Year 1

Estimated Hours Year 2
Estimated Hours Year 3
Estimated Hours Year 4
Eetimated HoureYear 5

Total Hours per Cost
Proposal

5000 =
5000 E

5000 =5000 =5000 =Tolal =

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

NOTE$:
1.

4. Calculate Total Coct lncluding Escalalion {Multiply Average Houdy Rate by the number of hours}

Cost per
Year

$50,000.00
$102,000.00
$39,01s.00
$39,735.30
$27,060.80

$257,871,10
$250,000.00

Transfer to Page 1

$7,871.,10

2

This is not the onlyway lo egtimatesalaly increases. Olhe.methodswill be accepted if theyclearlyindicatethe 0/o

increase, the # of years of the contract, and a breakdown of the labor to be pelformed each year.
An eetimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salaly increase % multiplied by the # of years is not
acceptable.
(i,e. $250,000 x 2o/o x 5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)
This assumes that one yearwill be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salaly increases are granted,
Calculations for anticipated salay escalation must be provided.

Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation
Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Eslimated total of Direct Labor Salay
lncreage

J
4

Page 2 of 9
Januay 2020



Local Assistance Proced ures Manual EXHIBIT tO-H1
Cost Proposal

Exxlsrr 10-Hl CoSr PnOpOSnl pase 3 ot3

Certification of Direct Costs:

l, lhe undersigned, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that alldirect costs idenlified on the
cost proposal(s) in lhis contrac{ are aciual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contrac{ in
accordance with the contrast lerms and the following requiremenls:

1. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GMP)
2. Terms and conditions of the contracl

3. Title 23 United States Code Sec'tion 112 - Letting of Contracts
4. 48 Code of Federal Requlations Pail 31 - Contracl Cost Plinciples and Procedures

5. 29 Code of Federal Reoulations Part 172 - Procurement, Management, and
Administration of Engineering and Design Related Service

6. 48 Code of Federal Resulalions Part 9904 - Cost Accountinq Siandards Board (when
applicable)

Allcosts must be applied consblently and fairly to all contracts. Alldocumentation of compliance must
be retained in lhe projectliles and be in compliance with applicablefederaland state requiremenls.
Costs ihat are nonconpliant with the federal and state requirements are nol eligible for reimbursement.
Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted
lndirec{ Cost Rate(s).

Prime Consultant or Subconsultant Certifvino:

N
lvan Benavidez Jr

Title ":
Project Manager / Resident Engineer

Signature: lvan Benavidez Jr. KIy.ffiXy,|$::Tyi?1' Date of Certifi cation (mm I ddty y y 9'. A012612020

Email: com Phone Number: 909.512.2815

Address .2400 E. Katella AVe, Ste 800, Anaheim Ca 92806

.An individual executlve or linancial officer of the consultant's or subconsultani's organization at
a level no lower than a Vice President or a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, wfio has
authority to represent the financial information ulilized to establish the cost proposal for the
contract.

consultant is underlhe

Project Management, Construction Management and Material Quality Assurance Testing Services-

Page 3 of 9
January 2020



".Slns$,"
GEOTBCIINICALTGE0LOGIeIIYIIROGBOLOGY.BNVIROI{MBNTALTMINBRAIS.MIIIING.MATXRIAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

2019

SERVICES

Pmfesslonal
Prlnctpat Engineer/Geologist
Senior Engineer/Geologist
Pmiect En$neer/Geologist
Staff Englneer/Geologist
Enrdronmenal Geolo$st
Senior Re$stered Hydmgeologlst
Groundwater Geologist
Expert Wtness/-Deposition (*hr mln)

PleldTechnlcal
Cerdfl ed ttllelding Inspector
Structural Weldlng Inspector
Cetified Concrete/Masonry Inspector
Sbucural Boldng lnspecor
SEuchrrd Steel Inspector
Reinforclng Steel Inspector
Epory/Grout Dowel Inspector
Fleld Englneer/Geologlst
Fleld Gruun&mater Geologlst
Senior Field Technldan
FieldTechnlclan
Source Inspector
[Jltrasontc Weld Tesdng
Magnedc Pafltcle Tesdng

Field Technicat tplgllelttng Wagel
Certifi ed Welding lnspector
Strucilral Welding Inspector
Cer{ff ed Concrete/Masonry Inspector
Structural Boltlng Inspector
Stnrcilral Steel Inspector
Relnforttng Steel Inspector
Epolry/Grout Dowel lnspector
Fteld EnglneerlGeologlst
Fleld Gmundwater Ceologtsr
Senlor Fleld Techntcian
Field Tedrniclan
Souroe Inspector
lntrasonlcWeldTes$ng
It{agnedc Pardcle Tesdng

Code
PEG

SEG

PG

STEG

EG

SR}I

SGG

EW

Gode
CwI
swr
ccr
sBt
sst
RSI

EDI
FEG

FGG

sm
m
SI

UST

MPT

Code
CWIP

SWIP

ccIP
SBIP

ssIP
RSIP

EDIP

FEGP

FGGP

SFryP

FTP

SIP

USTP

MPTP

Rate

$15S

$13s
ilzo
$100
sl3s
$205
$13s
$2ss

Rate

$125
$1ls
$115
$11s
$115
$10s
$10s
$100
$110
$eo
$8s
$e0

$1ss
$1ss

Rats
$165
$1ss
$1s5
$155
$1ss
s140
$140
s140
$14s
sl20
$11s
sl20
N20s

$2os

Page 1 of3



.S,ffisq-
GBOTBCHMCAL r GEOI.OGY. HY'DIOGBOIOGY . 8I{WRONME}iTAL . Mll{B[Af{i . Mlllll{0 . MATBRIAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

Oft rre and hboratonr Technlcnl
Pmfect Coordinadon
IaboratoryTechnician
Office Supplies/Clerical
Outside Servlces

lob Suppltes/Reprcduction/Postage

Eq{pllcrt8entd
Rebar Locator
Ulbasonlc Weld Tester
MagneHcWeld tester
Dlarnond Coring Rig
Torque Wrench/Skidmore
Wat€r Qudlty Probe
Water Level Sounder

Vehlcle. Travel. and Per Diem
Mlleage
Travel Time (200-mtle max)
Room and Board
Meals

IJIRORATOITVTESTING

Solls rnd AlEregntes
haclor fStandard Effort4")
Pructor (Modified Effort l")
Proctor (Modified Etrort-6")
Proctor (Rock Correctlon)
Proctor [CheckPoint)
Yltet Densfty (Caltrans Tube)
DurablliryIndex
Hydrometer
Plasticitylndex
Liquid Limlt
PlasdcLirnft
R-VaIue (CA/NV UntreatedJ
Sand Equlvalent
SlweAnalysis
Slare Analysls wlth 200 Wash
Speclf, c Gravtty (Coarse)
Speclfic Gravlty (Flne)

TestMethod
ASTMD698
ASTM D1557
ASTM D1557
ASTMD4718
ASTIT{ D1557
CT2T6
ASTMD3744lCT229
ASTMD422
cTzo4
ASTMD4318
ASTMD4318
$rMDZ|'4,{|CT301
ASTM D2419lCT2t7
ASTM C136ICT 2AZ

ASTM C117
ASTMCL?TICT2A6
ASrM CU8lstzA7

Gode

PC

LT
os

2019

nate
s8s
fe0
$6s

11596

11596

Code
RL

ttwT
MWT
DCR

TWS

WQP

wrs

Rate
11596

115%
115%

$80

$eo
$s0
$2s

Code Ratc

115%

MI
TT
RB

M

$.70lmi
$8s

$co

Code
sDc4
MDC4

MDC6

RC

CKPT

ccr
DI
HY

PI

LL
FL
RV

SE

SA

sA!l|
sGc

SGF

Rate

$225
$zso
$2s0

f160
$55

taZS
$225
N215

$30s
$165
f16s

115%

$rrs
$11s
$14s
$135
$135

Page 2 of3



.S,rGS,

CBOTECIINIC/U. GEOLOGY. lllIlROGEOL0{f . EilVIROI{MBNTAL r MllfKAIIi o Ml}{lNG r MAfiRIAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

CleannessValue
FractwedlCrushed Pardcles
udtwelgbt

Shearand Coneelldedon
D[ect Shear (Undishubed 3-Point)
Illrest Shear [Remolde4 3-Point)
Consolldadon (8-Polnt)
AddtdonalPolnts

Con(rete
Compressfue Test Cyllnder
Compressive Test Gmut Sanple
Compressive Test Grout Prlsm
Compressfue Tesit Mortar Cyllnder
Comprcssive Test ShoErete Core

OvenDryDenslry
Bqulllbrlum Density

Agtlhnltend Pavement
Asphalt Extracdon by lgnldon
Aggtepte Gradadon of Extraced Sample
Moisft re Content of Asphdt
Specific Gravttyof Asphalt Corc
Theorcdcal Max Specific Gravlty/Density
SabilometerTest

cv
FP

urA

et227
ASTM Ds821 let2o5
CT2L2

TstMethod
ASTM D3O8O

ASrM D3080
ASTM D2435

Testllethod
ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTI,I C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C567
AltrMc567

2019

$10s
$1s5
$10s

Rete

$21s
$235
f35s
$ss

Code
UST

RST

coN

Code
ccT
CTGS

CTGP

CTMC

cTsc
ODD

EDD

Code
IGN

GES

MCA

SGAC

RICE

I{VEEM

TestMethod
et382
cT202
cT370
cr308
cT 309

cT366

Rate

$43
f*s
fos
$+s
f+s

$12s
Request

Rate
s250
$115
$10s

$60
$16s

11596

Page 3 of3



47 1st Street Suite 1

Red ands, CA 923734601
(909) 91$5900

Rate Sheet

Panonncl Crtssor nrtct : Charges will be mode atthe Cdego,ry rdes set forlh forthe timc spcd on
project menegemeqt consultation or meetings rolated to &e project field work, rport preparation and
review, tavcl time to ud from the job site, etc.

ErncnroBU*Ot"-O Olher Ilhcct Cort:

Tlavcl (non-automobile)
Lodgine
Auto andTruckRe,ntals
Sp€cialty Equipment od R€otdg
Delivery Servicee
hiuting (Blueprinls, Photo Serwices, Color Copies

Specialty Supplies)

Atfro Mlosga (atcunrnt IRSI rab)
Agssey Pe,tmit Fees (At Cost)
Subconsulhb - Cost Phrs 3%

Position lltlc
Alsigncd LourS ntcfor
thedurafron of thc
contrrcf

Prinpipal In Charse $157.00
-Scnior Reguldory Specialist $157.00
PlogramlVlanagcr $157.00
SeniorEoologist $r40.00
CEQA/hIEPA Spccialist $140.00
Environneutal Projeot Ivlannger $140.00
Envimnmwal SibManagcr $140.00
Public Outreach Speciolist $140.00
SeniorBiologist $140.00
FAAlicensed UAV Pilot $135.m
Biologist $l2r.m

Biologirt $110.00
CADD/9IS Spectdist $110.00
hojeotAnalyst s105.00
G€neml Cmstuction Monitor $105.00
Adminishative $ 65.00

Jcridro Syrilems, lnc 2020



E"tr.rn Sr.rt L-to5rr-itl*
19tunCn*

orrfqr*c,CA%r15

Prevailing Wage
Pricelist 2A2A

Categorieg Hourly Rate

Survev crew Prevailino Waoe) $260

Calculation time $100

Proiect Coordination $100

Boundarv Mao Research $100

Drafting sl00



ZIC2020HouilyRaE

ZT CONSULTING

Lor Agnlc ffice
'-a.!-a a'.." !-. !-:.-::

pl:-j - _.; r

TV?€ of Servlce

Erglneerlng Serulce

QA Fleld lnspecton
SeMces(Prcwlllryl

ZIC Houdv Rate 2020

Thle

Senior Quality
PE / COA

Assistant

cwl Pclil./ilr,
ASNT NDT

Per DIR

requirements

! Minimum hours charge inspection services
2 Overtime rate applies after 8 hours on the Job on the weekdays and any hours worked on Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays.

Odlcr lrlnct Coct!'.

t'r This approximate cost. All the sub invoices are pass through, ZIC does not markup the subs lnvolces.

1
san Eemrdlrc Of6ce

--- --- _,; -:

Pl i:1''- .' '- -

Quallf,catlon HourlyRac

Prclect Management PM PE Szro

$ra+.ao

Quallty
Enclneer

PE $11s.so

EIT Sgo.as

QASoure lnspccdon
Sen laei

OA lnspector
o,l/t, Pcllyu,

ASNT NDT

w/MT
s109.151,1

QA lnspector

lgr tuandry Agprlr.Unit&it ToblAmo0nt
Millage TBD (Federal Rate) S 0.575 / mile TBD

Travel in-State TBD (Caltrans Policy) Approx.5600/Tdp TBD

Travel Out-of-State TBD (Caltrans Policy) Approx. S1,2fl)/Trip TBD

Eearing Pad / Elastomer Testing TBD (ZIC Sub *'*) 51,500 / unit TBD

Epoxy Coating Testing TBD (ZTCSub *"1 5150/ Per Sample TBD

Strand Testing TBD (ZICSub i*r) 5180/ Per Test TBD

Anchor BoltTesting TBD (ZTC Sub +r') 5350 / Per Set TBD

Hoop Testing/ Couplen (<S11) TBD (ZTC Sub *r') 5160/ Per Sample TBD

Hlgh Strength Bolts TBD (ZTC Sub *+*) 5155 / per bolt set TBD

Prestessing Components TBD (Zl-C Sub'r*) 5125 / per sample TBD

Fl 8f&36&6E57 El lnfo@ztcgrp cDmwl ww rt$rp corn



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROV]SION OF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July 7th, 2020

SCHEOULE OF TRAVELAND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 11 of12

December 31,2021

SERV|CES

14102017



ATTACHMENT D

AGREEUENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE pROVtStON 66 Construction Management

TERM:

FROM . JulyTth,2A2O December 31,2021

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Slandard Conkac{ - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 12 ol 12

SERVIGES

10102017



Attachment D: lnsurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPEAND LTMIT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General Liability [CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status, Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad
as ISO Form CG 20 I0 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 2A 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 2A 37
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile tiability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001. covering, Code L (any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code I (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodity injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
iniury or disease, May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifiiing that
contractor has no employees.

Professional tiabitity (Errors and Omissions): appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

Cyber tiability Insurance, with limits not less than $L,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived if contractor will not be
receivingfstoringltransmitting personally identifiable information IPIIJ or personal medical
information [PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims
involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement of
copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic
information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shallbe available to Inyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 AL A413 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiverof Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
L. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

(5) years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five [5) years after completion of
contract work.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Verification of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements [or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
any time.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and veriff that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modiff these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professional Services

Page



In tlte Rooms of the Board of Supetuisors
County of Inyo, State ol California

l, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 5th day of October202l an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works-
Fountainhead
Consulting Cantract
Amendment 1

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve Amendment
No.1 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
of Anaheim, CA, replacing environmental subconsultant Jericho Systems of Redlands, CA
with Geode Environmental of Bishop, CA, replacing Sierra Geotechnical Services of Bishop,
CA with Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA, and increasing the contract amount with
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation by $121,829,20 to cover a broader scope of
environmental inspections as required by California Department of Fish & Wildlife; and
authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all appropriate signatures
being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

WTTNI:SS my hand and the seal of said Board this Sil'

aoy of OctobgL, 202!

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk of the Board of Supemisors

{d*X U4A+,t4'tat^-

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Olhar: PublicWorlo
DATE: October 13, 2021

By:



++t g

County of Inyo

Public Works

cof{sENT - ACTIOI{ REQUIRED

MEETING: October 5, 2021

FROM: Greg Waters

SUBJEGT: Amendment #1 to the consultant agreement with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No.1 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead
Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, replacing environmental subconsultant Jericho Systems of Redlands,
CA with Geode Environmentalof Bishop, CA, replacing Sierra Geotechnical Sewices of Bishop, CA with Eastern
Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA, and increasing the contract amount with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
by $tZt ,829.20 to cover a broader scope of environmental inspections as required by California Department of
Fish & Wildlife; and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all appropriate signatures
being obtained.

S U MMARYIJUSTIFICATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead Consultant
Corporation is contracted with lnyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances beyond the control of the
consultant, two subconsultants will need to be replaced by two others. Additionally, California Department of Fish
and Wildlife has requested an increase in the environmental monitoring from weekly to daily, resulting in an
increase in the fees required.

BACKGROUNDIHISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state (2017-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from being
completed.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request
Page 2

FINANCING:
Funding will be sourced from California Office of Emergency Services (7lYo) and Road Maintenance and Repair
Account (25%ol. The cost of the amendment will be paid through the Road budget (034600), North Round Valley
Bridge Project (57 17',.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead Amendment No. 1

2. Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)

APPROVALS:
Greg Waters
Darcy Ellis
Darcy Ellis
Greg Waters
Breanne Nelums
John Pinckney
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd

Createdllnitiated - 8l 17 12A21

Approved - 811812021
Approved - 811812021
Approved - 913012021
Approved - 913A12021
Approved - gn0l2021
Approved - 913012021
Final Approval - 9l34i2021



AMENDMENT NUMBER I TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Foultainhead Consultinq Corporation
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter refered to as "County") and Fountainhead Conslltine
Corporation of Analrei$. CA (hereinafter refened to as "Consultant"), have entered into an Agreement for the
provision of engineering services dated Julv 7. 2020 , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the
term from July 7.2020 to f)ecember 1l ?O?1

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consen[ of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in writtcn form, and
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity.

WHEREAS' County and Consultant do desirc and consent to amend such Agreernent as set forth below.

I . Exhibit I 0-H I Cost Proposal to the Contract is amended for the Consultant, Fountainhead Consulting Corporation,
removing Sub-Consultants Jericho Systems and Sien'a Geotechnical Services and replacing them with Geode

Environmental and Eastern Siena Engineering, respectively. The total contract vaiue is hereby increased by $121,829.20
The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is July I st, 2021 ,

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.

County ol lnyo Standard Contract * No. 156 with Founlainhead Consulting Corporation
Amendrrrent I

Page I



AMENDMENT NUMBAR I TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN TIIE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Fountainhend Coneultins Coroorotion
F'OR THE PROVISION OF' ENVIRONMENTAL CONSUI,TANT SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
19th DAY OF Ontnhar 2A2t

COUNTY OF INYO CONSULTAI\iT

By:

Dalcd: 10-19-2021 Datcd: rcn4t2021

APPROVED AS TO
LEGALITY:

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING
FORM:

By: L-,)B*,/lr

KnV Sfuflr"l
cotilf Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL
EMENTS:

Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESS

County ol lnyo Standard Contract * No. 156 witlr Founlsinhead Consulting Corporation
Arnendnrent I

Page 2

Risk



I=OUNTAIN i

September 06,2021

Greg Waters

Associate Civil Engineer

lnyo Couniy Public Works

P.0. Drawer Q

lndependence, CA 93526

RE: TRANSMITTAL LETTER I SUBCONSULTANT SUBSTITUTION AND COST PR0POSAL I CONTRACT N0, 1sc

Dear Mr. Waters,

Fountainhead Consutting Corporalion (Fountainhead) is submitting this request to A) substitute two subconsultants originally proposed 0n

the contract and to Bi requesi an increase to the contract to provide daily biological monitoring due to permit requirements.

A) Fountainhead originally proposed Jericho Systems to perform biological monitoring services per the RFP requiremenls, unforlunately

Jericho Systems closed (Attachment A) their ofiices after the contract award. Therefore, Fountainhead is having to replace Jericho

Systems with another biological monitoring service provide. ln addition to substituting Jericho Systems wilh Geode Environmental we

also have a second subconsultant Sierra Geotechnical has developed a conflict of interesl due to entering a conlract with Spiess

(Contractor) to perform Quality Control and Assurance Testing. Therefore, we are also requesting to substitute Siena Geotechnical

with Eastern Sierra Engineering to perform lndependent Assurance testing as the subconsultant owne/s representative with

Fountainhead

B) During the RFP process the final permits for the project were not issued therefore Fountainhead negotiated with the County to provide

biological monitoring on a weekly basis for work within the creek. After Fountainheads contract was negotiated the final permits were

obtained. The final permits required daily biological monitoring while working in the creek and thereby initiated a cost increase to

provide the level of service required in the permit. Fountainhead reviewed several options for a biological monitoring consultant with

reasonable rates and negotiated with Geode Environmental to perform the scope of work (Attachment B). Our proposed contract value

increase of $121,829.60 is a Not-to-Exceed value and the hours applied will only be as required by California Department of Fish &

Wildlife. ln doing so we will have the ability to modulate the application of resources to suit the conditions in the field

lf you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact lvan Benavidez at 909.512.2815 or email at

ibenavidez@fountainheadcorp.com.

i;;ffijd. Secretary

2400 East Kaiella Avenue, Suite 800 | Anaheirn, Califorrria 92806 | 714.627.2518



ATTACHMENT A

Wffirxmsm{c. PO Br:x 7061

Redlands, CA 32373
(s09) r15-5s00

April12,2021

Dear Valued Client:

Sincc 2012, Jcricho Systems, Inc. (Jericho) has been honored to serve you on your various projects.

However, it is with heavy heart that I am informing you of the closure of Jericho, effective June 30, 2021

due to some health issues I have been sfuggling with for the past few years.

In keeping with my commitment to provide excellent service to our clients, I would like to recommcnd

the following firms which have been assisting me on many projects behind the scenes for the past few
years. These firms are extremely qualified with biclogy/ecological assessments for multiple jurisdictions,
jurisdictional waters permilting, endangered species compliance, CIJQA/NIEPA compliance, and whorn I
know will provide excellent seruice to you:

ELMT Consulting,lnc
Attn:Travis McGill
2201 N. Grand Avenue #10098. Santa Ana, C.A 9271l-0098
Travismcgill@elmtconsulting.com
(e0e) 816-1646

Compass Consulting Enterpriseso Inc
Attn: Julie Gilbert
PO Box 2627, Avalon, CA 90744
Jul ie@compass-consultinginc.com
(909) 496-5960
(WBE Cefiilied, DBE Certifisation in process)

In the interim, effective irnrnediately, Jericho's Craig Lawrcy witl be handling all operational aspects and

will be your primary contact. You may reach Craig at taig@jericho-systems.com or at (909) 744'4487 .

Julie Citbert, who you may know has worked for Jericho since 2016, will be assisting Craig with contmct
nanagement and final billing. For Jericho contract and billing questions, Julie can be teashed at
juliegill@outlook.com or at (909) 496-5964.

Again, il has been my honor serving you, and I wish you all the best with your future endeavors.

Sincerely,

Shay Lawrey
President, Jericho Systems, Inc.

Craig Lawrey
SecretarylOperations Manager, Jericho Systems, Inc

" Exp eri ence lhe J e richa Dif{e rence' felrcho-syslems.cont



Locar Assistance procedures Manuar l:ilrtr|ft|i,:;lopo 
sed changes to

EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

Exntnrr 10-Hl Cosr PnoposAl pagc I or3

Cosr-Pr,us-FrxEp FEE oREMEWoR F|RM Flxen Pnlcs coNrRAcrs
(DcsICI.I, ENCINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES)

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed E Prime Consultant n Subconsultant fl 2"d Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consulting Corporation for Geode Environmental

Proj ect No. 48C0044 Contract No. 156 Date 09106/2021

DIRECT LABOR

LABOR COSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

c) ToTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS [(a) + (b)]

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 0-Aq2!. ) e) Total Fringe Bene{its [(c) x (d)]

0 Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) e) Overhead [(c) x (t)]

h) General and Adrninistrative (Rate: gqO:!- ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (lt)]

$ 0.00

$ 0,00

$ 0.00

$ 140,329.60

j) TOTAL INDIRECT CoSTs [(e) + (e) + (i)]

k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [ic) + 0)] x fixed f'ee 0'00% l

$ 140,329.60

$ 0.00

F'IXED FEE $ 0.oo

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS -ITEMIZtr additional if

l) TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS cnnn

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)
Subconsultanl l: zt Cnncrrttinn $ 0.00

Subconsultant 2: Earthsoectives $ 0.00

Subconsultant 3: Jericho Svstems Substitute Geode Environmental {$'18,500.00)

Subconsultant 4: Sierra Geotechnical Substitute Eastern Siena $ 0.00

rn) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS {$ 18.500.00)

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS (l)+fin)l /s 18 500.O0'l

TOTAL COST t(c) i (l) + (k) + (n)l $ 121,82e'60

NOTES:
l. Key personnel EgS! be marked with an asterisk (*) an<i employees that are subject to ptevailing wage lequirerlents must be marked

with trvo asterisks (**). All costs lnust comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals'

2. The cost proposal fornrat shall not bc amcndcd, lndirect cost rates shall be updated otr atr annual basis in accoldancc with the

consuttant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agellcy or accepted by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page2) mttst accompany.

Page 1 of 9
January 2020

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual llourly Rate Total

Biologist.

lnspector (cr6dil)

Geode Environmental

S. Valdovinos_20 days Temp. Work

1,240,00

-160.00

$ 130.00

$ 130.44

$ 161,200.00

($ 20,870.40)

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

Description of ltem Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost Total
Mileaoe Costs $ 0.00

Fnuinment Rental and Suoolies $ 0.0c

Permit Fees $ 0.0c

Plan Sheats $ 0.0c

Test



Local Assislance Procedures Manual Fountainhead Original Agreernent EXHIBIT IO.H1
Cost Proposal

EXHIBIT l0-Hl Cosr PnopoSAL pagc lot3

Cos'ILPLUF-Irrxr:p FsD oR lll!!ru oR I'IRM FIXED PRtcE coNTB^c'rs

(DI,SIGN, ENCINEERINc AND ENVIRONM ENTAT, STUDTCS)

Nore: Mark-ups are Not Allowed El Prime Consultant I Subconsultant [ 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultinq CorDoration

Project No.49C o044 Contract No. 156 Date 0612612020

DIRECT LABOR

I,ABOR COSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary lncreases (see page 2 for calculation)

$ 119,784.00

c) TOTAL DIREC'I'LABOR COSTS [(a) + (b)] $ 1 19,784.00

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 0.00% ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)]

f) Overhead (Rate: 0.907o ) g) Overhead [(c) ^ 
(Dl

h) Ceneral and A<lministrative (Rate: 104.009 ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)]

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 124,575.36

FIXED FEE

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS .ITEMIZE

j) TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS [(e) + (g) t (i)]

k) TOTAL FIXED rOE [(c) + [i)] x tixed 1'gg 5'00% 
1

rdditional if

l) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS

$ 124,575.36

7

s7z-13I

snno

rn) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pagcs iI necessary)
Subconsultant I: 7T tinnsrltinn s d2 863 04

Subconsultant 2; Earthspectives $ 8,436.00

Subconsultant3: Jericho $ 18,500.00

Subconsultant 4: Sierra Geotechnical Services $ 13,552.00

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS

n)'I'OTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)]

TOTAL COST [(c) F 6) 'r (k) + (n)] *" * 
- 

--. $ 339.e?8.-3.-7

NO'I'ES:
l. Keypersonnel 4g! bcmarkcdwithanasterisk(*)andemployeesthataresubiecttoprevailingwagerequircmentsmustbemarked

with two astcrisks (**). All costs must comply with the Fedsral cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.

2. Thecostproposalfurmatshaltnotbeamended.tndirectcostratesshallbcupdatcdonanannualbasisinaccordancewiththe
consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognieant agcncy or aecepted by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases calgulation (page 2) must accompany.

$ 83.351.04

n R1 ?6r nd

Page 1 of 9
January 2020

Classificalion/fitle Name Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total

Projgcl Manag€/R€sid€nt lng

Slruclu,es Rspresenlalivo

lnspocler,loflico Eng neer

lvan Banavidez

Javid Sharifi

Salvador Valdovinos

224.00

616.00

880.00

$ 81.00

$ 78,00

$ 60.90

$ 18,144.00

$ 48,048.00

$ 53,592.00

$ 0.00

(rt i-
Unit Cost TotalDcscrirtion ofltem Ouantitv Unit

$ 0.0[Mileaqe Costs

$ 0.0(Fnuinmenl Renlal and Suoolies
$ 0.0cPermil Fees
$ 0.0(Plrn Shcatc

Test



North Round Valley Bridge Project
Resident Engineer Proposed Schedule of values

Amendment fll
As of 9/19/1021 l0/O AM

Remaining

531,388.59
Sra,sgz.ss ]

s204,318.34
s28,470.49

$&436.00
s0.00

s161,200.00
So-oo

$rE,isz.oo
gars,izo.ar

Total To Date

So.oo

So.oo

$o.oo
50.oo
so.oo

Scs,rgr.ic

lnvoice #2

7-\AL thru 7-31-21

$t7,927.s4

s15,048.90

$1,27g.64
So.oo

So,oo
S161,2oo.oo So.oo So.oo

5o.oo

S13,ss2"oo

s46t,7'7.gi ,

$o.oo
$o.oo

Sze,osi.so

So.oo

$o.oo

s17,327.s4

lnvoice fl
l-t-2lthru 6-3G21

528,453.60

S1s,339.69

513,113.91
Sg,+3o.oo 5o.oo

5o.ooSo.oo

Original $ Amendment *1 Adjusted Total
r(Suhject to Approvall i

s235,706.93
Sqz,s6i.oc

S339,928.37

s256,577.33 i

$42,863.o4
{s20,870.40)

$o.oo
50.00

($r8,soo.ooi

S161,2oo.oo
(s13,552.00)

9r:,ssz.oo
$tzt,gzg.so

s8,436.00
s18,s00.00

So.oo

513,ss2.00
5o.oo

irig,gza.rz

9121,829.60

Consultant

FountainHead Prime

Breakdown;
Fountainhead ln House

ZT Consulting
Earthspectives

Jericho Systems

Geode Environmental
Sierra Geotechnical Services

Eastern Sierra Engineering

Total:

Delta



In the Rooms af the Board of Supewisors
County of lnyo, State of Ce lifornia

I, HEREBY CERTtFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in thsir rooms at the County Administrative Center in Indopendence on the ?'h day of July 2020 an ordcr was duly made

and entered as follows;

Public Works-
Fountainhead
Cansulting Contract

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Tillemans to approve the contract
between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim, CA for the
performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge
Construction Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 lor the period of July 7,2CI20
through December 31,2021, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

IVITNF^IS nty hand end the seal af saitl Board his f
oay,zf JUI.Y, 2(l2A

CLINT(i. Q{/tL7',r,:R
Clerk af the Eoanl o! Supewlsors

tkAh*t

Routing

cc
Purchatlng
Panonnel
Audltor
c"4o;
Ahet: PublbWorks
QATE JUU 7,2O2O

8y:



#. 1.t

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: July 7,2020

FROM:

SUBJECT: North Round Valley Bridge Construction Management Contract

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Request Board approve the contract between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim,
CA for the performance of .construction management seryices for the North Round Valley Bridge Construction
Project in sn amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7 ,2020 through December 31 , 2021 , and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/J USTIFICATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex proJect that requires an on-site construclion manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Founlalnhead construction will
perform the work described in the attached 'Scope of Work' including but not limited to: contractor management,
budget and schedule tracklng, inspection of work, structural representation, biological monitoring, and source
material inspection.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff ot2017 forwhich a state(2017-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occuned behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feel). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction conlract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management,

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from moving
forward.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The State of California Office of Emergency Services is funding this project at a reimbursement rate of 75o/o.

FINANCING:
The cost of the contract will be paid through budget unit 034600 {Road Budget), object coda 5717 (Construction
lnspection). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75o/oby the California Office of Emergency Services (DSR
3602).



Agenda Request
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead CM Conlraet - lB Signed

APPROVALS:
Jacob Trauscht
Darcy Ellls
MarshallRudolph
Amy Shepherd
Aaron Holmberg
MichaElErrante

Crest€d/l nltlated - 8 i,2gn020
Approved -013012020
Approved - 6t30/2020
Approved -6|3W2A2Q
Approved -61301202A
Final Approval - 613A12O2O



AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTYOF INYO

AND founlslnhosdConsulllngCg,poratiorl

FOR THE PROVISION Qp ConstructiooMarsgenant

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafler referred lo as "Coung') has the need for the
Cons{,uclion lrsnagomoni SgfVlCO$ Ot Fosntainhead Csnsulling Co$orarion

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultanl"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERT$S AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, lhose services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporaled herein. Requesls by the County to lhe
Consultant to perform under lhis Agreement will be made b}l the pirecrororPuoticworrs.

Vjshaei Eannte Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under
this Agreement will be based upon the Countfs need for such services. The County rnakes no guarantee or
warranty, of any nature, that any minlmum level or amount of services or work will be requestod of the
Consultant by the County under thls Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirernent lo request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the Count/s requ€Bt under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with lhe requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions, Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreoment and, as applicable, as
set forth, in Attachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from
sooner terminated as provided below. ln addilion,
additional one-year poriods as follows:

July ?th, 2020 Occsmt or 31|h, 2021

County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for

From through

From _through
County shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor at leasl thirty (30) days

before lhe expiration of the Agreement, or sn extension thereof,

The notice shall specify the period of the optlons being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions staled in lhis Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A, Cpmoen$atioq. County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Aftachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A whlch are performed by
Consultant at the CounVs request,

B. Travel and oer djem. County shall reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requosted by County under this Agreement.

Counly of lnyo Standard Conlract - No. 156

(lndependeni Consultanl - Professional)
Paga I of 12 

10102017

unless

A.

B,



Consultant shall request approval by the Coung prior to incuning any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
by Consultant for approval to incur lravel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to lhe
okoctor ot Publla Wods, Mich8et E .ants . TfaVel and pgf diem
expenses will be reirnbursed in accordance with the rates set forlh in lhe Schedule of Travel and Per Diem
Payment (Attachment C). County reserves the right lo deny reimburgement to Consultant for lravel or per
diem expenses which are either in exeess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in
Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Consultant wilhout the prior appovEl of the County.

C. No addlflonal eonelderation. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideralion, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneratien for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
reiirement beneflts, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Llmit upon amount oavable underAoreement, The total sum of all payments made by the County
to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
$ 33s,s2s.37 (initial terrTt) (option 1) and $ (option 2) for a
total of S $0,s?0r Doilars (hereinafter referred to as "contract lirnif'). Co-nty expressly reserves
lhe rlght to deny any payment or reimburgement requested by Contractor for services or work performed
which is in excess of the contract limit.

E, Billi$q and navmenl. Consullant shallsubmit to the County, once a month, an itemhed
statemenl of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which
were done at the Coun$'s request. This statement will be submitted to the Coung not later lhan the lifih
(sth) day of the monlh. The statement lo be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of lhe
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding rnonth. This statement will identify the
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day.
Consultant 's stalement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by Coung, incurred by Consultant during that period. The itemized
slatement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance wilh the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the lasi day of the
month.

Federal snd State taxeg.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments rnade
by Coung to Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold Califomia State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independeni Consultant's
when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Consultant under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred nineg nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo).

(3i Except as set forlh above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibilig of Consullant. County has no responsibility or liability
for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments.

The total amounts paid by Coung to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residenls, if any, will be reported annually to the
lnternal Revenue Service and the Calibrnia State Franchise Tax Board. To

Counly of lnyo Slandard Contr8ct - No. 156
(lndependont Conaultant - Profeselonal)

Page2 of 12

F

(4)

1 01 0201 7



facilitate this reporting, ConEultant shall complete and submit to the Coun$
an lnternal Revenue SeMce (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultants obligation is to perform, in a limely manner, those services and work identified in
Atlachment A, which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Consullant that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant vrllll arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate wilh County to lnsure that all eervices and uok requested by County under this Agreement will be
perbrmed within the time frame set forth by Coung.

5. REQUTRED L|CENSES, CERT|F|CATES, AND pERtUIrS.

A, Any licenses, cerlificates, or permits required by the federal, Blate, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provlde the services and work described in Attachmenl A muet be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into lhis Agreement or as otherulse may be requlred.
Furlher, during lhe term of thie Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certifrcates, and permlte
in full force and cffect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, drive/s
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business llcenses. Such llcenses, cenlficates, and permlB
will be proanred and maintained ln force by Consultant at no cxpense to thc Goung. Consullant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of cunent and valld licenses, certllicates and
permits wttich are requited to perform the services identlfied in Atlachment A. Where there is a diapute
between Consultanl and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permlts are requlred to perform the
services identilied in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
lhis Agreement.

B, Consultant warrants that it is not presently debaned, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntaflly excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also wanants thEt it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Exoluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: htlpl{Wgglllgllg.

0. oFFtcE gpAcE, suppltEs, EQUtpitENT, ETc.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipnent, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necegsary for Consultant to provide the servicee idenfffied in Atiachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated lo reimbune or pay Gonsultant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in provlding and maintaining such items is the sole responslbility and obligatlon of Consultant.

f. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A, Pereonal Prooertv of Countv, Any personal property such a8, but not limited to, proteclive
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at he lermination of ilris Agreement remain, the sole and exclugive property of County.
Consultant will uee reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such ltems wtrile they are in
Consullanfs posseesion. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, wtrich is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Consullant's Work and Servlc,ps.. Any and all compositions, publicalions,
plans, speciftcations, blu€prints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer lapes, momory chips, soundtracks, audio recordlngs, films, audio.visual
presentalions, exhibits, reporls, studies, works of art, inventlons, patents, trademarkg, copyrlghts, or
lntallectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, aagembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifeslation of Consultant 's gervices or work under this Agreement are, and at the termlnation

County of lnyo Slandard Conlracl - No. 156
(lndepend€nt Consultsnt - Protecslonal)

Page 3 of 12

10102017



of lhis Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant w4ll eonvey possession and title to all such properlies to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREi/IENT8 FOR PROFESSIO}IAL SERVICES.

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specilied in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in thal attachment.

9. 3TATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
Coun$. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant hae no authority or responsibili$ to
exercige any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Gonsultant is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County lhat lhis Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under lhis Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specilied in
this Agreement, and excepl as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected io County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fullillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agents, ofiicers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultiant's, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

For professional gervices rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemnify, including
the cost to defend Coun$ and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all
claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
wiltful misconduct of Consuhant and its employees or agents in the performance of professional services
under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liabilig for damages arising from the sole negligence,
active negligence, or willful acts of the County,

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and ils officers, officials, employees,
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including attorney fees arising
oqt of the performance of the work descilbed herein, caused in wtrole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whoee acts any of thern may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole
negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.

Consultanfs obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, ita agents, officers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement
in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant mainlains
higher limits than the minimum required on the lnsurance atlachment to this Agreement, the County requires
and ghall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.

To lhe extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its
agents, officers, and employees fom and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, ot wrongful acts of County, its offtcers, or employees,

County of lnyo Standard Contrac{ - No, 156
(lndspendent Consultanl - Professlonal)

Page 4 of 12

10102017



1'. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by ihe various
provisions of this Agreemenl, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) yean from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fullill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduclion of such records.

B. lngpecllong snd Audlts. Any authorieed representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, inoluding, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examinaiion, excerpts, and transcripls during the period such records are to be mainlained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate lhe work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreernent, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employeee shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, nalional
origin, anceslry, physical handicap, medical condiiion, marital status, age, or sex. Consultant and its agents,
oflicers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employmeni and Housing Act
(Government Code eection 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated lhereunder in lhe
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and alladministralive rules and regulations iseued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thirty (30) days vwitten notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving hirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the eervices of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and trainlng of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreemenl. Consultant shall not
assign or subconlraet this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County,
Furlher, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior wriften consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requesled by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as rsquired by
County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon ftve (5) days
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultanl all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination,

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver ol any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent defaull. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subseguent breach, and shall not be construed lo be a modification of the terms of lhis
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

County of lnyo Standard Contrscl - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Profe6slonal)

Page 5 of 12

10102017



17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with tre various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulalions, and ordinances providing that information and resords kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing services and nork under lhis Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Dieclosure of such
confidential, prlvileged, or protected information shall be rnade by Consultant only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the Coun$'s written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the conlrary, narnes of persons receiving public social
sellces are conlidential and are to be protected from unaulhorized disclosure in accordance with TiUe 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Seclion 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pureuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be prolected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

14. CONFLTCTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall nol acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree wilh lhe performance of the work and services under this Agreement,

19. POST AGREEITIIENT COVENANT.

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the temination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person who,
during the lerm of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the Counly, and ooncerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to lhe Coung's confidential, privileged, protec'ted, or proprietary informalion.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent Jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereol shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent lhat the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDINGLIMITATION.

The abili$ of Coun$ to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln lhe event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modiff lhis Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notiling
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding, Any reduction or modification
of this Agreernent made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22\ (Amendment)

22. AMENDIIIENT.

This Agreernent may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or sublracted from
consent of the parlies hereto, if such amendment or change is in wriften form and executed
formalilies as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity,

County oflnyo Standard Conlract - No. 150

(lndependent Consultant - Prolessional)
Page 6 of 12

by the mutual
with the same

14102417



2, . ltlOTlCE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, addltions, or deletione to this Agreement, including
change of address of eilher pady during the terms of this Agreement, which ConEultant or Coun$ shall be
required, or may desire, to make, ehall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mailto, the respective parties as followE:

County of lnyo:
PubllcWortr Deparlment

Address
City and State

P.O.omwsrq

Consultant:
Founblnhted CoNulUng Qorprratian

lod8pendgncs, CA

2400 E. K8(ells, Sult6 900

Name
Address
Ci$ and StateAnsholm, cA 92808

U. EltlTlRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the enlire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the partles not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Furlher, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in vwiting executed by the parties hereto.

Iil iltt

Coun$ of lnyo Standard Contracl - No. 166
(lndepondent Consultanl - Prohssionsl)

PagaT of 12

10102017



FOR THE PROVIEOi'I OF C,fialldnrfthurmd

AOREEITIEIIT EETIT'EEN GOUT{W OF INYO

ttRvtcEE

HERETO }I,AT/E SET THEIR }hNDg ANO SEATS ITIIS
tao

-

AilD rqn*rr.d

IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIESln DAYOF &lta

couflwof tltYo

Dats(l: alnlw /t)

By:

tvan

Oslrd;

APPROI/EDAS TO FORMANO IEGAUTY:

filta OrnH

APPRO/ED AS KI ACGOUNTII{G FORM:

(" *Ah/ana*/t!.
co0nuArrdlbr

TO

APPROI/EDAS

Colmlt otlnyo ghrdilrt Odr0t.t{o. t!0
(lndlrtdeit Cmrttrnl - Potsolrnrl)

Ptgr I ot 12

tot@0rt



ATTACHUETTITA

AGREEHENT BETUT'EETiI COUiITY OF I]TVO

AND Fountainhead Coneultng Corporation

FORTHE PROVlSlOlrl OF Construction Management

TERH:

FROM: July 7th, 2020

SCOPEOF WORK:

Decembgr 3l,2A2l

SERV|CES

County of lnyo Slandard Contracl - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - ProGsolonel)

Paga I of 12
1o102a17



Inyo Coung Public Worl<s
Page 7 af 16

Request far Praposuls
North Round Volley Road Bridge Replacement

business relationshlp with the conslructlon contractor[s) who are working on the projects that are assigned
for material Quality Assurance services through task orders on the contract.

Simllar to the disclosures regarding contractors, all firms are also required to disclose throughout the term of
the awarded contract, any Design Engineering services including claim services, Lead Project Management
services and Construction Englneering Services provided to all other clients on any local proiect listed in thls
Scope of Work.

ln addition to the disclosures, the Consultant shall also provide possible rnitigat,on efforts, if any, to eliminate
or avoid any actual or perceived conflicts of interest.

The Consultant shall ensure that there is no conflict before provldlng services to any construction contractor
on any of the agency's projects'listed in thts Scope of Work, The submifted documentation will be used for
determining potential conflicts cf interest

lf a Consultant discovers a conflict during the execntion of an assigned task order, the Consultant must
immediately notify the Contract Manager regarding the conflicts of interest Thc Contract Manager may
terminate the Task Order involving the confltct of interest and may obtain the conflicted services in any way
allowed by law. Failure by the Consultant to notify the Contract Manager may be grounds fol termination of
the contract

Some examples of conflict of interest are the followtngl
. Certified Materials Tester(sJ or Plant Inspector[s) from the same company that performs Qualtty

Control for the Contractor and Quality Assurance for the County on the same project.

Providing seryices to construction contractor's subconttactors, fabricators, equipment installer,
material suppliers and other firms associated with the proiects listed in the Contract can be a

potential conflict of lnterest when such contractor teams are identified.

Scogg of Wcrk
The scope ofvvork defined below is based on the County's current understanding ofthe work lo be
performed. The consultant shall revlew the design documents and environmental permits to identiff any
components not explicitly or implicitly included in this SOW.

Phase I - Pre-Construction
Review RE Files provided by MGE Engineering, make or request any changes rlecessary
Review plans for constructability, advise the County and design engineer
Review contractors proposed schedule, advise the Counfy and design engineer on potential issues
Pre-Construction/Kick-off meetlng - Altend and Participate in a Pre-construction meeting
Verify all permits are acquired and present at site

o Review all permit requirements
Produce Construction oversite Plan

o tnclude construcfion oversite schedule, to be updated weekly in coordination with
contractor

o tdentl$r inspecllon and material testing requirements, frequencies, personnel required {i.e.
materlal tester, structural inspector, hio monitorl, and schedule (to be included in the
construction oversite sched ule)

Phase II - Construction
r Schedule, lead, and attend weekly {oras needed) construction progress tneetings

o Provide minutes and action items, to be sent to stake-holders
r Review contractor supplied critical path management schedule, update on weekly or as-needed

basis

a

a

t
I
a

a



lnyo County Publtc Works
Page I of16

Request far Propasals
North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement

r Process Progress Payrnents
o Prepare monthly quantity estimates, check against contractor invoice statements, make

recornmendations to t}e Counly negarding payment
. Negotiate and prepare cotttractchange orders, in coniunclion with design engineer ilneeded
r Provide and coordinate with additional required personnel, inclirding but not limited to:

o Structuralrepresentative
o Material Tester
o Biological monitor

r Submittals & RFls
o Review submittals and RFls, including responses from design engineer, and incorporate any

changes that effect required inspections/testlng
o Coordinate wllh design engineer reganding submittal/RFI responses, and potentlal changes

to inspectionsltesting based on responses
r Provide full-time inspection services

o Produce daily RE diaries, inctuding but not limited to:
r Track Contractor days
r Track Contractor worklng hours including employee names
r Subs on site
r Maior equipment on site and status
r Description of work completed and task completion status {estimated % of totalJ
r Weather
r Catalog ofstop-workand causes
. Any QA/QC work performed including any testfinspection results, passffail status

oltest/inspection, and any comments that are important for explaining observed
results

o Keep record ofall as-built changes for inclusion into the final project as-built drawings
o Track quantities of materials used/installed
o Ensure and document compliance with all environmental permits
o Collect, review, and compile contractor labor compliance documents
o lnspect construction staklng t0 assure compliance to relevant standards

r Provide sub-contractor to perform quality control material testing services, review results for
compliance with construction contract specifications.

o Notify contractor of any failingtests
o Provide material tester with weekly schedule up-dates and projections of coming testing

requirements for following week
o Verify materlal tests are performed in compliance with the County QAPr Provide structural inspectionwhen required

r Provide a or-site biological monitor to fulfill requirements of all environmental permits
r Public Outreach

o Provide information to County Proiect manager to be distributed to public via mailings,
website, or other media

Phase lll - Post-Construction
. Proiect Closeout Tasks {Following substantial completlon of workl

o Perlorm site walk and create a punchlist of items to be completed by contractor (or
deducted from final payment)

o Ensure sign-off from outside agencies confirming that restoratlon has been completed as lar
as practicable

g Generate a final quantity estirnate, review final contractor payment atrd provide
l'ecommendations regarding payment to the County

r Generate Finai Prolect Report to include:
o Summary and results of all QA/QC activltles [inspections, material test results, etcJ
o Incorporate submittal and RFI logs [provided by design englneerJ
o Summary of monthly progress reports



Inyo Caunty Public Works
Poge 9 of 16

Request for Proposals

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replocement

o Dally Reports
o Catalogofall as-builtchanges
o Summary/catalog of environmental monitoring compliance

APPENDTXA - PROPOSAL REQUTREMENTS

These guidelines are provided for standardlzlng the preparatlon and submission of Proposal/Proposals by all
responding Consultants, The intent of these guidelines is to assist Consultants in preparation of their
proposals, to simplify the review process, and to help assure consistency in format and content,

Proposals shall conteln the following information in the order listed:

t. lntroductoryLetter

The introductory [or transmirmlJ le*er shall be addressed to:

Jacob Trauscht
Inyo County Public Works
PO Drawer Q
lndependence, CA93526

The letter shall be on Consultant letterhead and include the Consultant's contact name, malling address,
telephone number, facslmlle number, and email address. The letter will address the Consultant's
understanding of the services being requested and any other pertinent information the Consultant belleves
should be included. Al[ addendums received must be acknowledged in the transmittal letter,

The letter shall be wet-signed in blue ink by the individual authorized to bind the Consultant to the proposal.

Z, ExecutiveSummary

3. Consultant Information, Quatlfications & Experlence

The County will only consider subrnittals from Consultants that demonstrate they have successfully
completed comparable projects. These prolects must lllustrate the quality, type, and past performance of tle
project team. Submlttals shall lnclude a detailed descrlption of a minimum of three (3J projects within the
past five (5) years which include the following informationr

L, Contractingagency
2. Contractingagency ProjectManager
3. Contractingagency contactinformation
4, Contractamount
5. Funding source
6. Date ofcontract
7. Date of completion
L Consultant Project Manager and contact information
9" Project Objective
10, Project Descrlption
11, Project Outcome

4. OrganlzatlonandApproach



ATTACHiIIENT B

ACREEiIEIiIT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

ANO Fountainhead Consulting Corporatlon

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construclion Management 9ERVTCEg

TERM:

FROM: JulyTth,2020 December 31,2A21

SCHEDULEOF FEES:

Thie contract shall allow the Director of Publlc Works to add to or modify the approved job claseification list as
necesssry to account for personnel changas, The Director of Publie Works may only approve ohanges to the
Schedule of Fees that are not associated with an increase to the contnct Not-to-Exceed amount.

County of lnyo $tandard Contr8ct - No. 156
(lndspendent Coneultant - Profusslonal)

Pag6 10 of 12

10IA2017



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Propoeal

EXnrutr f 0-Hl Cosr PnopoSAL rage I of 3

Cosr-PLUs.FxEp ['et: oR lgUEglA oR F|RM x'rxtrD pRtcE coNTRAc"rs
(DrisrcN, ENGTNBERING AND ENVTRoNMENTAL STUDIBS)

Note; Ivfark ups arcNotAllowe.d El Prime Consultant E Subconsultant E 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultino Comoratlon

Project No. 48C0044 ContractNo. 156 Date 06/26/2020

LABORCOST$
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs $ 119,784.00

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR cosTS (a) + (b)l $ 119,784.00
INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benelits (Rate; 0-AA2L )
f) Overhead (Ratc; 0.000/o )

e) Total Fringe Benefits (c) x (d)J $ 0.00

h) General and Adminisirative (Rare: 104.qq9 )

g) Ovcrhead [(c) x (f]l $ 0.00

i) Cen & Admin (c) x (h)l S 124,575.36

j) TOTAL INDIRECT coSTs (e) + (g) + (i)l

F'IXED FEE k) TorAL nIxEIt FEE [(o) + 0)] x fixert feq 5.00% I g 12,217,97

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS -ITEMIZE addltlonal tf

l) ToTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS ,(onn

m) SUBCONSULTANTS'COSTS (Add additlonal pagcs if necessary)
Subconsultant I i 7T llanorrllina - 142,863.04

$ 8,436.00reSuhconsrrltant 2i Enrlhroectivac

Suhconsultant Sierre Ganhahniml Scnriaas $ 13,552.00

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS $ 83.351.04

$ 124,575.36

Subconsultant 3 : Jericho Svstems

n) TOTAL OTHER ITIRECT COSTS INCLUDTNG SUBCONSULTANTS Kl)+(m)l

NorES: 
TOTAL COST [(o) + fi) + (k) + (n)]

$ R3 35r nd

$ 339.928.37

l. Key personnel 4qgg3 be rnarked with an asterisk (t) and cmployees that are subject to prcvailing wage requircments must be marked

^ wilh two asterisks 1* 
+;. All costs must comply with the Federa'l cost principles, SubconsuhantJwilllroviae &eir own cost proposals,

2, The cost proposal format shall not be arnended. lndirect cost rates shill be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the 
'

consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizalrt agenoy or acceplcd by Caltrans,
3, Anticipated salary increases calculation (pagc 2) must accompany.

Page 1 of9
January 2020

Classlllcatlon/Title Nrme Hours Actual Hourly Ratc Total

Prcroct Mani0oriRs€ldenl Eng,

Strudures Rorrg$ntslivs

lnlpe{tor/Olti6 Ef, glnsf Salvador Valdovinos

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

224.40

616.00

880.00

$ 81.00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

$ 18,144,00

$ 48,048.00

$ 53,592.00

$ 0.00

\rt 1-

Dcscriotion of ltcm Ouantltv Unit Uolt Cost Totel
Mileage Costg s 0.0c
Eouipment Rental and Suoolies $ 0.0c
Permit Fees $ o-oc
PlEn Sheets ;0.0(
Test



Local Assirtance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 1()+I1
Cosl Propogal

ExHs[ 10-H1 Cosr PnoposAl pags a ot3

Coer'Plus.FrxEo Fea oR lump SUU oR FtR{rr Frxeo PRne ConrRAcrs
(CRtculRnorus roa AnrtspATEo SALARv hcneesrs)

1. Calculate Average Hourly Raie for 1sl year of lhs sontrect {Dlrect Lsbor Subtotal dlMdsd by tolal houls}

Direct Labor
Subtotat Fer Cost

Proposal

$450,000.00

Avg
Howly
Rate

$50.00

5 Year
Contract
Duratlon

Year 1 Avg
Hourly Rate

2' Calculate houdy rate for all yeac (lncrerse the Average Hourly Rate for a year by propred escalrtion %)

Avg Hourly Rate

$50.00
$51.00
$52.02
$53.06

Eslimated % Completed
Each Year

20.0%
40CI%
15.0%
15.0%
1 00%
1C0%

Avg Hourly Rata
(calculated above)

s50 00
$51.00
$52.02
953.05
$54 12

Total Hourc per
Cost Proposal

500

Proposed Egcalation

* 2a/o =+ 2o/o =
+ 2a/s g
+ 2olo =

Eetimated hours
(calculated above). 1000- 2000. 750

" 760
' 500

Total Hours per Coat
Propoeal

" 5000 =. 5000 =- 5000 E

' 5000 =
' 5000 =Tolal =

Total Hours per
Year
1000 Estimated Hourg Year 1

2000 Estimated Houre Year 2
750 Estimated Hours Year 3
750 Estimated Hours Year 4
500 Eslimated Houre Year 5

5000

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Eelimated Hours Year 1

Egtimated Hourg Year 2
Estimated HoursYear 3
Estimated Hours Year 4
Estimated Houra Year 5

Trangfer to Page 1

3. calculate esllmatad hours par year (Multlply esllmate % aach year by loial horrrsl

Year I
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

Toial

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

551.00
$52.02
$53.06
$5{ 12

Cost per
Year

$50,000.00
$102,000 00
$39,015.00
$39,795.30
$27,060,80

$257,871.10
$250,000 0o

$7,87t.10

4. Cslculate Total CoaI lncludlng Escalatlon (Mul{ply Averrge Houdy Rate by the number of houn)

Total Direct Labor Cogt with Escalation
Direct Labor Subtolal before Escalalion

Estimaled total of Direct Labol Salaly
lncreage

NOTES
1 This is not.the.only way to eslamate salary increases, Olher methods will be accepted if they clearlyindlcate lhe %

increase, lhe # of years of lhe contract, and a breakdown ol the labor to be pelfoimed each year,
2 An eglimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increaee % multiplied by the # of yeare ie not

acceptable

li:e. $250,000 x 2Ta x 5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)
3 This assumes] that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost propoifu netore salaly increases are granted.4 Calculations for anticipated salary escalation must be provided.

Page 2 of I
January 2020



Local Aseistance Procedures Manual EXHIEIT IO.HI
Cogt Prooosal

ExHrarr 10-H1 COST PnOfOSAL pags 3ot3

Crrtificstion of Dirsct Gosts;

l, lhe undersigned, cerlify to the besl of my knowledge and belief that all direct costs identified on the
cost proposal(s) in this contra6{ are acluel, reasonaHe, allowable, and allocable to the conlracl in
accordance with the conhact terms and the following requiremenls:

1. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

2, Terms and conditions of the conhect
3, Title 23 Uniled States Code Sec{ion 112 - Letting of Contracls
4. 48 Code of Faderal Reouldions Pail 31 - Confacl Cost Plinciples and Procedures

5. 23 Code of Federal Reoulalions Parl 17? - Procurement, Management, and
Adminislration of Engineering and Deslgn Related Service

6. 48 Code of Federal Requlalions Part 9904 - Cost Accountin,o Standards Board (wfien
applicable)

All costs must be applied consislently and fairly lo aH contrac{s. All documontalion of compliance must
be relained in lhe projectfilcs and be in complfance wilh applicablefederaland slate requirernenls.
Costs that are noncompliant with lhe federal and state requirements are not eligible for reimbursement.
Local governments are rcsponsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted
lndlrec't Cost Rate(s),

Prime Consultant or Subconsultanl Certlfvlno:

Namc
lvEn Benavidez Jr

Tllle *: Project Manager / Resident Engineer

Sigralurc: lvan Benavidez J r. B[X?,ffi9,H],?ff1f,t' Date of Cerlilicaiion (mm/dd/yyyy): 0612612020

Email: Phone Number: 909.512.2815

Address .2400 E. Katella AVe. Ste 800. Anaheim Ca 92806

*An individual executlve or finanohl offtcer of lhe consultant's or subconsultanl's organization at
a level no lower lhan e Vioe President or a Chief Financhl Officer, or equiyalent, wtro has
authority to represent lhe financial infonnation uiilized to establish the sost proposal for lhe
conlrac'1.

List underthe

Project Management, Conslructlon Management and Material Quality Assurance Testing Services.

Page 3 of 9
January 2020



..S.(nS"
GS0OBClllllGAtrGEOLOGIollYDB00EOlIOf.SltlV|nOt{MBl{TALrMtllRlLlrMllllllG.MAfTllllll

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

zot9

$ERV!CES

Frpfoeclongl
Prlnclpal Engneer/Geolog*
Senior Engineer/Geologist
Prof ect EnglneerlGeologlat
Stafi EnglneerlGeologist
Endrcnmentd Geologlst
Sedor Reglstered Hydrogeologlst
Grouadwater Creologlst

Expert WltnssT'Depocldon [4-hr mto)

ElelilIcllnlrel
Cefl t0ed ldlddtng Inrpeetor
Stucilral Weldlng Inspector
Certined Concrcte/Masonry Inspector
Strufirral Boldng Inspecor
Struchrral SEel Inspertor
Relnbrclng Steel Inspector
Epory/Grout Dowel luspector
Fleld Englneer/Geotoglst
Fleld Grourdrnraer Geologtst
Senior Field Technldan
Pield Techntc'lan
Souree Inspefior
lrltrasonlc Weld Tesdng
Mqgnedc Pafitcle Tesdng

Ftotd rechntcst fprevqilln$Wags]
Certifi ed Weldlng lnspector
Srucnual lil/eldlng Inspecbr
Cerdfied ConcretelMasoruy Inspecror
Stnrcilral Boltlng Inspector
Stnctural Steel lnspecbr
Retnfu rtlng Steel Inspector
Epory/Grout Ilowel lnspector
Fleld Englneer/Geologtst
Fleld Grourdwater feologtst
Senlor Fleld Techntclan
Fleld Technlc{an
Source lnspector
UleasontcWeldTesdng
MagnedcParlcle Tesdng

Gode
PEC

SEG

PG

STEG

EG

SRII

SGG

EW

Code

CwI
swr
ccr
SEI

ssl
RSt

EDI

FEG

FGG

SFT

FT
SI

UST

MPT

Code
CwIP
st4rlP

ccIP
SBIP

SSIP

RSIP

SDIP

FEGP

PGGP

SFTP

FTP

stP
USTP

MPTP

Rate
$15s
f135
$120
t100
$13s
$205
$135
$2s5

Rate

$16s
$15s
$1s5
$15s
$1s5
$uo
$1{0
$r+o
$14s
sl20
$115

$120
sz0s
fzos

Rete
$125
tlls
tl15
$115
$115

$10s
$ros
$100
$u0
tgo
$8s
$e0

$155
$15s

Page I of3



..snts,
clolBcllMcal.. G3outGY. tlYDfi]cgoloc.t . EmnoNuBilTtu . ulilBn/us . Hlflu{c . !{ATSaIAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

Offi ce and I qbora torg*sqhnl"al
Prolect Coordtnadon
IabontoryTechnician
Offi ce Supplles/Clertcal
Outslde Servlces

fob Supplles/Reproducdon/Posrage

SqnlFrnentRentd
Rebar Locaor
llltrasonlcWeld Tesfter

Magnetlc Weld tester
Illamond Cor{ng Rig
TorqueWrench/SHdmore
WaerQudltyPr€bc
Water Level Sounder

Yehtde. TravRl. and per Diem
Mtleage
ltavel Tlme [200-mlle max]
Room and Board
Meds

LAFOR4TORYmTqTtt{G

iFlln and Aggrsgtes
Procur (Standard Efrort4)
Pructor [Modtfred Efrort [J
Proctor (Modifred Bffort-6J
Proctor (Rod< Conecdon)
Procbr [CheckPoint)
Wet Denslty (Caltrans Tube)
Durablllty lndex
Hydrometer
Plastcltylndex
UquidUmlt
Plasdcilmit
R-Value ICA/NV Untreate d)
Sand Equlralent
SteveAnalysts
Sleve Ana[ysls wlth 200 Wash
Spedflc Cravlty {Coarse)
Speclf,c Gravlty (Flne)

Codo
PC

tT
os

u0r9

natc
$8s
$e0

t65
11596

11596

Rste
11596

11596

11596

f80
i80
$s0
$2s

nate
$.70lml

$8s
r1596

$lo

Code
RL

T'WT

l{wf
DCR

TWS

WQP

wrs

Code
MI
TT
RB

M

Code

5DC4

MDO[
MDC6

RC

CKPT

ccr
DI
HY

PI

Lt
PT

RV

SE

SA

sAw
scc
SGF

n&
$225

$230
$2so
N160

$ss
s22S
$225
$215

$305
$165
N16s

11596

$us
$11s
$1{5
N135

f135

TestMettod
ASTtdI)69S
Asftr{ D1557
ASTM D1557
ASTM D{718
AST{rd D1557
cT 216
ASTU D3744 ICT ZZe
ASTM D422
CT ZO/t

ASTMII4318
AltT]tt D4318
ASTI{ D2844/CT 301
ASTM D2419 /CT2L7
ASTM C136ICT 202
ASTMCll7
ASTM C\2ZCT 206
rrsTM c128/CT Zo7

Page 2 of3



..S.rGr;S"

GEOIICHIIICAL r GB0[00T. HllDR0OE0lOff . &{\4f,OllHIllTAL o lllllBXAIS r l{ltllllG . MATf,RIAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

CleannessValue
Fractued/Cnuhed Pardcles
UdtWelght

Shaar and Cansolldadon
Dlrect Shear (Undlsfitrb€4 3-Point)
Dlrect Sheer (Remolded 3.Potnt)
Consollddon (8.Polnt)
Addldonal Polnts

f.nnref3
Gompresstue Tst Cyllnder
Compressive Test Gmut Sample
Compressfue Test Grcut Prlsm
Comprcsrlve Test Mortar Cyllnder
Conpressive Test ShoElEte Core
0ven hyDensNty
Equlllbrtum Density

Aqphnltand Fevemsnt
Asphatt Extracdou by lgntson
Aggreg:ate Gradadon of Bruacnd Sample
Molsturc Conent of Aqphalt
Spec-|fi c Gravlty of Aryhalt Core
Iteorudcal Max Speclfic GravltylDenslty
StabllomeerTest

eP227
ASTM D5821/CT 205
crztz

TestMethod
AIITMD3OSO

ASrM D3080
ASTM D2435

Testnethod
ASTMCsg
ASTMGIg
ASru c39
ASTMGIg
ASTMC39
ASTMCS6T
ASTMC557

ctf
FP

TIWA

2019

$10s

$1s5
$los

ncte
$21s
$23s
$355

is5

Gode
usT
RST

coN

Code
ccr
CTGS

CTGP

CTMC

cTsc
ODD

EDD

Gode
IGN
GES

MCA

SGAC

RICB

I{VEEM

TegtMethod
gr 382

cT202
cT 370

cT 308
cT 309

cT366

nate
f4r
f*s
ios
l*g
$*s

$12s
Request

Rate
$2s0
l1ls
$10s

s60
$r6s

1159t

Page 3 of3



47 tstStrsst Suila 1

Red ands. CA 923734801
(909) elS5900

R$c Shcst

krronncl Criororv Rrtnr : Charycr will bc nads C lte Cdegry res ecl foilh for tho timc rpcnt on
project managooon! sorsultrtior or meotingr rolsted to ths pmjw{ field worl rport proparation and
twiow, tavcltimc!o udfromthe job nt, etc.

Podtion fitlc
Arrlgndhourf rrbfor
thc dureflon oftlc
contract

PdnoiDslhCbarns sl57-m
Sooior Rogulrtory Speoialirt sr57.00
FlogramManryq sl5?.00
lg{orryobgict $140.00

lEQAnFn $pcchlirt $140.00
Bnvirunmcdal Prrojsst $l{{1.00
Bnvfuonnantal Sib Mrnggor $14{t.00

Outsach st40.m
ScoicBlologiet $140.00
FAAl,icensod UAVPilot $135.00

!iolodst $12t.00
Biologist $110.00

_g!rylqs spooldbt sl10.00
ftoJeatAndy$ $105.00
Gmcal Consfttction Mooitor $105.00
Adninirtative $ 6s.00

Emrnror Billd At €orir

Thvcl (non-automoblle)
Lodging
Aub and Tnrck RmtBls
Spooialty Equipment and Rfftsb
Dellvecy 9ervicoc
PriEEog (BluEpriffi, Phob Semicas, Color Copios

gpcohltySWpUeo)

0lhrllhrctGorh

Atft Miloago (atounatlR$ re)
Agrncy Pennit Fees (At Cost)
Suboonsr{ffi - Cort Plus 3%

Jcrldroffimr, lnc 2m0



Ea*crn Sr"tt lrnc5unrsfr*

|0*tnCr&
fradqr*t,C %,16

Prevalling Wage
Pricslist 2A2A

CateEories Hourlv Rate

Survey crew (Prevailino Wage) $260

Calculation time $100

Proiect Coordination $100

Boundary Map Research $100

Draftinq $100



ZIC 2020 Houtly REE

ZT CONSULTING

ZIC Hourlv Rate 2020

TlDaofS€wko Tltlc Onllficrtlon

Senior Quality

ErylncedngSenkc

Asslstant

OA Fhld lmpcedon
Servleg(Pmlllnfl QA lnspector

I houn chaac forhsFection s€wices
2 Overthc ratc applies rfter 8 hourson the Job onthc wcekdays rnd any houn worked on Saturdry, Sunday, and Holldays.

Olhcr olrrci Cos...

trf Thls approxlmate cotl All the sub invoices arc pass through. ZTC does not markup the subs lnvolces.

to! lvqds otfq
'-': -:_ ': ::. .\'.

Pl :::. - ::,i:.

I

tl lf&360t66t tl hlbortcgrp cofllwl t|rvwntsrp sil!

Hourty RaE

Proloct Msnellmsnt PM PE Szro

pE / cqA Sre4.ao

quallty

Enslneer
PE $us.so

nT 5so.gs

QASouralmprcilon
Scnlq QrA lnspector

C\,V|, PCI lUlll,
ASNTNDT

W/MT
5109.$1r

cwl Pclil./1il,
ASNT NDT

ur/MT

Per DIR

requirements

lur Osrrtty Aoprufi. Unltcost TottlArmunt
Mlllage TBD (Federal Rate) S 0.575 / mlle T3D

Travel ln-State TBD (Gltrans Pollcy) Approx. $600/Trip TSD

Travel Out-of-State Tl0 (Cahrans Policy) Approx. 51,2tDlTrlp TBD

Eearln8 Pad / Elastonnr Testing IBD(ZTCSub ff)
S1,5oo / unir TBD

Epory CoatlncTestlnr IED IZTICSub *'l 5150/ Per Sample t8D
Strand Testio8 IBD IZIC Sub tfr) 5180/ Per Test TBO

Anchor BoltTesdng TBD (ZIC Sub '*') S35o/ Per Set T8D

Hoop Testhg/ Couplen (<fl11! TBD (ZIC Sub r..) 5160/ Per Sample TBD

Hlgh Strength Bolts TBD (Zl'C Sub r'l) 5155 / per bolt set TBD

Prestresslng ComponenB TBD (ZIC Sub r$l
$125 / per sample TBD

5.n ffemrdlm Ofi@



ATTACHIIENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Coryoratlon

FORTHE pROVtStON 9p Cgnstruction Management

TERII:

FROM: July 7th, 2020

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYME}IT:

County of lnyu Stendard Contract - No. 150
(lndgpondsnt Consullant - Proft eslonel)

Page 11 of12

Dsoember 31,2Q21

SERV|CES

141020fl



ATTACHiIENT D

AOREEi'ENT BETWEEN COUNTYOF INYO

AND Fountrainhead Consulling Coporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERH:

FRO;I: July 7th, 2020 December 31,2021

gEE ATTACHED II{gURANCE PROVISIONS

Counly of lnyo $tandad Conlract - No, 150
(lndependent Consultint - Professlonal)

Paga ,2 ol 12

SERVtCES

10t02017



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for iniuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF TNSUMNCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General tiability [CGL)r Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional lnsured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance fat least as broad
as ISO Form CG 2A 7A LL 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 2A26,CGZ0 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 [hired) and 9 (non-owned], with limit no
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $L,000,000 per accident for bodily
iniury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifuing that
contractor has no employees.

Professional tiability fErrors and Omissions]: appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

Cyber tiability lnsurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived if contractor will not be
receiving/storingftransmitting personally identifiable information [PII) or personal medical
information [PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims
involving infringement of intellectual properry, including but not limited to infringement of
copyright, trademarh trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic
information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage andlar higher limits than the minimurns shown
above, Inyo County requires ancl shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher

Countyof lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: lnsurance Requlrements for Professional Senrices

limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to lnyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

PrimaryCoverage
For any claims related to this contrac! the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to lnyo County.

Waiverof Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against lnyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-lnsured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County,

Acceptabillty of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
currentA.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to lnyo County.

Clalms Made Policles
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1. The ReFoactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work,
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at Ieast five

{5) years after completion of the conract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Reffoactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five [5) years after completion of
contract work.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: lnsurance Requirements for Professional Servlces

Verifi cation of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with ortginal Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements [or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsernent Page of the
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to lnyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these speciflcations, at
any tirne.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and veriff that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that lnyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature ofthe risk, priorexperience, insurer, coverage, orotherspecial circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No, I
Professional Services

page



In tlte Rams of the Board of Supewircrs
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 2l't dayof December2O2l an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works -
Fountainhead
Contract
Amendment 2

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve Amendment No.
2 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead Consulting Corporation of
Anaheim, CA, extending the end date of the contract from December 31 ,2021 to December
31,2022 and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor
Kingsley absent.

\\/ITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 2lil
ooyof D.t_etgub_er-2_04

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

{d*X U4A++44at*

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: PublicWorks
DATE: January 5,2022

By.



County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT . ACTION REQUIREI)
MEETING: December 21, 2021

FROM: Greg Waters

SUBJECT: Amendmenl#2 to the consultant agreement with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

: ii l-

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead
Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, extending the end date of the contract from December 31,2021 to
December 31,2022 and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all appropriate
signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFIGATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead Consultant
Corporation is contracted with lnyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances beyond the control of the
consultant, the project duration has increased, requiring a change in the contract effective dates. This does not
come with a cost increase.

BACKGROUN D/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS :

North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state (2017-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the extension to the contract, however this would prevent the consultant
from being paid after December 31,2021 and the project from being completed.

OTH ER AGENCY I NVOLVEMENT:

FINANGING:
There is no cost increase as a part of this Amendment #2, just a change to the contract end date



Page2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead Amendment 2
2. Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)

APPROVALS:
Greg Waters
Darcy Ellis
Michael Errante
Breanne Nelums
John Pinckney
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd

Created/lnitiated - 121612021

Approved - 121712021
Approved - 121712021

Approved - 121712021
Approved - 121712021
Approved - 121712021
Final Approval - 121712021



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Fountainhead Consulting
Corporation of Anaheim. CA (hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), have entered into an Agreement for the
provision of engineering services dated July 7.2020 , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the
termfrom Ju|y7,2020 to December 31.2021.

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity.

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below.

The consultant agreement will be extended from the current end date of Decembe r 3l"t , 2021 to the future date of
December 31"',2022

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is December lst.202l

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
Amendment 2

Page I



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
23rd DAY OF Mav 202t.

COUNTY OF'INYO CONSULTANT

By: By:

Dated: 0512312022 Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

9^*_

&^ao{- W
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOTINTING
FORM:

&"'rb"%a'tt;t*/z
County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL
REQUIREMENTS:

Director of Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
Amendment 2

Page2

County



In the Rooms of the Board af Supewisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, I{EREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 7th dayof July 2A20an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

Public Works-
Fountainhead
Consulting Contract

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Tillemans to approve the contract
between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim, CA for the
performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge
Construction Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7,2020
through December 31,2A21, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained, Motion carried unanimousty.

WITNESS ay hand and the seal <tf said Baard this 7th

oay of JULY. 2020

cLtNT G. SUII.TF:R
Clerk of the Board ofSupentisors

Routing

cc
Purchaslng
Personnal
Audltor
CAQ:

Alher: PubllcWo*s
DAT* July7,2020

By:

&Abr*r



+-t.l

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSEI\T - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: July7,2A20

FROM:

SUBJECT: North Round Valley Bridge construction Management contract

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Request Board approve the contract between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim,
CA for the performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge Construction
Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7 , 2020 through December 31, 2021 , and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFIGATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead construction will
perform the work described in the attached 'Scope of Work' including but not limited to: contractor management,
budget and schedule tracking, inspection of work, structural representation, biological monitoring, and source
material inspection.

BACKGROUN D/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS :

North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2A17 for which a state(2017-1 1) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSESUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from moving
fonrvard.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The State of California Office of Emergency Services is funding this project at a reimbursement rate of 75o/o

FINANCING:
The cost of the contract will be paid through budget unit 034600 (Road Budget), object code 5717 (Construction
lnspection). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75% by the California Office of Emergency Services (DSR
3602).



Agenda Request
PageZ

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead CM Contract - lB Signed

APPROVAL$:
Jacob Trauscht
Darcy Ellis
MarshallRudolph
Amy Shepherd
Aaron Holmberg
Michael Errante

Created/lnitiated - 6129i2A20
Approved - 6/3012020
Approved - 613012020
Approved -6i30n020
Approved -613A12020
Final Approval - 6l3Ql2A2Q



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Founlsinhead Consulti ng Cortoration

FOR THE PROVISION OF constructionManasemsnt ERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafier referred to as "Countt'') has the need for the
ConBtruction Manag€menl Of Folntainhesd Consulting Corporation

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultant'), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1 SCOPE OF WORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by thg Dir€clorolPubllcWorks,

Michael Eranle Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or
warran$, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the
Consultant by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the Count/s requesl under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and, as applicable, as
set forth, in Aftachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term Of this Agfeement Shall be frOm July 7th, 2020 tO Dcmmbor 31th, 2021 unleSS
sooner terminated as provided below. ln addition, County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for
additional one-year periods as follows:

From through

From through

County shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contraclor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Comoensation, County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Feos
(set forth as Aftachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Consultant at the Countt's request.

B. Travel and oer diem- County shall reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 1 of 12

10102017

A.

B.



Consultant shall request approval by the County prior to incuning any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted lo lhe
Dlreclor of Publlc Wo*8, Micheel ErEnte Travel and per diem
expenses will reimbursed in accordance with the rates set in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem
Payment (Aftachment C), County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per
diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in
Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County.

C. No additionalconslderation. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under lhis Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shalt not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. _ Limit Pnon amount navable underAgreement. The total sum of all payments made by the County
to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
$ 9sq.szqsz (initialterm) $ (option 1) and $ (option 2) for a
total of $ $s.s2s,37 Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract timit). County exprbss$ reserves
the right to deny any paymeni or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed
which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billino and pavment, Consultant shall submit to the Coungr once a month, an iiemized
statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in Aftachment A, which
were done at the Count/s request. This statement will be submitted to the County not later lhan the fifih
(Sth) day of the month. The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first ('tst) day of the
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which wae performed on each day.
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expensei,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the
month.

F, Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) betow, County will not withhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold Califomia State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-Califomia resident independent Consultant's
when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Consultant under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibilig of Consultant. Counly has no responsibility or liabilig
for payment of Consultanfs taxes or assessments.

The total amounts paid by Coung to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the
lnternal Revenue Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To

County of lnyo Standarcl Contract - No. 1f6
(lndependent Consultant - Protecsional)

Page 2 ol 1?

(4)

101020'17



facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultants obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A, which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate wiih County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by Coung.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at ihe time Consultant enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permlts may include, but are not limited to, drive/s
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expenEe to the County. Consultant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits wttich are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debaned, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: httn://www.sam.gov.

6. OFFTCE SPAGE, SUppLtES, EQU|PMENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items, Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY

A. Personal Property of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safe$ devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of Coung.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Consullant's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No, 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 3 of 12

10102017



of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. IN$URANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by virtue of lhis Agreement, has no authorig to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
Coun$. Except as expressly provided in Aftachment A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is t6 be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
controlwith respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all limes during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as employees of
County.

IO. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

. For professional services rendered under lhis Contract, Consultant agre$ to indemniff, including
the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers irom and against any and all
claims, demands, costs, or liabili$ that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of Consultant and its employees or agents in the performance oi professional services
under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liabilig for damages arising from lhe sole negligence,
active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify Coung and its officers, officials, employees,
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including aftorney fees arising
out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act oi
omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole
negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.

Consultanfs obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, offtcers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restrictedby, any requirement
in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant maintains
higher limits than the minimum required on the lnsurance attachment to this Agreement, the County requires
and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.

To the extent permifted by law, County shall defend, indemniff, and hold harmless Consultant, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation cosls and aftorney's fees, arising out of, or iesulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

County of lnyo Standard Conlract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 4 of 12

14102017



11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspeelions and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate ihe work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consultant and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq,), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thirty (30) days vwitten notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancelthis Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Consultant shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of Coun$.
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of County.

'5. 
DEFAULT.

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the wod< and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
Coun$, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
written notice to Consultant. Upon such terminalion by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work salisfactorily performed to lhe date of termination.

T6. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any olher or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

County of lnyo Standard Conlracl - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 5 of 12

10102a17



17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidenlial all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Tifle 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and '14100.2 of the Welfare and lnslitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

{8. CONFLICTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the Coun$ in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Fu(her, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any Coung, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the Coung's confidenlial, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

2'. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The abili$ of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must eomply with the requirements of paragraph tweng-
tr,/vo (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or sublracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 6 of 12

1UA2U7



23. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreemenl, which Consultant or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo:
Publlc Work! Department

Address
City and State

P.O. Dnwer Q

Consultant:
Founblnhoad Consulting Corporauon Name

Address
Ci$ and State

2400 E. Kslolla, Sult6 800

lndopendence, CA

Anahoim, CA 92806

A. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or efGct. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

lll ilil

County of lnyo Standanl Conlract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consullant - Professional)

P^ge7 ot 12

14102011



FOR THE PROVIEION OF Cfi.llrolholillnmamd

AOREEi,lEtlT EEIIIIEEN COUNW OF lttlyO

SERVICES

HERETO HAI/E SET THEIR HAIIDS ANO SEALS THIS
,,'D

d

AND Far{.hlrd c6f,dllrf Cooordhl

IN WITNESSI THEREOF, THE PARTIESN DAYOF July

By:

couNwoFNYo

Debd:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAUTY:

B:
lvan

or

Oated: rlwlw t0

fr^rn Ut*l,-
County

APPRO\GD AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

( '*'nVtlaat;thA
OamlyAudltsr

APPROVEOAS

TO

Counly of lnyo 8tr]dild Conlrscl - l{o. lS0
(lndqcnded Concufrad - Prolbarlonal)

P.9.8 of t2
10102017



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERM

FRoM: JulyTth,202Q

SCOPE OF WORK:

December 31,2021

SERVICES

County of lnyo Standard Contracl - No. 156
(lndependent Consullanl - Profe6slonel)

Page I of 12

10102017



lnya County Public Warl<s
Page 7 of75 N o r th R o un d r, u 

", 
*r rfsiiit% ; i;:::;::,

business relationship with the construction contractor(s) who are working on the projects that are assigned
for material Quality Assurance services through task orders on the contract.

Similar to the disclosures regarding contractors, all firms are also required to disclose throughout the term of
the awarded contract, any Design Engineering services including claim services, Lead Proiect Management
services and Construction Engineering Services provided to all other clients on any local project listed in this
Scope of Work.

ln addition to the disclosures, the Consultant shall also provide possible mitigation efforts, if any, to eliminate
or avoid any actual or perceived conflicts ofinterest,

The Consultant shall ensure that there is no conflict before providing services to any construction contractor
on any of the agency's projects' Iisted in this Scope of Work. The submitted documentation will be used for
determining potential conflicts of interest

If a Consultant discovers a conflict during the execution of an assigned task order, the Consultant must
immediately notifli the Contract Manager regarding the conflicts of interesl The Contract Manager may
terminate the Task Order involving the conflict of interest and may obtain the conflicted services in any way
allowed by law. Failure by the Consultant to noti$/ the Contract Manager may be grounds for termination of
the contract

Some examples of conflict of interest are the followingl
. Certified Materials Tester(sJ or Plant Inspector[s) from the same company that performs Quality

Control for the Contractor and Quality Assurance for the County on the same project,

. Providing services to construction contractor's snbcontractors, fabricators, equipment installer,
material suppliers and other firms associated with the projects Iisted in the Contract can be a
potential conflict ofinterest when such contractor teams are identified.

Scone of Work
The scope ofwork defined below is based on the County's current understanding ofthe work to be
performed. The consultant shall review the design documents and environmental permits to identi$ any
components not explicitly or implicitly included in this SOW.

Phase I - Pre-Construction
o Review RE Files provided by MGE Engineering, make or request any changes necessary
r Review plans for constructability, advise the County and design engineer
r Review contractors proposed schedule, advise the County and design engineer on potential issues
r Pre-ConstructionlKick-off meeting - Attend and Participate in a Pre-construction meeting
r Verify all permits are acquired and present at site

o Review all permit requirements
r Produce Construction oversite Plan

o Include construction oversite schedule, to be updated weekly in coordination with
contractor

o Identiff inspection and material testing requirements, frequencies, personnel required [i.e.
material tester, structural inspector, bio monitor), and schedule [to be included in the
construction oversite schedule)

Phase II - Construction
r Schedule, Iead, and attend weekly (oras needed) construction progress meetings

o Provide minutes and action items, to be sent to stake-holders
r Review contractor supplied critical path management schedule, update on weekly or as-needed

basis



lnya Caunty Public Warks
Page I af16

Requestfar Prapasals
North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement

r Process Progress Payments
o Prepare monthly quantity estimates, check against contractor invoice statements, make

recommendations to the County regarding payment
r Negotiate and prepare contract change orders, in conjunction with design engineer if needed
o Provide and coordinate with additional required personnel, including but not limited to:

o Structuralrepresentative
o Material Tester
o Biological monitor

r Submittals & RFIs
o Review submittals and RFls, including responses from design engineer, and incorporate any

changes that effect required inspectionsltesting
o Coordinate with design engineer regarding submittallRFl responses, and potential changes

to inspectionsltesting based on responses
r Provide full-time inspection services

o Produce daily RE diaries, including but not limited to:
r Track Contractor days
r Track Contractor working hours including employee names
. Subs on site
r Major equipment on site and status
r Description of work completed and task completion status (estimated 7o of total)
I Weather
r Catalog ofstop-work and causes
. Any QA/QC work performed including any test/inspection results, passffail status

of testfinspection, and any comments that are important for explaining observed
results

o Keep record of all as-built changes for inclusion into the final project as-built drawings
o Track quantities of materials usedlinstalled
o Ensure and document compliance with all environmental permits
o Collect review, and compile contractor labor compliance documents
o Inspect construction staking to assure compliance to relevant standards

r Provide sub-contractor to perform quality control material testing services, review results for
compliance with construction contract specifications.

o Notify contractor of any failing tests
o Provide material tester with weekly schedule up-dates and projections of coming testing

requirements for following week
o Verify material tests are performed in compliance with the County QAP

r Provide structural inspection when required
r Provide a on-site biological monitor to fulfill requirements of all environmental permits
r Public Outreach

o Provide information to County Project manager to be distributed to public via mailings,
website, or other media

Phase III - Post-Construction
r Project Closeout Tasks [Following substantial completion of work)

o Perfotm site walk and create a punchlist of items to be completed by contractor (or
deducted from final payment)

o Ensure sign-off from outside agencies confirming that restoration has been completed as far
as practicable

o Generate a final quantity estimate, review final contractor payment and provide
recommendations regarding payment to the County

r Generate Final Project Reportto include:
o Summary and results of all QA/QC acdvlties finspections, material test results, etcJ
o Incorporate submittal and RFI logs [provided by design engineer)
o Summary of monthly progress repons



Inyo County Public Works
Page 9 af16

Request far Proqasals

North Round Valley Raad Bridge Replacement

o Daily Reports
o Catalogofall as-builtchanges
o Summary/catalog of environmental monitoring compliance

APPENDIX A - PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

These guidelines are provided for standardizing the preparation and submission of Proposal/Proposals by all
responding Consultants. The intent of these guidelines is to assist Consultants in preparation of their
proposals, to simplify the review process, and to help assure consistency in format and content.

Proposals shall contain the following information in the order listed:

t. IntroductoryLetter

The introductory [or transmittalJ letter shall be addressed to:

facob Trauscht
Inyo County Public Works
PO Drawer Q
Independence, CA93526

The letter shall be on Consultant letterhead and include the Consultant's contact name, mailing address,
telephone number, facsimile number, and email address. The letter will address the Consultant's
understanding ofthe services being requested and any other pertinent information the Consultant believes
should be included. All addendums received must be acknowledged in the transmittal letter,

The letter shall be wet-signed in blue ink by the individual authorized to bind the Consultant to the proposal.

2. Executive Summary

3. Consultant Informatlon, Qualifications & Experience

The County will only consider submittals from Consultants that demonstrate they have successfully
completed comparable projects. These projects must illustrate the quality, type, and past performance of the
project team. Submittals shall include a detailed description of a minimum of three (3) projects within the
past five {5) years which include the following information:

1. Contractingagency
2. Contracting agency Project Manager
3. Contracting agency contact information
4. Contract amount
5. Funding source
6. Date ofcontract
7 . Date of completion
8. Consultant Project Manager and contact information
L ProjectObjective
10. Project Description
11. Project Outcome

4. OrganizationandApproach



ATTACHITIIENT B

AGREET'ENT BETWEEN COUNTVOF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construction Management SERV|CES

TERM:

FROM: July 7th, 2020 December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

This contract shall allow the Director of Public Works to add to or modify the approved job classification list as
necessary to account for personnel changes. The Director of Public Works may only approve changes to the
Schedule of Fees that are not associated with an increase to the contract Not-to-Exceed amount.

County oflnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

{lndependent Coneullant - Profussional)
Page 10 of 12

10102A17



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

Exrusrr 10-Hl Cosr Pnopos.ql page I or3

COST.PLUS.FTXED FEE oR I,UMP sUM oR FIRM tr.IxED PRICE C0NTRACTS

(DEsrcN, ENGTNEERING AND ENVTRoNMENTAL STr.rDlEs)

Notc: Mark-ups areNotAllowed E Prime Consultant I Subconsultant I 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultino

Project No. 48COO44 Contract No. 156 Date 0612612424

DIRECT LABOR

LABORCOSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs $ 119,784.00

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

c) T0TAL DIRECT LABOR cosTs [(a) + (b)] $ 119,784.00

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 0-9926- ) e) Total F'ringe Benefits [(c) x (d)]
0 Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) C) Overhead [(c) x (0]

h) General and Administrative (Rate: 104.009 ) i) Gen & Admin t(c) x (h)l $ 124,575.36

j) ToTAL INDIRECT COSTS [(e) + (s) + (i)]

FIXED FEE k) TOTAL I'IXEL FEE (c) + (i)l x fixed fee 5.00% I
CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS -ITEMIZE additional if

D TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS $nnn

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 124,575.36

$ 12,217.97

m) SUBCONSULTANTS'COSTS (Add addttlonal pages if necessary)
Subconsultant I i 7T (lnnerrrinn $ 42.863.04
Subconsultant 2: Earthsoective^s $ 8,436.00
Suhconsultant Jericho Svstems s 18,500.00
Subconsultant 4: Sierra Geolechnical Senrines $ 13,552.00

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS (l)+(m)l

TOTAL COST [(c) + 0) + (k) + (n)l $ 339.928.37
NOTES
l. Key personnel must be marked with an asterisk {*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked

with two asterisks 1'rt'1. All costs must comply with the Fcderal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.
2' The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the

consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.
3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

Page 1 of 9
January 2020

$ 83.351.O4

!n n? ?q{ n1

Classilication/Title Name Hours .dctual Hourly Rate Total

Prolecl MsnEger/R€sidont EnO.

Slrudures Rspr€senhtive

lnipec{orlofli€ Englnaar

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

Salvador Valdovinos

224.00

616.00

880.00

$ 81.00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

$ 18,144.00

$ 48,048.00

$ 53,592.00

$ 0.00

Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost Total
$ 0.00

Eouipment Renlal and Suoolies $ 0.0c
Permit Fees !hnon
Plan Sheets $ 0.00
Test



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHtEtr 10-l{r
Cost Proposal

Exruglr 10-Hl Cosr Pnoposnl page 2 or3

Cosr-Plus.Frxeo FEe onLump Suu on Frnu FtxED PRrcE CoNTRAcrs

(CRlcuuloNs F o R Ar.rtr cr pereo SALARv I NoREASE s)

1. Calculate Average Hourly Rale for lst year of the conlract (Dlrec! Labor Subtotal dlvlded by total hours)

Direct Labor
Subtotal per Cost

Proposal

$250,000.00

Total Hours per
Cost Proposal

Proposed Escalation

+2%a
+2Yo=
+ 2a/a .
+ 2o/o :

Estimated hours
(calculated above)

" 1000
' 2000* 750

" 750
' 500

500

Avg
Hourly
Rate

$50.00

5 Year
Contract
Duratlon

Year 1 Avg
Hourly Rate

2. Calculate hourly rate for all years {lncrease the Average Hourly Rate for a year by propced escalalion %}

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

Avg Hourly Rate

$50.00
$51,00
$52.02
$53.08

Estimated % Completed
Each Year

2O.Ao/o

40.OYc
15.0%
15.04/o

1A.Ao/o

1A0o/o

Avg Hourly Rate
(calculated above)

s50.00
$51.00
$52.02
$53.0€
$54.12

Total Hours per Cost
Proposal

' 5000 =
' 5000 =" 5000 E

' 5000 =' 5000 =Total =

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Total Houra per
Year
1000 Estimated Hours Year 1

2000 Estimated Hours Year 2
750 Estimated Hours Year 3
750 Egtimated Hours Year 4
500 Estimated Hours Year 5

5000

$51.00
$52.02
$53,06
$54.12

3, Calculate esllmatsd hours per year {Multiply estimate 7o each year by totat hours}

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

Total

4. Calculate Total CosF lncluding Escalatlon (Muhiply Average Hourly Rate by the number of hours)

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

NOTES:

Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation
Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Estimated total of Direct Labor Salaly
lncrease

Cost per
Year

$50,000.00
$102,000.00
$39,015.00
$39,79S.30
$27,060.80

$257,871.10
$250,000.00

$7,871.10

Estimated Hours Year 1

Estimated Hours Year 2
Estimated Hours Year 3
Estimated Hours Year 4
Eetimated Houre Year 5

Transfer to Page 1

1. Thisisnottheonlywaytoegtimatesalatyincreases.Othermethodswill beacceptediftheycleadyindicatethe%
increase, the # of years of the contlact, and a breakdown of the labor to be pelformed eaclr year.

2. An estimalion lhat is based on direct labor multiplied by salaly increase % multiplied by the # of years ie not
acceptable.
(i.e. $250,000 x 2Yo x 5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)

3. This assumes that one yearwill be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salay increases are granted.
4. Calculations for anlicipated salaly escalation must be provided.

Page 2 of I
Januay 2020



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHTATT r0-Ht
Cost Proposal

Exxtgrt 10-Hl Cosr PnOpoSel pase 3 or3

Certification of Direct Costs:

l, lhe undersigned, certify io the best of my knowledge and belief that alldirect costs identified on the
co6t proposal(s) in this contrac{ are aciual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contrac,l in
accordance with the contract terms and the following requirements:

1. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

2. Terms and condilions of lhe contracl
3. Title 23 Uniled States Code Sec'tion 112 - Letting of Contracts
4. 48 Code of Federal Reoulations Pail 31 - Conlrac'l Cost Principles and Procedures

5. 23 Code of Federal Reoulations Part 172 - Procurement, Management, and
Administration of Engineering and Design Related Service

6. 48 Code of Federal Re-oulations Parl9904 - Cost Accornlino Standards Board (when
applicable)

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must
be retained in the projectfiles and be in compliance with applicablefederaland state requirements.
Costs that are noncotnplianl with the federal and state requlrements are nol eligible for reimbursement.
Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizanl agency approved or Caltrans accepted
lndirec{ Cost Rate(s).

Prime Consultant or Subconsultanl Certifvino:

Name
lvan Benavidez Jr

Title *: Project Manager / Resident Engineer

Signature: lvan Benavidez Jr J.,

Date of Certifi calion (mm I dd ly y y y)'. 0612612020

Email: ibenavidez@founta inheadcorp. com Phone Number: 909.s12.2815

Address 2400 E. Katella AVe. Ste 800 Anaheim Ca 92806

*An individual executive or financial officer of the consultant's or subconsultant's organizalion at
a level no lower than a Vice Presidentor a Chief FinancialOfficer, or equivalent, who has
authorily to represent lhe financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for lhe
contract.

List services the consu

Management, Construction Management and Material Quality Assurance Testing Services.

Page 3 of I
January 2020



".S'(n€'"
G&IIBGHNICAL r GEoLOGY r HYIIROGBOLOGY. ENVTR0ilMB!{TAL e MINBRAIS . UII{ING. MAItsRIAIII

SGS SCHEDUTE OF FEES

2019

SERV!CES

Professlonal
Prtncipal Engineer/Geologst
Senior Engineer/Geologist
Project Englneer/Geologist
Staff Englneer/Geologist
Enrdronmenal Geologst
Senior Reglstered Hydrogeologlst
Groundwater Geologist
Expert 1,1{tness/'Deposition (#hr mln)

FleldTc+hnlcel
Cedfed Weldtng Insp€ctor
Strucftral Weldlng Inspector
Certifi ed Concrete/Masonry Inspector
Strucftral Boldng lnsp ector
SEuchrrd Steel Inspector
Relnforctng Steel Inspector
Epo:ry/Grout Dowel Inspector
Fleld Englneer/Geologlst
Fleld Grcundvrater G€ologtst
Senior Field Technldan
FieldTechniclan
Source Inspector
tlltrasonlc Weld Tesdng
Magnedc Pafl tcle Testlng

Fietd Technicat {PmrratHng Wage}
Cettfi ed lVeldhg Inspector
StmcilraMleldLtg Iuspector
Cerdfied Concrete/Masonry Inspector
Stnctural BolUng lnspector
Strucural Steel Inspecsr
Relnfontng Steel Inspector
Bporry/Gmut Dowel lnspector
Rield En gineerlGeologlst
Fteld Groundwater Geologlsr
Senlor Fleld Techniclan
FieldTedmiclan
Source Inspector
tlltrasontcWeldTesffirg
Magnedc Pardcle Tesdng

Gode
PEG

SEG

PG

STBG

EG

SRH

SGG

EW

Gode

CwI
swr
ccr
SBI

ssI
RSI

EDI

FTEG

FGG

sm
FT
SI

usT
MPT

Code
CWIP

SWIP

ccIP
SBIP

ssIP
RSIP

EDIP

FBGP

FGGP

SFFTP

FTP

SIP

USTP

IT.TPTP

nate
$15s
fl3s
s120
$100
$13s
$205
$13s
$2ss

Rate

il25
$1rs
$115
$115
$115
$105
$10s
$100
$110

$e0

$8s
$e0

$155
$15s

nate
$16s
$15s
$1s5
$1s5
$1ss
s1{0
$140
t140
s1lS
$120
N11s

$120
s20s
$2os

Page 1of3



,.S,ffis€,
CBOTBCHMCAL . GEOL,OGY. HIDI,0GEOLOGY . BilVIRONMSNTAL . HINERAISI . MINING . MATSf,IAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

Ofi ce and I oborntory Technlcal
Profect Coordlnadon
IaboratoryTechnician
0ffice Supplies/Clerical
Outside Servlces

Iob Suppltes/Reprcduction/Postage

EqulpnentRental
Rebar Locator
Ultrasonlc Wdd Tester
MagneHcWeld tester
Dlamoad Coring Rig
Torque Wrench/Skidmore
Water Quallty Prob€
Water Level Sounder

Vehlcle. Travel. and Per Diem
Mlleage
Travel Tlme (200-mlle max)
Roorn and Board
Meals

IJIRORATORVTESTIITG

Solls end A$gregntes
Pm cbr (Statrdard Eft rt4')
Prcdor (Modifred Effort-4 J
Proctor [Modified Efiort-6')
Prrctor fRock Correctlon]
Prccbr [Check Poiut)
Wet Densfty (Caltrans Tube)
DurabllityIndex
Hydrometer
Plasticity tndex
Liquid Limit
PlasdcLlrnft
R-Value (CAINV Untreated)
Sand Equlvalent
Slevefuialysis
Slare fuialysls wlth 200 Wash
Speclfl c Gravtty (Coarse)
Speclfic Gravlty (FlneJ

TestMethod
ASTMD698
ASTMD1557
ASTMD1557
ASTMD4718
ASTM D1557
cr216
ASTMD3744lCT229
ASTM D422
cTzA4
ASTM D4318
ASTMD4318
ASTM DZ844|CT30L
ASrMD2419/CT2t7
ASTMC136/CT20Z
ASTMC1l7
ASTVLCL?7lCT296
ASTIr{ C1281cT207

Rate

$8s
se0
$6s

115%
11596

Code
PC

LT
os

Code
Rt
ttwT
MWT
DCR

TWs
WQP

wLs

Code
sDc4
MDC4

MDC6

RC

CKPT

ccr
DI
HY

PI

Lt
Pt
RV

SE

SA

sAtlt
sGc

SGF

2019

Rate

115%

Rate
115q6

115%
11596

$80
$so
$s0
s2s

Code
MI
TT
RB

M

$.70luri
$8s

$lo

Rats
$225
$230
$2s0
$160
$ss

t22S
$22s
$215

$305
s15s
$16s

115%

$115
$115
$145
$135
i135

Page 2 of3



-,S,rt3S,-
CBOTBCHNICAL. GEOLOGY . HYIIROGEOL00I . BI{VIRO!{MBISAL r MIllRAlIl o MI}{II{G . IIATBRIAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

2019

$10s
$lss
$105

Rate

$2ls
$2ss
s3ss
$ss

Cleanness Value
FracurcdlCrushed Pardcles
udrwelght

Sheernnd Conselldadon
Dlrect Shear (Undlshubed 3-Point)
Dlrect Shear (Remolde4 3-PointJ
Consolldadon (8-Polnt)
AddtdonalPolnts

Concrete
Compres-sfu e Test Cyllnder
Compressive Test Gmut Sample

Compressive Test Gmut Prlsm
Compresslve Tesit Mortar Cyllnder
Compressive Test ShoEtete Core
OvenDryDenslp
Equlllbrlum Density

Asuhnltand Pavement
Asphalt &tracdon by lgnlflon
AggFEgpte Gradadon of Eruaced Sample
Moisturc Cont€nt of Asphdt
Speclfic Gravtty of Asphalt Core
Theoredcal Max Specific Grardty/Density
Stab0ometerTest

cv
FP

lrwA

Code
UST
RST

coN

e|227
ASTMDsSzllcf,2AS
CT2L2

Testlfiethod
ASTM D3O8O

ASTM D3O8O

ASTM D2435

TestMethod
ASTM C39
ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTMC39
ASTM C39

ASTMC567
ASTMC557

Code

ccr
CTGS

CTGP

CTMC

cTsc
ODD

EDD

Code
IGN

GES

MCS

SGAC

RICB

T{VEEM

TestMethod
cr382
cT202
cT 370
9r308
cT 309

cr366

nate
$43
$43
fos
$*s
s*s

$12s
Request

Rate
3250
$115
$10s

S6o

$16s
115%

Page 3 of3



47 lst Street. Suite 1

Red ands, CA 923734601
(909) 915.5900

Rete Shcet

PenonnclCrtcqory n 0g : Charges will6s mrde atthe Cdegory rdes set forth forthe timc speot on
prcject nauag€m€ni consultation or meetings rclated to fte projec! ficld worl nport preparation and
rcview, havel time to and fronthe job siE, ctc.

Position lltlc
Alsignd Lourp ratsfor
the dnredon of the
contract

Ptincipl In Charge $157.00
Scnior Regula0ory Specialist $r57.00
Pr,ogramManagcr $157.00
SmiorEcologist $140.00
CEQA/NEA Spccialist $140.00
Envircnmeutal koject lvlannger $140.00
Bnvironmental Sito Managcr $140.00
Publicotteacn Sp€cidist $140-00
Seoior Blologist $140.00
PAA Lice,rsed UAV Pilot $135.00
Biologist $12r.00
FicldBiologirt $110.00

Specialkt $110.00
hojectAnalyst $105.00
Gcn€ral Constustion Monitor $105.00
Administative $ 65.00

SncnrccBillcd AtCalft,

Tlavcl (non-automobile)
Lod'ing
Auto andTruckReirtals
Spwialty Equipment and Relrtals
Delivery Servicos
Ptitrtiot @luepdds, Photo Senricos, Color Copies

Specidty Sq'plies)

OlherllhrctCmh

Aulo Mleago (atcurrcnt IRll rab)
Agoncy PcrmitFees (At Cost)
Subconsultmts - Cost Plue 3%

Jaddto Syrlemt, Inc 2920



E"*"rn Sr*" lrrraSrrt "y**
19Xw,nCvde

GrnialL*46n 46

Prevailing Wage
Pricelist 2AZA

Categories Hourlv Rate

Survev crew (Prevailino Waoe) $260

Calculation time $100

Proiect Coordination $100

Boundarv Map Research $100

Drafting $100



TC

1

Fl 818-369,6E57 El lnto(trtcSrp cem Wl www ztqrp €onr

ZIC2020Houdynute

san 8erurdirc Ome
:-i: .-.

Pl r.-'--- '--- 
-

ZT CONSULTING

Lor ArEpls Offe
'-',. _ 1- 3'..- :-, ;- :i ::*

Pl ,:.a:1.1-;t-j

ZfC Hourlv Rate 2020

Typeof Servlcc Tftle Quallficatlon HourffRaE

PmlecManagement PM PE Szro

PE / COA Sra+.eo

Quallty
Englneer

PE s11s.so

EIT S80.8s

QA5oure lnspccdon
Sett16 QA lnspector

cwt, Pcilt/lt,
ASNT NDT

I'T/MT
s109.15r,2

cwt, Pcill./ilt,
ASNT NDT

UT/MT

Per DIR

requirements

Senior Quality
neer

ErglneerlngSerulce

Assistant

0A Fleld lnspecdon
SeMcs(Pmnlllryl QA lnspector

I Minimum four hours charge for inspection servtces
r Overtime rate applies after 8 hours on ttr,e job on the weekdays and any hours worked on Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays.

OdrcrDlnct@.r

"f This approximate cost. All the sub invoices are pass through, ZIC does not markup the subs lnvoices.

lEm Quendty Appmr.UnitCct TotdArnount
Millage TBD (Federal Rate) S 0.575 / mlle TBD

Travel in-State 'l3D (Caltrans Policy) Approx, 5600 / Trip TBD

Travel Out-of-State TBD (Caltrans Policy) Approx. St,zaolTrip TBD

Bearing Pad / Elastomer Testing lBD (ZIC Sub it*) 51,500 / Unit TBD

Epoxy Coating Testing TBD (ZTCSub .'+) 5150/ Per Sample TBD

Strand Testing TBD {4C Sub i*r) 5180/ Per Test TBD

Anchor BoltTesting TBD {ZTCSub'$} 5350 / Per set TBD

Hoop Testing I Couplers (<s11) TBD {ZTC Sub *fr) 5150/ Per Sample TBD

Hlgh Strength Bolts TBD (ZIC Sub til) 5155 / per bolt set TBD

Prestressing Components TBD (ZIC Sub *.+) 5125 / per sample TBD



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERlI

FROM: July7lh,202A

SCHEDULE OF TRAVELAND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

Coun$ of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 196
(lndependent Consultant - Profassional)

Page1l of12

December 31,2021

SERV|CES

14102017



ATTACHiIENT D

AGREEilIENT BETWEEN GOUNTYOF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE pROVtStON gp Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July 7th, 2020 December 31,2A21

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contracl - No. 1So
(lndependent Consultant - Proftsslonal)

Page 12 ol 12

SERV|CES

filA20J7



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for iniuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSUMNCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General Liability [CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance fat least as broad
as ISO Form CG Z0 IA 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 2A 37
forms if later revisions usedJ.

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 000L covering, Code 1. (any
autoJ, or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code I fhired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodity injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
iniury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certi$ring that
contractor has no employees.

Professional tiability (Errors and Omissions): appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

Cyber Liabitity Insurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived if contractor will not be
receivingfstoringftransmitting personally identifiable information IPIIJ or personal medical
information [PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be lirnited to, claims
involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement of
copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic
informatiory extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage andlor the higher

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the ConFactor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 2A A1 0413 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not conffibute with it,

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiver of Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention, The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention rnay be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to lnyo County.

Clalms Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

(5J years after completion of the conffact of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5J years after completion of
contract work.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services
Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Verification of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
any time.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and verifu that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature ofthe ris\, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Sewices
Page



In the Rooms of the Board of Superuisors
County of lnyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 20th day of September 2022 an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

Public Works -
Fountainhead
Amendment 3

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve Amendment No.
3 to the consulting agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead of Anaheim, CA,
increasing the contract by $209,281.54 to an amount not to exceed $671,039.51 and extending
the expiration date from December 31, 20221o June 30,2023, contingent upon the Board's
approval of the Fiscal Year 2A22-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign,
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

lltlT'NNS my hand and the seal of said Board this 2Uh

noy of EgpJgubs,n 20 .

NATHAN CREENBERG
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

Nr

Routing

&
Purchasing
Penonrrel
Audltor
cAo
Olher: PublicWbrks
DATE: Septembr2&,2022

By:



County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT . ACTION RSQUIRED
MEETING: September 20, 2A22

FROM: Greg Waters

SUBJECT: Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the consulting agreement between the County of lnyo and
Fountainhead of Anaheim, CA

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the consulting agreement between the County of lnyo and
Fountainhead of Anaheim, CA, increasing the contract by $209,281 .54 to an amount not to exceed $671,039.51
and extending the expiration date from December 31,2022 to June 30,2023, contingent upon the Board's
approval of the FiscalYear 2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTI FICATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead Consultant
Corporation is contracted with lnyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances beyond the control of the
consultant, the project schedule has been extended. Additionally, the California Department of Fish & Wildlife is
now requiring a biological monitor on site through the completion of the project, not just until the creek diversion
is removed, as was originally stated.

Contract Summary

OriginalContract $339,928.37
Amendment#1 $121,829.60
Amendment #2 Time Extension Only
Amendment#3 $209.281.54
Total $67{,039.51

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2A17 for which a state (2017-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works has secured a Construction Management firm
(Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.



ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract. However, this would prevent the project from being
completed.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A

FINANCING:
Funding will be sourced from California Office of Emergency Services (75Yo) and Road Maintenance and Repair
Account (25Yol. The cost of the amendment will be paid through the Road budget (034600), North Round Valley
Bridge Project (57171.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead Amendment No. 3 (UNEXECUTED)
2. Fountainhead Amendment No. 2 (EXECUTED)
3. Fountainhead Contract Amendment No. 1 (EXECUTED)
4. Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)

APPROVALS:
Greg Waters
Darcy Ellis
Greg Waters
Michael Errante
Breanne Nelums
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd

Created/l nitiated - 91612922
Approved -91612022
Approved - 91812022
Approved - gl12nA22

Approved -911212422
Approved -gl1UZA22
Final Approval - 911 412Q22



AMENDMENT NUMBER 3 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO ANI)

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

WHERBAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Fountainhead Consulting
Corporation of Anaheim. CA (hereinafter referred to as 'oConsultant"), have entered into an Agreement for the
provision of engineering services dated July 7. 2020 , on County of lnyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the
termfrom Juty7.2020 to Decemher 71 202,1

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity.

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below.

1. Exhibit l0-H1 Cost Proposal to the Contract (attached) is amended for the Consultant, Fountainhead
Consulting Corporation, and for Sub-Consultants Geode Environmental and Sierra Geotechnical Services.

2. This Amendment also extends the consulting agreement expiration date from December 31,2022 to June 30,
2023,to allow for project closeout beyond the end ofthe construction period.

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is June 1sr.2022

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. I 56 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
Amendment I

Page 1



AMENDMENT NUMBER 3 TO
AGRE,EMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
3rd DAY OF October 202L

CONSULTANT

l,^)S*/LIBy

Dated: 1

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

By:
(

Dated: 0912112022

&^AoL W
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING
FORM:

&r'ZbL%a'tA;r*e,
County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL
REQUIREMENTS:

Director of Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
Amendment I

Page2

County



September 06, 2022

Greg Waters

Associate Civil Engineer
lnyo County Public Works
P,O. Drawer Q

lndependence, CA 93526

RE: TMNSMITTAL LETTER ISUBCONSULTANT SUBSTITUTION AND COST PROPOSAL

Dear Mr. Waters,

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation (Fountainhead) is submitting this request for additional funds due to delays by the contractor in

completing the proposed improvements shown in the contract plans.

Attached for your consideration is our cost proposal, the conhacto/s latest schedule to complete the proposed improvements, and our
associated staffing plan.

lf you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact lvan Benavidez at 909,512,2815 or email at
ibenavidez(dfountainheadcom.com.

Respectfu lly submitted,

*"fu#,#,dnsecretary

2400 East Katella Avenue, Surte 800 | Anaheirl, Calilornia 92800 | 714627.2518



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

Exutntr l0-Hl COSI PnOpOSAL page I or3

Cosr-PLUs.FrxEp FDE oR lgUNglA oR FIRM FrxED PRrcf,, coNrRAcrs
(DESrcN, ENGTNEERTNG AND ENVTRONMENTAL SIUDIES)

Note: Mark ups areNotAllowed El Prime Consultant I Subconsultant D 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultino

Project No.48C0044 Contract No. 156 Date 0910612022

DIRECT

LABOR COSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS [(a) + (b)]
INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: A.AA% ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)]
0 Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) g) Overhead t(c) x (Dl

h) Ceneral and Administrative (Rate: 104.q0o, ) i) Cen & Admin [(c) x (h)l

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 66,770.50

FIXED FEE

CONSULT.A,NT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS _ITEMIZE

$64,202.40

j) rorAl INDIRECT cosrs t(e) + (g) + (i)l

k) T0TAL FIXED FEE [(c) + (j)] x fixed fee 5.00% l
additional if

TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS

s64,202.40

$ 66,770.50

$ 6,548.64

snoo

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)
Subconsultanl l: zt llaaorrrrinn $ 0.00
Subconsultant 2: Ferlhsncclivec $ 0.00
Subconsultant 3: Geode Environmental $ 85.312.00
Subconsultant 4: Sierra Seruices ($ 13.552.00)

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS $ 21.760.00

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT CosTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)l

rorAl, cosr [(c) + (i) + (k) + (n)]
NOTES:

s 71 760 0n

Page 1 of9
January 2420

$ 209,281.s4

l. Key personnel Uql be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked
with two asterisks 1**;. All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.

2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. lndirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the
consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany,

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total

Projsct Msneger/Rs6id€nt Eng

Struclurss Ropr€senlative

hEp€dor/Otlice Engin€sr

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

Brian French

107.00

46.00

856.00

$ 81.00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

s 3,726.00

$ 8,346.00

$ 52,130.40

$ 0.00

Descrintion of ltem Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost Total
Mileage Costs $ 0.00

Eouioment Rental and Suoolies $ 0.0c
Permit Fees $ 0-0c

Plan Sheets $ 0.0c



PROJECT SCHEDULE.3l AUGUST 2022 I UPDATE

J s o N D o

2tno{.PFliminaryPhe ;0L llsrh,r€ 24{un€1,?2101.Pie{ninaryPFae j(Newr 65)
e3 A10@ t$tiFofAkd-sJan2oz1

41010 l$liaToPDeed-24Jun2021

Zllo{.Roiect Srtup {ilew WBS}4
41020 Moblalon
41030 &lT6frcConDolsyshG
AlO40 lnclESAFene
A1050 hSlFbdRob
A1060 DemcEd6itaMReMe
A1070 DBftErislrcBri'ge
A1080 MIC@kCIwtsbd Ayp6
A1090 Charandcrub

zzlol-Pteisrt$illpAbubmntf (NetxWBS)

A1100 StslctupEx€valon

A1110 O{andPtd@Piles

A1t20 Finirhg€deforFootng

A1130 FomFooing

A1liO Foo[rE R€b€rldl
A1190 Asn*lrfstcangft@
A1150 FoodngCon@hPb@ftnt
A1160 SripForc
A1170 BackfllFootlg

A12OO Setonesdeoll^falFoffi

A1210 l4,alRebarlr$bi

A12O CondetwalForc
A1230 VV.l ConcEb Pbe@nt

E| A1lE0 GEd€ShpebehindFoolng

g 41240 ShpvvalFom
g A1250 Backn

a. 41260 lnsblRbRap

22l01.Proid ga.bp-Abutrent#l (t}il. WBSFI
p.1270 SFucbDExehlon
A1280 DnlandPb€Pihs

41290 Fnbhgradetorftolng
Al 300 Fo6 tuoling

41310 F@irBRebarl@l

A1360 Assen&bwalcalEF!rc
A1320 FooirgCon@bPbemnt
A1370 €BloneedeolUfalFoffi
41330 SlipFrnB
A13rt0 8ad(frFoohg
1,1380 li,blRebdhsbl
A'13S0 Comp&tsl blFom
A1400 VlralCon@bPberent

Ei, 41350 G.degop€behiMFoolng

0

0

s69

15

I
t
t
2

t

15

&
10

16

rs
t

5

t0

I

JO

:0
a6

5

t6
:

I
I

I
t

4

t0
I
5

0 05.JaM1

0 24a.hrM1

80 2iurntl
0 24rtun-21

0 24.tuF21

0 25Jun.A1

0 28\r/r-21

0 291fuft21

0 01.11121

0 14.Jul-21

0 20Jt21
14 1o+.rgtl
010{'.€ts21
O 24Aug21

0 140S21
o 18&21
0 214621
0 01{bv?1

0 26-&21
o 274'd.21

0 z8-Osf2l

0 15{bv€1

0 22+bv+'l

0 26-AbF21

0 t0€6c?1

5 3l.Aug'2
4 31*!9+2

10 06€etr22
'10 0$Setr22

I 144G21

0 07+eb-22

0 14+eb{2

0 l+odzl
0 18&21
0 2l€de1
0 294*.21

0 26{ct-21

0 250*21
0 e70621

o ?84*21
0 oli\bv€l
0 05{lov-21

0 19-^bv41

5 31*4122

10070 05abn-21

10d/6 24-lun.?

0% 24-tlDa
41000

Mlaeofr'€.1"5jan2021,09.Jar21: l

r . I ruoleToprpe;d-?4.iin2021,24.Jun-?1Ai
20€oo22

'1Atut-21

24ar!n'21

2t bn-21

28^run.21

3o..hlnt1

1 3.iul21
'1 9rjul21

0$AugQ1

19,Sop22

23{ug-21

14.Sep-21

154621

20e21
254a21
tg-lbv€l
26-0421

27e21
2gcd?1
1g"Nov€1

2S\bv-21

09Dec-21

I tloeo.?1

06-5ept2

0s-Sep-2

l9Sep€2
l9.sop€2
l2Sap-22

1 lfeF22
07$aFa
15€421

20.oe21

25€d1
294*21
264&21
29€421
2?Oci21

2g€da1
04+lov+1

I 6{bv-21

1Sl,lo/?1

OFSeF22

100./. 24"Jun-2

100% 24Jun-2
'100% 25"tun-2

1d)% 28.ftn-?

1000/.zSrtuF2

1lx)% 01Jul21

10q% 14.Ju[a1

100% 20iJul.21

0% J04ug+
100'/.10"Au9"2

100Yo 24Augts2

100% 044pr-Z
I00c/o 18+pFZ

100% 02-t4ay,;

'100% l6iray-:
100% 07"J0n-2

10070 2orftitsz
10014 22*FZ
1 00c/o 2g,u-?2
100% 154u9.2

100Y.19-A!9,2

100% 29-A@
0% 31.Aus-z

0% 31+ug-2

oYo Hepz
0% oNep"
0% 07+eb-.2

1007o D7.FeH

1004,6 14+et?

101ry, 11{prA2

100o/o D2-ldaF2

100% 1o-tulayt

100tt 16+lala:

100% o7rjun?
'100% 13Jus2:

100'6 ls-trD2
1 00% 20.Jun€
100% lt.Jul22

100% l5"Jul-22

1QO% fr4ure.z
0% 31*u9.2

20Oeo{2

14.tu121A

24*0.21l
25atun{1 I
26"tun+1 I
3o-Jilftz1 I
13Jul21 A

19tut21 A

09+ugl.21,

1 $Setr?2

234!9ts21,
'11+6b-22i

08"qpts22A

?9.ApF22A

l3-May-2?

toluftz/
074!dAl
21.JunZ/

24.Juft'21
124!gr?2,

1&A!SF22,

frA!92,
3&Au9#,
06.sep-22

05.s€pa2

1g-Sep?2

1Setr22
12-S€r2?

11+eb-A.l

3lJrla.Z2t

1Sp.€2A
1 3lila*?2
27.ltdt+2

1g.Jun-2? l
07*JulP2l
08"Ju}?2A

174u q2l
2l.Jv*A.l
144!I?24

26.JuP2A

05-Sep22

A1010

A1020

410t0

A1040

A1050

A1060

A1070

A1080

I }todlaion'
I : hsbilTlalff d Conhl SysiG:
l: hslEsAFen€ :

Ititlft.i&& ) :'
I Olmt{rrddlmdRDrrcs
I fmgio*n&$s!
| :hsbl Cl€ek t rerton By0asg

lOearandceb I I i

A1090

A11 00

A12BO

A1120

A1130

A11EO

A1148

A1150

Ar160

A'190

A12m

A1210

A1220

A1170

A1230
p'l240

Ar250

:l stud)EExwalor: I i i : :

In- hnrindPb+Pile6:

r tt UGrtEFo@

oll$lftm

c"lnpiii'Giio*t' ' i

U6l Coo*b Pb6mht

d€d; Sbp€ S€hiqd Fioftb

Shp Wa! FortE

Saird
:hd{F$Ri9

4111 0

A1270

A1280

A1290

A13m

At350

A13 10

A1360

Ar320

At330

41370

A13BO

A1390

A1340

I sbuituq Erryaion

I OlotUPg.

TASK fi tEr. A[.Aclivities
g OEde Corf Etion

Data Dal6 = 31-Aug-22

Psge 1 of2

SCCI JOB t22101 INYO golnty - Rord Valley gndge

- 

AdalL*elofEffon : Reroiningtb*

- 

cdiclRemjninewb*I Adalwork
a a Mile$ne
!F7*mmry



PROJECT SCHEDULE - 31 AUGUST 2022 / UPOATE

"-timhfrrffi- A1410 StiotlblFqffi
e A1420 Sacktil

- 41430 l6blRIpRap

22f Ol,.PreF$rtrF.Bddge Constu.f on Ol€w lrl,Ssl-z
g Al,li{l Rellfte,€ekllveFionByp6

- A1450 PEplorcide.h€A[

s Alil60 CYderMl
g A'1470 hbredaEandEdoaphragc-FomiReba.hst

E 41,160 EaphEgEcodqebPlaemit
6- 41490 OeclPerelhsbl

e, 41500 hEblBdlgeDecko€fiargFoG

E A1510 Briigeoed(Reba.letr

I 41520 PEpforDe.tPbemnt

I 41530 &iigeHoon@bPb€mnt
tt 41540 EdgestiplorcuadFillnsh!

- Al550 Cjqard€ihsGl

s A1560 AoPdinoPEp&8ael€hn
€ A1570 ACPaing

E 41580 Shp.ng

E A15S0 SlipB*&eDeckoverhang

zzioLFbjsci $rn$!dd*.t Fl6/ lVSSfl

- A16Cn Pudr LiEt

Ca A1610 Siboeaup
s A1620 (bmuhe

9 A1630 chenRoadardBddgeforserye
g A'1640 Pojqtootr@lon

5 06€etr22

5 06.S€p-22

57 q6-S€p€2

5 06se}?2
5 l3scp?2
5 20ser22

t0 27€6tr22
1t1{dn
5 124&22

'r0 lsod?2
5 02{lov-22

5 09+bv-72

1 16+bF22

1 l7.lbv{z
5 18+\be€2

2 25+bvz
1 29-No!2
1 30.{bv{2
5 01oeo€2
S o&*o22
1 06oec.22

I o8-Decz
6 oE-OecZz

1m'a$22
0

12€eF2?
l2.SeF22

07.cEa.a,

l2.SsF2?
t g-Srp.?:2

26-seF22

t0.d.22
114&2.
1&W.
01+b$?2

08"^t$22

15Abil-22

16+b+22

1?.Abv-22

24+*'r.22
28{b\rA2

29+bs22
30-^bs22

07-cf'o?2

2S{Ec2.
OBc€.cz,

t9.De+22

19&oA2
20l'p.?2.

m&pA.

0% 06.Sop.2

0% lFlseF.{

0% 6sepz
0% m€etrl
0% 13-S€p{

0% 2oseFa

0% 27sept
0% 11€+22

o% 12cd22
0% 19&22
0% 02+bv-2

oDn 09+bv?

0% 16'AbF2

o% 17+bv+
0% 1&.l\bv{

0% 25+bv€
07a 29-ltb-2

0% 30+bv-2

0% otoec2
0% 06.o6oe

0% o'+Oec{

0% O&DecP

0% 08Oe+2

o% mM
0%

ons€p?2

12.sepCz

12.6ep'?2

07Oeq{2
12sepz
1 S.s.F?z

?6"S0p22

l0-oaa2
11aa?,
18-Od22

01+'1or22

08-llov€2

1 s-fbv-n
16-^bvz
t7-^bvr22

2+1,JFv2.

2E-t\hv2
a-\bv?2
3&Nov-22

07o€a.A.

fr&t-z.
08O0tr22

l9€eo€2
1S&.-2.
ZO"baA,
20&ca

A1410

A1420

A1430,A'l

A14,10

41450

A1€0
A1470

A1480

41490

41500

415 r0
A1520

41530

A1540

A1550

41560

A1570

A15EO

A'1590

A1800

A1610

A1620

A1630

TASK flter: Atr Acliviti6
O Oracle CorBlion

w1Mqa |ft3,?qL a I
AlMl rlj/rl Al slol Nl el J I Fl

Dsta DaE " 31+ugF22

Mt q

I J I FIM

P.ge 2 ol 2

Firt6tlsro6%ts[
complcE I

EL Pa.FCFttbh

SCCI JOE*22t01 INYO Couoly-Round Valley Brldoe

El Remaining l4lort a a Mlesbre

- 

CrilbalReroihhqltb* F7$mmry
- 

A.UalL€vElofEffod

- 

Adalwork

(xEmsr
DrEton



Fountainhead Staffing Plan

sl6/2022

Staff Unit Iuly August Sept Oct Nov Dec Total
Biologist 8 HrlDay 158 184 L76 8 8 I 552
lnspector 8 HrlDav 184 L76 158 150 158 8s6
Struc. Rep LHrlDav 23 22 2L 2A 2L LO7

RE 2 HrlWeek 10 8 8 10 10 46



In the Rnms of tlte Burd of Supewircrs
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that st a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 2l't dayof December2A2l an orderwas duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works-
Fountainhead
Contract
Amendment 2

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve Amendment No.
2 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead Consulting Corporation of
Anaheim, CA, extendingtheenddateof thecontractfrom December31,2021to December
3'1, 2022 and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor
Kingsley absent.

L'!II?'NESS ny hqnd and the seal of said Board this 2\il
oay o1December, 2021

I.ESI.IE L. CHAPMAN
Clerkof the Boardof Supemisors

fl-x*f A'1"a14"'tA'"

Routing

cc
Purchaeng
Percomel
Auditw
uo
Olhar PuMicWorks
OATE: January 5,2022

By:



County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTIOI{ REQUIRED

MEETING: December 21, 2021

FROM: Greg Waters

SUBJECT: Amendmenl#2lo the consultant agreement with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the agreement between the Gounty of lnyo and Fountainhead
Consufting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, extending the end date of the contract from December 31 ,2021 lo
December 31,2022 and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon allappropriate
signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFIGATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead Consultant
Corporation is contracted with lnyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances beyond the control of the
consultant, the project duration has increased, requiring a change in the contract effective dates. This does not
come with a cost increase.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state (2017-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND GONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the extension to the contract, however this would prevent the consultant
from being paid after December 31,2021 and the project from being completed.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

FINANCING:
There is no cost increase as a part of this Amendment #2, just a change to the contract end date.



ATTAGHMENTS:
L Fountainhead Amendment 2
2. Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)

APPROVALS:
Greg Waters
Darcy Ellis
MichaelEnante
Breanne Nelums
John Pinckney
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd

Createdllnitiated - 121612021
Approved - 12nnA21
Approved - 12f7n021
Approved - 12Fn021
Approved - 12nPA21
Approved - 12t212021
Final Approval - 12f7 nA21



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO
AGREEMENT BETWENN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Fountainhead Consultine Corporation

wHEREAs,theCountyofInyo(hereinafterreferredtoas..County'')and@
Corpofation of Anaheim. CA (hereinafter refened to as "Consultanf'), have entered into an Agreement for the
provision of engineering services dated July ?. 2020 . on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the
term from July 7. 2020" to _Dg-csrnbet:_!-:92_!.

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity.

WHEREA$ County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below.

The consultant agreement will be extended from the current end date of December 3l*1,2021to the future date of
December 31"',2A22

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is _ December 2l st. 2021

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
Amendment 2

Page I



AMENDMENT NUMBER:TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

tr'ountainhead Consultins Cornoration

IN WITNESS THEREOF, TI-IE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
23rd DAY OF Mav 2021

COIJNTY OF'II{YO CONSULTANT

By P;-** L-,)8*J.LBy:
(

Dated: 0512312022 Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

&^aot-
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOLINTING
FORM:

&"rbL%a,at;t&/*-
County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL
REQUIREMENTS:

K,gwu4'-
Director of letsonnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

CountyoflnyoStandardConbact*No. 156withFountainhcadConsultingCorporation
Amendment 2

Page 2

e*Y/$1
County Ris@nager



In the Rooms of the Boad of Supewisors
Co$nty of Inyo, State of Californla

I, HBREBY CERTIFY, thal at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of lnyo, Slate of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independcnce on the 5ti dayof October202l an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works-
Fountainhead
Consulting Cantract
Amendment 1

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve Amendment
No.1 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
of Anaheim, CA, replacing environmental subconsultant Jericho Systems of Redlands, CA
with Geode Environmental of Bishop, CA, replacing Sierra Geotechnical Services of Bishop,
CA with Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA, and increasing the contract amount with
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation by $121,829.20 to cover a broader scope of
environmental inspections as required by California Oepartment of Fish & Wildlife; and
authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all appropriate signatures
being obtained. Motion carried unanimously,

W/INESS ny hand and the seql of said Board this Sil'

poyofQ4ober-202

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk of the Board of Supemlsors

frd*X A4Ayt,'tat'.

Routing

cc
Purchaslng

Personnel
Audllw
ao
Other PuilicWotks
DATE:actcf/et 13,2021

By:



f,rg

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED

MEETING: October 5, 2021

FROM: Greg Waters

SUBJECT: Amendment #1 to the consultant agreement with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No.1 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead
Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, replacing environmentalsubconsultant Jericho Systems of Redlands,
CA with Geode Environmental of Bishop, CA, replacing Sierra Geotechnical Services of Bishop, CA with Eastern
Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA, and lncreasing the contract amount with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
by $tZt ,829.2A to cover a broader scope of environmental inspections as required by California Department of
Fish & Wildlife; and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon allappropriate signatures
being obtained.

SUMMARYIJUSTIFICATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead Consultant
Corporation is contracted with lnyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances beyond the control of the
consultant, two subconsultants will need to be replaced by two others. Additionally, California Department of Fish
and Wildlife has requested an increase in the environmental monitoring from weekly to daily, resulting in an
increase in the fees required.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff ot 2Q17 for which a state (2017-11) and counly
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from being
completed.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request
Page2

FINANCING:
Funding will be sourced from Callfornia Offica of Emergency Services (75Vo\ and Road Malntenance and Repair
Account (25o/ol. Tha cost of the amendment will be paid through the Road budget (034600), North Round Valley
Bridge Project (57171.

ATTACHMENTS:
1- Fountainhead Amendment No. 1

2. Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)

APPROVALS:
Greg Waters
Darcy Ellis
Darcy Ellis
Greg Waters
Breanne Nelums
John Pinckney
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd

Greated/lnitiated - 81 17 12021
Approved - 811812021
Approved - 811812021

Approved -913012021
Approved -913012021
Approved -gl30l2021
Approved -9|3AEA21
Final Approval - 913012021



AMENDIVTENT NUMBER I TO
AGREEMENT BETWAEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Fountainhead Consultige Coroorrtion
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

WIIEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinaftel rel'ered to as "County") and l;ountainlresd Consulting
Colpclntiolt of Anshairt'}. CA (hcrcinaftcr rcfcrrod to as "Consultanr"), havc cnrcred into an Agreement for the
provision of engineering services dated July ?. 2020-, on County of Inyo Standard Conrract No. 156, fbr the
term frorn July 7. 2020 to Pecgrqber 3 l. 2021.

WIIEREAS, such Agreerncnt provides that it may bc modificd, amended, changed, added to, or
subtractcd from, by the mutual conscnt of thc parties thereto, if stch amendment or change is in written form, and
execuled with the sams fontalities as such Agleement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity.

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desirc and consent lo amend such Agreement as set f,rrth below,

I ' Exhibit I0-H I Cost Proposal to the Contract is amended for the Consultant, Fountainhead Consulting Corporation,
removing Sub-Consultants Jericho Systems and Sierra Geotechnical Services and replacing them with Geode
Environmental and Eastern Siena Engine eling, respectively. The total contract value is hereby increased by $ I 2 I ,829.20.
The eft'ective date of this amendment to thc Agreernent is July Ist,202L
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remairr the same.

County uf'lnyo Slandard C'ootract.- No. 156 with Fouutainhcld (lousulting C'orporation
Arnerrdnrerrt I

l'age I



AMENDMENT NUMBER I TO
AGREEMDNT BETWEEN TIIE COUNTY OF INYO AND

F'ountalnhead Consultlnq Corporntlon
FOR THE PROV]STON O]'ENVTRONMNNTAL CONSUI,TANT SERVICES

IN WITNESS TIIEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THTS
1grh DAY OF October 202r

COUNTY OFINYO CONSULTAI{T

L*,)S*,/,LBy:

p61s6; 10-19-2021 Darcd: 14t14t2021

APPROVED AS TO
LEGALITY:

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNNNG
FORM:

r

&nVSnfh,,/
cour'{6 Auditor-

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL
R

ofPersonnel

APPROVED AS TO RISK

Risk

County of lnyo Standard Contrrct - No, 156 with Fountaiihend Consulting Corporation
Amendnlsnt I

Ptge2



September 06, 2021

Greg Waters

Associate Civil Engineer

lnyo County Public Works
P,0, Drawer Q

lndependence, CA 93528

RE: TRANSMITTAL LEITER I SUBCONSULTANT SUBSTITUTION AND COST PROPOSAL I CONTRACT NO. 156

Dear Mr, Walers,

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation (Fountainhead) is submilting this requesl to A)substitute two subconsultants orlginally proposed on

the contract and to B) request an increase to ths conlract to provide daily biological monitoring due to permit requirements.

A) Fountainhead orlginally proposed Jeilcho Systems to perform biologioal monitoring sewices per the RFP requirements, unforlunalely
Jeticho Systems closed (Altachment A) their offices after lhe contact award. Therefore, Founlainhead is having to replace Jericho

Systems with another biological monitoring seruice provide. ln addilion to substituting Jericho Systems wilh Geode Environmental we

also have a second subconsullant Siena Geotechnical has developed a conflict of interesl due to entering a conhact with Spiess
(Conlractor) to parform Quality Control end Assurance Testing. Therefore, we are also raquesting to subslitute Slena Geotechnical

with Eastern Siena Engineering to perform lndependent Assurance testing as the subconsultant owner's represenlative wilh

Fountainhead

B) During the RFP process the final permils for the project were not issued therefore Fountainhead negotiated with the County to provide

biological monitoring on a weekly basis for work within the creek. After Fountainheads contractwas negotiated lhe linal permits were

obtained, The final permits required daily biological monitorlng while working in the creek and lhereby initiated a cost increasa to

provide lhe level of service requked in the permit. Fountainhead reviewed several options for a biological monitoring consultant wlth

reasonable rates and negotialed with Geode Environmental lo perform the scope of work (Attachment B), Our proposed contract value

increase of $121,823.60 is a Not-to-Exceed value and ths hours applied witl only be as required by California Department of Fish &

Wildlife. ln doing so we will have the ability to modulate the application of resources to suit the conditions in the field

lf you have any questions, or require additional informalion, please contacl lvan Benavidez at 909,512,2815 or email at

ibenavidoz@founlainheadcom.cglr.

Respeclfully submilted,

jk;rnil#t*#,,
Secretary

221(X) Lrrr,t l(irtclli'r Avr.rlrue , Slrite 800 | Arrzrhcirrt, L)itliforrtrir !)2BOti I 714.6'27 25lli



ATTACHMENT A

l:.) Lr.I ;l]ir '

Ri:Jl;il1tl1l i,A'.'t)', i 3

irJilq, li':,':iiJa

April12,2021

Dear Valued Client:

Since 2012, Jericho Systems, Inc. (Jericho) has been honored to scrve you on your various projects.

However, it is with heavy heart that I am inftrrming you of the closure olJericlto, effective June 30, 2021

due to some health issues I have been struggling with fol the past fcw years,

ln keeping with my commitmcnt to providc cxcellent service to our clients, I would like to recommend
the following firms whrch have been assisting me on many projects behind the scenes lor the past few
years, These firms are extremely qualified wifh biologylecological assessments for multiple jurisdictions,
jurisdictional waters permitting, endangered species cornpliance, CEQANEPA compliance, and whom I
know will provide excellent service to you:

ELMT Consulting, lnc
Attn:Travis McGill
2201 N. Grand Avenue #10098. Sanra Ana, CA 9271 l-0098
Travismcgi II@el mtconsulting.com
{90e) 816-1646

Compass Consulting Enterprises, Inc
Attn:,lulie Gilbert
PO Box 2627, Avalon, CA 90704
Ju I ie@compass -consultinginc.com
(eoe) 4e6-se60
(WBE Cerlificd, DtsE Certification in process)

In the interin, etfective irnrnediatelS Jericho's Craig Lawrey will bc handling all operational aspects and

will be your primary contact. You may reach Craig at craig@jeficho-systems.com ot at (909) 744-4487.
Julie Gilbert, who you may know has worked for Jericho since 2016, will be assisting Craig with contract

management and final billing. For Jericho contract and biliing qusstions, Julie can be reached at
juliegill@)outlook,com or at (909) 496-596A.

Agairr, it has been my honor serving you, and I wish you all the best with your future endeavors.

Sincerely,

lNc.

Shay Lawrcy
President, Jericho Systems, Inc.

Craig Lawrcy
Secretary/Operations Manager, Jericho Systems, Inc

' Lxpti'ertt:: ! ;tt: iei,:hi Dilts e tt;t: j e r i d rt - sy ;t e ;t : 

"^.t 
; i : t t



Locar Assistance procedures Manuar ililHffif,|#:fittu 
changes to

EXHIBIT 1O.HI
Cost Prooosal

DI

EXHIBIT 10-Hl Cosr PnoposAl prgc I or3

Co.sT-PLUs-FrxEp FEr,: oRH,UEUII oR FtRM F-txED PRtcIt coNrRAcTs

(DESlcN, ENGTNEERING AND ENVTRoNMnNt'Rt. Stuotr.s)

Norc: Mark-ups arc Nor Allowed E Prirne Consultant D Subconsultant E 2n'l Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountalnhead Consultlng Corporation for Geode Environmental

Project No. 48C0044 Contmct No. 156 Date 09/06/2021

LABORCOSTS
a\ Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

$ 140,329.60

c) ToTAL DIRECT LABOR cOsTS [(n) + (b)] $ 140,329.60

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benelits (Rate: 0.,Q0% ) e) Total Flinge Benefits [(c) x (rJ)]

f) Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) g) Ovcrhcad l(c) x (ftl

h) General and Adrninistrative (Rate: 0.q0%_ ) i) Gen & Admin [(s) x (h)]

$ o.oo

$ 0,00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

FIXED FEE $ 0.00

CONS ULTA,NT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS -ITEMTZE additional if

1) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS annar

m) SUBCONSULTANTS'COSTS (Add ndditional pagoc if necessary)
Subconsultant I : ZT Consultino sooo
Subconsultant 2: Earthsoectlves $ 0,00

Subconsultant 3: Jericho Systems Substitute Geode Environmental ($ 18.500.00)

Subconsultant 4: Sierre Sr rhetilt rlc Feclern Sierra $ 0,00

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS rs 18-500.00)

n) TOTAL OTHOR DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(rn)] (g 18 soqno)

TOTAL C0ST [(c) { (i) + (k) + (n)] $ 121.829.60
NOTES:
L Keypersonnel.!!gg!beurarkedwithanasterisk(*)andemployeesthataresubjcctroprcvailingwagerequiremenlsmustbenrarked

with two asterisks 1r'r';. All costs must comply with the Federal cost prirrciplcs. Sultconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.

2, Thecostproposal fomratshall notbcanrcndcd. lndirsctcostrsaecstrall beupdatedonananrtual basisinaccot'danccwiehthe
oonsultant's annnal accounting period and estoblished by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.

3, Anticipated salary increases calculution (pege z1 musl accolnpany.

Page 1 of 9
January 2020

j) TOTAL INDIRECT CosTS [(e) + (g) + (i)]

k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [(c) + d)] x fixed 1'sg 0'00% I

Clessification/'title Name Hours Actual llourly Rate Total

$ 130.00

$ 130.44

$ 161,200.00

($ 20,870.40)

$ 0.00

$ o.oo

Eiologisl.

lnspftlor (Cr€dlt)

Geode Environmental

S, Valdovinos_2O days Temp. Work

'1,240.00

-160.00

Descrlptlon of ltem Ouantilv Unit Unit Cost Totnl
Mlleage Costs $ 0.00

Fnrrinment Rnntnl snd Sunnliee $ 0.0c

Permit Fees $ 0.0c

Plan Sheets $ 0.0c

Tesl



Local Assiolanoe Proc€duros Manual Fountainhead Original Agreement EXHIBIT IO.H1
Cost Proposal

EXHTBIT l0-Hl CosT PR0Pf)SAL Fago r ur3

Cosr-Pl,us-llxgn f$r:oR!@SgU oR l'rnM FrxcD PRrcs coNrlt^cls
(Dristcn, ENotNGERtNc ANo ENvtRoNMENTAt. STUDIES)

Note; Mork-ups are Not Allowcd E Prime Consultant I Subconsultant D zud ]'ier Subconsultant

Consultant Founlainhead Consultinq Corporation

Project No,4_QQ0044 Conftact No. _!56

DIRECT LABOR

Actual Hourly Rate

Date 0612612420

$ 81.00

$ 7E,00

$ 60,90

$ 18,144.00

$ 48,048.00

s 53,592,00

$ 0.00

LABOR COSTS
a) Subtotol Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipatcd Salary lncreascs (scc pagc 2 for calculation)

c) ToTAL DIREc'l'LABOR Cos'rs [(a) t (b)]
tNrlrRDC'r' cosl$
d) Fringe Bcnefits (Rate: 0.00% ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)]
f) Overhead (Rater 0.0070 ) e) Overhcad [(c) x (01

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

Subconsullant 2: Earlhspectives
Subconsullant 3: Jericho

$ 11e,7s4.00 /

h) Cencral and Adrninistrutive (Rate: 104.009 ) i) Cen & Admin [(c) x {h)l -E }?t'!7-q.36

j) TorAL INDIRECT cosTs [(e) + (g] t (i)l

FTXED FEE k) TOTAL FIXED FIE [(c) + (i)]x tixed 1'sg 5.00% 
1

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIREC'T COSTS - ITEMIZE Adrl sdditionrl if

l) TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS _* '-.$ 0 no.

rn) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add sddltlonal prges i[ necessary)
Subconsultant l: TT ennsrtrinn

$ 119,7S4.00

$ r24,575,36

. $ 12,?J7.e7

.---- $ 42,863.04
$ 8,436.00

-TTBTmd6"-Q ot eE{ n/

$"339,ee8.3f

.szz_13,

Subconsultant 4: Sierra Geot€chn icll Sarvices $ 13,552.00

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' CosTS -$ il-38104-

n)'IOTAL OTHER DIRECT CosTs TNCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(1)+(m)]

TOTAL COST [(c) t O"r (k) + (n)]
NOTDS:
l. Keypersonnel 699! bemarkcdwithanasleri$k(t)andcmployeesthataresubjcctronrcvailingwogerequircmcntsmustbemarksrJ

with two astcrisks f i)- All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles, Subconsultalts wilt provide their own cosl proposals.

2. 'fhe cost proposal furmat sholl not be amended. tndirect cosl ratcs shall bc updatcd on an annual bosis in accordance with thc

consultant's annual aucountirrg periud aad cstablished by a cognizant aSency or accepted by Caltrans.

3. Anticipatcd salary increascs calculation (pagc 2) must Eccompany.

Page 1 of 9
January 202O

Hours

lvan Eenavidez

Javid Sharifi

lnspEclor/O(lco EnO ngsr Salvador Valdovinos

NrmeClrsslllcotlon/title

ltrolgcl Manrgor,/Fl€sidgnl Enq

glruclure6 R6Dros6nlatlv6 616.00

224,00

880.00

Tote I

lrlrL
TotalDcscrlnllon of Itern Ouentllv Unit Unlt Coct

$ 0.0cMileaoe Costs
$ 0.0cEouioment Renlal and Suoolias
$ 0.0cPsrmit Fees
s 0.0cPlan Shsels

Test



llorth Round llallery Srldge prciect

R€rldeil Eagineer Propoced Schedule ofValues
Am€ndmenttl

A5 ot 9/29/zO:1 r07|o Art

To Datelnvoice S2lnvoice fll

s161,200.00

9121,829.60

7-1-21thru 7-3.t-25l-1-21 thru 6-34F21

' Adiust€d Total

Prime

Comultant

.54

So.oo

S13,ss2.oo
,97 '

So.oo

518,5oo.ool

Amendment fit
to

Breakdown:
Fountainhead ln House

Consulting
Earthspectives

Systems

Environmental
Geotechnical Services

Sierra Engineering

77.33 
i

S42,863.04

$rl,ssz.oo
$lzrpzs.50

s0.00

S13,552.00

5o.oo

5o.oo

s0.00
$o"oo

s13,552.0O
So.oo

5339,92S.37

Szo4,3rB"34
$28,470.49
$a,cre.oo

So.oo

531,388.59
514,392.ss

9o.oo

$o.oo

516,04s.90
it,zta.u

So.oo

5o.oo

So.oo

5o"oo

So.oo

5o.oo

339.69
113.91

5235,706.93

Saz,aer.ot
s8,436.00

SrC,soo.oo



In the Rooms of the Boatd of Superuisars
County of lnyo, Statc 0[ Calitbrnia

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeiing of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at 3he County Administrative Center in Independence on the 7'h day of July 2020 an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

Public Works-
Fountainhead
Consulting Contract

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Tillemans to approve the contract
between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim, CA for the
performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge
Construction Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7, 2A2A
through December 31, 2CI21, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained, Motion carried unanimously.

l44TNt:SE ny hand and the seal of saitl Board this 7th

r:ay ol JULY, 2A2A

cLrNT O. QUIr.?',Et
Clerk oJ the Board of Supenisors

Routing

cc
Pur&aslng
Pgrsonnel
Audilor
CAA:
O(her PuilicWorks
DATE: July|,2A2A

By:



#-t..l

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSEI\T - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: Ju|y7,2020

FROM:

SUBJEGT: North Round Valley Bridge Construction Management Contract

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim,
CA for the performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge Construction
Project in an amounl not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7,2020 through December 31, 2021, and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SU MMARY/JUSTI FIGATION :
North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead construction will
perform the work described in the attached 'Scope of Work' including but not limited to: contractor management,
budget and schedule tracking, inspection of work, structural representation, biological monlloring, and source
material inspection.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 tor which a state(201 7-1 1 ) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from moving
forward.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The State of California Office of Emergency Services is funding this project at a reimbursement rate of 75%.

FIT.IANCING:
The cost of the contract will be paid through budget unit 034600 (Road Budget), object code 5717 (Construction
lnspection). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75%by the Callfornla Otfice of Emergency Services (DSR
3602).



AUUilUa nequesr
Page2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead CM Contract - lB Signed

APPROVALS:
Jacob Trauscht
Darcy Ellis
MarshallRudolph
Amy Shephard
Aaron Holmbery
MichaelEnante

Cre ated/l niti ated - 6129 12O20

Approved - 6/3012020
Approved -813A/2020
Approved -6t3A/2A20
Approved -A3A|2A20
Final Approval - 6/30/2020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

filtlp Fourtainhead Coniulting Co.po,atlon

FOR THE PROVISION OF consrudlonManasemont

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafler refered to as "County") has the need for lhe
Construclion Managemsnl Of FounlainhEad Consulting Coryorallon

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agrea a$ follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, lhose services and work set forth in
Atlachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporaled herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant
Michra: Cranlo

lo perform under this Agreement will be made by the oiroclor of Public Wo*s.

Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such seruices. The County rnakes no guarantee or
warranty, of any nature, thai any minimurn level or amount of services or work will be requested of the
Consultant by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to reguest from Consultanl the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requlremenls and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and, as applicable, as
set forth, in Attachment E, atlached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from July ?lh, 2020 Dcmmbor 3llh, e021 unless
soon€r terminated as provided below. ln addition, County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for
addilional one-year periods as follows:

A, From through

B. From lhrough

County shsll exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of lhe Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same lerms and conditions slated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Comoensation. County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachrnent B) for the services and work described in Atlachment A which are performed by
Consullant at the County's request.

B. Travol and oer diom. County shall reimburse Consultant for lhe lravel expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurs in pmviding services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Conlract - No. 1 56

(lndependent Consultant - Professional)
Page 1 of 12 

rc$za1.-



Consultant shall request approval by the Coun$ prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses, Requests
by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to lhe
DrFclor ol Publ;o Works, Michaol E'.ante Travel and per diem

of Travel and Per Diemexpenses willbe in accordance with the rates set tn
Payment (Attachment G). County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per
diem expenses wttich are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in
Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County.

C. No additional conslderalion. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consullant
shall not be entitled to, nor roceive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under lhis Agreemenl. Specificatly, Consultant shall not
be entilled, by virtue of this Agteement, to consideration in the form of overtime, heaith insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation lime, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whalsoever.

D. Limit uoon amount oavable underAoreemenl,
to Contractor for services and work performed under this

The total sum of all payments made by the County

* 339,s2s.37
Agreement shall not exceed

(initialterm) (option 1) and $, (option 2) for a
total of $ 3{0,s$.r? Dollars (hereinafter refered to as "contract limif'). County expressly reserves
the right requested by Contractor for services or work performed
wtrich is

to deny any payment or reimbursement
in excess of the contract limit.

E, Blllino and pavment Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing seMces and work described in Attachment A, which
were done at the County's request. This statement will be submitted to the County not tater than the lifth
(Sth) day of the month, The statement io be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the
preceding month through and including lhe last day of lhe proceding month. This statement will identify the
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day.
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
v'fiich have been apprcved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period. The itemized
slatement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordanco with the County's accounling procedures and rules, Upon timely receipt of the
statement by lhe fifth (5th) day of tho month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the
month.

Federal and Siate taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreemenl.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes fiom payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant's
when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Consultant under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set fo(h above, Coung has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under lhis

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibility of Consultanl, Counly has no responsibility or liabilig
for payment of Consultanfs taxes or assessmenls.

(4) The totral amounts paid by County to Consultant, and taxes withhetd fiom
payments lo non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the
Internal Revenue Service and lhe California State Franchise Tax Board. To

Counly of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent ConBultant - Professional)

Page 2 ot 12

F

'lua2al7



facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Servlce (lRS) Form W-9 upon execuling this
Agreement.

4, WORKSCHEOULE.

Consultant's obllgatlon ls to perform, ln a timely manner, those seryices and work identlfled ln
Attachment A, which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
lhese services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule, but wlll
coordinale with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time ftame set forth by County.

5. REQUTRED L|CENSES, CERT|F|CATES, AND PERMITS.

A, Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A muet be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the tlme Consultant enters into thls Agreement or as othervulse may be required.
Further, during lhe term of this Agreement, Consuilant musl mainhin such licenses, certifcates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licens€s, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limlted to, drivefs
licenses, professional licenses or certiftcates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certlficates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consuftant at no expense to lhe County. Consultant wlll provlde

County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valld licenses, certificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, cerllficates, and permits are required to perform the
services identifred in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transaclions by any
federal deparlment or agency. Consultant also werrants that it ls not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed ln the Llst of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at htto:l/www.sam.oov.

6. OFFTCE SPACE, SUppLtES, EQUtptUtENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide euch oflice space, supplies, eguipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Gonsultant, for any expense or cost incured by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responeibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Conaultant in providing and maintaining such items is lhe sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Personal Prooertv of County. Any personal property such as, but not limlted to, protectlve
or safety devices, badges, ldentification cards, keyo, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the terminalion of lhis Agreement remain, the sob and exclusive property of County.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintrain such items while they are in
Coneultanfs possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Consultanfs negligence.

B. Produc-ls of Consultant's Work and Services. Any and aS compositions, publications,
plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs. slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, lilms, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reporls, studies, works of art, inventions, palents, trademarks, copyrighls, or
intellechral properties of any kind which are created, produced, aesembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifeslalion of, Consultant 'e services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination

County of lnyo Slandard Conlract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professlonal)

Page 3 of 12

1 010201 7



of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of lhe Counly, At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREUENTS FOR PROFESSIOilAL SERVIGES.

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultiant's, and not as agents, ofticers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligataon on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Aftachrnent A, Consultant has no authority or responsibili$ to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the melhod, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requiremenls and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreemeni, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical aclion or activities of Consuliant in fullillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and al all limes during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct thernselves as independent Gonsultant's, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSEANDINDEM]IIIFICATION.

For professional services rendered under lhis Contract, Consultant agrees to indemni$, including
the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers Fom and against any and all
claims, demands, costs, or liability lhat arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconducl of Consuliant and its employees or agents in the performance of professional services
under this contract, but lhis indemnity does not epply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence,
active negligence, or willful acts of ihe County.

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and its offtcers, offtcials, employees,
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including attorney fees arising
out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whose acls any of them may be liable, except wfiere oaused by the active negligence, sole
negligence, or willfulmisconduc{ of the County.

Consullant's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, otficers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of lhis paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement
in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant mainlains
higher limits than the minimum required on ihe lnsurance attachment to this Agreement, the County requires
and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, ils
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongfulacts of County, its officers, or employees.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndep€ndsnt Con6ultent - Pmfesslonal)

Page 4 of 12

1A102A17



11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Rscords. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreemenl, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions,
Consultant shall maintain hese records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or complelion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduclion of such records.

B. lnsoeclions and Audils. Any authorized representative of County shallhave access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County delermines to be pertinent to this Agreemenl, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and kanscripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has lhe right, at all reasonable times, to audil, inspact, or oiherwise evaluate the tlork
performed or being performed under this Agreement,

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, oflicers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in vlolation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employmenl, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, mailtal status, age, or sex. Consultant and its agenb,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 129AA, et seq.), and lhe applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administralive rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act,

I3. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thirty (30) days vwitten notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancel this Agreemenl
wi$tout cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirly (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. Coun$ has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experionce, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into lhis Agreement. Consultanl shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without lhe expross written consent of County.
Fu(her, Consultant shall nol assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed witr the work and servises requested by
Coun$ in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, Counly may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon frve (5) days
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

{6. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any olher or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed lo be a modification of the terms of lhis
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

County of lnyo Standard Contracl - No, 156
(lndependent Consultanl - Profesolonal)

Page5of12
1 0102017



17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultanl in lhe course of providing services and work under lhis Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confideniial, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the County's written
consenl is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respecls.

Notwilhstanding an$hing in lhe Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Tite 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Porlabilig and Aceountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and M1A0.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the lvork and gervices under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of pmviding services and ulork under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultanl agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
,Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person wlro,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or wtro has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to lhe County's confidential, privileged, protecled, or proprietary informalion.

20. SEVERABILITV.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application lhereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a couri of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county slatute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated lhereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to lhe extent that the
provisions of this {greernent are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreemeni is based upon available funding frorn various sources.
ln the event that such funding faila, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more souroes, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its lerms within ten (10) days of its notifuing
Consultanl of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant lo this provision must comply with the requiremenls of paragraph tv,aenty-
nxo QZl (Amendment).

22. AltilEl,lDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, arnended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of lhe partles herelo, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

Counly oflnyo Standard Contract - No, 158
(lndependent Consultant - Protessional)

Page0of12
10102017



23. NOT|CE,

Any notice, communicaton, amendments, additions, or deletlons to thie Agreement, including
change of address of eather party during the terms of this Agreement, vrrhich Consultant or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mailto, the respective parlies as follows:

County of lnyo:
Publlc Wo*r Department

Address
City and State

P.O. DrwarO

Consullant:
Founlalf, hord Consulllng Corpoaailon Name

Addmss
City and State

2400 E. KltQlla, Sulls 80O

hdopendooco, CA

An8hain, CA 92808

24. ENTIREAGREEITIIEITIT.

This Agreement contains ihe entire agreemenl of the parties, and no repreeentations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied hereln or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no lerm or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unlesg the same be in vwiting executed by the parties hereto.

ilt lilt

County of lrryo Standard Conkact - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Prof€sslonal)

PageT of12
1 01 0201 7



FOR THE PROVISION OF co.rahra{anmlrili

AOREEIIEIIT EETN,EEN COUN'Y OF I]iIYO

gERVICEB

HERETO HAI/E SET TI{EIR MNDB AhID SEALS TI{I8
IEO

AIID

IN WINE{TS IHEREOF, THE PARTIESg_oAYoF ,trt9

COUilTY OFhIYO

Drhd:

AS TO FORMANDI.EOAUW:

CIhAl'

APPRO'EDAS TO ACC(XJMTT.IO FORMI

Cn^rMVtta*;t&r'n

8y:

lwr

Dalsd;

CottdyA'/dlbr

APPROI/EOA8

TO

Courlt ot lryo thdrn, Cmtrcl .llo. t56
(lndqflrdct Ccrrrds,{ - Prots donC}

Ple. t ol l,
l0r0c0r?



ATTACHilIEITITA

AOREEIIENT BETWEEN COU}ITY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Coneulting Corporation

FORTHE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERITII:

FROttlt: July 7th, 2020

SCOPE OF WORK:

fo, De@mber 31, M

SERVICES

County of lnyo Slanderd Contraci - No. 1 56
(lrulependenl Consultant - Profeselonal)

Pase I of '12

10102017



lnyo Coun4t Public Warl<s

Poge 7 of 16
Request for Proposals

Narth Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement

business relationship with the constructlon contractor[s) who are working on the projects that are assigned
for material Quality Assurance seryices through task orders on the contract.

Similar to the disclosures regarding contractors, all firms are also required to disclose throughout the term of
the awarded contract, any Design Engineering services including claim services, Lead Project Management
servlces and Construction Engineering Services provided to all other clients on any local project listed in this
Scope of Work.

In addition to the disclosures, the Consultant shall also provide possible rnitigation efforts, ifany, to eliminate
or avoid any actual or perceived conflicts of interest.

The Consultant shall ensure that there is no conflict before providlng services to any construction contractor
on any of the agency's projects' listed in this Scope of Work. The submilted documentation will be used for
determining potential confl icts of interest.

If a Consultant discovers a conflict during the executlon of an assigned task order, the Consultant must
immediately noti$r the Contract Manager regarding the conflicts of interest, The Contract Manager may
terminate the Task Order involving the conflict of interest and may obtain the conflicted services in any way
allowed by law. Failure by the Consultant to noti$ the Contract Manager may be grounds for termination of
the contract

Some examples of conflict of interest are the followingl
r Certified Materials 'l'ester(s) or Plant Inspector[s] from the same company that performs Quallty

Control for the Contractor and Quality Assurance for the County on the same project.

Providing services to construction contractor's subcontractors, fabricators, equipment installer,
material suppliers and other firms assoclated with the projects listed in the Contract can be a
potential conflict of interest when such contractor teams are identifled.

a

&ope of Work
The scope of work defined below is based on the County's current understancling of the work to be
performed. The consultant shall review the design documents and environmental permils to identi$ any
components not explicitly or implicttly included in this SOW.

Phase I - Pre-Construction
r Review RE Files provided by MGE Engineering, make or request any changes necessary
r Review plans for constructability, advise the County and design engineer
r Review contractors proposed schedule, advise the County and design engineer on potential issues
r Pre-Construction,lKick-off meeting - Attend and Participate in a Pre-construction meeting
r Verifl all permits are acquired and present at site

o Review all permit requirements
I Produce Construction oversite Plan

o lnclude construction oversite schedule, to be updated weekly in coordination with
contractor

o ldentify inspectlon and material testing rcquirements, frequencies, personnel required (i.e.
material tester, structural inspector, bio monitor), and schedule {to be included in the
construction oversite schedule)

Phase II - Construction
. Schedulq lead, and attend weckly (oras needed) construction progress meetings

o Provide minules and action items, to be sent to stake-holders
r Review contractor supplled critical path rnanagement schedule, update on weekly or as-needed

basis



lnya CounQ Public Worl<s
Page I of16

Requestfor ProPosals
North RoundValley Road Bridge Replacement

. Process Progress Payments
o Prepare monthly quantify estimates, check agalnst contractor lnvoice statements, make

recommendations to the County regarding payment
r Negotiate and prepare contract change orders, in conjunction with design engineer if needed
r Provide and coordinate with additional required personnel, including but not limited to:

o Structul'alrepresentative
o Material Tester
o Biological monitor

r Submittals & RFls
o Review submittals and RFls, including responses from design engineer, and incorporate any

changes that effect required inspectionsf testing
o Coordinate lvlth design engineer regarding submittallRFl responses, and potential changes

to inspections/testing based on responses
e Provide full-time inspectlon servlces

o Produce daily RE diaries, including but not limited to:
r Track Contrac[or days
: Track Contractor worklng hours including employee names
r Subs on site
r Major equipment on site and status
r Desription of work completed and task completion status (estimated yo oitotal)
r Weather
r Catalog ofstop-work and causes
I Any QAIQC work performed including any testlinspection results, passffail status

of testlinspection, and any comments that are important for explaining observed
results

o Keep record ofall as-built changes for inclusion into the final project as-built drawings
o Track quantities of materials usedlinstalled
o Ensure and document compliance with all environmental permits
o Collect, review, and cornpile contractor labor compliance documents
o lnspect construction staklng to assure compliance to relevantstandards

r Provide sub-contractorto perform quality control material testing services, review results for
compliance with construction contract specifications.

o Notify contractor ofany failing tests
o Provide material tester with weekly schedule up-dates and projections of coming testing

requirements for following week
o Verify material tests are performed in compliance with the County QAPr Provide struciural inspection when required

; Provide a on-site bioiogical monitor to fulfill requirements of all environmental permits
r Public Outreach

o Provide information to County Proiect manager to be distributed to public via mailings,
website, or other media

Phase lIl - Post-Construcdon
r Project Closeout Tasks [Following substantial completlon of work)

o Perform stte walk and create a punchlist of items to be completed by contractor [or
deducted from final paymentJ

o Ensure sign-oflfrom outside agencies confirming that restoration has been completed as far
as practicahle

o Generate afinal quantityestimate, reviewfinal contractorpaymentand provide
recommendations regarding paymenl to the County

e Generate Final ProjectReportto include:
o Summary and results of all QAIQC activlties [inspections, material test results, etc)
o lncorporate submittal and RFI logs {provided by deslgn engineer)
o Summary of monthly progress reports



Inyo County Public Works
Page 9 of 16

Request far PraPasals

North RoundValley Road Brtdge Replocement

o Daily Reports
o Catalogofall as-butltchanges
o Summary/catalog of environmental monitoring compliance

APPENDIXA - PROPOSAI REQUTREMENTS

These guidelines are provided for standardizing the preparation and submission of ProposallProposals by all
responding Consultants. The intent of these guidelines is to assist Consultants in preparation of their
proposals, to simplift the review process, and to help assure consistency in format and content.

Proposals shall contain the following information in the order listed;

1. IntroductoryLetter

The introductory {or transmittal) letter shall be addressed to:

lacob Trauscht
lnyo County Public Works
P0 Drawer Q
lndependence, CA 93526

The lener shall be on Consultant letterhead and include the Consultanfs contact name, mailing address,
telephone number, facsirnile number, and email address. The letter will address the Consultant's
understanding of the services being requested and any other pertinent information the Consultant believes
should be included. All addendums received must be acknowledged in the transrnittal letter,

The letter shall be wet-signed in blue ink by the lndividual authorized to bind the Consultant to the proposal.

Z. Executive Summary

3? Consultant Information, Qualifications & Experlence

The County will only consider subrnittals from Consultants that demonstrate they have successfully
completed comparable projects. These projects must illustrate the quality, type, and past performance of the
project team, Submittals shall Include a detailed description of a minimum of three (3) projects within the
past five [5J years which include the followlng lnformatlon:

7. Contractingagency
Z. Contractingagency Project Manager
3. Contractingagency contactinformation
4, Contract amount
5. Funding source
6. Dateofcontract
7, Date of completion
L Consultant Project Manager and contact information
9. Project Objective
10. ProJect Dcscription
11, Project Outcome

4. OrganlzatlonandApproach



ATTACHIIIENT B

AGREEiIENT BETWEEIII COUNTV OF INYO

app Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FORTHE pROVtStON 6p Constructlon Management SERVTCE9

TERM:

FROM: July 7th, 2020 TO December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

This culract shall allow the Director of Publlc Works to add to or modify the approved job classilication list as
necessary to account for personnel changes. The Director of Public Works may only approv€ changes to the
Schedule of Fees that are not associated with an increase to the contract Not-to-Exceed amount.

County ot lnyo Standard Conkad . No. 150
(lndependent Coneullenl - Probsrional)

Page l0 of 12

t0102017



Local Agsistance Procedures Manual EXI{|BrT 10-H1
Cost Proposel

Exruur 10-Hl CosrPnorOSALpres I ort

COST.TLUS.FD(ED FtT}: oR I.UMP sUM oR FIRM I.IXED PRICE coNTnAcTs
(DESION, ENGINEERING AND ENVTRoNMENTAL STUDIES)

Note: Mark-ups arpNotAllowed E Prime Consultant E Subconsultant E Znd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultino

Project No. 48COO44 Contract No. 156 Date 0612612420

IIIRECT

LABORCOSTS
a) Subtotal Dircct Labor Costs $ 119,784.00

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

TNDIRECT cosTs 
c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS (a) + (b)l $ 119,784.00

d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 0100%- ) e) Total Fringe Benefits (c) x (d)l $ 0'00

0 Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) g) Overhead (c) x (01 $ 0.00

h) General and Adminisuativc (Rate: 104.901, ) i) Gen & Admin (c) x (h)l $ 124,575.36

$ 124,575.36

FIXED FEE $ 12,217.57

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS -ITEMIZE additionrl if
Descrfurtlon ofltem Ouantitv Unlt Unit Cost Totel

Miteage Cosis $ 0.0c

Eauioment Rental and Suoolias s 0.0c
Permit Fees s o.oc
Plan Sheete s 0,0c
Test

D TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS cnnn

m) SUECONSULTANTS'COSTS (Add additionol pages if necessary)
Subcon.qultant I i 7T llnncrrhinn $ 42,863.04

$ 8,436.00
ffi

Subconsultant 2: Earlhgoectivee

Subconsultant4: Sierra Seruices $ 13,552.00

j) T0TAL INDIRECT cosrs (e) + (g) + (i)l

k) T0TAL FtxED rEE [(c) + O] x fixed fee 5,00% I

Subconsultant 3 : Jericho Svstems

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS tNCLUDtNc SUBCONSULTANTS t(t)+(m)I

NorES: TOTAL COST Kc) + 0) + (k) + (n)l S 339,928,37

l. Key personnel 4gg! be marked wilh an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be muked
with two asterisla (t*). All costs nrust comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants witl provide their owr cost proposals.

2, I'he cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rrtes shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with lhe 
-

consullant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans,
3. Anticjpated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompony.

$ 83.351.04

$ n? 15'l n/

Page I of9
January 2020

Classification/Titlc Nrmo Hours Actual Hourly Rato Totrl

P.olocl Mmsecr/R.sld€nl Eng.

Slrucluro! Roprsgentativg

ln!pocior/Ofico Engln€ot Salvador Valdovinos

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

224.00

616.00

880.00

$ 81,00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

$ 18,144.00

s 48,048.00

$ s3,592.00

$ 0.00



Local Assistance Procedurea Manual EXHIBIT I O.HT

Exxlgtr 1O-Hl Cosr PnoposAl pase z ors

Fe= oR LuMp Sum on Frau Frxro Pmce CoilTRAcrs
(Cnlcuunorus FoR ANTIC|PATED SALARY llcnens:s)

l. Calculate Averaga Hourly Rate for ! sl year of lhs conkect (Dlrcct Lrbor Subtotal dlvldad by tolal hoursf

Rate

$30.00

Cost

5 Year
Conlrast
Durailon

Year 1 Avg
Hourly Rale

Direct Labor
$ttblgtlgl per Cost

Proposal

$250,000 00

Avg Hourly Rate

s50.00
$51 00
$52.02
$53 06

Estimated % Completed
Each Year
2oa% .
4a.O% .
13.4% .
154% -
1A.Oo/o

100%

Avg Hourly Rate
(calculated above)

$50.00
$31.00
952.0?
$53 06
$54.12

Total Hoursper
Cost Proposal

500

Proposed Escalation

+2Yo=
+ 2n/o =+2%=
+ZYa=

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Egtimated Hours Year 1

Estimated Hours Year 2
Eslimated Houre Year 3
Eslimaled Hours Year 4
Estimated HoursYear 5

Transfer to Page 1

Avg
Hourly

2. Calculrtr hourly rate for all years (lncrease the Average Hourly Rate for a yeer by propooed ocalation %)

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year4

Estimaled hours
(calculated above)

' 1000
' 2000
' 750t Til
' 500

$51.00
$52.02
$s3 06
$54.12

Cost per
Year

s50,000.00
$102,000 00
$39,015.00
$39,795.30
$27,60.80

$257,871 10
$250,000 00

$7,871.,10

3. Celculate esllmatsd hours per yaar (Multlply estlmate % each year by iotal hourt)

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

Total

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

Total Hours per Cost
Proposal
5000 =5000 =5000 =5000 =5000 =
Total E

Total Hour8 per
Year

1000 Estimated Hours Year '1

2000 Eetimated Hours Year 2
750 Eslimated Hourg Year 3
750 Estlmated Houre Year 4
500 Estimated Houlg Year 5

5000

4. Calculate Total Cocb lncludlng Escalatlon (Mutfply Average Hourly Rale by the number of hourr)

Total Direct Labor Cost wlth Escalation
Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Eslimated total of Direct Labor Salary
lncrease

NOTES:
1. Thig isnottheonlyway toestimatesalatyincreases. Othermethodswill be accepted if theyclearlyindicatethe %
, increase, the # of yeals ofthe contract, and a breakdown ofthe labor to be perfoimed each year. 

-

2- Anestimationihaiisbasedondirectlabormullipliedbysalruyincrease%multipliedbythefofyearsisnot
acceplable
(i,e. $250,000 x 2% x 5 yrs = $35,000 is oot an acceptable methodology)

3 This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the coet proposal before salary increases are granted.
4 Calculalions for anlicipated ealaly escalalion must be provided

Page 2 of I
January 2020



Local Aesisiance Proceduree Manual EXHTBtT t0-t{t
Cosi Propoerl

ExHrstr 10.Hi Cosr PnOroSel pase 3 or3

GertificEtbn of Dirsct Corts:

l, the undersigned, certify to lhe besl of my knowledge and belief that all dhect costs idenlified on the
cost propoial(s) in this conlrac,t are actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contrac't in
accordance with the conlrac,t lerms and tha following requirements:

1. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

2, Terms and condilions of lhe contracl
3, Tille 23 Uniled Stales Code Sec.tion 112 - Letting of Conlrac'ls
4. 48 Code of Federal Reoulations Psrt 31 - Coniract Cost Principles and Procedures
5. 23 Code of Federal Reoulalions Part 172 - Procurement, Menagement, and

Administration of Engineering and Design Relatad Sewice
6. 48 Code of Federal Reoulations Part 9904 - Cost Accountino Slandards Board (vutren

applicable)

All cosis must be applied consblently and fafuly to all conlrac{s. All documentation of complience must
be reiained in lhe projectfiles and be in compliance wilh applicablefederaland stale requiremenls.
Cosls lhat ere noncorpliant with the federal and state requirements arc nol eligible for reimbursemeni.
Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepled
lndirect Cost Rate(s).

Prime Consultsnt or Subconeultanl Csrtifvinq:

Name
lvan Benavldez Jr

Tille': Project Manager / Resldent Engineer

Sigrrature : lvan Benavidez Jr. 3itl'IffiF,iii?i$1fl' " Date of Certification (mm/dd/yyy y1'. 0612612020

Email: Phone Number: 909.512.2815

Address 2400 E. Katella AVe. Ste 800. Anaheim Ca 92806

'An individual executive or financial officer of the consullant's or subconsullant's organizalion ai
a level no lower than a Vice Presidenl or a Chief FinancialOfficer, or equivalent, who has
authorlty lo represent the financial information utilized to eslablish the cosl proposal lor the
contract.

Project Management, Construction Management and Material Quality Assurance Tesling Services.

Page 3 of I
January 2020



..SlnS.
GBOlBCllNlOtL.GEoLOGYrlIlDROGEOlllGI .BI{V|ROIIMEI'Iru,rllllf8xAlrl .HIl{lNG.MAl.lR!$S

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

2019

SERVIGES

Pmfeeslongl
Prlnctpal Englneer/Geologst
Senlor Bngineer/Geologlst
Project EnglneerlGeologist
Staff Englneer/Geologist
Envlronmenbl Geologlst
Senior Regstercd llydrcgeologlst
Grcundnrater Geologist
E Eert Wtness/Deposition [Ghr mln)

Flald Tochnlcal
Cerdfl ed Weldlng Inqpector
Stnc$ral Wetdtrg Inspecbr
Certifi ed Concrete/Masonry Inspector
Struchral Bol[n g tnspector
Structurat Steel Inspector
Relnforclng Steel Inspector
Bpory/Grout Dowel lnspector
Pleld Bnglneer/Geologlst
Fleld Groundwater Geologlst
Seuior Field Technlclan
Fleld?echnlclan
Source lnspector
UltrasonlcWeld Tesdng
Magnetsc Parflcle Testlng

nloH Technlcal {prsqlltng WngeJ
Ccnifi ed Weldtng Inspector
Structural Weldlng Inspector
Cerdfi ed Concrete/Masonry Inspe€tor
Stnctural Boltlrrg Inspecor
Stnrchtral Steel Inspector
Relnhrclng Steel Inspector
Bpory/Grout Dowel Inspector
Fleld EuglneerlGeotoglst
Fleld Gmundwaer Ceologlst
Senlor Fleld Techntclan
Fleld Technlclan
Sourse Inspector
llltramnlcWeldTesdng
Magnedc Pat{cle Tesdng

Gode

PEG

SEG

PG

STEG

EC

SRH

SGG

EW

Code

cwr
swl
ccI
sBt
sst
nsl
EDI

FTG

FGG

SFT

rT
st
UST

MPT

Code

CwIP
SrwIP

cctP
SBIP

ssIP

R^SIP

EDTP

PEGP

rGGP

strtP
FTP

stP
USTP

MPTP

Rate
sl5s
s135
t120
$100
$135
f20s
$135
$zs5

nte
$rzs
$11s
$115
$115
$115
$105

$10s
$100
$110

Seo

$8s
$eo

$15s
$15s

Rate

$res
$1ss
$1s5
$15s
$15s
s1{0
$1{0
t1{0
$145
frzo
f11s
tl20
sz0s
f20s

Pag! I ofl



..Srfi.S,.
GBOtrcllNIclLrGEOltrGto!|YDR0GBOLOGY.SI{YIRONMS}ITALr}lII{8xAlIl .llllllNG.llATf,XIAIJ

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

2019

SfRce andLehoretolf Tschnlcel
Prctect CoordlnaUon
[aboratoryTechnlcian
Ofrce Supplles/Clertcal
Outside SeMces

fob SupplteslReproductonlPostage

B{ulPment Rrntel
Rebar Locator
Ultrasonlc Wdd TesEr
MagnetftWeldeser
Dlamond Coring Rig
ToqucWrencb/Skidmore
Water QualtryPrube
Water Level Sounder

Vehlde- Trsvel. and Per Diem
Mlleage
Travel Tlme (200-mlle mar)
Roonrand Eoard
Meals

LANORATORYTBSTING

Snlls nnrl Atlreirteq
Prcctor (Standrd EffDrt4')
Prcctor [Modlf, ed Bfiort't J
Proctor fModified Efiort-6J
Proctor [RocJr Correctlon)
Prucbr [Checft Point)
Wet Denslty (Caltrans Tube)
Durabllity lnde:r
Hydromercr
Plasdctplnder
UquldLimlt
Plasdc f,lmtt
R-Value (CA/Nll Unreaed)
Sand Bqulvzlent
SleveAnalysls
$lwe Analysls wlth 200 Wash
Spedflc Gravlty fCoase)
Speclf,c Gravlty (Flne)

TestMethod
ASTMD698
tuiTMD1557
AIITMD1557
ASTM D4718
ASTIT{ D1557
cI216
ASninsTM/CT229
ASTM D{ZZ
crz04
ASTMD4318
AsruD4318
ASll,I D2044ICTSAL
ASIMD24l9lCT2t7
A$r{c136lCT2A2
ASTMCll?
ASTI{C\ZZCT206
Alrruc128/cTza7

Code
PC

LT
os

Gode

MI
TT
RI
M

f,ate
08s
Ne0

$65
11596

1ts96

Code
RL

uwr
MWT

DCR

Tt'lfS

WQP

wts

nste
11596

11596

115%
$80

$so
$s0
$2s

nate
$.70lrDi

$8s
115%

$eo

Rnts
N225

$230
N250

f160
$ss

]225
t22S
3215

s30s
s165
f16s

11596

$11s
i11s
1145
$13s
$tss

Code
sDc4
MDB[
MDC6

RC

CIOT
ccT
DI
HY

PI

tt
Pt
RV

SB

SA

sAw
scc
SGF

Page 2 ofi



.s,(n-s,
G[gTECHlllCAl . cE0LOGY ' HIIrnOoEoLoGiI . El{Vn0tl[tf,l\tTAl.. HlllqAlll . llll{lllc . UAlaruA|S

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

CleannessValue
ft:acnuud/Crushed Pardcles
unlrwelght

ShearandConflolldadolt
Dlrcct Shear (Undlstube4 3-Point)
Dlrsct Sheer [Rsmolded 3.Point]
Consoltdadon (8.Potnt)
AddldondPolns

Sorrxrlc
Compresstue Test Cyltnder
Compresslve Test Grout Sample
Compressfue Test Gmut Prlsm
Compresslve Test Mortar Cyltnder
Compusslve Test Shotcrte Corc
OvenDryDenslty
Equlllbrlum Denslty

@
Asphalt Ertraclton by lgntdon
Aggregate GradaHon of El(E:rced sample
Moisturc Conbnt of Asphdt
$peclfi c GravtS of Asphalt Core
Theoredcal Max Spedfic Gravlty/Denstp
StabllomeerTest

cv
FP

I'wA

Code
UST

RST

coN

ct227
ASTM DS82VCI 205
srztz

TertMethod
ASTM D3O8O

ASrM D3080
ASTM D2435

TestMetlod
ASTMC39
ASTM C39

Asllr C39

ASTMC39
ASIM C39

,ltsTM c567
ASTMC567

2019

$10s
$155
$10s

KE

$235
$21s

N355

f5s

Code
ccT
CTGS

CTGP

CTMC

cTsc
ODD

EDD

Gode
IGN

GES

MCA

SGAC

RICE

I{VEEM

TestMethod
cT382
ffzaz
cT 370

cT308
gr 309
cT366

Rate

i43
fcs
i65
i+s
$r

$125
Request

Rate

t250
1115
s10s
t6o

N165

1159t

Page 3 of 3



47 lst Slroel, Suite 1

Red ands, CA 923734601

{909} 91s-ssn

Rrtc $hoet

Pcrronnd Crlcqorv Rrtrr : Chargcs wlll bc nrde at tlc Cd.gory rstcr s€l forlh br thc iioo opcot m
pmjeot memgcEcut, consultctiou or meeliqgt Elrtcd to ths proj€ct field worlq nrport poparetion and
rcviow, tavcl timc to md tom the job sitc, Gtc.

Porldon lltlo
Aslgncd borrp rrtcfor
tho duredou ofthc
contr':ect

PrinoiDclInCtgro s157.00
Scnior Rcgulalory Specialist s157.00
ProgranMlqrysr $157.00
Smior $14{r.00
CEQA/r.ItrA Spqialist $140.00
Envinnncntal Itdanager $140.00
Bnvlrcnnotd $llm.00

Orteafl s140.00
ScoiorBiologirt s140.00
FAA Licensod UAV Pilot $135.00
Siologilrt sl2t.00

$il0.00
CADIYCIS $p€olallst $lt0.m
Plojs{Alrlyst st05.00
Gilsral Constsustioo MoDitor $105.00
Adminishotive s 65.00

Ernrnrcl Blllrd AtCor*.

Tiavcl (non-alomobilc)
Lodgins
AUo andTnrckRmtals
Spccialty Equbncdt and Rrntals
Dclivery Scrvicec
Friuting @lu€pddo, Photo Ssrvicct, Color Copios

SFotuttySupplim)

OlhrlllnctCorlr

Aub Miloago (atcuntnt IRS rab)
dgsnry Pcmit Fees (At Cost)
Subomsulhb - Coct Plur 3%

JcddroSmr, lnc ao?o



E*"tr. Sr"rt l.r,c$.-"1.-
l? *rllnCtdc

k&tLJr.,C 9fr46

Prcvailing Wage
Pricelict 2020

Categorieg Hourlv Rab
Suruey crew (Prevailins Wase) $260

Calculation time $1m
Project Coordination $100

Boundary Map Research sl00
Dnafting $100



TC

ZIC Hourlv Rate 2020

Thle

ZfC2O20HoudvnrE

i:fl I efildlm f)tr6

llprofScrYb

Propct lirnrgment

EqlneerlqSerlca

QA Flild l'l3p.cuon
SeMceslftwalllryl

Qurllficrtlon HourlyRitr

5so.es

Per DIR

requlrements

ZT CONSUTTING

r Mlnimum hourc charSe insg€ctlon gervc€s
I Ovcrtlme rate applies rftcr I horrs on tha Job on th: weckdays and any hours worked on Saturdry, Sunda% and Holldays.

Othar Dlnct Cod...

tir Thls approxlmate cost. All ths sub inwicer are pas through. ZfC does not martup the subs lnvoices.

Senior Quallty
PEl CqA

Asslstant

cwl Pcl
QA lnspector ASNT NDT

1

Fl ErE ic0{s6? !l tntoertqrp llm wl wmv rtqD €on

t6r tuql'ls Off ce

,;j :. :.::-:: !- i:

Pl

PM PE $zro

5re+.eo

Quallty
Enclneer

PE Srrs.so

EIT

QASoule lnrpccdon
Scndac QA lnspedor

cwt, Pcilt/lt,
ASI.ITNDT

tlr/MT
s109.$r,r

lbm (hrntty Apprux. UnltOrt TotrlAmunt
Mlllage TBD (Federal Ratel 5 0.5751mlle TSD

Travel ln.State T8D Approx. S0OO/frip TBD

Travel Outof-State IBD (Caltrans Pollcy) Approx. S1,2fi)/Trtp TBD
Bearing Pad / Elastorner Testing TBD(ZlCSub':+r 51,500 / Unit TBD
Epoxy Coatlng Testing IBD (ZtC Sub "' 5150/ Per Sample TBD
Strand Testing IBD (ZIC Sub *r.) 5180/ Per Test TBD

lnchor EoltTes0ng TBD (ZTC Sub rrr $350 / Per Set T8D
ttoop Tesung/ Couphns (<s11) TBD (ZIC Sub r.rl 9150 / Per Sample TBD
Hlgh Strength Bolts T8D {ZtC Sub *r*1 5155 / per bolt set TBD
Prestressing Cornponents TBD (ZTC Sub'r' Sl25 / per sample TBD



ATTACHITIEIIT C

AGREETilENT BETtlt,EEN COUNTY OF I]IIYO

AND Fountainhead Consultlng Corporation

FOR TI{E PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July7th,202A

SCHEDULE OF TMVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

County of lnyo Stanrlard Confact - No. 156
(lnd€pandont Consultant - Professlonal)

Page 11 ol 12

December 31,2021

SERVICES

1U02A17



ATTACHiIENT D

AGREEilEI{T BETWEEN COUNTY OF Iil\TO

AND Fountainhoad Consulting Corporation

FOR THE pROVtStON gp, Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July 7lh, 2020 Deoernber 31,2421

sEE ATTACHED II{sURAI{CE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standad Contrad - No. 150
(lndependent Conrultant - Proferslona)

Page 12 of 12

SERVIGES

10102017



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPBAND LIMIT OF TNSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as;

Commercial General tiability [CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status, lnyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad
as ISo Form cG 2a fi n 85 or both cc 20 10, cG 2a 26, cc 20 33, or cG 20 38; and cG z0 37
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code I {any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code B fhiredJ and 9 fnon-owned), with limit no
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily iniury and property damage,

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California with Statutory Limits, and
Bmployer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's tetterhead certisring that
contractor has no employees.

Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 92,000,000 aggregate.

Cyber tiability Insurance, with iimits not ]ess than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived lf contractor will not be
receiving/storing/transmitting personally identifiable information IPII) or personal medical
information [PMl). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be lirnited to, claims
involving infringement of intellectual property, lncluding but not limited to infringement of
copyright, tradernarlt trade dress, invasion of privary violations, information theft, damage to
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic
information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.

lf the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minirnums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage andlor the higher

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services
Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Servlces

Iimits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo county.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shatl be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects lnyo County, its
of'ficers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contrihute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiverof Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

$elf-Insured Retentlons
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, clairn
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The poliry language ihall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptablllty of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
currentA.M' Best's rating of no less than A:VIl, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

Clalms Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
L, The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work,
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

(5J years after completion of the con*act of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
contract work.

County of Inyo lnsurance Standards, No. I
Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for professional senrices

Verifl cation of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish lnyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements [or copies of the applicable policy language effe-ting
coverage requlred by this clause) and a copy ofthe Declarations and Endorsement Page ofthe
CGL-policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to iequire complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
anytime.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and veriff that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure. that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required frorn subcontractors.

Special Risks or Gircumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature ofthe risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. I
Professiona I Services

page



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  1                                                                                                                                     February 21, 2023       

     

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

 

 
February 21, 2023    AMENDED 
  
The Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in regular session at the hour of 8:34 a.m., on 
February 7, 2023, in the Board of Supervisors Room, County Administrative Center, Independence, with the following 
Supervisors present per California Assembly Bill 361: Chairperson Jennifer Roeser, presiding, Trina Orrill, Scott 
Marcellin, Matt Kingsley and Jeff Griffiths. Also present: County Administrator Nate Greenberg, County Counsel John-
Carl Vallejo, Assistant Clerk of the Board Darcy Ellis, and Office Technician Hayley Carter.  

 
  

Public Comment  The Chairperson asked for public comment related to Closed Session items, and no one 
requested to speak.  
 

Closed Session 
 
 

Chairperson Roeser recessed open session at 8:35 a.m. to convene in closed session with all 
Board members present to discuss the following item(s): No. 2 Conference with Legal 
Counsel - Anticipated Litigation - Initiation of litigation pursuant to § 54956.9(d)(4): 1 case; 
No. 3 Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected 
Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association 
(ICCOA); Inyo County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). 
Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – Administrative Officer 
Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Administrators Sue Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Senior Budget 
Analyst Denelle Carrington, Health and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief 
Probation Officer Jeff Thomson; and No. 4 Public Employment – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957 – Title: Water Director Appointment. 
 

Open Session 
 

Chairperson Roeser recessed closed session and reconvened the meeting in open session at 
10:05 a.m. with all Board members present. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance County Counsel Vallejo led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Report on Closed 
Session 
 

County Counsel Vallejo reported that no action was taken during closed session that is 
required to be reported. 
 

Public Comment 
 

Chairperson Roeser asked if there was any public comment pending for items not calendared 
on the agenda. 
 
Public comment was heard from Oscar Maciel, Gina Martinez, Vicki Vang, Lauralynn Hundley, 
Matt Kingsley, Scott Kemp Jr., Chris Connolly, Mandy Kemp, and Alisha Southey. 
 

County Department 
Reports  
 

HHS Director Marilyn Mann updated the Board on upcoming changes being made to the 
continuous coverage for Medi-Cal.  
 
Public Works Director Mike Errante gave the Board an update on the status of the North 
Round Valley bridge and said that the work is scheduled to be completed by April. 
 

Clerk of the Board – 
Approval of Minutes 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the minutes 
of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of February 7, 2023. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

County Counsel – 
Conflict of Interest 
Code Biennial Review 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to: A) receive and 
approve the 2022 Conflict of Interest Code Biennial Report from the Round Valley Joint 
Elementary School District; and B) receive and approve the 2022 Conflict of Interest Code 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  2                                                                                                                                     February 21, 2023       

 amendment from the Lone Pine Unified School District. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

HHS-Behavioral 
Health – 
CA Health and 
Wellness Data 
Sharing Agreement 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the Data 
Sharing Agreement between the County of Inyo Health and Human Services and California 
Health and Wellness (CHW) for the provision of data sharing between the County Mental 
Health Plan (MHP) and CHW, a Medi-Cal Managed Care Plan (MCP), and authorize the HHS 
director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried 
unanimously.  

HHS – 
Blue Cross of CA 
Partnership Plan, Inc. 
(Anthem) MOU 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve Addendums 
No. 1 and No. 2 to the Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Inyo Health 
and Human Services (HHS) Department and Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, Inc. 
(Anthem), clarifying the exchange of protected Health Information/Data Exchange between 
the County Mental Health Plan (Behavioral Health), Public Health and Anthem, a managed 
care plan serving Inyo County's Medi-Cal eligible population, and authorize the HHS Director 
to sign the addendums. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

HHS – 
CalMHSA 
Participation 
Agreement 
Amendment 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve amendment 
to the agreement between the County of Inyo and California Mental Health Services Authority 
(CalMHSA), reallocating Project Management and Clinical Services funding to a Flexible 
Spending Account to cover additional subject matter expert topics, and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

HHS- 
Health/Prevention – 
Medi-Cal 
Administrative 
Activities Agreement 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to: A) approve the 
Program Participation Agreement between the County of lnyo and California Department of 
Health Care Services; and B) authorize the HHS Fiscal Oversight and Special Operations 
Deputy Director as the Local Governmental Agency Coordinator to sign the agreement. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

HHS-
Health/Prevention – 
Medbank Agreement 
 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the lease 
agreement between the County of Inyo and CareFusion Solutions, Inc. of San Diego, CA for 
BD Pyxis MedBank equipment, software, and services, in an amount not to exceed 
$58,380.00 plus applicable sales and property taxes, for a period of 60 months, commencing 
on the date of equipment installation, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, 
and authorize the HHS Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Public Works – 
Recycling & Waste 
Management – 
American Refuse, Inc. 
Contract Amendment 
No. 1 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve Amendment 
No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and America Refuse, of Wasco, CA 
increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $185,000 for waste tire hauling and 
recycling, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained. Motion carried unanimously. 

Public Works – 
Recycling & Waste 
Management – 
Lower Owens River 
Clean-Up/Waiver of 
Fees 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve a of waiver of 
solid waste disposal and gate fees up to $100 for trash and litter removed at the Lower Owens 
River Clean event, April 22, 2023. Motion carried unanimously. 

Public Works – 
Fountainhead 
Consulting Agreement 
Amendment No. 4 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve Amendment 
No. 4 to the consulting agreement between the County of Inyo and Fountainhead Consulting 
Corporation of Anaheim, CA, increasing the contract by $137,327.86 to an amount not to 
exceed $808,366.97 and extending the contract to December 1, 2023, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

Public Works – 
Diaz Lake ADA Boat 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve Proposed 
Resolution No. 2023- 05 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  3                                                                                                                                     February 21, 2023       

Dock N.O.C. & Reso # 
2023-05 
 

Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Diaz Lake 
ADA Boat Dock Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously. 

Water Department – 
Water Commission 
Appointments 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to consider the Letters of 
Interest received for re-appointment to the Water Commission and appoint two Water 
Commissioners with a term ending December 31, 2026; and appoint one Water 
Commissioner to complete a term ending December 31, 2023. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

CAO –  
Aumentum 
Technologies Master 
Agreement Addendum 
 

The agenda item was pulled from the Consent Agenda to Departmental for further discussion.  
 
Treasurer Tax-Collector Alisha McMurtrie objected to the addendum, noting that services 
outlined in the original contract have still not been provided and there was a lack of 
involvement with stakeholders in the development of the agenda item.  
 
After further discussion, the Board decided to hold off on the addendum, requesting all three 
stakeholders agree to future contract changes collectively and prior to Board input.  
 

CAO – 
Mid-Year Financial 
Report  
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to: A) Accept the Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023 Mid-Year Financial Report as presented; B) Approve the specific budget 
action items and recommendations discussed in the report and represented in Attachments A 
& B (4/5ths vote required); and C) Direct staff to continue the emphasis on revenue attainment 
and expense savings in order to maximize year-end Fund Balances. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

HHS- Behavioral 
Health – 
Division Overview 
Presentation 
 

Health & Human Services Director Marilyn Mann introduced the following staff members to 
the Board: Behavioral Health Director Kimball Pier; Clinical Administrator Chrystina Pope; and 
Addiction Supervisor Catie Grisham.   
 
Staff provided the Board with a presentation on the Behavioral Health Division and the various 
programs and services they provide throughout the County.  
 

Recess/Reconvene 
 

Chairperson Roeser recessed the meeting for a break at 12:48 p.m. and reconvened the 
meeting at 1:20 p.m. with all Board members present except Supervisor Kingsley who arrived 
at 1:25 p.m. 
 

Ag. Department – 
Department Overview 
and AgPass 
Workshop 
 

Agriculture Commissioner Nathan Reade provided the Board with a presentation highlighting 
the functions of the Agriculture Department and associated programs and presented a 
workshop on the possible development of an Ag Pass Program for the Inyo and Mono 
counties.  
 

Public Comment Chairperson Roeser asked if there was any public comment pending for items not calendared 
on the agenda. Public comment was heard from Linda Chaplin. 
 

Correspondence-
Action – 
Department of 
Alcoholic Beverage 
Control  
 

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Orrill for the Board of Supervisors 
of the County of Inyo to continue to make determinations of Public Convenience or Necessity 
(PCN) for person(s)/premises applying for an ABC license. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Board Member & Staff 
Reports 
 

Supervisor Kingsley said that he attended meetings in Washington, D.C. for the Rural County 
Representatives of California and the National Association of Counties. 
 
Supervisor Marcellin said that he attended a tour of the Lower Owens River Project, a Local 
Transportation Commission meeting, met with staff, and will be traveling to a California State 
Association of Counties training, the Air Pollution Control District meeting, and the Owens 
Valley Groundwater Authority meeting. 
 
Supervisor Orrill said she attended meetings with the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments, 
the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority, and department heads in the Planning and Probation 
departments, and said she will be joining Supervisor Marcellin for the California State 
Association of Counties training and the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority meeting. 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  4                                                                                                                                     February 21, 2023       

 
Supervisor Griffiths said he attended meetings with the California State Association of 
Counties, the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments, the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority, 
and the Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership. 
 
Supervisor Roeser said she attended the California State Association of Counties meeting. 
 
County Counsel Vallejo said he attended an Indian Wells Groundwater Authority meeting.  
 
CAO Greenberg said he attended the Lower Owens River Project tour, the Eastern Sierra 
Council of Governments meeting, met with Randy Short, and plans to meet with Airport 
Manager Ashley Helms, Bishop City Manager Deston Dishion, and attend the HHS in-service 
day. 
 

Adjournment The meeting was adjourned at 2:50 p.m. to 8:30 a.m. Tuesday, February 28, 2023, in the 
County Administrative Center in Independence. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                    Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

 

Attest:   N A T E  G R E E N B E R G  

         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d  

               

            

  

 

 by:       _____________________________________ 

  Darcy Ellis, Assistant 

  

 

 

  











 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4057  

 

Construction Contract for the Lone Pine Airport Taxiway 
A Resurfacing Project 

Public Works - Airports 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Ashley Helms, Deputy Public Works Director - 
Airports 

Ashley Helms, Deputy Public Works Director - 
Airports 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Award the contract for the Taxiway A Resurfacing Project at the Lone Pine Airport to Maxwell Asphalt, 
Inc. of Salt Lake City, UT as the successful bidder; 
B) Approve the construction contract between the County of Inyo and Maxwell Asphalt, Inc. of Salt Lake 
City, UT in the amount of $158,627.50, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained and approval of the 2023-2024 budget;  
C) Authorize the Public Works Director to execute all other project contract documents, including 
contract change orders, to the extent permitted by Public Contract Code Section 20142 and other 
applicable laws; and 
D) Approve Resolution No. 2023-27, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Submittal of Applications, Accepting Allocation of Funds, and 
Authorizing the Execution of Grant Agreements with the California Department of Transportation for an 
Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Matching Grant," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On April 4, 2023, your Board approved the plans and specifications for the Taxiway A Resurfacing 
Project and authorized the Public Works Director to advertise the project.  The bid opening occurred on 
May 11, and two bids were received: 

1. Maxwell Asphalt, Inc. - $158,627.50 
2. American Road Maintenance - $189,670.00 

 
The bid submittals were reviewed, and the low bidder was determined to be responsible and 
responsive.  The FAA grant offer for this project was received on August 9th, allowing the County to 
move forward with the construction contract award, and the application for the Caltrans Division of 
Aeronautics (CDA) matching grant. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded - FAA Airport Improvement Fund, 
State Matching Grant / Non-General Fund County 
match 

Budget Unit 150502 

Budgeted? Yes (with budget adoption) Object Code 5700 
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
All project costs will occur this fiscal year as budgeted.  There aren't sufficient funds in the Preliminary 
budget but expenditures will not exceed the current Preliminary budget.  Funds will be fully expended 
after budget adoption. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
None 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to award the contract to the low bidder, and to either award to the second 
bidder or to rebid the project. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
FAA; Caltrans Division of Aeronautics 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. LP Taxiway A Resurface Bid Tabulation 
2. Maxwell Asphalt Contract 
3. FAA Construction Grant 
4. Resolution - Matching Grant 
  
APPROVALS: 
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 8/10/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/16/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 8/16/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/16/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/30/2023 
Michael Errante Approved - 8/31/2023 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Item No. Spec No. Description Qty Unit Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

1 C‐105 Mobilization 1 LS 11,700.00$       $    11,700.00  15,000.00$       $    15,000.00  17,000.00$       $    17,000.00 

2 P‐101a Minor Crack Sealing 2 TON 4,000.00$         $       8,000.00  6,500.00$         $    13,000.00  4,500.00$         $       9,000.00 

3 P‐101b Major Crack Repair 1,640 LF 20.00$              $    32,800.00  12.00$              $    19,680.00  20.00$              $    32,800.00 

4 P‐608 Asphalt Surface Treatment 19,170 SY 2.00$                 $    38,340.00  2.25$                 $    43,132.50  4.00$                 $    76,680.00 

5 P‐620a Marking Removal  11,590 SF 1.75$                 $    20,282.50  1.50$                 $    17,385.00  2.50$                 $    28,975.00 

6 P‐620b Tempoary Marking 3,283 SF 1.50$                 $       4,924.50  6.00$                 $    19,698.00  3.00$                 $       9,849.00 

7 P‐620c Marking    5,122 SF 2.50$                 $    12,805.00  6.00$                 $    30,732.00  3.00$                 $    15,366.00 

ACI No. 236957
AIP No. 3‐06‐0126‐018‐2023

surface Taxiway A and Associated Connector Taxiwa
Lone Pine, California

189,670.00$                               

Engineer's Estimate Maxwell Asphalt, Inc. American Road Maintenance

Bid Total ‐ Schedule I 128,852.00$                                158,627.50$                               

BID TABULATION

 $                              158,627.50   $                              189,670.00 

American Road Maintenance

Schedule I ‐ Resurface Taxiway A and Associated Connector Taxiways

TOTAL SCHEDULE I  $                              128,852.00 

Engineer's Estimate Maxwell Asphalt, Inc.

Lone Pine Airport

Bid Opening: May 11, 2023 at 2:00 p.m., PDT

Page 1 of 1



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-1 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

MAXWELL ASPHALT, INC.
for 

RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
AT THE 

LONE PINE AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-018-2023 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: 150502-23 

THIS CONTRACT is awarded by the COUNTY OF INYO to CONTRACTOR on and made 
and entered into effective, September 5, 2023, by and between the COUNTY OF INYO, a 
political subdivision of the State of California, (hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY"), and 
Maxwell Asphalt, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “CONTRACTOR”) for the construction of the 
RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
(hereinafter referred to as "PROJECT"), which parties agree, for and in consideration of the mutual 
promises, as follows: 

I. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED: CONTRACTOR agrees at its own expense to furnish all
labor, materials, methods, processes, implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation,
permits, services, utilities, and all other items, and related functions necessary to COUNTY to
construct the Project in accordance with the terms of the Grant, as detailed in the COUNTY’s
REQUEST FOR BIDS sub nom “CONTRACT DOCUMENTS”, portions of which are attached
hereto as Attachment A and all of which is incorporated herein by this reference, as well as in the
CONTRACTOR’s Response to the Request for Bids, which is attached hereto as Attachment B and
incorporated herein by this reference, and complete all work within the time for completion set
forth in Attachment A.

II. TIME OF COMPLETION: Project work shall begin within 15 calendar days after receipt of the
Notice to Proceed (NTP) (or on the start of work date identified in the NTP) and shall continue
until all requested services are completed.  Said services shall be completed no later than the Time
of Completion as noted in the Project s Special Provisions. Procedures for any extension of time
shall be complied with as noted in the Project s Special Provisions.

III. COMPENSATION / CONSIDERATION: Compensation to be paid to CONTRACTOR for
performance of such work shall be in accordance with the schedules for payment set forth in
Attachment “B” to this contract. Any payment by COUNTY shall not be deemed a waiver of
defects, even if such defects were known to the COUNTY at the time of payment.

IV. METHOD OF PAYMENT:  CONTRACTOR shall bill by invoice directed to the Director of
Public Works or designee describing the work, the charge for the work, and date the work was
performed. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY a completed IRS form W-9 before payments
will issue from COUNTY. COUNTY will pay the invoice within 30 days of the receipt following
normal claims handling procedures.

V. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE: CONTRACTOR represents that he/she is qualified and
licensed to perform the work to be done as required in this Contract.  COUNTY relies upon the
representations of CONTRACTOR regarding professional and/or trade training, licensing, and



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-2 

ability to perform the services as a material inducement to enter into this Contract. Acceptance of 
work by the COUNTY does not operate to release CONTRACTOR from any responsibility to 
perform work to professional and/or trade standards. CONTRACTOR shall provide properly 
skilled professional and technical personnel to perform all services under this Contract. 
CONTRACTOR shall perform all services required by this Contract in a manner and according to 
the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession.  All work products of 
whatsoever nature delivered to the COUNTY shall be prepared in a manner conforming to the 
standards of quality normally observed by a person practicing in CONTRACTOR’S profession 
and/or trade. 

VI. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: Nothing contained herein or any document executed in
connection herewith, shall be construed to create an employer-employee, partnership or joint
venture relationship between COUNTY and CONTRACTOR nor to allow COUNTY to exercise
discretion or control over the manner in which CONTRACTOR performs the work or services that
are the subject matter of this Agreement; provided, however, the work or services to be provided
by CONTRACTOR shall be provided in a manner consistent with reaching the COUNTY’s
objectives in entering this Agreement. CONTRACTOR is an independent CONTRACTOR, not an
employee of COUNTY or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates. CONTRACTOR will not represent
itself to be nor hold itself out as an employee of COUNTY. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it
shall not have the right or entitlement in or to any of the pension, retirement or other benefit
programs now or hereafter available to COUNTY's employees. The consideration set forth in
Sections IV and V above shall be the sole consideration due CONTRACTOR for the services
rendered hereunder. It is understood that COUNTY will not withhold any amounts for payment of
taxes from CONTRACTOR’s compensation hereunder. Any and all sums due under any applicable
state, federal or municipal law or union or professional and/or trade guild regulations shall be
CONTRACTOR’s sole responsibility. CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold COUNTY
harmless from any and all damages, claims and expenses arising out of or resulting from any claims
asserted by any third party, including but not limited to a taxing authority, as a result of or in
connection with payments due it from CONTRACTOR’s compensation.

VII. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING.  The parties recognize that a substantial
inducement to County for entering into this Contract is the professional reputation, experience and
competence of Contractor.  Assignments of any and/or all rights, duties or obligations of the
Contractor under this Contract will be permitted only with the express consent of the County.
Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the work to be performed under this Contract
without the written authorization of the County.  If County consents to such subcontract, Contractor
shall be fully responsible to County for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor.  Nothing in this
Contract shall create any contractual relationship between County and subcontractor, nor shall it
create any obligation on the part of the County to pay any monies due to any such subcontractor,
unless otherwise required by law.

VIII. CLAIMS RESOLUTION: Pursuant to Section 9204 of the Public Contract Code, any and all
claims submitted by the CONTRACTOR to COUNTY will follow the provisions as set forth in the
Project’s County Provisions section.

IX. INSURANCE INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify
County and its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against all claims, damages,
losses, and expenses, including attorney fees arising out of the performance of the work described
herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any
subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts
any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful
misconduct of the County.



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-3 

X. POLITICAL REFORM ACT. Contractor is not a designated employee within the meaning of the
Political Reform Act because Contractor:

1. Will conduct research and arrive at conclusions with respect to his/her rendition of
information, advice, recommendation or counsel independent of the control and
direction of the County or of any County official, other than normal Contract
monitoring; and

2. Possesses no authority with respect to any County decision beyond rendition of
information, advice, recommendation or counsel [FPPC Reg. 18700(a)(2)].

XI. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.  Contractor shall use the standard of care in its profession
and/or trade to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances and
regulations that relate to the work or services to be provided pursuant to this Contract.

1. Safety Training: Contractor shall provide such safety and other training as needed
to assure work will be performed in a safe and healthful manner "in a language"
that is understandable to employees receiving the training.  The training shall in all
respects be in compliance with CAL OSHA. Contractor working with employees
shall maintain a written Injury and Illness Prevention (IIP) Program, a copy of
which must be maintained at each worksite or at a central worksite identified for
the employees, if the Contractor has non-fixed worksites.  Contractor using
subcontractors with the approval of the County to perform the work which is the
subject of this Contract shall require each subcontractor working with employees
to comply with the requirements of this section.

2. Child, Family and Spousal Support Reporting Obligations: Contractor shall
comply with the state and federal child, family and spousal support reporting
requirements and with all lawfully served wage and earnings assignment orders or
notices of assignment relating to child, family and spousal support obligations.

3. Nondiscrimination: Contractor shall not discriminate in employment practices or
in the delivery of services on the basis of membership in a protected class which
includes any class recognized by law and not limited to race, color, religion, sex
(gender), sexual orientation, marital status, national origin (Including language use
restrictions), ancestry, disability (mental and physical, including HIV and Aids),
medical Conditions (cancer/genetic characteristics), age (40 and above) and
request for family care leave.  Contractor represents that it is in compliance with
federal and state laws prohibiting discrimination in employment and agrees to stay
in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C.
sections 12101, et. seq.), Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975 (42
U.S.C. 5101, et. seq.), Title VII (42 U.S.C. 2000, et. seq.), the California Fair
Employment Housing Act (California Government Code sections 12900, et. seq.)
and regulations and guidelines issued pursuant thereto.

XII. LICENSES: CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to COUNTY that it has all licenses, permits,
qualifications, insurance and approvals of whatsoever nature which are legally required of
CONTRACTOR to practice its trade and/or profession. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants
to COUNTY that CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all
times during the term of this Contract, any licenses, permits, insurance and approvals which are
legally required of CONTRACTOR to practice its and/or profession.

XIII. PREVAILING WAGE:  Pursuant to Section 1720 et seq. of the Labor Code, CONTRACTOR
agrees to comply with the Department of Industrial Relations regulations, to which this Contract is



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-4 

subject, the prevailing wage per diem rates in Inyo County have been determined by the Director 
of the State Department of Industrial Relations. These wage rates appear in the Department 
publication entitled "General Prevailing Wage Rates," in effect at the time the project is advertised. 
Future effective wage rates, which have been predetermined and are on file with the State 
Department of Industrial Relations are referenced but not printed in said publication. Such rates of 
wages are also on file with the State Department of Industrial Relations and the offices of the Public 
Works Department of the County of Inyo and are available to any interested party upon request. 
CONTRACTOR agrees to submit certified payroll to COUNTY and comply with the Department 
of Industrial Relations regulations in submitting the certified payroll. 

XIV. CONTROLLING LAW VENUE: This Contract is made in the County of Inyo, State of
California.  The parties specifically agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the Superior Court of
California for the County of Inyo.

XV. WRITTEN NOTIFICATION: Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or communication
that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing and either served
personally or sent prepaid, first class mail.  Any such notice, demand, et cetera, shall be addressed
to the other party at the address set forth herein below.  Either party may change its address by
notifying the other party of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed communicated within
48 hours from the time of mailing if mailed as provided in this section.

If to COUNTY:  County of Inyo  
Public Works Department 
Attn: Ashley Helms  
168 N. Edwards  
PO Drawer Q Independence, CA 93526 

If to CONTRACTOR: Maxwell Asphalt, Inc. 

Attn: Rob McIntosh 

37th 

Clearfield, UT, 84015 

XVI. AMENDMENTS.  This Contract may be modified or amended only by a written document
executed by both Contractor and County and approved as to form by Inyo County Counsel.

XVII. WAIVER.  No failure on the part of either party to exercise any right or remedy hereunder shall
operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy that party may have hereunder.

XVIII. TERMINATION.  This Contract may be terminated for the reasons stated below:

1. Immediately for cause, if either party fails to perform its responsibilities under this
Contract in a timely and professional manner and to the satisfaction of the other
party or violates any of the terms or provisions of this Contract.  If termination for
cause is given by either party to the other and it is later determined that the other
party was not in default or default was excusable, then the notice of termination
shall be deemed to have been given without cause pursuant to paragraph “b” of
this section; or

2. By either party without cause upon fifteen (15) days' written notice of termination.
Upon termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for services
performed up to the effective date of termination; or

3. By County upon oral notice from the Board of Supervisors based on funding
ending or being materially decreased during the term of this Contract.

St.



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-5 

XIX. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, void or unenforceable,
the remainder of the provision and/or provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall not
be affected, impaired or invalidated.

XX. CONTRACT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS.  It is understood
and agreed by the parties that this Contract is subject to the review and approval by the Inyo County
Board of Supervisors upon Notice and Public Hearing.  In the event that the Board of Supervisors
declines to enter into or approve said Contract, it is hereby agreed to that there is, in fact, no binding
agreement, either written or oral, between the parties herein.

XXI. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence for every provision in this Agreement.

XXII. ALL PROVISIONS SET FORTH HEREIN: CONTRACTOR and COUNTY agree that this
Contract shall include and consist of:

1. All provisions set forth expressly herein;

2. The Bid Proposal Forms, the Faithful Performance Bond, and the Labor and
Materials Payment Bond, all of which are incorporated herein and made a part of
this contract by reference; and

3. All other contract documents, as described in Section 5-1.02, “Contract
Components”; for the purpose of this Contract, Special Provisions includes:

a. County Provisions;
b. General Provisions;
c. Federal Provisions;
d. Special Provisions; and
e. Technical Specifications.

XXIII. EXECUTION. This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall
constitute one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties.  In approving
this Contract, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart.

XXIV. REQUIRED FEDERAL PROVISIONS

A. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS: The CONTRACTOR must maintain an acceptable cost
accounting system. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the Owner, the Federal Aviation
Administration and the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized
representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the CONTRACTOR which are
directly pertinent to the specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and
transcriptions. The CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain all books, records and reports required under
this contract for a period of not less than three years after final payment is made and all pending matters
are closed.

B. BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS
Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors
may result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that may be necessary
to enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement.

Owner will provide CONTRACTOR written notice that describes the nature of the breach and
corrective actions the CONTRACTOR must undertake in order to avoid termination of the contract.
Owner reserves the right to withhold payments to CONTRACTOR until such time the CONTRACTOR
corrects the breach or the Owner elects to terminate the contract. The Owner’s notice will identify a



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-6 

specific date by which the CONTRACTOR must correct the breach.  Owner may proceed with 
termination of the contract if the CONTRACTOR fails to correct the breach by the deadline indicated 
in the Owner’s notice. 

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available 
thereunder are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any duties, obligations, rights and remedies 
otherwise imposed or available by law. 

C. GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are
promulgated to ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex,
age, or disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from
Federal assistance.

This provision binds the CONTRACTOR and subcontractors from the bid solicitation period through
the completion of the contract. This provision is in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964.

D. CIVIL RIGHTS – TITLE VI ASSURANCE

Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements: 

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR, for itself, its assignees, and 
successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “CONTRACTOR”), agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations:  The CONTRACTOR (hereinafter includes consultants) will
comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, as they may
be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of
this contract.

2. Nondiscrimination:  The CONTRACTOR, with regard to the work performed by it during the
contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection
and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.
The CONTRACTOR will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited
by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment practices when the
contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:  In
all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the CONTRACTOR for
work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of
equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the CONTRACTOR of
the CONTRACTOR’s obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts and
Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

4. Information and Reports:  The CONTRACTOR will provide all information and reports
required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit
access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be
determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain
compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities and instructions.  Where any
information required of a CONTRACTOR is in the exclusive possession of another who fails
or refuses to furnish the information, the CONTRACTOR will so certify to the sponsor or the
Federal Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to
obtain the information.



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-7 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of a CONTRACTOR’s noncompliance with the
non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the sponsor will impose such contract sanctions
as it or the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but
not limited to:

a. Withholding payments to the CONTRACTOR under the contract until the
CONTRACTOR complies; and/or

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions:  The CONTRACTOR will include the provisions of paragraphs
one through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of
equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto.
The CONTRACTOR will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the
sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such
provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the CONTRACTOR
becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of
such direction, the CONTRACTOR may request the sponsor to enter into any litigation to
protect the interests of the sponsor.  In addition, the CONTRACTOR may request the United
States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities 

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR, for itself, its assignees, and successors 
in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “CONTRACTOR”) agrees to comply with the following non-
discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to: 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);

 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of
Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);

 The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 USC
§ 4601) (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired
because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC § 794 et seq.), as amended (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27;

 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC § 6101 et seq.) (prohibits discrimination
on the basis of age);

 Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended
(prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

 The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-209) (broadened the scope, coverage and
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs
or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients
and CONTRACTORs, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);

 Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on
the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems,
places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 USC §§ 12131 – 12189) as
implemented by U.S. Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38;



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-8 

 The Federal Aviation Administration’s Nondiscrimination statute (49 USC § 47123) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

 Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations
and Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against minority populations by
discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human
health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

 Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination
because of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take
reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed.
Reg. at 74087 to 74100);

 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 USC 1681 et seq).

E. CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL

CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued pursuant
to the Clean Air Act (42 USC § 740-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended
(33 USC § 1251-1387). The CONTRACTOR agrees to report any violation to the Owner immediately
upon discovery. The Owner assumes responsibility for notifying the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) and the Federal Aviation Administration.

CONTRACTOR must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceeds $150,000.

F. CONTRACT WORKHOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT REQUIREMENTS

1. Overtime Requirements: No CONTRACTOR or subcontractor contracting for any part of the
contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require
or permit any such laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, in any workweek in which
he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such
laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic
rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

2. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages: In the event of any violation of
the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause, the CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor
responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such CONTRACTOR and
subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the
District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages.
Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic,
including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of
this clause, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or
permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause.

3. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages: The Federal Aviation Administration
(FAA) or the Owner shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized
representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys
payable on account of work performed by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under any such
contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime CONTRACTOR, or any other federally
assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by
the same prime CONTRACTOR, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any
liabilities of such CONTRACTOR or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as
provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this clause.



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-9 

4. Subcontractors: The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses
set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to include these
clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  The prime CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for
compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs
(1) through (4) of this clause.

G. COPELAND “ANTI-KICKBACK” ACT
CONTRACTOR must comply with the requirements of the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18 USC
874 and 40 USC 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulation 29 CFR part 3.
CONTRACTOR and subcontractors are prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed
on the project to give up any part of the compensation to which the employee is entitled.  The
CONTRACTOR and each Subcontractor must submit to the Owner, a weekly statement on the wages
paid to each employee performing on covered work during the prior week. Owner must report any
violations of the Act to the Federal Aviation Administration.

H. DAVIS-BACON REQUIREMENTS

1. Minimum Wages.

(i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work will be paid unconditionally
and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except
such payroll deductions as are permitted by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part
3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalent thereof) due at time of
payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of
Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which
may be alleged to exist between the CONTRACTOR and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of 
the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or 
mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made 
or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or 
programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred 
during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe 
benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to 
skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than 
one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually 
worked therein: Provided that the employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each 
classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional 
classification and wage rates conformed under (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-
1321) shall be posted at all times by the CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors at the site of the work in 
a prominent and accessible place where it can easily be seen by the workers. 

(ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, 
which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be 
classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an 
additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have 
been met: 

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the
wage determination;

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the
wage rates contained in the wage determination.



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-10 

(B) If the CONTRACTOR and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known),
or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including
the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by
the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards
Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210.  The Administrator, or an authorized
representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days
of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day
period that additional time is necessary.

(C) In the event the CONTRACTOR, the laborers, or mechanics to be employed in the classification, or
their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate
(including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer
the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting
officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will
issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the
contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs
(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under
this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics
includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the CONTRACTOR shall either pay
the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly
cash equivalent thereof.

(iv) If the CONTRACTOR does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the CONTRACTOR
may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably
anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program: Provided that the Secretary of
Labor has found, upon the written request of the CONTRACTOR, that the applicable standards of the
Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the CONTRACTOR to set aside in
a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

2. Withholding.

The Federal Aviation Administration or the sponsor shall upon its own action or upon written request of 
an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the 
CONTRACTOR under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime CONTRACTOR, 
or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is 
held by the same prime CONTRACTOR, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be 
considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, 
employed by the CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. 
In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, 
employed or working on the site of work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, the Federal 
Aviation Administration may, after written notice to the CONTRACTOR, Sponsor, Applicant, or Owner, 
take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or 
guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. 

3. Payrolls and Basic Records.

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the CONTRACTOR during the
course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics
working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number
of each such worker; his or her correct classification; hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-11 

contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types 
described in 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act); daily and weekly number of hours worked; deductions 
made; and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that 
the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing 
benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the 
CONTRACTOR shall maintain records that show that the commitment to provide such benefits is 
enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been 
communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and that show the costs anticipated or the 
actual costs incurred in providing such benefits. CONTRACTORs employing apprentices or trainees 
under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs 
and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and 
wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.  

(ii)(A) The CONTRACTOR shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed 
a copy of all payrolls to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency is a party to the contract, but if 
the agency is not such a party, the CONTRACTOR will submit the payrolls to the applicant, Sponsor, or 
Owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Aviation Administration. The payrolls 
submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 
29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on 
weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for 
each employee (e.g. the last four digits of the employee’s social security number). The required weekly 
payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH–347 is available for this 
purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its 
successor site. The prime CONTRACTOR is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all 
subcontractors. CONTRACTORs and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and 
current address of each covered worker and shall provide them upon request to the Federal Aviation 
Administration if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the 
CONTRACTOR will submit them to the applicant, sponsor, or Owner, as the case may be, for 
transmission to the Federal Aviation Administration, the CONTRACTOR, or the Wage and Hour Division 
of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage 
requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime CONTRACTOR to require a subcontractor 
to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime CONTRACTOR for its own records, 
without weekly submission to the sponsoring government agency (or the applicant, Sponsor, or Owner). 

(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the
CONTRACTOR or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons
employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

(1) The payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR §
5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR § 5.5 (a)(3)(i), and that such
information is correct and complete;

(2) Each laborer and mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract
during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or
indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned,
other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations 29 CFR Part 3;

(3) Each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or
cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage
determination incorporated into the contract.



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-12 

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional
Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of Compliance” required by
paragraph (3)(ii)(B) of this section.

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor
to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United
States Code.

(iii) The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (3)(i) of this
section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the sponsor,
the Federal Aviation Administration, or the Department of Labor and shall permit such representatives to
interview employees during working hours on the job. If the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor fails to
submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the
CONTRACTOR, Sponsor, applicant, or Owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the
suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the
required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action
pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work
they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide
apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training
Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency
recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary
employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the
program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State
Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice.
The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be
greater than the ratio permitted to the CONTRACTOR as to the entire work force under the registered
program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise
employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination
for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job
site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable
wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a CONTRACTOR is
performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the
ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman’s hourly rate) specified in the
CONTRACTOR’s or subcontractor’s registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be
paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice’s level of progress,
expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.
Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program.
If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount
of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator
determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be
paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a
State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship
program, the CONTRACTOR will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable
predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the
predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually
registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S.
Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-13 

the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training 
Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for 
the trainee’s level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the 
applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions 
of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the 
full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and 
Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding 
journeyman wage rate on the wage determination that provides for less than full fringe benefits for 
apprentices.  Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in 
a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the 
applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed.  In 
addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered 
program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work 
actually performed.  In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a 
training program, the CONTRACTOR will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the 
applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved. 

(iii) Equal Employment Opportunity.  The utilization of apprentices, trainees, and journeymen under this
part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order
11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

5. Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements.

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are incorporated by 
reference in this contract. 

6. Subcontracts.

The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 
Part 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Aviation Administration may by 
appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in 
any lower tier subcontracts.  The prime CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the compliance by any 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR Part 5.5. 

7. Contract Termination: Debarment.

A breach of the contract clauses in paragraph 1 through 10 of this section may be grounds for termination 
of the contract, and for debarment as a CONTRACTOR and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.

All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 
5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract. 

9. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards.

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general 
disputes clause of this contract.  Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the 
Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause 
include disputes between the CONTRACTOR (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, 
the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives. 

10. Certification of Eligibility.

(i) By entering into this contract, the CONTRACTOR certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any
person or firm who has an interest in the CONTRACTOR’s firm is a person or firm ineligible to be
awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-14 

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a
Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 USC 1001.

I. TEXTING WHEN DRIVING

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, “Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving”, (10/1/2009) and DOT Order 3902.10, “Text Messaging While Driving”, (12/30/2009), the
Federal Aviation Administration encourages recipients of Federal grant funds to adopt and enforce
safety policies that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging
while driving when performing work related to a grant or subgrant.

In support of this initiative, the Owner encourages the CONTRACTOR to promote policies and
initiatives for its employees and other work personnel that decrease crashes by distracted drivers,
including policies that ban text messaging while driving motor vehicles while performing work
activities associated with the project.  The CONTRACTOR must include the substance of this clause
in all sub-tier contracts exceeding $3,500 that involve driving a motor vehicle in performance of work
activities associated with the project.

J. ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS
CONTRACTOR and Subcontractor agree to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to
energy efficiency as contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the
Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 USC 6201et seq).

K. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR agrees as follows:

(1) The CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment,
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identify, or national origin.
Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff, or termination; rates of pay or other forms of
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to
post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be
provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

(2) The CONTRACTOR will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on
behalf of the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

(3) The CONTRACTOR will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has
a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising
the said labor union or workers’ representatives of the CONTRACTOR’s commitments under this
section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants
for employment.

(4) The CONTRACTOR will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(5) The CONTRACTOR will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246
of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-15 

thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and 
the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, 
regulations, and orders. 

(6) In the event of the CONTRACTOR’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this
contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated,
or suspended in whole or in part and the CONTRACTOR may be declared ineligible for further
Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures
authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be
imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by
rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(7) The CONTRACTOR will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph
(1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless
exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each
subcontractor or vendor. The CONTRACTOR will take such action with respect to any subcontract
or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions,
including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a CONTRACTOR
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of
such direction by the administering agency the CONTRACTOR may request the United States to
enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

L. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Bidder or Offeror certifies by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Bidder or
Offeror, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member
of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal
grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance
with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to 
file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more 
than $100,000 for each such failure. 



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-16 

M. PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES

(a) The CONTRACTOR agrees that it does not and will not maintain or provide for its employees any
segregated facilities at any of its establishments, and that it does not and will not permit its
employees to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are
maintained. The CONTRACTOR agrees that a breach of this clause is a violation of the Equal
Employment Opportunity clause in this contract.

(b) “Segregated facilities,” as used in this clause, means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and
wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or
dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation,
and housing facilities provided for employees that are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact
segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin because of written or oral
policies or employee custom. The term does not include separate or single-user rest rooms or
necessary dressing or sleeping areas provided to assure privacy between the sexes.

(c) The CONTRACTOR shall include this clause in every subcontract and purchase order that is subject
to the Equal Employment Opportunity clause of this contract.

N. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT OF 1970

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the
requirements of 29 CFR Part 1910 with the same force and effect as if given in full text.  The employer
must provide a work environment that is free from recognized hazards that may cause death or serious
physical harm to the employee. The employer retains full responsibility to monitor its compliance and
their subcontractor’s compliance with the applicable requirements of the Occupational Safety and
Health Act of 1970 (20 CFR Part 1910).  The employer must address any claims or disputes that pertain
to a referenced requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – Occupational Safety and
Health Administration.

O. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

CONTRACTOR and subcontractor agree to comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal
Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and the regulatory provisions of
40 CFR Part 247.  In the performance of this contract and to the extent practicable, the
CONTRACTOR and subcontractors are to use products containing the highest percentage of
recovered materials for items designated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under 40
CFR Part 247 whenever:

The contract requires procurement of $10,000 or more of a designated item during the fiscal year; 
or 

The CONTRACTOR has procured $10,000 or more of a designated item using Federal funding 
during the previous fiscal year. 

The list of EPA-designated items is available at www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-
guidelines-construction-products. 

Section 6002(c) establishes exceptions to the preference for recovery of EPA-designated products if 
the CONTRACTOR can demonstrate the item is: 

a) Not reasonably available within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract
performance schedule;

b) Fails to meet reasonable contract performance requirements; or

c) Is only available at an unreasonable price.



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-17 

P. CERTIFICATION OF OFFERER/BIDDER REGARDING TAX DELINQUENCY AND
FELONY CONVICTIONS

The applicant must complete the following two certification statements. The applicant must indicate its 
current status as it relates to tax delinquency and felony conviction by inserting a checkmark () in the 
space following the applicable response. The applicant agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from 
this solicitation, it will incorporate this provision for certification in all lower tier subcontracts. 

Certifications 

The applicant represents that it is (  ) is not (  ) a corporation that has any unpaid Federal tax 
liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been 
exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement 
with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability. 

The applicant represents that it is (  ) is not (  ) a corporation that was convicted of a criminal 
violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months. 

Note 

If an applicant responds in the affirmative to either of the above representations, the applicant is ineligible 
to receive an award unless the sponsor has received notification from the agency suspension and 
debarment official (SDO) that the SDO has considered suspension or debarment and determined that 
further action is not required to protect the Government’s interests.  The applicant therefore must provide 
information to the owner about its tax liability or conviction to the Owner, who will then notify the FAA 
Airports District Office, which will then notify the agency’s SDO to facilitate completion of the required 
considerations before award decisions are made. 

Term Definitions 

Felony conviction: Felony conviction means a conviction within the preceding twenty four (24) 
months of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law and includes conviction of an offense 
defined in a section of the U.S. code that specifically classifies the offense as a felony and 
conviction of an offense that is classified as a felony under 18 U.S.C. § 3559. 
Tax Delinquency: A tax delinquency is any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for 
which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not 
being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting 
the tax liability. 

Q. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE (CONSTRUCTION & EQUIPMENT CONTRACTS)

The Owner may terminate this contract in whole or in part at any time by providing written notice to the 
CONTRACTOR.  Such action may be without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy 
of Owner. Upon receipt of a written notice of termination, except as explicitly directed by the Owner, the 
CONTRACTOR shall immediately proceed with the following obligations regardless of any delay in 
determining or adjusting amounts due under this clause:  

1. CONTRACTOR must immediately discontinue work as specified in the written notice.

2. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated under the notice.

3. Discontinue orders for materials and services except as directed by the written notice.

4. Deliver to the Owner all fabricated and partially fabricated parts, completed and partially
completed work, supplies, equipment and materials acquired prior to termination of the work,
and as directed in the written notice.

ahelms
Highlight

ahelms_1
Highlight

ahelms_2
Highlight

ahelms_3
Highlight



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-18 

5. Complete performance of the work not terminated by the notice. 

6. Take action as directed by the Owner to protect and preserve property and work related to this 
contract that Owner will take possession. 

Owner agrees to pay CONTRACTOR for:  

 completed and acceptable work executed in accordance with the contract documents prior to the 
effective date of termination; 

 documented expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing work and 
furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the contract documents in connection with 
uncompleted work; 

 reasonable and substantiated claims, costs, and damages incurred in settlement of terminated 
contracts with Subcontractors and Suppliers; and 

 reasonable and substantiated expenses to the CONTRACTOR directly attributable to Owner’s 
termination action. 

Owner will not pay CONTRACTOR for loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss 
arising out of or resulting from the Owner’s termination action. 

The rights and remedies this clause provides are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by 
law or under this contract. 

R. VETERAN’S PREFERENCE 

In the employment of labor (excluding executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), the 
CONTRACTOR and all sub-tier CONTRACTORs must give preference to covered veterans as 
defined within Title 49 United States Code Section 47112.  Covered veterans include Vietnam-era 
veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, disabled veterans, and small business 
concerns (as defined by 15 USC 632) owned and controlled by disabled veterans.  This preference 
only applies when there are covered veterans readily available and qualified to perform the work to 
which the employment relates. 

XXV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Contract, including the Contract Documents and all other 
documents which are incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the complete and exclusive 
agreement between the County and Contractor.  All prior written and oral communications, 
including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations, are superseded in total by this 
Contract.  If any provision of this agreement is held to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the 
remainder of the provision and/or provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be 
affected, impaired or invalidated. 

XXVI. ATTACHMENTS: All attachments referred to are incorporated and made a part of this agreement. 
Attachments include: 

 
Attachment “A:” COUNTY OF INYO RELEVANT PORTIONS OF REQUEST FOR 

BIDS 
 
Attachment “B:” RESPONSE TO COUNTY OF INYO REQUEST FOR BIDS  
 
Attachment “C:” INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

 

---o0o--- 



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-19 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date first 
written above. 

 
COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR 
 

_________________________ ______________________________  
Rick Pucci, Board Chair  [                                              ], Title   
 
  

APPROVED AS TO FORM   ATTEST: NATE GREENBERG 
AND LEGALITY County Clerk 

  Board of Supervisors 
 

By                                                     By: 
_________________________________ 
Inyo County Counsel 
 
 
APPROVEE AS TO INSURANCE  
REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
By _______________________ 
Inyo County Risk Manager 

  



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-20 

Attachment “A” 

RELEVANT PORTIONS OF REQUEST FOR BID 

All bid documents are incorporated into this contract by reference.



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-21 

Attachment “B” 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR BID 

The Contractor's bid submittal is incorporated into this contract by reference.



RESURFACE TAXIWAY A & ASSOCIATED CONNECTOR TAXIWAYS PROJECT 
 AT THE 

 LONE PINE AIRPORT 
Contract And Bond Forms  

Page C-22 

Attachment “C” 
 

INSURANCE PROVISIONS 



Insurance Requirements for Airport Construction Contracts 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract, and for at least five years 
thereafter, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his 
agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors.  
MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:  

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL):  Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01
covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations ,
bodily injury, property damage, and personal and advertising injury, with no exclusion
for work performed at airport, with limits no less than $10,000,000 per occurrence. If a
general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to
this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice
the required occurrence limit. If CGL policy has exclusion/s for work performed at
airport, then a separate airport liability policy must also be maintained with the same
limits and specifications stated in this paragraph.

2. Automobile Liability:  Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Code
1 (any auto), with limits no less than $5,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and
property damage.

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory
Limits, and Employers’ Liability insurance with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per
accident for bodily injury or disease.

4. Builder’s Risk (Course of Construction) insurance utilizing an “All Risk” (Special
Perils) coverage form, with limits equal to the completed value of the project and no
coinsurance penalty provisions.

5. Surety Bonds as described below.
6. Professional Liability (if Design-Build or Construction Management), with limits no

less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate.
7. Contractor’s Pollution Legal Liability with limits no less than $2,000,000 per

occurrence or claim.
If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown 
above, the Entity requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits 
maintained by the Contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the County. 
Self-Insured Retentions 
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Entity. At the option of the 
Entity, either: the contractor shall cause the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such self-insured 
retentions as respects Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or the 



Contractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the Entity guaranteeing payment of 
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses. The policy 
language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied 
by either the named insured or Inyo County. 
 
Other Insurance Provisions  
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

1. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as 
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of with 
respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such 
work or operations and automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by or on behalf of 
the Contractor. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement 
to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10, CG 11 85 or both 
CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions 
used).  

2. For any claims related to this project, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and 
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo County, its officers, 
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall 
not contribute with it.  

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall provide that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County. 

Builder’s Risk (Course of Construction) Insurance  
Contractor may submit evidence of Builder’s Risk insurance in the form of Course of 
Construction coverage. Such coverage shall name Inyo County as a loss payee as their interest 
may appear. 
If the project does not involve new or major reconstruction, at the option of the Entity, an 
Installation Floater may be acceptable. For such projects, a Property Installation Floater shall be 
obtained that provides for the improvement, remodel, modification, alteration, conversion or 
adjustment to existing buildings, structures, processes, machinery and equipment.  The Property 
Installation Floater shall provide property damage coverage for any building, structure, 
machinery or equipment damaged, impaired, broken, or destroyed during the performance of the 
Work, including during transit, installation, and testing at the Entity’s site. 
Claims Made Policies  
If any coverage required is written on a claims-made coverage form:  

1. The retroactive date must be shown, and this date must be before the execution date of 
the contract or the beginning of contract work. 

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least 
five (5) years after completion of contract work.  



3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 
policy form with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective, or start of work date, 
the Contractor must purchase extended reporting period coverage for a minimum of five 
(5) years after completion of contract work.  

4. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to the Entity for review.  
5. If the services involve lead-based paint or asbestos identification/remediation, the 

Contractors Pollution Liability policy shall not contain lead-based paint or asbestos 
exclusions. If the services involve mold identification/remediation, the Contractors 
Pollution Liability policy shall not contain a mold exclusion, and the definition of 
Pollution shall include microbial matter, including mold.  

Acceptability of Insurers  
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of no less than A: VII, 
unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
Waiver of Subrogation  
Contractor hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer of Contractor 
may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain 
any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers’ 
Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Inyo County 
for all work performed by the Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.  
Verification of Coverage  
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all 
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable insurance language effecting 
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the 
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure 
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s 
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies 
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements, required by these specifications, at 
any time.  
Subcontractors  
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured 
on insurance required from subcontractors. For CGL coverage, subcontractors shall provide 
coverage with a form at least as broad as CG 20 38 04 13. 
Surety Bonds  
Contractor shall provide the following Surety Bonds: 

1. Bid bond 
2. Performance bond 
3. Payment bond 
4. Maintenance bond 

The Payment Bond and the Performance Bond shall be in a sum equal to the contract price. If the 
Performance Bond provides for a one-year warranty a separate Maintenance Bond is not 
necessary. If the warranty period specified in the contract is for longer than one year a 
Maintenance Bond equal to 10% of the contract price is required. Bonds shall be duly executed 



by a responsible corporate surety, authorized to issue such bonds in the State of California and 
secured through an authorized agent with an office in California. 
Special Risks or Circumstances 
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances.     
 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  1  

 

U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Aviation 
Administration 

Airports Division 
Western-Pacific Region 
California 

Los Angeles Airports District 
Office: 
777 S Aviation Blvd, Ste 150 
El Segundo, CA 90245 

{{DateTime_es_:signer1:calc(now()):format(date," mmmm d, yyyy")}} 

Michael Errante 
Director of Public Works 
Inyo County 
703 Airport Road 
Bishop CA 93514 

Dear Mr. Errante:  

The Grant Offer for Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Project No. 3-06-0126-018-2023 at Lone 
Pine/Death Valley Airport is attached for execution. This letter outlines the steps you must take to 
properly enter into this agreement and provides other useful information. Please read the conditions, 
special conditions, and assurances that comprise the grant offer carefully. 

You may not make any modification to the text, terms or conditions of the grant offer. 

Steps You Must Take to Enter Into Agreement. 

To properly enter into this agreement, you must do the following:  

1. The governing body must give authority to execute the grant to the individual(s) signing the 
grant, i.e., the person signing the document must be the sponsor’s authorized representative(s) 
(hereinafter “authorized representative”). 

2. The authorized representative must execute the grant by adding their electronic signature to 
the appropriate certificate at the end of the agreement. 

3. Once the authorized representative has electronically signed the grant, the sponsor‘s attorney(s) 
will automatically receive an email notification. 

4. On the same day or after the authorized representative has signed the grant, the sponsor‘s 
attorney(s) will add their electronic signature to the appropriate certificate at the end of the 
agreement. 

5. If there are co-sponsors, the authorized representative(s) and sponsor‘s attorney(s) must follow 
the above procedures to fully execute the grant and finalize the process. Signatures must be 
obtained and finalized no later than August 23, 2023.  

6. The fully executed grant will then be automatically sent to all parties as an email attachment. 

Payment. Subject to the requirements in 2 CFR § 200.305 (Federal Payment), each payment request for 
reimbursement under this grant must be made electronically via the Delphi eInvoicing System. Please 
see the attached Grant Agreement for more information regarding the use of this System.  

Project Timing. The terms and conditions of this agreement require you to complete the project without 
undue delay and no later than the Period of Performance end date (1,460 days from the grant execution 

August 9, 2023



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  2  

date). We will be monitoring your progress to ensure proper stewardship of these Federal funds. We 
expect you to submit payment requests for reimbursement of allowable incurred project expenses 
consistent with project progress. Your grant may be placed in “inactive” status if you do not make draws 
on a regular basis, which will affect your ability to receive future grant offers. Costs incurred after the 
Period of Performance ends are generally not allowable and will be rejected unless authorized by the 
FAA in advance.  

Reporting. Until the grant is completed and closed, you are responsible for submitting formal reports as 
follows:  

• For all grants, you must submit by December 31st of each year this grant is open:  

1. A signed/dated SF-270 (Request for Advance or Reimbursement for non-construction 
projects) or SF-271 or equivalent (Outlay Report and Request for Reimbursement for 
Construction Programs), and  

2. An SF-425 (Federal Financial Report). 

• For non-construction projects, you must submit FAA Form 5100-140, Performance Report within 
30 days of the end of the Federal fiscal year. 

• For construction projects, you must submit FAA Form 5370-1, Construction Progress and 
Inspection Report, within 30 days of the end of each Federal fiscal quarter. 

Audit Requirements. As a condition of receiving Federal assistance under this award, you must comply 
with audit requirements as established under 2 CFR Part 200. Subpart F requires non-Federal entities 
that expend $750,000 or more in Federal awards to conduct a single or program specific audit for that 
year. Note that this includes Federal expenditures made under other Federal-assistance programs. 
Please take appropriate and necessary action to ensure your organization will comply with applicable 
audit requirements and standards. 

Closeout. Once the project(s) is completed and all costs are determined, we ask that you work with your 
FAA contact indicated below to close the project without delay and submit the necessary final closeout 
documentation as required by your Region/Airports District Office. 

FAA Contact Information. Saba Khan, (424) 405-7274, saba.khan@faa.gov is the assigned program 
manager for this grant and is readily available to assist you and your designated representative with the 
requirements stated herein. 

We sincerely value your cooperation in these efforts and look forward to working with you to complete 
this important project. 

Sincerely, 

{{Sig_es_:signer1:                        signature}}  

Nardos Wills 
Manager  
Los Angeles Airports District Office 

https://www.faa.gov/documentLibrary/media/Form/faa-form-5100-140-perfomance-report-2020.pdf
https://www.faa.gov/documentLibrary/media/Form/faa-form-5370-1-construction-progress-inspection-report.pdf
https://www.faa.gov/documentLibrary/media/Form/faa-form-5370-1-construction-progress-inspection-report.pdf
https://secure.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAATIGRQYm2udxO9lyeI0VZ7Z9xJgCR59t7


 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  3  

  

 
U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Aviation 
Administration 

FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FY 2023 Airport Improvement Program (AIP) 

GRANT AGREEMENT 

Part I - Offer 

 
Federal Award Offer Date {{DateTime_es_:signer1:calc(now()):format(date," mmmm d, yyyy")}} 

    
Airport/Planning Area Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport 
    
FY2023 AIP Grant Number 3-06-0126-018-2023 
    
Unique Entity Identifier HLYHNFDK5XE6 
    
TO: County of Inyo 

  (herein called the "Sponsor")  

    
FROM: The United States of America (acting through the Federal Aviation Administration, herein 

called the "FAA") 
  

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has submitted to the FAA a Project Application dated May 12, 2023, for a grant 
of Federal funds for a project at or associated with the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport, which is included 
as part of this Grant Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, the FAA has approved a project for the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport (herein called the 
“Project”) consisting of the following:  

Seal Taxiway A(35 feet x 4100 feet) Pavement Surface, Design & Construction  

which is more fully described in the Project Application. 

NOW THEREFORE, Pursuant to and for the purpose of carrying out the Title 49, United States Code 
(U.S.C.), Chapters 471 and 475; 49 U.S.C. §§ 40101 et seq., and 48103; FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018 
(Public Law Number 115-254); the Department of Transportation Appropriations Act, 2021 (Public Law 
116-260, Division L); the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2022 (Public Law 117-103); Consolidated 
Appropriations Act, 2023 (Public Law 117-328); and the representations contained in the Project 

August 9, 2023



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  4  

Application; and in consideration of: (a) the Sponsor’s adoption and ratification of the Grant Assurances 
attached hereto; (b) the Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer; and (c) the benefits to accrue to the United 
States and the public from the accomplishment of the Project and compliance with the Grant Assurance 
and conditions as herein provided;  

THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE UNITED STATES, HEREBY 
OFFERS AND AGREES to pay ninety (90) percent of the allowable costs incurred accomplishing the 
Project as the United States share of the Project.  

Assistance Listings Number (Formerly CFDA Number): 20.106  

This Offer is made on and SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  

CONDITIONS 

1. Maximum Obligation. The maximum obligation of the United States payable under this Offer is 
$224,394.  

The following amounts represent a breakdown of the maximum obligation for the purpose of 
establishing allowable amounts for any future grant amendment, which may increase the 
foregoing maximum obligation of the United States under the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 47108(b):  
$ 0 for planning;  
$ 224,394 airport development or noise program implementation; and, 
$ 0 for land acquisition. 

2. Grant Performance. This Grant Agreement is subject to the following Federal award 
requirements:  

a. Period of Performance: 

1. Shall start on the date the Sponsor formally accepts this Agreement and is the 
date signed by the last Sponsor signatory to the Agreement. The end date of the 
Period of Performance is 4 years (1,460 calendar days) from the date of 
acceptance. The Period of Performance end date shall not affect, relieve, or 
reduce Sponsor obligations and assurances that extend beyond the closeout of 
this Grant Agreement. 

2. Means the total estimated time interval between the start of an initial Federal 
award and the planned end date, which may include one or more funded 
portions or budget periods. (2 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) § 200.1). 

b. Budget Period: 

1. For this Grant is 4 years (1,460 calendar days) and follows the same start and 
end date as the Period of Performance provided in paragraph (2)(a)(1). Pursuant 
to 2 CFR § 200.403(h), the Sponsor may charge to the Grant only allowable costs 
incurred during the Budget Period.  

2. Means the time interval from the start date of a funded portion of an award to 
the end date of that funded portion during which the Sponsor is authorized to 
expend the funds awarded, including any funds carried forward or other 
revisions pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.308. 

c. Close Out and Termination 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  5  

1. Unless the FAA authorizes a written extension, the Sponsor must submit all 
Grant closeout documentation and liquidate (pay-off) all obligations incurred 
under this award no later than 120 calendar days after the end date of the 
period of performance. If the Sponsor does not submit all required closeout 
documentation within this time period, the FAA will proceed to close out the 
grant within one year of the Period of Performance end date with the 
information available at the end of 120 days. (2 CFR § 200.344). 

2. The FAA may terminate this Grant, in whole or in part, in accordance with the 
conditions set forth in 2 CFR § 200.340, or other Federal regulatory or statutory 
authorities as applicable. 

3. Ineligible or Unallowable Costs. The Sponsor must not include any costs in the project that the 
FAA has determined to be ineligible or unallowable.  

4. Indirect Costs - Sponsor. The Sponsor may charge indirect costs under this award by applying 
the indirect cost rate identified in the project application as accepted by the FAA, to allowable 
costs for Sponsor direct salaries and wages.  

5. Determining the Final Federal Share of Costs. The United States’ share of allowable project 
costs will be made in accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 47109, the regulations, policies, and 
procedures of the Secretary of Transportation (“Secretary”), and any superseding legislation. 
Final determination of the United States’ share will be based upon the final audit of the total 
amount of allowable project costs and settlement will be made for any upward or downward 
adjustments to the Federal share of costs.  

6. Completing the Project Without Delay and in Conformance with Requirements. The Sponsor 
must carry out and complete the project without undue delays and in accordance with this 
Agreement, 49 U.S.C. Chapters 471 and 475, the regulations, and the Secretary’s policies and 
procedures. Per 2 CFR § 200.308, the Sponsor agrees to report and request prior FAA approval 
for any disengagement from performing the project that exceeds three months or a 25 percent 
reduction in time devoted to the project. The report must include a reason for the project 
stoppage. The Sponsor also agrees to comply with the grant assurances, which are part of this 
Agreement.  

7. Amendments or Withdrawals before Grant Acceptance. The FAA reserves the right to amend 
or withdraw this offer at any time prior to its acceptance by the Sponsor.  

8. Offer Expiration Date. This offer will expire and the United States will not be obligated to pay 
any part of the costs of the project unless this offer has been accepted by the Sponsor on or 
before August 23, 2023, or such subsequent date as may be prescribed in writing by the FAA.  

9. Improper Use of Federal Funds. The Sponsor must take all steps, including litigation if 
necessary, to recover Federal funds spent fraudulently, wastefully, or in violation of Federal 
antitrust statutes, or misused in any other manner for any project upon which Federal funds 
have been expended. For the purposes of this Grant Agreement, the term “Federal funds” 
means funds however used or dispersed by the Sponsor, that were originally paid pursuant to 
this or any other Federal grant agreement. The Sponsor must obtain the approval of the 
Secretary as to any determination of the amount of the Federal share of such funds. The 
Sponsor must return the recovered Federal share, including funds recovered by settlement, 
order, or judgment, to the Secretary. The Sponsor must furnish to the Secretary, upon request, 
all documents and records pertaining to the determination of the amount of the Federal share 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  6  

or to any settlement, litigation, negotiation, or other efforts taken to recover such funds. All 
settlements or other final positions of the Sponsor, in court or otherwise, involving the recovery 
of such Federal share require advance approval by the Secretary.  

10. United States Not Liable for Damage or Injury. The United States is not responsible or liable for 
damage to property or injury to persons which may arise from, or be incident to, compliance 
with this Grant Agreement.  

11. System for Award Management (SAM) Registration and Unique Entity Identifier (UEI).  

a. Requirement for System for Award Management (SAM): Unless the Sponsor is 
exempted from this requirement under 2 CFR § 25.110, the Sponsor must maintain the 
currency of its information in the SAM until the Sponsor submits the final financial 
report required under this Grant, or receives the final payment, whichever is later. This 
requires that the Sponsor review and update the information at least annually after the 
initial registration and more frequently if required by changes in information or another 
award term. Additional information about registration procedures may be found at the 
SAM website (currently at http://www.sam.gov). 

b. Unique entity identifier (UEI) means a 12-character alpha-numeric value used to identify 
a specific commercial, nonprofit or governmental entity. A UEI may be obtained from 
SAM.gov at https://sam.gov/content/entity-registration. 

12. Electronic Grant Payment(s). Unless otherwise directed by the FAA, the Sponsor must make 
each payment request under this Agreement electronically via the Delphi eInvoicing System for 
Department of Transportation (DOT) Financial Assistance Awardees.  

13. Informal Letter Amendment of AIP Projects. If, during the life of the project, the FAA 
determines that the maximum grant obligation of the United States exceeds the expected needs 
of the Sponsor by $25,000 or five percent (5%), whichever is greater, the FAA can issue a letter 
amendment to the Sponsor unilaterally reducing the maximum obligation.  

The FAA can also issue a letter to the Sponsor increasing the maximum obligation if there is an 
overrun in the total actual eligible and allowable project costs to cover the amount of the 
overrun provided it will not exceed the statutory limitations for grant amendments. The FAA’s 
authority to increase the maximum obligation does not apply to the “planning” component of 
Condition No. 1, Maximum Obligation. 

The FAA can also issue an informal letter amendment that modifies the grant description to 
correct administrative errors or to delete work items if the FAA finds it advantageous and in the 
best interests of the United States.  

An informal letter amendment has the same force and effect as a formal grant amendment.  

14. Air and Water Quality. The Sponsor is required to comply with all applicable air and water 
quality standards for all projects in this grant. If the Sponsor fails to comply with this 
requirement, the FAA may suspend, cancel, or terminate this Grant Agreement.  

15. Financial Reporting and Payment Requirements. The Sponsor will comply with all Federal 
financial reporting requirements and payment requirements, including submittal of timely and 
accurate reports.  

16. Buy American. Unless otherwise approved in advance by the FAA, in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 
§ 50101, the Sponsor will not acquire or permit any contractor or subcontractor to acquire any 

http://www.sam.gov/
https://sam.gov/content/entity-registration


 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  7  

steel or manufactured products produced outside the United States to be used for any project 
for which funds are provided under this Grant. The Sponsor will include a provision 
implementing Buy American in every contract and subcontract awarded under this Grant.  

17. Build America, Buy America. The Sponsor must comply with the requirements under the Build 
America, Buy America Act (Public Law 117-58). 

18. Maximum Obligation Increase. In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 47108(b)(3), as amended, the 
maximum obligation of the United States, as stated in Condition No. 1, Maximum Obligation, of 
this Grant Offer:  

a. May not be increased for a planning project; 

b. May be increased by not more than 15 percent for development projects if funds are 
available; 

c. May be increased by not more than the greater of the following for a land project, if 
funds are available: 

1. 15 percent; or 

2. 25 percent of the total increase in allowable project costs attributable to 
acquiring an interest in the land. 

If the Sponsor requests an increase, any eligible increase in funding will be subject to the United 
States Government share as provided in 49 U.S.C. § 47110, or other superseding legislation if 
applicable, for the fiscal year appropriation with which the increase is funded. The FAA is not 
responsible for the same Federal share provided herein for any amount increased over the 
initial grant amount. The FAA may adjust the Federal share as applicable through an informal 
letter of amendment. 

19. Audits for Sponsors.  

PUBLIC SPONSORS. The Sponsor must provide for a Single Audit or program-specific audit in 
accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. The Sponsor must submit the audit reporting package to the 
Federal Audit Clearinghouse on the Federal Audit Clearinghouse’s Internet Data Entry System at 
http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/. Upon request of the FAA, the Sponsor shall provide one 
copy of the completed audit to the FAA. Sponsors that expend less than $750,000 in Federal 
awards and are exempt from Federal audit requirements must make records available for 
review or audit by the appropriate Federal agency officials, State, and Government 
Accountability Office. The FAA and other appropriate Federal agencies may request additional 
information to meet all Federal audit requirements.  

20. Suspension or Debarment. When entering into a “covered transaction” as defined by 2 CFR § 
180.200, the Sponsor must:  

a. Verify the non-Federal entity is eligible to participate in this Federal program by:  

1. Checking the excluded parties list system (EPLS) as maintained within the 
System for Award Management (SAM) to determine if the non-Federal entity is 
excluded or disqualified; or 

2. Collecting a certification statement from the non-Federal entity attesting they 
are not excluded or disqualified from participating; or 

http://harvester.census.gov/facweb/


 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  8  

3. Adding a clause or condition to covered transactions attesting the individual or 
firm are not excluded or disqualified from participating. 

b. Require prime contractors to comply with 2 CFR § 180.330 when entering into lower-tier 
transactions with their contractors and sub-contractors. 

c. Immediately disclose in writing to the FAA whenever (1) the Sponsor learns they have 
entered into a covered transaction with an ineligible entity or (2) the Public Sponsor 
suspends or debars a contractor, person, or entity. 

21. Ban on Texting While Driving.  

a. In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on Reducing Text 
Messaging While Driving, October 1, 2009, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging 
While Driving, December 30, 2009, the Sponsor is encouraged to:  

1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by 
distracted drivers including policies to ban text messaging while driving when 
performing any work for, or on behalf of, the Federal government, including 
work relating to a grant or subgrant. 

2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of 
the business, such as:  

i. Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing 
programs to prohibit text messaging while driving; and 

ii. Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the 
safety risks associated with texting while driving. 

b. The Sponsor must insert the substance of this clause on banning texting while driving in 
all subgrants, contracts, and subcontracts funded with this Grant. 

22. Trafficking in Persons.  

a. Posting of contact information. 

1. The Sponsor must post the contact information of the national human 
trafficking hotline (including options to reach out to the hotline such as through 
phone, text, or TTY) in all public airport restrooms.  

b. Provisions applicable to a recipient that is a private entity. 

1. You as the recipient, your employees, subrecipients under this Grant, and 
subrecipients’ employees may not:  

i. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of 
time that the Grant and applicable conditions are in effect; 

ii. Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the Grant 
and applicable conditions are in effect; or 

iii. Use forced labor in the performance of the Grant or any subgrants 
under this Grant. 

2. We as the Federal awarding agency, may unilaterally terminate this Grant, 
without penalty, if you or a subrecipient that is a private entity –  



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  9  

i. Is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph (a) of this 
Grant Condition; or 

ii. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to 
terminate the Grant to have violated a prohibition in paragraph (a) of 
this Grant Condition through conduct that is either –  

 a) Associated with performance under this Grant; or 

 b) Imputed to you or the subrecipient using the standards and due 
process for imputing the conduct of an individual to an organization that 
are provided in 2 CFR Part 180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on 
Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as 
implemented by our agency at 2 CFR Part 1200. 

c. Provision applicable to a recipient other than a private entity. We as the Federal 
awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this Grant, without penalty, if a 
subrecipient that is a private entity –  

1. Is determined to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph (a) of this 
Grant Condition; or 

2. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to 
terminate the Grant to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph (a) 
of this Grant Condition through conduct that is either –  

i. Associated with performance under this Grant; or 

ii. Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due process for 
imputing the conduct of an individual to an organization that are 
provided in 2 CFR Part 180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on 
Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as 
implemented by our agency at 2 CFR Part 1200. 

d. Provisions applicable to any recipient.  

1. You must inform us immediately of any information you receive from any 
source alleging a violation of a prohibition in paragraph (a) of this Grant 
Condition. 

2. Our right to terminate unilaterally that is described in paragraph (a) or (b) of this 
Grant Condition:  

i. Implements section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 
2000 (TVPA), as amended [22 U.S.C. § 7104(g)], and 

ii. Is in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are available 
to us under this Grant. 

3. You must include the requirements of paragraph (a) of this Grant Condition in 
any subgrant you make to a private entity. 

e. Definitions. For purposes of this Grant Condition:  

1. “Employee” means either:  



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  10  

i. An individual employed by you or a subrecipient who is engaged in the 
performance of the project or program under this Grant; or  

ii. Another person engaged in the performance of the project or program 
under this Grant and not compensated by you including, but not limited 
to, a volunteer or individual whose services are contributed by a third 
party as an in-kind contribution toward cost sharing or matching 
requirements.  

2. “Force labor” means labor obtained by any of the following methods: the 
recruitment, harboring, transportation, provision, or obtaining of a person for 
labor or services, through the use of force, fraud, or coercion for the purpose of 
subjection to involuntary servitude, peonage, debt bondage, or slavery.  

3. “Private entity”:  

i. Means any entity other than a State, local government, Indian tribe, or 
foreign public entity, as those terms are defined in 2 CFR § 175.25. 

ii. Includes:  

 a) A nonprofit organization, including any nonprofit institute of higher 
education, hospital, or tribal organization other than one included in the 
definition of Indian tribe at 2 CFR § 175.25(b).  

 b) A for-profit organization. 

4. “Severe forms of trafficking in persons,” “commercial sex act,” and “coercion” 
have the meanings given at section 103 of the TVPA, as amended (22 U.S.C. § 
7102).  

23. AIP Funded Work Included in a PFC Application. Within 90 days of acceptance of this Grant 
Agreement, the Sponsor must submit to the FAA an amendment to any approved Passenger 
Facility Charge (PFC) application that contains an approved PFC project also covered under this 
Grant Agreement as described in the project application. The airport sponsor may not make any 
expenditure under this Grant Agreement until project work addressed under this Grant 
Agreement is removed from an approved PFC application by amendment.  

24. Exhibit “A” Property Map. The Exhibit “A” Property Map dated October 2017, is incorporated 
herein by reference or is submitted with the project application and made part of this Grant 
Agreement.  

25. Employee Protection from Reprisal.  

a. Prohibition of Reprisals  

1. In accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, an employee of a Sponsor, grantee, subgrantee, 
contractor, or subcontractor may not be discharged, demoted, or otherwise 
discriminated against as a reprisal for disclosing to a person or body described in 
sub-paragraph (a)(2) below, information that the employee reasonably believes is 
evidence of:  

i. Gross mismanagement of a Federal grant; 
ii. Gross waste of Federal funds; 
iii. An abuse of authority relating to implementation or use of Federal funds; 
iv. A substantial and specific danger to public health or safety; or 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  11  

v. A violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a Federal grant. 

2. Persons and bodies covered. The persons and bodies to which a disclosure by an 
employee is covered are as follows: 

i. A member of Congress or a representative of a committee of Congress; 
ii. An Inspector General; 
iii. The Government Accountability Office; 
iv. A Federal employee responsible for contract or grant oversight or management 

at the relevant agency; 
v. A court or grand jury; 
vi. A management official or other employee of the Sponsor, contractor, or 

subcontractor who has the responsibility to investigate, discover, or address 
misconduct; or 

vii. An authorized official of the Department of Justice or other law enforcement 
agency. 

b. Investigation of Complaints.  

1. Submission of Complaint. A person who believes that they have been subjected to a 
reprisal prohibited by paragraph (a) of this Condition may submit a complaint 
regarding the reprisal to the Office of Inspector General (OIG) for the U.S. 
Department of Transportation. 

2. Time Limitation for Submittal of a Complaint. A complaint may not be brought under 
this subsection more than three years after the date on which the alleged reprisal 
took place. 

3. Required Actions of the Inspector General. Actions, limitations, and exceptions of the 
Inspector General’s office are established under 41 U.S.C. § 4712(b). 

c. Remedy and Enforcement Authority.  

1. Assumption of Rights to Civil Remedy. Upon receipt of an explanation of a decision 
not to conduct or continue an investigation by the OIG, the person submitting a 
complaint assumes the right to a civil remedy under 41 U.S.C. § 4712(c)(2). 

26. Prohibited Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services and Equipment. The Sponsor 
agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to use and procurement of 
certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment in compliance with 
the National Defense Authorization Act [Public Law 115-232 § 889(f)(1)] and 2 CFR § 200.216. 

27. Critical Infrastructure Security and Resilience. The Sponsor acknowledges that it has considered 
and addressed physical and cybersecurity and resilience in their project planning, design, and 
oversight, as determined by the DOT and the Department of Homeland Security (DHS). For 
airports that do not have specific DOT or DHS cybersecurity requirements, the FAA encourages 
the voluntary adoption of the cybersecurity requirements from the Transportation Security 
Administration and Federal Security Director identified for security risk Category X airports. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

28. Lighting. The Sponsor must operate and maintain the lighting system during the useful life of 
the system in accordance with applicable FAA standards.  



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  12  

29. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)/Airport Concessions Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise (ACDBE) Program. The Sponsor understands and agrees that the FAA will not make 
nor be obligated to make any payments on this Grant until the Sponsor has received from the 
FAA Office of Civil Rights approval of its DBE Program (reflecting compliance with 49 CFR Part 
26), and, if applicable its ACDBE program (reflecting compliance with 49 CFR Part 23).  

30. Pavement Maintenance Management Program. The Sponsor agrees that it will implement an 
effective airport pavement maintenance management program as required by Airport Sponsor 
Grant Assurance 11, Pavement Preventive Maintenance-Management, which is codified at 49 
U.S.C. § 47105(e). The Sponsor agrees that it will use the program for the useful life of any 
pavement constructed, reconstructed, or repaired with Federal financial assistance at the 
airport. The Sponsor further agrees that the program will:  

a. Follow the current version of FAA Advisory Circular 150/5380-6, “Guidelines and 
Procedures for Maintenance of Airport Pavements,” for specific guidelines and 
procedures for maintaining airport pavements, establishing an effective maintenance 
program, specific types of distress and its probable cause, inspection guidelines, and 
recommended methods of repair; 

b. Detail the procedures to be followed to assure that proper pavement maintenance, 
both preventive and repair, is performed; 

c. Include a Pavement Inventory, Inspection Schedule, Record Keeping, Information 
Retrieval, and Reference, meeting the following requirements: 

1. Pavement Inventory. The following must be depicted in an appropriate form 
and level of detail: 

i. Location of all runways, taxiways, and aprons; 

ii. Dimensions; 

iii. Type of pavement; and, 

iv. Year of construction or most recent major rehabilitation. 

2. Inspection Schedule. 

i. Detailed Inspection. A detailed inspection must be performed at least 
once a year. If a history of recorded pavement deterioration is available, 
i.e., Pavement Condition Index (PCI) survey as set forth in the current 
version of Advisory Circular 150/5380-6, the frequency of inspections 
may be extended to three years. 

ii. Drive-By Inspection. A drive-by inspection must be performed a 
minimum of once per month to detect unexpected changes in the 
pavement condition. For drive-by inspections, the date of inspection 
and any maintenance performed must be recorded. 

3. Record Keeping. Complete information on the findings of all detailed inspections 
and on the maintenance performed must be recorded and kept on file for a 
minimum of five years. The type of distress, location, and remedial action, 
scheduled or performed, must be documented. The minimum information is: 

i. Inspection date; 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  13  

ii. Location; 

iii. Distress types; and 

iv. Maintenance scheduled or performed. 

4. Information Retrieval System. The Sponsor must be able to retrieve the 
information and records produced by the pavement survey to provide a report 
to the FAA as may be required. 

31. Maintenance Project Life. The Sponsor agrees that pavement maintenance is limited to those 
aircraft pavements that are in sufficiently sound condition that they do not warrant more 
extensive work, such as reconstruction or overlays in the immediate or near future. The Sponsor 
further agrees that AIP funding for the pavements maintained under this project will not be 
requested for more substantial type rehabilitation (more substantial than periodic maintenance) 
for a 5-year period following the completion of this project unless the FAA determines that the 
rehabilitation or reconstruction is required for safety reasons. 

32. Plans and Specifications Approval Based Upon Certification. The FAA and the Sponsor agree 
that the FAA’s approval of the Sponsor’s Plans and Specification is based primarily upon the 
Sponsor’s certification to carry out the project in accordance with policies, standards, and 
specifications approved by the FAA. The Sponsor understands that:  

a. The Sponsor’s certification does not relieve the Sponsor of the requirement to obtain 
prior FAA approval for modifications to published FAA airport development grant 
standards or to notify the FAA of any limitations to competition within the project; 

b. The FAA’s acceptance of a Sponsor’s certification does not limit the FAA from reviewing 
appropriate project documentation for the purpose of validating the certification 
statements; and 

c. If the FAA determines that the Sponsor has not complied with their certification 
statements, the FAA will review the associated project costs to determine whether such 
costs are allowable under this Grant. 

33. Consultant Contract and Cost Analysis. The Sponsor understands and agrees that no 
reimbursement will be made on the consultant contract portion of this Grant until the FAA has 
received the consultant contract, the Sponsor’s analysis of costs, and the independent fee 
estimate.  

34. Buy American Executive Orders. The Sponsor agrees to abide by applicable Executive Orders in 
effect at the time this Grant Agreement is executed, including Executive Order 14005, Ensuring 
the Future Is Made in All of America by All of America’s Workers.  



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  14  

The Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer and ratification and adoption of the Project Application 
incorporated herein shall be evidenced by execution of this instrument by the Sponsor, as hereinafter 
provided, and this Offer and Acceptance shall comprise a Grant Agreement, constituting the contractual 
obligations and rights of the United States and the Sponsor with respect to the accomplishment of the 
Project and compliance with the Grant Assurances, terms, and conditions as provided herein. Such Grant 
Agreement shall become effective upon the Sponsor’s acceptance of this Offer.  

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have 
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using 
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic 
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or 
sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and 
withdraw your consent at any time.  

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.1 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION 

{{Sig_es_:signer1:signature:dimension(height=12mm, width=70mm}} 
(Signature) 

{{N_es_:signer1:fullname                            }} 
(Typed Name) 

{{*Ttl_es_:signer1:title                                 }} 
(Title of FAA Official) 

 

 

1 Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.S.C. 
§ 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both. 

Nardos Wills

Acting Manager, LA Airports District Office

https://secure.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAATIGRQYm2udxO9lyeI0VZ7Z9xJgCR59t7


 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  15  

  

Part II - Acceptance 

The Sponsor does hereby ratify and adopt all assurances, statements, representations, warranties, 
covenants, and agreements contained in the Project Application and incorporated materials referred to 
in the foregoing Offer, and does hereby accept this Offer and by such acceptance agrees to comply with 
all of the Grant Assurances, terms, and conditions in this Offer and in the Project Application.  

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have 
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using 
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic 
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or 
sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and 
withdraw your consent at any time.  

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.2 

Dated  {{DateTime_es_:signer2:calc(now()):format(date," mmmm d, yyyy")}}  

 

 
County of Inyo 

 (Name of Sponsor) 

 
{{Sig_es_:signer2:signature:dimension(height=12mm, width=70mm}} 

 (Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official) 

By: {{N_es_:signer2:fullname                            }} 
 (Typed Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official) 

Title: {{*Ttl_es_:signer2:title                                 }} 
 (Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official) 

 

 

2 Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.S.C. 
§ 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both. 

Michael Errante (Aug 9, 2023 15:31 PDT)
Michael Errante

August 9, 2023

Michael Errante

Public Works Director

https://inyocounty.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAATIGRQYm2udxO9lyeI0VZ7Z9xJgCR59t7


 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
  16  

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR’S ATTORNEY 

I, {{N_es_:signer3:                            fullname}}, acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify: 

That in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Grant Agreement under the 
laws of the State of __California__. Further, I have examined the foregoing Grant Agreement and the 
actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor’s official representative, who has been duly authorized to 
execute this Grant Agreement, which is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the laws 
of the said State; and Title 49, United States Code (U.S.C.), Chapters 471 and 475; 49 U.S.C. §§ 40101 et 
seq., and 48103; FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018 (Public Law Number 115-254); the Department of 
Transportation Appropriations Act, 2021 (Public Law 116-260, Division L); the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act, 2022 (Public Law 117-103); Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2023 (Public Law 117-
328); and the representations contained in the Project Application. In addition, for grants involving 
projects to be carried out on property not owned by the Sponsor, there are no legal impediments that 
will prevent full performance by the Sponsor. Further, it is my opinion that the said Grant Agreement 
constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor in accordance with the terms thereof. 

Please read the following information: By signing this document, you are agreeing that you have 
reviewed the following consumer disclosure information and consent to transact business using 
electronic communications, to receive notices and disclosures electronically, and to utilize electronic 
signatures in lieu of using paper documents. You are not required to receive notices and disclosures or 
sign documents electronically. If you prefer not to do so, you may request to receive paper copies and 
withdraw your consent at any time.  

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.3 

Dated at  {{DateTime_es_:signer3:calc(now()):format(date," mmmm d, yyyy")}}  

 By: {{Sig_es_:signer3:signature:dimension(height=12mm, width=70mm}} 
 (Signature of Sponsor’s Attorney) 

 

 

3 Knowingly and willfully providing false information to the Federal government is a violation of 18 U.S.C. 
§ 1001 (False Statements) and could subject you to fines, imprisonment, or both. 

Grace Chuchla (Aug 9, 2023 16:38 PDT)
Grace Chuchla

Grace Chuchla

August 9, 2023

https://inyocounty.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAATIGRQYm2udxO9lyeI0VZ7Z9xJgCR59t7


 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 1 of 21 

ASSURANCES 
AIRPORT SPONSORS 

A. General. 

1. These assurances shall be complied with in the performance of grant 
agreements for airport development, airport planning, and noise compatibility 
program grants for airport sponsors. 

2. These assurances are required to be submitted as part of the project 
application by sponsors requesting funds under the provisions of Title 49, 
U.S.C., subtitle VII, as amended. As used herein, the term "public agency 
sponsor" means a public agency with control of a public-use airport; the term 
"private sponsor" means a private owner of a public-use airport; and the term 
"sponsor" includes both public agency sponsors and private sponsors. 

3. Upon acceptance of this grant offer by the sponsor, these assurances are 
incorporated in and become part of this Grant Agreement. 

B. Duration and Applicability. 

1. Airport development or Noise Compatibility Program Projects Undertaken by 
a Public Agency Sponsor. 

The terms, conditions and assurances of this Grant Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect throughout the useful life of the facilities developed or 
equipment acquired for an airport development or noise compatibility program 
project, or throughout the useful life of the project items installed within a 
facility under a noise compatibility program project, but in any event not to 
exceed twenty (20) years from the date of acceptance of a grant offer of 
Federal funds for the project. However, there shall be no limit on the duration 
of the assurances regarding Exclusive Rights and Airport Revenue so long as the 
airport is used as an airport. There shall be no limit on the duration of the 
terms, conditions, and assurances with respect to real property acquired with 
federal funds. Furthermore, the duration of the Civil Rights assurance shall be 
specified in the assurances.  

2. Airport Development or Noise Compatibility Projects Undertaken by a Private 
Sponsor. 

The preceding paragraph (1) also applies to a private sponsor except that the 
useful life of project items installed within a facility or the useful life of the 
facilities developed or equipment acquired under an airport development or 
noise compatibility program project shall be no less than ten (10) years from 
the date of acceptance of Federal aid for the project.  

3. Airport Planning Undertaken by a Sponsor. 

Unless otherwise specified in this Grant Agreement, only Assurances 1, 2, 3, 5, 
6, 13, 18, 23, 25, 30, 32, 33, 34, and 37 in Section C apply to planning projects. 
The terms, conditions, and assurances of this Grant Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect during the life of the project; there shall be no limit on the 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 2 of 21 

duration of the assurances regarding Exclusive Rights and Airport Revenue so 
long as the airport is used as an airport.  

C. Sponsor Certification. 

The sponsor hereby assures and certifies, with respect to this grant that: 

1. General Federal Requirements 

It will comply with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, executive orders, policies, 
guidelines, and requirements as they relate to the application, acceptance, and use of 
Federal funds for this Grant including but not limited to the following:  

FEDERAL LEGISLATION 

a. 49, U.S.C., subtitle VII, as amended. 

b. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended — 40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3144, 3146, and 3147, et seq.1 

c. Federal Fair Labor Standards Act - 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq. 

d. Hatch Act – 5 U.S.C. § 1501, et seq.2 

e. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 42 U.S.C. § 
4601, et seq.1, 2 

f. National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 – Section 106 - 54 U.S.C. § 306108.1.1 

g. Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 - 54 U.S.C. § 312501, et seq.1 

h. Native Americans Grave Repatriation Act - 25 U.S.C. Section § 3001, et seq. 

i. Clean Air Act, P.L. 90-148, as amended - 42 U.S.C. § 7401, et seq. 

j. Coastal Zone Management Act, P.L. 92-583, as amended - 16 U.S.C. § 1451, et seq. 

k. Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 – Section 102(a) - 42 U.S.C. § 4012a.1 

l. 49 U.S.C. § 303, (formerly known as Section 4(f)). 

m. Rehabilitation Act of 1973 - 29 U.S.C. § 794. 

n. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin). 

o. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability). 

p. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 - 42 U.S.C. § 6101, et seq. 

q. American Indian Religious Freedom Act, P.L. 95-341, as amended. 

r. Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended - 42 U.S.C. § 4151, et seq.1 

s. Powerplant and Industrial Fuel Use Act of 1978 – Section 403 - 42 U.S.C. § 8373.1 

t. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act - 40 U.S.C. § 3701, et seq.1 

u. Copeland Anti-kickback Act - 18 U.S.C. § 874.1 

v. National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 - 42 U.S.C. § 4321, et seq.1 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 3 of 21 

w. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, P.L. 90-542, as amended – 16 U.S.C. § 1271, et seq. 

x. Single Audit Act of 1984 - 31 U.S.C. § 7501, et seq.2 

y. Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 - 41 U.S.C. §§ 8101 through 8105. 

z. The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, as amended (P.L. 109-282, as 
amended by section 6202 of P.L. 110-252). 

aa. Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, P.L. 100-259. 

bb. Build America, Buy America Act, P.L. 117-58, Title IX. 

EXECUTIVE ORDERS 

a. Executive Order 11246 – Equal Employment Opportunity1 

b. Executive Order 11990 – Protection of Wetlands 

c. Executive Order 11998 – Flood Plain Management 

d. Executive Order 12372 – Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs 

e. Executive Order 12699 – Seismic Safety of Federal and Federally Assisted New Building 
Construction1 

f. Executive Order 12898 – Environmental Justice 

g. Executive Order 13166 – Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency 

h. Executive Order 13985 – Executive Order on Advancing Racial Equity and Support for 
Underserved Communities Through the Federal Government 

i. Executive Order 13988 – Preventing and Combating Discrimination on the Basis of Gender 
Identity or Sexual Orientation 

j. Executive Order 14005 – Ensuring the Future is Made in all of America by All of America’s 
Workers 

k. Executive Order 14008 – Tackling the Climate Crisis at Home and Abroad 

FEDERAL REGULATIONS 

a. 2 CFR Part 180 – OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension 
(Nonprocurement). 

b. 2 CFR Part 200 – Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards.4, 5 

c. 2 CFR Part 1200 – Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment. 

d. 14 CFR Part 13 – Investigative and Enforcement Procedures. 

e. 14 CFR Part 16 – Rules of Practice For Federally-Assisted Airport Enforcement Proceedings. 

f. 14 CFR Part 150 – Airport Noise Compatibility Planning. 

g. 28 CFR Part 35 – Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government 
Services. 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 4 of 21 

h. 28 CFR § 50.3 – U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for the Enforcement of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964. 

i. 29 CFR Part 1 – Procedures for Predetermination of Wage Rates.1 

j. 29 CFR Part 3 – Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in 
Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States.1 

k. 29 CFR Part 5 – Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed 
and Assisted Construction (Also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction 
Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act).1 

l. 41 CFR Part 60 – Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment 
Opportunity, Department of Labor (Federal and Federally-assisted contracting requirements).1 

m. 49 CFR Part 20 – New Restrictions on Lobbying. 

n. 49 CFR Part 21 – Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of 
Transportation - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

o. 49 CFR Part 23 – Participation by Disadvantage Business Enterprise in Airport Concessions. 

p. 49 CFR Part 24 – Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition for Federal and 
Federally-Assisted Programs.1 2 

q. 49 CFR Part 26 – Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of 
Transportation Financial Assistance Programs. 

r. 49 CFR Part 27 – Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in Programs or Activities Receiving 
Federal Financial Assistance.1 

s. 49 CFR Part 28 – Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs or 
Activities Conducted by the Department of Transportation. 

t. 49 CFR Part 30 – Denial of Public Works Contracts to Suppliers of Goods and Services of 
Countries That Deny Procurement Market Access to U.S. Contractors. 

u. 49 CFR Part 32 – Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Financial 
Assistance). 

v. 49 CFR Part 37 – Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA). 

w. 49 CFR Part 38 – Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for 
Transportation Vehicles. 

x. 49 CFR Part 41 – Seismic Safety. 

FOOTNOTES TO ASSURANCE (C)(1) 
1 These laws do not apply to airport planning sponsors. 
2 These laws do not apply to private sponsors. 
3 2 CFR Part 200 contains requirements for State and Local Governments receiving Federal 

assistance. Any requirement levied upon State and Local Governments by this regulation shall 
apply where applicable to private sponsors receiving Federal assistance under Title 49, United 
States Code. 

4 Cost principles established in 2 CFR part 200 subpart E must be used as guidelines for 
determining the eligibility of specific types of expenses. 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 5 of 21 

5 Audit requirements established in 2 CFR part 200 subpart F are the guidelines for audits. 

SPECIFIC ASSURANCES 

Specific assurances required to be included in grant agreements by any of the above laws, regulations or 
circulars are incorporated by reference in this grant agreement. 

2. Responsibility and Authority of the Sponsor. 

a. Public Agency Sponsor:  

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant, and to finance and carry out the 
proposed project; that a resolution, motion or similar action has been duly 
adopted or passed as an official act of the applicant's governing body 
authorizing the filing of the application, including all understandings and 
assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing the person 
identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in connection 
with the application and to provide such additional information as may be 
required. 

b. Private Sponsor:  

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant and to finance and carry out the 
proposed project and comply with all terms, conditions, and assurances of this 
Grant Agreement. It shall designate an official representative and shall in 
writing direct and authorize that person to file this application, including all 
understandings and assurances contained therein; to act in connection with 
this application; and to provide such additional information as may be 
required. 

3. Sponsor Fund Availability. 

It has sufficient funds available for that portion of the project costs which are not to be paid 
by the United States. It has sufficient funds available to assure operation and maintenance 
of items funded under this Grant Agreement which it will own or control. 

4. Good Title. 

a. It, a public agency or the Federal government, holds good title, satisfactory to 
the Secretary, to the landing area of the airport or site thereof, or will give 
assurance satisfactory to the Secretary that good title will be acquired. 

b. For noise compatibility program projects to be carried out on the property of 
the sponsor, it holds good title satisfactory to the Secretary to that portion of 
the property upon which Federal funds will be expended or will give assurance 
to the Secretary that good title will be obtained. 

5. Preserving Rights and Powers. 

a. It will not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of 
the rights and powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms, conditions, 
and assurances in this Grant Agreement without the written approval of the 
Secretary, and will act promptly to acquire, extinguish or modify any 
outstanding rights or claims of right of others which would interfere with such 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 6 of 21 

performance by the sponsor. This shall be done in a manner acceptable to the 
Secretary. 

b. Subject to the FAA Act of 2018, Public Law 115-254, Section 163, it will not sell, 
lease, encumber, or otherwise transfer or dispose of any part of its title or 
other interests in the property shown on Exhibit A to this application or, for a 
noise compatibility program project, that portion of the property upon which 
Federal funds have been expended, for the duration of the terms, conditions, 
and assurances in this Grant Agreement without approval by the Secretary. If 
the transferee is found by the Secretary to be eligible under Title 49, United 
States Code, to assume the obligations of this Grant Agreement and to have 
the power, authority, and financial resources to carry out all such obligations, 
the sponsor shall insert in the contract or document transferring or disposing of 
the sponsor's interest, and make binding upon the transferee all of the terms, 
conditions, and assurances contained in this Grant Agreement. 

c. For all noise compatibility program projects which are to be carried out by 
another unit of local government or are on property owned by a unit of local 
government other than the sponsor, it will enter into an agreement with that 
government. Except as otherwise specified by the Secretary, that agreement 
shall obligate that government to the same terms, conditions, and assurances 
that would be applicable to it if it applied directly to the FAA for a grant to 
undertake the noise compatibility program project. That agreement and 
changes thereto must be satisfactory to the Secretary. It will take steps to 
enforce this agreement against the local government if there is substantial 
non-compliance with the terms of the agreement. 

d. For noise compatibility program projects to be carried out on privately owned 
property, it will enter into an agreement with the owner of that property which 
includes provisions specified by the Secretary. It will take steps to enforce this 
agreement against the property owner whenever there is substantial non-
compliance with the terms of the agreement. 

e. If the sponsor is a private sponsor, it will take steps satisfactory to the 
Secretary to ensure that the airport will continue to function as a public-use 
airport in accordance with these assurances for the duration of these 
assurances. 

f. If an arrangement is made for management and operation of the airport by any 
agency or person other than the sponsor or an employee of the sponsor, the 
sponsor will reserve sufficient rights and authority to ensure that the airport 
will be operated and maintained in accordance with Title 49, United States 
Code, the regulations and the terms, conditions and assurances in this Grant 
Agreement and shall ensure that such arrangement also requires compliance 
therewith. 

g. Sponsors of commercial service airports will not permit or enter into any 
arrangement that results in permission for the owner or tenant of a property 
used as a residence, or zoned for residential use, to taxi an aircraft between 
that property and any location on airport. Sponsors of general aviation airports 
entering into any arrangement that results in permission for the owner of 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 7 of 21 

residential real property adjacent to or near the airport must comply with the 
requirements of Sec. 136 of Public Law 112-95 and the sponsor assurances. 

6. Consistency with Local Plans. 

The project is reasonably consistent with plans (existing at the time of submission of this 
application) of public agencies that are authorized by the State in which the project is 
located to plan for the development of the area surrounding the airport. 

7. Consideration of Local Interest. 

It has given fair consideration to the interest of communities in or near where the project 
may be located. 

8. Consultation with Users. 

In making a decision to undertake any airport development project under Title 49, United 
States Code, it has undertaken reasonable consultations with affected parties using the 
airport at which project is proposed. 

9. Public Hearings. 

In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway, or a major runway 
extension, it has afforded the opportunity for public hearings for the purpose of considering 
the economic, social, and environmental effects of the airport or runway location and its 
consistency with goals and objectives of such planning as has been carried out by the 
community and it shall, when requested by the Secretary, submit a copy of the transcript of 
such hearings to the Secretary. Further, for such projects, it has on its management board 
either voting representation from the communities where the project is located or has 
advised the communities that they have the right to petition the Secretary concerning a 
proposed project. 

10. Metropolitan Planning Organization. 

In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway, or a major runway 
extension at a medium or large hub airport, the sponsor has made available to and has 
provided upon request to the metropolitan planning organization in the area in which the 
airport is located, if any, a copy of the proposed amendment to the airport layout plan to 
depict the project and a copy of any airport master plan in which the project is described or 
depicted. 

11. Pavement Preventive Maintenance-Management. 

With respect to a project approved after January 1, 1995, for the replacement or 
reconstruction of pavement at the airport, it assures or certifies that it has implemented an 
effective airport pavement maintenance-management program and it assures that it will 
use such program for the useful life of any pavement constructed, reconstructed or 
repaired with Federal financial assistance at the airport. It will provide such reports on 
pavement condition and pavement management programs as the Secretary determines 
may be useful. 

12. Terminal Development Prerequisites. 

For projects which include terminal development at a public use airport, as defined in Title 
49, it has, on the date of submittal of the project grant application, all the safety equipment 
required for certification of such airport under 49 U.S.C. § 44706, and all the security 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 8 of 21 

equipment required by rule or regulation, and has provided for access to the passenger 
enplaning and deplaning area of such airport to passengers enplaning and deplaning from 
aircraft other than air carrier aircraft. 

13. Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requirements. 

a. It shall keep all project accounts and records which fully disclose the amount 
and disposition by the recipient of the proceeds of this Grant, the total cost of 
the project in connection with which this Grant is given or used, and the 
amount or nature of that portion of the cost of the project supplied by other 
sources, and such other financial records pertinent to the project. The accounts 
and records shall be kept in accordance with an accounting system that will 
facilitate an effective audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984. 

b. It shall make available to the Secretary and the Comptroller General of the 
United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, for the purpose 
of audit and examination, any books, documents, papers, and records of the 
recipient that are pertinent to this Grant. The Secretary may require that an 
appropriate audit be conducted by a recipient. In any case in which an 
independent audit is made of the accounts of a sponsor relating to the 
disposition of the proceeds of a Grant or relating to the project in connection 
with which this Grant was given or used, it shall file a certified copy of such 
audit with the Comptroller General of the United States not later than six (6) 
months following the close of the fiscal year for which the audit was made. 

14. Minimum Wage Rates. 

It shall include, in all contracts in excess of $2,000 for work on any projects funded under 
this Grant Agreement which involve labor, provisions establishing minimum rates of wages, 
to be predetermined by the Secretary of Labor under 40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3144, 3146, and 
3147, Public Building, Property, and Works), which contractors shall pay to skilled and 
unskilled labor, and such minimum rates shall be stated in the invitation for bids and shall 
be included in proposals or bids for the work. 

15. Veteran's Preference. 

It shall include in all contracts for work on any project funded under this Grant Agreement 
which involve labor, such provisions as are necessary to insure that, in the employment of 
labor (except in executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), preference shall be 
given to Vietnam era veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, 
disabled veterans, and small business concerns owned and controlled by disabled veterans 
as defined in 49 U.S.C. § 47112. However, this preference shall apply only where the 
individuals are available and qualified to perform the work to which the employment 
relates. 

16. Conformity to Plans and Specifications. 

It will execute the project subject to plans, specifications, and schedules approved by the 
Secretary. Such plans, specifications, and schedules shall be submitted to the Secretary 
prior to commencement of site preparation, construction, or other performance under this 
Grant Agreement, and, upon approval of the Secretary, shall be incorporated into this Grant 
Agreement. Any modification to the approved plans, specifications, and schedules shall also 
be subject to approval of the Secretary, and incorporated into this Grant Agreement. 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 9 of 21 

17. Construction Inspection and Approval. 

It will provide and maintain competent technical supervision at the construction site 
throughout the project to assure that the work conforms to the plans, specifications, and 
schedules approved by the Secretary for the project. It shall subject the construction work 
on any project contained in an approved project application to inspection and approval by 
the Secretary and such work shall be in accordance with regulations and procedures 
prescribed by the Secretary. Such regulations and procedures shall require such cost and 
progress reporting by the sponsor or sponsors of such project as the Secretary shall deem 
necessary. 

18. Planning Projects. 

In carrying out planning projects: 

a. It will execute the project in accordance with the approved program narrative 
contained in the project application or with the modifications similarly 
approved. 

b. It will furnish the Secretary with such periodic reports as required pertaining to 
the planning project and planning work activities. 

c. It will include in all published material prepared in connection with the 
planning project a notice that the material was prepared under a grant 
provided by the United States. 

d. It will make such material available for examination by the public, and agrees 
that no material prepared with funds under this project shall be subject to 
copyright in the United States or any other country. 

e. It will give the Secretary unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, 
and otherwise use any of the material prepared in connection with this grant. 

f. It will grant the Secretary the right to disapprove the sponsor's employment of 
specific consultants and their subcontractors to do all or any part of this project 
as well as the right to disapprove the proposed scope and cost of professional 
services. 

g. It will grant the Secretary the right to disapprove the use of the sponsor's 
employees to do all or any part of the project. 

h. It understands and agrees that the Secretary's approval of this project grant or 
the Secretary's approval of any planning material developed as part of this 
grant does not constitute or imply any assurance or commitment on the part of 
the Secretary to approve any pending or future application for a Federal airport 
grant. 

19. Operation and Maintenance. 

a. The airport and all facilities which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users 
of the airport, other than facilities owned or controlled by the United States, 
shall be operated at all times in a safe and serviceable condition and in 
accordance with the minimum standards as may be required or prescribed by 
applicable Federal, State and local agencies for maintenance and operation. It 
will not cause or permit any activity or action thereon which would interfere 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 10 of 21 

with its use for airport purposes. It will suitably operate and maintain the 
airport and all facilities thereon or connected therewith, with due regard to 
climatic and flood conditions. Any proposal to temporarily close the airport for 
non-aeronautical purposes must first be approved by the Secretary. In 
furtherance of this assurance, the sponsor will have in effect arrangements for: 

1. Operating the airport's aeronautical facilities whenever required; 

2. Promptly marking and lighting hazards resulting from airport 
conditions, including temporary conditions; and 

3. Promptly notifying pilots of any condition affecting aeronautical 
use of the airport. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to 
require that the airport be operated for aeronautical use during 
temporary periods when snow, flood, or other climatic conditions 
interfere with such operation and maintenance. Further, nothing 
herein shall be construed as requiring the maintenance, repair, 
restoration, or replacement of any structure or facility which is 
substantially damaged or destroyed due to an act of God or other 
condition or circumstance beyond the control of the sponsor. 

b. It will suitably operate and maintain noise compatibility program items that it 
owns or controls upon which Federal funds have been expended. 

20. Hazard Removal and Mitigation. 

It will take appropriate action to assure that such terminal airspace as is required to protect 
instrument and visual operations to the airport (including established minimum flight 
altitudes) will be adequately cleared and protected by removing, lowering, relocating, 
marking, or lighting or otherwise mitigating existing airport hazards and by preventing the 
establishment or creation of future airport hazards. 

21. Compatible Land Use. 

It will take appropriate action, to the extent reasonable, including the adoption of zoning 
laws, to restrict the use of land adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of the airport to 
activities and purposes compatible with normal airport operations, including landing and 
takeoff of aircraft. In addition, if the project is for noise compatibility program 
implementation, it will not cause or permit any change in land use, within its jurisdiction, 
that will reduce its compatibility, with respect to the airport, of the noise compatibility 
program measures upon which Federal funds have been expended. 

22. Economic Nondiscrimination. 

a. It will make the airport available as an airport for public use on reasonable 
terms and without unjust discrimination to all types, kinds and classes of 
aeronautical activities, including commercial aeronautical activities offering 
services to the public at the airport. 

b. In any agreement, contract, lease, or other arrangement under which a right or 
privilege at the airport is granted to any person, firm, or corporation to conduct 
or to engage in any aeronautical activity for furnishing services to the public at 
the airport, the sponsor will insert and enforce provisions requiring the 
contractor to:  



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 11 of 21 

1.     Furnish said services on a reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, 
basis to all users thereof, and 

2.     Charge reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, prices for each unit or 
service, provided that the contractor may be allowed to make reasonable 
and nondiscriminatory discounts, rebates, or other similar types of price 
reductions to volume purchasers. 

c. Each fixed-based operator at the airport shall be subject to the same rates, 
fees, rentals, and other charges as are uniformly applicable to all other fixed-
based operators making the same or similar uses of such airport and utilizing 
the same or similar facilities. 

d. Each air carrier using such airport shall have the right to service itself or to use 
any fixed-based operator that is authorized or permitted by the airport to serve 
any air carrier at such airport. 

e. Each air carrier using such airport (whether as a tenant, non-tenant, or 
subtenant of another air carrier tenant) shall be subject to such 
nondiscriminatory and substantially comparable rules, regulations, conditions, 
rates, fees, rentals, and other charges with respect to facilities directly and 
substantially related to providing air transportation as are applicable to all such 
air carriers which make similar use of such airport and utilize similar facilities, 
subject to reasonable classifications such as tenants or non-tenants and 
signatory carriers and non-signatory carriers. Classification or status as tenant 
or signatory shall not be unreasonably withheld by any airport provided an air 
carrier assumes obligations substantially similar to those already imposed on 
air carriers in such classification or status. 

f. It will not exercise or grant any right or privilege which operates to prevent any 
person, firm, or corporation operating aircraft on the airport from performing 
any services on its own aircraft with its own employees (including, but not 
limited to maintenance, repair, and fueling) that it may choose to perform. 

g. In the event the sponsor itself exercises any of the rights and privileges 
referred to in this assurance, the services involved will be provided on the 
same conditions as would apply to the furnishing of such services by 
commercial aeronautical service providers authorized by the sponsor under 
these provisions. 

h. The sponsor may establish such reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory, 
conditions to be met by all users of the airport as may be necessary for the safe 
and efficient operation of the airport. 

i. The sponsor may prohibit or limit any given type, kind or class of aeronautical 
use of the airport if such action is necessary for the safe operation of the 
airport or necessary to serve the civil aviation needs of the public. 

23. Exclusive Rights. 

It will permit no exclusive right for the use of the airport by any person providing, or 
intending to provide, aeronautical services to the public. For purposes of this paragraph, the 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 12 of 21 

providing of the services at an airport by a single fixed-based operator shall not be 
construed as an exclusive right if both of the following apply: 

a. It would be unreasonably costly, burdensome, or impractical for more than one 
fixed-based operator to provide such services, and 

b. If allowing more than one fixed-based operator to provide such services would 
require the reduction of space leased pursuant to an existing agreement 
between such single fixed-based operator and such airport. It further agrees 
that it will not, either directly or indirectly, grant or permit any person, firm, or 
corporation, the exclusive right at the airport to conduct any aeronautical 
activities, including, but not limited to charter flights, pilot training, aircraft 
rental and sightseeing, aerial photography, crop dusting, aerial advertising and 
surveying, air carrier operations, aircraft sales and services, sale of aviation 
petroleum products whether or not conducted in conjunction with other 
aeronautical activity, repair and maintenance of aircraft, sale of aircraft parts, 
and any other activities which because of their direct relationship to the 
operation of aircraft can be regarded as an aeronautical activity, and that it will 
terminate any exclusive right to conduct an aeronautical activity now existing 
at such an airport before the grant of any assistance under Title 49, United 
States Code. 

24. Fee and Rental Structure. 

It will maintain a fee and rental structure for the facilities and services at the airport which 
will make the airport as self-sustaining as possible under the circumstances existing at the 
particular airport, taking into account such factors as the volume of traffic and economy of 
collection. No part of the Federal share of an airport development, airport planning or noise 
compatibility project for which a Grant is made under Title 49, United States Code, the 
Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, the Federal Airport Act or the Airport and 
Airway Development Act of 1970 shall be included in the rate basis in establishing fees, 
rates, and charges for users of that airport. 

25. Airport Revenues. 

a. All revenues generated by the airport and any local taxes on aviation fuel 
established after December 30, 1987, will be expended by it for the capital or 
operating costs of the airport; the local airport system; or other local facilities 
which are owned or operated by the owner or operator of the airport and 
which are directly and substantially related to the actual air transportation of 
passengers or property; or for noise mitigation purposes on or off the airport. 
The following exceptions apply to this paragraph: 

1. If covenants or assurances in debt obligations issued before 
September 3, 1982, by the owner or operator of the airport, or 
provisions enacted before September 3, 1982, in governing 
statutes controlling the owner or operator's financing, provide for 
the use of the revenues from any of the airport owner or 
operator's facilities, including the airport, to support not only the 
airport but also the airport owner or operator's general debt 
obligations or other facilities, then this limitation on the use of all 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 13 of 21 

revenues generated by the airport (and, in the case of a public 
airport, local taxes on aviation fuel) shall not apply. 

2. If the Secretary approves the sale of a privately owned airport to a 
public sponsor and provides funding for any portion of the public 
sponsor’s acquisition of land, this limitation on the use of all 
revenues generated by the sale shall not apply to certain proceeds 
from the sale. This is conditioned on repayment to the Secretary 
by the private owner of an amount equal to the remaining 
unamortized portion (amortized over a 20-year period) of any 
airport improvement grant made to the private owner for any 
purpose other than land acquisition on or after October 1, 1996, 
plus an amount equal to the federal share of the current fair 
market value of any land acquired with an airport improvement 
grant made to that airport on or after October 1, 1996. 

3. Certain revenue derived from or generated by mineral extraction, 
production, lease, or other means at a general aviation airport (as 
defined at 49 U.S.C. § 47102), if the FAA determines the airport 
sponsor meets the requirements set forth in Section 813 of Public 
Law 112-95 

b. As part of the annual audit required under the Single Audit Act of 1984, the 
sponsor will direct that the audit will review, and the resulting audit report will 
provide an opinion concerning, the use of airport revenue and taxes in 
paragraph (a), and indicating whether funds paid or transferred to the owner 
or operator are paid or transferred in a manner consistent with Title 49, United 
States Code and any other applicable provision of law, including any regulation 
promulgated by the Secretary or Administrator. 

c. Any civil penalties or other sanctions will be imposed for violation of this 
assurance in accordance with the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 47107. 

26. Reports and Inspections. 

It will: 

a. submit to the Secretary such annual or special financial and operations reports 
as the Secretary may reasonably request and make such reports available to 
the public; make available to the public at reasonable times and places a report 
of the airport budget in a format prescribed by the Secretary; 

b. for airport development projects, make the airport and all airport records and 
documents affecting the airport, including deeds, leases, operation and use 
agreements, regulations and other instruments, available for inspection by any 
duly authorized agent of the Secretary upon reasonable request; 

c. for noise compatibility program projects, make records and documents relating 
to the project and continued compliance with the terms, conditions, and 
assurances of this Grant Agreement including deeds, leases, agreements, 
regulations, and other instruments, available for inspection by any duly 
authorized agent of the Secretary upon reasonable request; and 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 14 of 21 

d. in a format and time prescribed by the Secretary, provide to the Secretary and 
make available to the public following each of its fiscal years, an annual report 
listing in detail: 

1. all amounts paid by the airport to any other unit of government 
and the purposes for which each such payment was made; and 

2. all services and property provided by the airport to other units of 
government and the amount of compensation received for 
provision of each such service and property. 

27. Use by Government Aircraft. 

It will make available all of the facilities of the airport developed with Federal financial 
assistance and all those usable for landing and takeoff of aircraft to the United States for 
use by Government aircraft in common with other aircraft at all times without charge, 
except, if the use by Government aircraft is substantial, charge may be made for a 
reasonable share, proportional to such use, for the cost of operating and maintaining the 
facilities used. Unless otherwise determined by the Secretary, or otherwise agreed to by the 
sponsor and the using agency, substantial use of an airport by Government aircraft will be 
considered to exist when operations of such aircraft are in excess of those which, in the 
opinion of the Secretary, would unduly interfere with use of the landing areas by other 
authorized aircraft, or during any calendar month that: 

a. Five (5) or more Government aircraft are regularly based at the airport or on 
land adjacent thereto; or 

b. The total number of movements (counting each landing as a movement) of 
Government aircraft is 300 or more, or the gross accumulative weight of 
Government aircraft using the airport (the total movement of Government 
aircraft multiplied by gross weights of such aircraft) is in excess of five million 
pounds. 

28. Land for Federal Facilities. 

It will furnish without cost to the Federal Government for use in connection with any air 
traffic control or air navigation activities, or weather-reporting and communication 
activities related to air traffic control, any areas of land or water, or estate therein as the 
Secretary considers necessary or desirable for construction, operation, and maintenance at 
Federal expense of space or facilities for such purposes. Such areas or any portion thereof 
will be made available as provided herein within four months after receipt of a written 
request from the Secretary. 

29. Airport Layout Plan. 

a. Subject to the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018, Public Law 115-254, Section 
163, it will keep up to date at all times an airport layout plan of the airport 
showing:  

1. boundaries of the airport and all proposed additions thereto, 
together with the boundaries of all offsite areas owned or 
controlled by the sponsor for airport purposes and proposed 
additions thereto; 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 15 of 21 

2. the location and nature of all existing and proposed airport 
facilities and structures (such as runways, taxiways, aprons, 
terminal buildings, hangars and roads), including all proposed 
extensions and reductions of existing airport facilities; 

3. the location of all existing and proposed non-aviation areas and of 
all existing improvements thereon; and 

4. all proposed and existing access points used to taxi aircraft across 
the airport’s property boundary. 

Such airport layout plans and each amendment, revision, or modification 
thereof, shall be subject to the approval of the Secretary which approval shall 
be evidenced by the signature of a duly authorized representative of the 
Secretary on the face of the airport layout plan. The sponsor will not make or 
permit any changes or alterations in the airport or any of its facilities which are 
not in conformity with the airport layout plan as approved by the Secretary and 
which might, in the opinion of the Secretary, adversely affect the safety, utility 
or efficiency of the airport. 

b. Subject to the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018, Public Law 115-254, Section 
163, if a change or alteration in the airport or the facilities is made which the 
Secretary determines adversely affects the safety, utility, or efficiency of any 
federally owned, leased, or funded property on or off the airport and which is 
not in conformity with the airport layout plan as approved by the Secretary, the 
owner or operator will, if requested, by the Secretary:  

1. eliminate such adverse effect in a manner approved by the 
Secretary; or  

2. bear all costs of relocating such property (or replacement thereof) 
to a site acceptable to the Secretary and all costs of restoring such 
property (or replacement thereof) to the level of safety, utility, 
efficiency, and cost of operation existing before the unapproved 
change in the airport or its facilities except in the case of a 
relocation or replacement of an existing airport facility due to a 
change in the Secretary’s design standards beyond the control of 
the airport sponsor. 

30. Civil Rights. 

It will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that no person in the United States 
shall, on the grounds of race, color, and national origin (including limited English 
proficiency) in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 
Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4); creed and sex (including sexual orientation and 
gender identity) per 49 U.S.C. § 47123 and related requirements; age per the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 and related requirements; or disability per the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 and related requirements, be excluded from participation in, be 
denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in any program and 
activity conducted with, or benefiting from, funds received from this Grant. 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 16 of 21 

a. Using the definitions of activity, facility, and program as found and defined in 
49 CFR §§ 21.23(b) and 21.23(e), the sponsor will facilitate all programs, 
operate all facilities, or conduct all programs in compliance with all non-
discrimination requirements imposed by or pursuant to these assurances. 

b. Applicability 

1. Programs and Activities. If the sponsor has received a grant (or 
other federal assistance) for any of the sponsor’s program or 
activities, these requirements extend to all of the sponsor’s 
programs and activities. 

2. Facilities. Where it receives a grant or other federal financial 
assistance to construct, expand, renovate, remodel, alter, or 
acquire a facility, or part of a facility, the assurance extends to the 
entire facility and facilities operated in connection therewith. 

3. Real Property. Where the sponsor receives a grant or other 
Federal financial assistance in the form of, or for the acquisition of 
real property or an interest in real property, the assurance will 
extend to rights to space on, over, or under such property. 

c. Duration. 

The sponsor agrees that it is obligated to this assurance for the period during 
which Federal financial assistance is extended to the program, except where 
the Federal financial assistance is to provide, or is in the form of, personal 
property, or real property, or interest therein, or structures or improvements 
thereon, in which case the assurance obligates the sponsor, or any transferee 
for the longer of the following periods: 

1. So long as the airport is used as an airport, or for another purpose 
involving the provision of similar services or benefits; or 

2. So long as the sponsor retains ownership or possession of the 
property. 

d. Required Solicitation Language. It will include the following notification in all 
solicitations for bids, Requests For Proposals for work, or material under this 
Grant Agreement and in all proposals for agreements, including airport 
concessions, regardless of funding source: 

“The (County of Inyo), in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the 
Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders or offerors that it will affirmatively 
ensure that for any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, 
[select businesses, or disadvantaged business enterprises or airport concession 
disadvantaged business enterprises] will be afforded full and fair opportunity 
to submit bids in response to this invitation and no businesses will be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, national origin (including 
limited English proficiency), creed, sex (including sexual orientation and gender 
identity), age, or disability in consideration for an award.” 

e. Required Contract Provisions. 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 17 of 21 

1. It will insert the non-discrimination contract clauses requiring 
compliance with the acts and regulations relative to non-
discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of 
Transportation (DOT), and incorporating the acts and regulations 
into the contracts by reference in every contract or agreement 
subject to the non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of 
the DOT acts and regulations. 

2. It will include a list of the pertinent non-discrimination authorities 
in every contract that is subject to the non-discrimination acts and 
regulations. 

3. It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses as a covenant 
running with the land, in any deed from the United States effecting 
or recording a transfer of real property, structures, use, or 
improvements thereon or interest therein to a sponsor. 

4. It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses prohibiting 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin (including 
limited English proficiency), creed, sex (including sexual 
orientation and gender identity), age, or disability as a covenant 
running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, license, permits, 
or similar instruments entered into by the sponsor with other 
parties: 

a. For the subsequent transfer of real property acquired 
or improved under the applicable activity, project, or 
program; and 

b. For the construction or use of, or access to, space on, 
over, or under real property acquired or improved 
under the applicable activity, project, or program. 

f. It will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found 
by the Secretary to give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-
recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, 
successors in interest, and other participants of Federal financial assistance 
under such program will comply with all requirements imposed or pursuant to 
the acts, the regulations, and this assurance. 

g. It agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with 
regard to any matter arising under the acts, the regulations, and this assurance. 

31. Disposal of Land. 

a. For land purchased under a grant for airport noise compatibility purposes, 
including land serving as a noise buffer, it will dispose of the land, when the 
land is no longer needed for such purposes, at fair market value, at the earliest 
practicable time. That portion of the proceeds of such disposition which is 
proportionate to the United States' share of acquisition of such land will be, at 
the discretion of the Secretary, (1) reinvested in another project at the airport, 
or (2) transferred to another eligible airport as prescribed by the Secretary. The 
Secretary shall give preference to the following, in descending order:  



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 18 of 21 

1. Reinvestment in an approved noise compatibility project;  

2. Reinvestment in an approved project that is eligible for grant 
funding under 49 U.S.C. § 47117(e); 

3. Reinvestment in an approved airport development project that is 
eligible for grant funding under 49 U.S.C. §§ 47114, 47115, or 
47117 

4. Transfer to an eligible sponsor of another public airport to be 
reinvested in an approved noise compatibility project at that 
airport; or 

5. Payment to the Secretary for deposit in the Airport and Airway 
Trust Fund. 

If land acquired under a grant for noise compatibility purposes is leased at fair 
market value and consistent with noise buffering purposes, the lease will not 
be considered a disposal of the land. Revenues derived from such a lease may 
be used for an approved airport development project that would otherwise be 
eligible for grant funding or any permitted use of airport revenue. 

b. For land purchased under a grant for airport development purposes (other 
than noise compatibility), it will, when the land is no longer needed for airport 
purposes, dispose of such land at fair market value or make available to the 
Secretary an amount equal to the United States' proportionate share of the fair 
market value of the land. That portion of the proceeds of such disposition 
which is proportionate to the United States' share of the cost of acquisition of 
such land will, upon application to the Secretary, be reinvested or transferred 
to another eligible airport as prescribed by the Secretary. The Secretary shall 
give preference to the following, in descending order:  

1. Reinvestment in an approved noise compatibility project;  

2. Reinvestment in an approved project that is eligible for grant 
funding under 49 U.S.C. § 47117(e); 

3. Reinvestment in an approved airport development project that is 
eligible for grant funding under 49 U.S.C. §§ 47114, 47115, or 
47117 

4. Transfer to an eligible sponsor of another public airport to be 
reinvested in an approved noise compatibility project at that 
airport; or 

5. Payment to the Secretary for deposit in the Airport and Airway 
Trust Fund. 

c. Land shall be considered to be needed for airport purposes under this 
assurance if (1) it may be needed for aeronautical purposes (including runway 
protection zones) or serve as noise buffer land, and (2) the revenue from 
interim uses of such land contributes to the financial self-sufficiency of the 
airport. Further, land purchased with a grant received by an airport operator or 
owner before December 31, 1987, will be considered to be needed for airport 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 19 of 21 

purposes if the Secretary or Federal agency making such grant before 
December 31, 1987, was notified by the operator or owner of the uses of such 
land, did not object to such use, and the land continues to be used for that 
purpose, such use having commenced no later than December 15, 1989. 

d. Disposition of such land under (a), (b), or (c) will be subject to the retention or 
reservation of any interest or right therein necessary to ensure that such land 
will only be used for purposes which are compatible with noise levels 
associated with operation of the airport. 

32. Engineering and Design Services. 

If any phase of such project has received Federal funds under Chapter 471 subchapter 1 of 
Title 49 U.S.C., it will award each contract, or sub-contract for program management, 
construction management, planning studies, feasibility studies, architectural services, 
preliminary engineering, design, engineering, surveying, mapping or related services in the 
same manner as a contract for architectural and engineering services is negotiated under 
Chapter 11 of Title 40 U.S.C., or an equivalent qualifications-based requirement prescribed 
for or by the sponsor of the airport. 

33. Foreign Market Restrictions. 

It will not allow funds provided under this Grant to be used to fund any project which uses 
any product or service of a foreign country during the period in which such foreign country 
is listed by the United States Trade Representative as denying fair and equitable market 
opportunities for products and suppliers of the United States in procurement and 
construction. 

34. Policies, Standards, and Specifications. 

It will carry out any project funded under an Airport Improvement Program Grant in 
accordance with policies, standards, and specifications approved by the Secretary including, 
but not limited to, current FAA Advisory Circulars 
(https://www.faa.gov/airports/aip/media/aip-pfc-checklist.pdf) for AIP projects as of May 
12, 2023. 

35. Relocation and Real Property Acquisition. 

a. It will be guided in acquiring real property, to the greatest extent practicable 
under State law, by the land acquisition policies in Subpart B of 49 CFR Part 24 
and will pay or reimburse property owners for necessary expenses as specified 
in Subpart B. 

b. It will provide a relocation assistance program offering the services described in 
Subpart C of 49 CFR Part 24 and fair and reasonable relocation payments and 
assistance to displaced persons as required in Subpart D and E of 49 CFR Part 
24. 

c. It will make available within a reasonable period of time prior to displacement, 
comparable replacement dwellings to displaced persons in accordance with 
Subpart E of 49 CFR Part 24. 

https://www.faa.gov/airports/aip/media/aip-pfc-checklist.pdf


 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 20 of 21 

36. Access By Intercity Buses. 

The airport owner or operator will permit, to the maximum extent practicable, intercity 
buses or other modes of transportation to have access to the airport; however, it has no 
obligation to fund special facilities for intercity buses or for other modes of transportation. 

37. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. 

The sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex, in the 
award and performance of any DOT-assisted contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26, or in the 
award and performance of any concession activity contract covered by 49 CFR Part 23. In 
addition, the sponsor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex 
in the administration of its Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and Airport 
Concessions Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (ACDBE) programs or the requirements of 
49 CFR Parts 23 and 26. The sponsor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 
CFR Parts 23 and 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT-
assisted contracts, and/or concession contracts. The sponsor’s DBE and ACDBE programs, as 
required by 49 CFR Parts 26 and 23, and as approved by DOT, are incorporated by reference 
in this agreement. Implementation of these programs is a legal obligation and failure to 
carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification to the 
sponsor of its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may impose 
sanctions as provided for under Parts 26 and 23 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the 
matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies 
Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. §§ 3801-3809, 3812). 

38. Hangar Construction. 

If the airport owner or operator and a person who owns an aircraft agree that a hangar is to 
be constructed at the airport for the aircraft at the aircraft owner’s expense, the airport 
owner or operator will grant to the aircraft owner for the hangar a long term lease that is 
subject to such terms and conditions on the hangar as the airport owner or operator may 
impose. 

39. Competitive Access. 

a. If the airport owner or operator of a medium or large hub airport (as defined in 
49 U.S.C. § 47102) has been unable to accommodate one or more requests by 
an air carrier for access to gates or other facilities at that airport in order to 
allow the air carrier to provide service to the airport or to expand service at the 
airport, the airport owner or operator shall transmit a report to the Secretary 
that: 

1. Describes the requests; 

2. Provides an explanation as to why the requests could not be 
accommodated; and 

3. Provides a time frame within which, if any, the airport will be able 
to accommodate the requests. 

b. Such report shall be due on either February 1 or August 1 of each year if the 
airport has been unable to accommodate the request(s) in the six month 
period prior to the applicable due date. 

  

  
  
 
    
 



 3-06-0126-018-2023 

 
Airport Sponsor Assurances 5/2022            Page 21 of 21 

 



RESOLUTION #2023 - XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATIONS, ACCEPTING ALLOCATION OF 
FUNDS, AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF GRANT AGREEMENTS WITH THE 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR AN AIRPORT 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (AIP) MATCHING GRANT

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo and the Federal Aviation Administration are parties to federal Airport 
Improvement Program (AIP) Grant 3-06-0126-018-2023 for the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport Taxiway A 
Resurfacing Project; and

WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation, pursuant to the Public Utilities Code section 21683.1, 
provides grants of up to 5.0% of Federal Aviation Administration grants to airports; and

WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation requires the Board of Supervisors to adopt a resolution 
authorizing the submission of the application for the AIP Matching grant.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of 
California: 

1. Authorizes filing the application for the state AIP Matching Grant for this project;
2. Authorizes accepting the allocation of state AIP matching funds for the project;
3. Authorizes execution of the AIP Matching Grant Agreement for this project; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo does hereby authorize 
Public Works Director Michael Errante to sign any documents required to apply for and accept these subject 
funds on behalf of the County of Inyo.

I hereby certify the foregoing resolution was introduced and read at the regular meeting of the County Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Inyo on the 5th day of September, 2023, and the resolution was duly adopted at said 
meeting by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
ATTEST:

Nate Greenberg, Clerk

by 
Assistant Clerk to the Board



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4123  

 

Commercial Hangar Lease Agreement with REACH Air 
Medical at the Bishop Airport 

Public Works - Airports 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Ashley Helms, Deputy Public Works Director - 
Airports 

Ashley Helms, Deputy Public Works Director - 
Airports 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve and ratify the lease agreement between the County of Inyo and REACH Air Medical Services, 
LLC DBA Cal-Ore Life Flight, LLC of Sacramento, CA for the real property described as 770 Airport Rd., 
Bishop CA, for an amount in year one of $3,800 per month for the period of January 1, 2023 to 
December 31, 2027, with four two-year options to extend through December 31, 2035, and authorize the 
Public Works Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
This lease provides hangar space for REACH Air Medical Services, LLC at the Bishop Airport. The 
annual lease rate increases are tied to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the Los Angeles area. Should 
the County exercise the option for the extensions, the increase will be negotiated by both parties, but will 
not exceed five percent (5%) per extension period. The lease excludes a 40-foot by 25-foot portion of the 
hangar, which is retained by the County for storage of the Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting vehicle. 
 
This lease came before your Board for approval on July 18th, 2023, however minor edits from Risk 
Management were missing from the document that was included in the agenda item; this item corrects 
that oversight. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund / Non-General Fund / Grant Funded 
(list grant funding sources here) 

Budget Unit 150100 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code  
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Revenue derived from this lease agreement will go to the Bishop Airport Operating Budget (150100) to 
offset operational expenses. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could deny this Lease Agreement. This is not recommended, as doing so would leave 
REACH Air Medical Services, LLC without hangar space, and would leave the Bishop Airport without an 
important revenue source. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. REACH Air Medical Lease 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 8/31/2023 
Ashley Helms Approved - 8/31/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/31/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/31/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/31/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 8/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 County of Inyo - Bishop Airport   
Reach Commercial Hangar Lease  

Page 1 
 12/23/2022 

 
 

COUNTY OF INYO - BISHOP AIRPORT 
HANGAR AND TIE DOWN SPACE COMMERCIAL LEASE 

 
 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ____ day of _____________, by 
and between REACH Air Medical Services, LLC / Cal Ore Lifeflight, hereinafter referred to as 
“Lessee,” and the County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter 
referred to as “County,” whereby the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 

1. ADMINISTRATION.  

 This Lease Agreement, hereinafter referred to as “Lease,” shall be administered on 
behalf of the County by  Ashley Helms, whose title is Deputy Public Works Director - Airports, 
hereinafter referred to as “County’s Lease Administrator” and Jim Walker, Sr. Facility Manager on 
behalf of Lessee REACH Air Medical Services, LLC. 
 

2. LEASED PREMISES.  

 County leases to Lessee, and Lessee hires from County, as herein provided, a hangar and 
office space located at Hangar A, Bishop Airport (hereinafter referred to as “Airport”), County of 
Inyo, State of California, as more particularly shown in Attachment A.  This space shall be used to 
store the following described aircraft owned by Lessee: 
 
Aircraft #1 Aircraft Make:  _Pilatus_____ 
  Aircraft Model:  PC-12 
  Aircraft N#:  N311VM (S/N 619) 
  Aircraft Gross Weight:  9921 lbs 
  FAA Registered Owner: 
  Name Guardian Flight 
  Address 10888 South 300 West 
  City/State South Jordan, UT 84095 
  Phone (801) 619-4900   
 
Aircraft #2 Aircraft Make:  _Pilatus_____ 
  Aircraft Model:  PC-12 
  Aircraft N#:  N991GF (S/N 483) 
  Aircraft Gross Weight:  9921 lbs 
  FAA Registered Owner: 
  Name Guardian Flight 
  Address 10888 South 300 West 
  City/State South Jordan, UT 84095 
  Phone (801) 619-4900   
 
 
  

3. INITIAL TERM AND OPTIONS. 

 The initial term of the Lease will be for five years beginning January 1, 2023 and continuing 
through and including December 31, 2027.  In addition to the initial term, there will be four (4) 
options to extend the Lease for additional two (2) year periods as follows: 
 
 a. From January 1, 2027 through December 31, 2029. 



 County of Inyo - Bishop Airport   
Reach Commercial Hangar Lease  

Page 2 
 12/23/2022 

 b. From January 1, 2029 through December 31, 2031. 

 c. From January 1, 2031 through December 31, 2033. 

d. From January 1, 2033 through December 31, 2035. 

  

 The options to extend may be exercised in the manner and under the conditions hereinafter 
provided.   
 

4. EXERCISING OPTIONS TO EXTEND TERM. 

 The four (4) options to extend the term of the Lease for one (2) year periods identified in 
Section Three above, may be exercised by Lessee in the manner and on the terms and conditions 
below: 
 
 a. Terms and Conditions. 
  

(1) Neither Lessee nor County has terminated this Lease, or any extensions 
thereof, for any reason. 

(2) Lessee is not in default under any term or condition of the Lease, or any 
extension thereof. 

(3) Lessee has exercised all previous options to extend. 
 
 b. Manner In Which Option Can Be Exercised. 
 

(1) Lessee may exercise the option to extend no earlier than six (6) months 
before the expiration of the Lease term, or any extension thereof. 

(2) Lessee must notify County in writing of the intent to exercise an   option to 
extend at least thirty (30) days before the expiration of the Lease term, or 
an extension thereof. 

(3) Except as provided for in Section Six relating to the rent, the Option to 
Extend shall be upon the same terms and conditions as stated in this 
Lease. 

 
5. HOLDING OVER. 

 If Lessee remains in possession of the Leased Premises with the consent of County, 
either expressed or implied, after the expiration of the Lease term, Lessee's tenancy shall be 
deemed to be a tenancy from month to month at the same rental rate applicable for the final 
month of the Lease term and otherwise shall be upon the same terms and conditions as are set 
forth in the Lease, provided that such tenancy shall be terminable and may be terminated upon at 
least thirty (30) days prior  written notice of such termination served by either Lessee or County 
on the other party in the manner prescribed by law. 
 

6. LEASE PAYMENTS. 

 Lessee will pay to County $0.15 per square foot per month in year one. The lease 
amount will increase each year by the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the Los Angeles area as 
published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics at www.bls.gov. The annual lease amount in year one 
is $45,600.00. The annual lease amount in subsequent years will be tied to the CPI for the Los 
Angeles area, and therefore cannot be calculated until those years. The first CPI increase is 
scheduled to occur on 01/01/2024. The increase or decrease will be determined by comparing 
the Base index value of the prior year’s lease. The formula for the change is as follows: Current 
base index value minus the prior base index value divided by the base index value.  The result 
will be multiplied by 100 to determine the percentage of the change in lease amount. Lessee 
agrees to pay County said amounts in quarterly installments of $11,400 for year one, payable on 



 County of Inyo - Bishop Airport   
Reach Commercial Hangar Lease  

Page 3 
 12/23/2022 

the first day of each quarter, and thereafter during the term of this lease, or any extension thereof. 
If Lease payment is received more than ten (10) days after the date upon which it is due, a late 
payment equal to 5% of the lease payment shall be imposed.  
  
 In the event the Lessee exercises its option to extend the Lease for any or all of the four 
two-year periods, the rent for such option period may increase as agreed upon between County and 
Lessee, but such increase shall not exceed   5%   percent of the rent for 
the most expensive year of the previous lease period. In the event County and Lessee do not agree 
upon a rental amount, the rent shall increase by the aforementioned percentage. 
 
 If the Lease or any extension thereof is terminated before the expiration of the complete 
term, the annual lease payment due will be prorated for the actual term of the Lease, or any 
extension thereof. If the Lessee holds over after the expiration of the Lease term, or any extension 
thereof, Lessee will pay County monthly rent at the rate of one-tenth (0.10) of the annual lease 
payment, for each month, or part thereof, in which Lessee holds over.  Such monthly rent shall be 
due on the first day of each month during which Lessee holds over. 
  

7. AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND FIREFIGHTING (ARFF) VEHICLE STORAGE. 

As depicted more specifically in Attachment A, this lease excludes a 40 x 25 ft. space 
within Hangar A (“the County space”).  The County space remains under the control of the Lessor 
and will be used by Lessor for the storage of the Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting Vehicle 
(“ARFF”).  Lessee has no right to utilize any of the County space for its operations or storage.   

 
As further depicted in Attachment A, this lease includes a triangular area adjacent to the 

County space that is to be shared by both parties for the purpose of ingress and egress to the 
hangar (“the shared space”).  The Parties agree that no equipment will be stored in the shared 
space and no vehicles or aircraft will be left unattended in the shared space.  The shared space 
will only be used for active passage in and out of the hangar by vehicles or aircraft.  Lessee 
understands that the ARFF may need to be deployed in emergency situations at unpredictable 
times and that preserving unimpeded access to the shared space is of crucial importance.   

 
Both parties agree to exercise due care and caution to ensure that they do not damage 

the equipment of the other party when entering/exiting the hangar with aircraft or vehicles.    
 

8. USE OF PREMISES. 

 The premises are leased to be used for storage of the aircraft described above and the 
operation of an air medical service company.  Lessee agrees to restrict Lessee’s use to such 
purposes, and not to use or permit the use of the premises for any other purpose without first 
obtaining the consent in writing of County, or of County's authorized agent. 
 

9. MASTER EASEMENT. 

 The property herein leased by County to Lessee is the subject of an easement deed 
granted to County by the Department of Water and Power of the City of Los Angeles (LADWP) (see 
Official Records Volume 17, Page 462, dated October 7, 1929), which by this reference is 
incorporated into this Lease. 
 

10. DELIVERY OF POSSESSION. 

 Delivery of possession shall be deemed completed as of the date of execution of this 
instrument.  Lessee represents and warrants that Lessee has examined the Leased Premises, 
including all buildings and improvements thereon and that as of the effective date of the lease, they 
are all in good order, repair, and in safe and clean condition.  
 



 County of Inyo - Bishop Airport   
Reach Commercial Hangar Lease  

Page 4 
 12/23/2022 

11. QUIET POSSESSION. 

 The County covenants and agrees that Lessee, upon payment of the annual Lease 
payment and compliance with all the terms and conditions of this Lease, may lawfully, peacefully, 
and quietly have, hold, use, occupy, and enjoy the leased premises and each part thereof during 
the term of this Lease and any extensions thereof without hindrance or interruption by County.   
 

12. PARKING. 

 Lessee shall have reasonable non-exclusive use of the Airport parking area on the south 
side of the leased premises, in common with other tenants, occupants, and users of the Airport, 
together with the right of reasonable ingress and egress to the Airport parking area.   
 

13. HOURS OF USE. 

 Lessee shall have access to the leased premises at any time on a twenty-four hour per 
day, seven-day per week basis.   
 

14. UTILITIES. 

  Lessee shall provide and pay for such electricity, lighting, heating, ventilation and all other 
utilities as are necessary for the reasonable use and enjoyment of the leased premises by the 
Lessee.  All charges for other utilities used by Lessee in connection with the occupancy of the 
leased premises, (including deposits, connection fees or charges, meter rentals as required by the 
supplier of any such utility service, and the cost of the facilities for connecting the leased premises 
to such utility service facilities) shall be paid by Lessee.   
 

15. JANITORIAL SERVICES. 

 Lessee shall furnish at its sole expense janitorial services which may be required on its 
leased premises.  Such services shall be provided at the level necessary to maintain the leased 
premises in a clean and orderly condition. 
 

16. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE. 

 Lessee will maintain the leased premises and keep them in good repair at Lessee’s own 
expense., including but not limited to the following: Exterior walls and roof, plumbing, electrical, 
hangar door operation, heating and air conditioning, lighting, air compressors, roof and exterior 
siding and aprons and tie down areas  within the Lease Premises, which will be maintained in a 
similar condition as exists at the effective date of this Lease, excepting reasonable wear and tear or 
damage that may be caused by Acts of God.  The County shall not be responsible for the 
maintenance and/or repair of any structure or improvement placed on the leased premises by the 
Lessee, in which case Lessee shall be solely responsible for the maintenance and/or repair of those 
structures and improvements.  Repairs and maintenance needs arising from the County’s use of the 
County space (as defined in Section 7) shall be the responsibility of the County. 
 
 When the County notifies Lessee that facilities within Lessee's area of responsibility are in 
need of repairs, Lessee will make such repairs within thirty (30) days of receiving the notification.  If 
the nature of the repairs are such that they must be performed immediately in order to provide for 
the immediate safety of the public or airport users, Lessee will perform such emergency repairs 
immediately.  If Lessee is unable to perform such emergency repairs immediately, the County 
reserves the right to make such repairs itself, or hire a contractor to make such repairs, at Lessee’s 
expense.  
 



 County of Inyo - Bishop Airport   
Reach Commercial Hangar Lease  

Page 5 
 12/23/2022 

17. ENTRY FOR INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE. 

 County reserves the right to enter the leased premises at reasonable times, with twenty-
four (24) hour prior notification to the Lessee, to inspect, to perform required maintenance and 
repair, or to make additions or alterations to any part of the premises.  County also reserves the 
right to enter the leased premises at any time without prior notice to the Lessee in the event that an 
emergency reasonably requires the County to do so. Lessee agrees to permit County to do so.  
County may, during such time as is reasonably necessary to either respond to an emergency or to 
make such alterations, additions, or repairs, erect scaffolding, fences, and similar structures, post 
relevant notices, and place movable equipment without any obligation to reduce Lessee's rent for 
the demised premises during such period, and without incurring liability to Lessee for disturbance of 
quiet enjoyment of the premises, or loss of occupation thereof. 
 

18. ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS.  

 Lessee shall make no alterations or improvements in or on the Leased Premises without 
the prior written consent of County.  All alterations and improvements made by Lessee, other than 
removable personal property, shall remain on the Leased Premises and be deemed to be property 
of County upon the expiration or sooner termination of the Lease, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by Lessee and County.  Any damage occasioned by the installation or removal of Lessee’s 
personal property shall be repaired by Lessee. 
 

19. SIGNS. 

 Lessee may erect signs necessary to identify Lessee's occupancy of the leased premises 
during the term hereunder. Lessee shall not place the proposed signs on the leased premises until 
County has reviewed the proposed design and given its consent to the proposed signs.  County 
shall not unreasonably withhold said consent. Signs shall be removed by Lessee at the termination 
of this Lease. 
 

20. WASTE. 

 Lessee shall give prompt notice to County of any damages to the leased premises and 
shall not commit, or suffer to be committed, any waste or injury, or allow any public or private 
nuisance on the leased premises. 
 

21. COUNTY PROPERTY COVERAGE. 

 County may procure and maintain property insurance coverage on the structure itself and 
the county’s ARFF assets within it. Such insurance will be solely for the County's benefit. Lessee 
will have no right, title, or interest in such policy or in payments made to County under such policy. 
Lessee is solely responsible for its employees and assets, and their guests and their assets, on the 
leased premises. 
 

22. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION. 

 In the event that the leased premises shall be totally or partially damaged by an event 
which is covered by the insurance policy described in Section 21 during the term of this Lease or 
extension thereof, other than through the fault or neglect of Lessee, repairs shall be made by 
County at County's sole expense, with all reasonable dispatch.  In the event that damage by such 
event, other than through the fault or negligence of Lessee, amounts to substantial destruction of 
the leased premises which cannot be repaired in three (3) months, this Lease may be terminated by 
either party at its option by giving written notice of intention to the other party within thirty (30) days 
following said destruction.  If this Lease is not so terminated, Lessee shall be entitled to a pro rata 
reduction in the annual Lease payment to be jointly agreed upon by County and Lessee.  If the 
leased premises are damaged or destroyed through the sole fault or negligence of Lessee or its 



 County of Inyo - Bishop Airport   
Reach Commercial Hangar Lease  

Page 6 
 12/23/2022 

employees, agents, invitees, or sublessees, this Lease may not be terminated by Lessee, and it 
shall be the obligation of Lessee, at its sole expense, to reconstruct or repair said leased premises. 

23. LESSEE INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.     

 For the duration of this Agreement, Lessee shall procure and maintain insurance of the 
scope and amount specified in Attachment B and with the provisions specified in that attachment. 
   

24. INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS. 

 24.1 Indemnity.  Lessee will indemnify, hold harmless and defend County, its agents 
and employees, and its Lessor, the City of Los Angeles, its agents and employees, from and 
against any and all actions, claims, damages, disabilities or expenses including, without limitation, 
attorneys’ fees, witness costs and court costs that may be asserted by any person or entity, 
including Lessee, arising out of or in connection with any of the following circumstances: 
 
 24.1.1  Use of Premises.  Use of premises or Airport in any manner by Lessee, its agents, 
employees, invitees, subtenants, licensees and contractors, and the agents, employees, patrons, 
contractors and invitees of Lessees and subtenants, including any use of the premises or the 
Airport not allowed under this Lease. 
 
 24.1.2 Breach by Lessee.  Any breach by Lessee of the terms, covenants or conditions 
herein contained. 
 
 24.1.3. Other Activities.  Any other activities, including the direct or indirect release or spill 
of any legally designated hazardous material or waste on the leased premises, of Lessee, its 
agents, employees, invitees, and subtenants whether or not there is concurrent negligence on the 
part of the County, but excluding liability due to the sole active negligence or sole willful misconduct 
of the County.  This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way by any limitation on the 
amount or type of damages or compensation payable by or for Lessee or its agents under workers’ 
compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts. 
 
 24.1.4. Exculpation of County.  County, its officers, agents, and employees shall not be 
liable to Lessee for any loss or damage to Lessee, Lessee’s airplane, or any other property of 
Lessee from any cause, including inclement weather or natural disasters.  Lessee expressly waives 
all claims against County, its officers, agents and employees, for injury or damage to person or 
property arising for any reason regardless of whether or not there is concurrent passive or active 
negligence of County, its officers, agents, and employees, unless such injury or damage is caused 
due to the sole active negligence or willful misconduct of County, its officers, agents, and 
employees. 
 

25. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW. 

 Lessee shall, at its sole cost, comply with all requirements of all County, State and Federal 
ordinances, laws, rules, and regulations now in force, or which may hereafter be in force, pertaining 
to the use of leased premises, and shall faithfully observe and obey all County, State and Federal 
ordinances, laws, rules, and regulations now in force, or which hereafter may be in force.  If 
Lessee's failure to obey and comply with any of these rules, laws, ordinances, or regulations results 
in any assessment of fines, penalty, or damages against the County, Lessee will pay such civil 
penalty, fines or assessments and any costs the County incurs in defending or adjudicating such 
violations. 
 

26. ASSIGNMENT OR SUBLEASE OF PREMISES.     

Lessee agrees not to assign this Lease or encumber its leasehold, or any interest therein, 
without first obtaining the written consent of the County. Any such assignment shall not release the 
Lessee from liability hereunder, and any assignee shall expressly assume all Lessee’s obligations 



 County of Inyo - Bishop Airport   
Reach Commercial Hangar Lease  

Page 7 
 12/23/2022 

hereunder.  It is also agreed that the giving of a written consent required herein on any one or more 
occasions shall not thereafter operate as a waiver of the requirement for written consent on any one 
or more subsequent occasions.   

Lessee shall manage the Leased Premises.  Lessee may sublet portions of the Leased 
Premises for aircraft parking and aircraft operation purposes.  Any rental or sub-lease used by 
Lessee shall, by reference, include all provisions of this lease and the Grant Assurances (Section 
27) and shall comply with provisions of the Airport Master Lease and Master Easement, between 
the LESSOR and LADWP. 

 
 

27. TAXES, ASSESSMENTS, AND FEES. 

 In accordance with Revenue and Taxation Code section 107.6, Lessee is hereby advised 
that this lease may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation and that, if such an 
interest is created, Lessee is solely responsible for the payment of all property taxes levied on that 
interest.  In addition, Lessee shall timely pay all taxes and assessments of whatever character that 
may be levied or charged upon the leasehold estate in the Leased Premises, or upon Lessee’s 
operations thereon.  Lessee shall also pay all license or permit fees that may be necessary, or 
which may be required by law, for the conduct of its operations at the Leased Premises. 
 

28. FAA-REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

a. Nondiscrimination 
 
 The tenant for himself, his personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as 
a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree that (1) no person on the 
grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits 
of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction 
of any improvements on, over or under such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person 
on the grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the 
benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination, (3) that the tenant shall use the premises in 
compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, 
Nondiscrimination in Federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation-Effectuation 
of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations may be amended. 
  
 That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Airport Owner 
shall have the right to terminate the lease and to re-enter and as if said lease had never been made 
or issued. The provision shall not be effective until the procedures of Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 21 are followed and completed, including exercise or expiration of appeal rights. 
 

b. Airport Protection 
 
 It shall be a condition of this lease, that the lessor reserves unto itself, its successors and 
assigns, for the use and benefit of the public, a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the 
airspace above the surface of the real property hereinafter described, together with the right to 
cause in said airspace such noise as may be inherent in the operation of aircraft, now known or 
hereafter used, for navigation of or flight in the said airspace, and for use of said airspace for 
landing on, taking off from or operating on the airport. 
 
 That the Tenant expressly agrees for itself, its successors and assigns, to restrict the height 
of structures, objects of natural growth and other obstructions on the hereinafter described real 
property to such a height so as to comply with Federal Aviation Regulations, Part 77. 
 



 County of Inyo - Bishop Airport   
Reach Commercial Hangar Lease  

Page 8 
 12/23/2022 

 That the Lessee expressly agrees for itself, its successors and assigns, to prevent any use 
of the hereinafter described real property which would interfere with or adversely affect the 
operation or maintenance of the airport, or otherwise constitute an airport hazard. 
 

c. Property Rights Reserved 
 
 This lease and all provisions hereof are subject and subordinate to the terms and 
conditions of the instruments and documents under which the Airport Owner acquired the subject 
property from the United States of America and shall be given only such effect as will not conflict or 
be inconsistent with the terms and conditions contained in the lease of said lands from the Airport 
Owner, and any existing or subsequent amendments thereto, and are subject to any ordinances, 
rules or regulations which have been, or may hereafter be adopted by the Airport Owner pertaining 
to the Airport. 
 

d. Exclusive Rights 
 
 Notwithstanding anything herein contained that may be, or appear to be, to the contrary, it 
is expressly understood and agreed that the rights granted under this agreement are non-exclusive 
and the Lessor herein reserves the right to grant similar privileges to another Lessee or other 
Lessees on other parts of the airport. 
 

29. MODIFICATION. 

 The terms and conditions of the Lease and any extension thereof may be modified, 
changed, or amended at any time only by the mutual written consent of Lessee and County.  
However, County may, upon 30 days’ notice to Lessee, amend this Lease as a result of any 
changes to the airport lease and/or easement with the Los Angeles Department of Water and 
Power, as referenced in Section Eight, or FAA requirements, so long as such amendment is limited 
to an incorporation of changes and/or modification to the Airport Master Lease, Airport Easement, 
and/or changes to the FAA training/badging/operational requirements. The amended Lease shall 
take effect 30 days after Lessee is served with the amended Lease. 
 

30. TERMINATION. 

 This Lease may be canceled and terminated by either party, without penalty, for any 
reason, at any time after execution of this Lease.  Such cancellation and termination shall be 
effective on the sixtieth (60th) day after one party gives to the other written notice of termination.  
However, the giving of such notice shall not release either the County or the Lessee from full and 
faithful performance of all covenants of this Lease during the period between the giving of notice 
and the effective date of cancellation and termination. 
 

31. RETURN OF PROPERTY AT TERMINATION. 

 Lessee will return the property in good condition upon termination or expiration of the 
Lease. 
 

32. SUBORDINATION. 

 Lessee agrees that this Lease shall be subject and subordinate to any mortgage, trust 
deed, or like encumbrance heretofore or hereafter placed upon the leased premises by County, or 
its successors in interest, to secure the payment of monies loaned, interest thereon, and other 
obligations.  Lessee agrees to execute and deliver, upon demand of County, any and all 
instruments desired by County subordinating in the manner requested by County this Lease to such 
mortgage, trust deed, or like encumbrance. 
 
 Notwithstanding such subordination, Lessee's right to quiet possession of the leased 



 County of Inyo - Bishop Airport   
Reach Commercial Hangar Lease  

Page 9 
 12/23/2022 

premises shall not be disturbed if Lessee is not in default and so long as Lessee shall pay the rent 
and observe and perform all of the provisions in this Lease, unless this Lease is otherwise 
terminated pursuant to its terms. 
 

33. MECHANIC’S LIEN. 

 Lessee agrees to keep the leased premises free from all mechanics’ liens or other liens of 
like nature arising because of work done or materials furnished upon the leased premises at the 
instance of, or on behalf of Lessee, provided however that Lessee can contest such lien provided it 
post an adequate bond therefore. 
 

34. FORCE MAJEURE.     

 If either party hereto shall be delayed or prevented from their performance of any act 
required hereunder by acts of God, restrictive governmental laws or regulations, strikes, civil 
disorders, or other causes not involving the fault, and beyond the control, of the party obligated 
(financial inability excepted), performance of such act shall be waived for the period of the delay.  
However, nothing in this clause shall excuse the Lessee from the payment of any rental or other 
charge required of Lessee, except as may be expressly provided elsewhere in this Lease. 
 

35. WAIVER.  

 It is agreed that any waiver by Lessee of any breach of any one or more of the covenants, 
conditions, or terms of this Lease shall not be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of 
the same or different provision of the Lease; nor shall any failure on the part of the Lessee to 
require exact, full, complete, and explicit compliance with any of the covenants or conditions of this 
Lease be construed as in any manner changing the terms hereof, nor shall the terms of this Lease 
be changed or altered in any way whatsoever other than by written amendment, signed by both 
parties.  
 

36. DEFAULT.  

In the event that Lessee or County shall default in any term or condition of this Lease, 
and shall fail to cure such default within thirty (30) days following service upon the defaulting party 
of a written notice of such default specifying the default or defaults complained of, or if the default 
cannot reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days, the defaulting party fails to commence curing 
the default within thirty (30) days and thereafter to diligently and in good faith continue to cure the 
default, the complaining party may forthwith terminate this Lease by serving the defaulting party 
written notice of such termination.  
  

37. INUREMENT.   

 The Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 
respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors, and assigns.  
 

38. SEVERABILITY.   

 If any provision of this Lease or the application thereof to any person or circumstances 
shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease, or the application of 
such provisions to person or circumstances other than those as to which it is invalid or 
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each provision of this Lease shall be valid and be 
enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.  
  



 County of Inyo - Bishop Airport   
Reach Commercial Hangar Lease  

Page 10 
 12/23/2022 

39. TIME IS OF ESSENCE. 

 Time is expressly declared to be of the essence in this Lease and in all of the covenants 
and conditions herein. 
 

40. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS.  

 Additional terms and conditions of the Lease, if any, are set forth in the exhibits listed 
below, each of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference:    
        . 
 

41. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  

 The Lease contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all 
previous agreements between the parties with respect to the subject matter of the Lease.  
 

42. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT. 

 Both County and Lessee have had the opportunity to and have participated in the drafting 
and final preparation of this Lease agreement.  For that reason, the Lease itself, or any ambiguity 
contain therein, shall not be construed against either the County or Lessee as the drafters of this 
document. 
 

43. NOTICE. 

 Any notice required by the Lease or applicable law to be given or served on Lessee or 
County may be given or served either by personal delivery to the County Lease Administrator or 
any one of the Lessees, by personal delivery to, or by depositing the notice in the United States 
Mail, postage prepaid, to the address of each party as given below:  
 
 
 
    
   COUNTY 
 
   Public Works Deputy Director  Department 
   703 Airport Road      Address 
   Bishop, CA 93514                City and State  
    
   LESSEE 
 
   Facility Manager    Name  
   REACH Air Medical Services, LLC     
   8880 Cal Center Drive #125.     Address 
   Sacramento, CA 95826      City and State 
 

With a Copy Mailed to: 
REACH Air Medical Services, LLC 
Associate General Counsel 
1001 Boardwalk Springs Place, Suite 250 
O’Fallon, MO 63368 

 



 County of Inyo - Bishop Airport   
Reach Commercial Hangar Lease  

Page 11 
 12/23/2022 

 COUNTY OF INYO - BISHOP AIRPORT 
 OFFICE AND COMMERICAL SPACE LEASE 
 
 
 Initial Term of Lease:   
   January 1, 2023        through   June 30, 2024            . 
 
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals this _______ 
day of _________________, 20_________. 
 
COUNTY      LESSEE 
 
Lease Administrator           
           
By  ________________________________  _______________________________        
Director, Department of Public Works                Signature  

     ________________________________ 
                Type or Print Name 

Date:  ______________________________  
       Date:  ___________________________  
      
Approved as to form and legality: 
 
____________________________________ 
County Counsel 
 
 
Approved as to accounting form and content: 
 
____________________________________ 
County Auditor 
 
 
Approved as to insurance and risk management: 
 
____________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



AutoCAD SHX Text
 Leased Premises

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
 County Space

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
 Ingress/Egress - Shared

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Attachment A: Hangar A Lease



Attachment B 

Vendor/Contractor/Operator shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise 
from or in connection with the performance of the work or in connection with products, 
materials or services supplied to Inyo County and shall include their agents, 
representatives, employees or subcontractors. With respect to General Liability, Errors & 
Omissions, Pollution Legal Liability and Remediation, coverage should be maintained for a 
minimum of five (5) years after contract completion.  

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:  

A. For fixed-based operators (FBO’s), flight schools, and/or flying clubs located at an Inyo
County airport, Airport Liability Insurance is required on an “occurrence” basis,
including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury with
limits no less than $5,000,000 per occurrence, including owned and non-owned aircraft
coverage.

B. For aeronautical and non-aeronautical businesses located at the airport:
1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01

covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed
operations, property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury
with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be
twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering
any auto (Code 1), or if Vendor/Contractor/Operator has no owned autos, hired
(Code 8) and non-owned (Code 9) autos, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per
accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

4. Pollution Legal Liability and Remediation and/or Errors & Omissions applicable
to underground or above ground fuel storage tanks, fueling or refueling
operations with a limit no less than $2,000,000 per claim or occurrence and
$2,000,000 aggregate per policy period of one year. This policy shall include
coverage for bodily injury, property damage personal injury and environmental
site restoration, including fines and penalties in accordance with applicable EPA
or state regulations.

5. Hanger-Keepers Liability: with a limit not less than $1,000,000 combined single
limit per occurrence and $1,000,000 aggregate.

C. If the contract is with any Vendor/Contractor/Operator that may provide IT services or
software or that might involve the retention of private, non-public information about
third parties then add:

1. Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or
claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to



Attachment B 

the duties and obligations as is undertaken by Vendor/Contractor/Operator in 
this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims involving 
infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement 
of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information 
theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of private 
information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security. 
The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as regulatory 
fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits sufficient to 
respond to these obligations.  

D. If the contract is with a Tenant or General Lessee, then add:
1. Property Insurance: Tenant/Lessee shall maintain not less than $1,000,000 Fire 

Legal liability on all real property being leased, including improvements and 
betterments owned by the LESSEE, and shall name INYO COUNTY as a loss 
payee. Tenant/Lessee shall also provide fire insurance on all personal 
property contained within or on the leased premises. The policy must be 
written on an “all risks” basis, excluding earthquake and flood. The contract 
shall insure for not less than ninety (90) percent of the actual cash value of 
the personal property, and Tenant/Lessee shall name INYO COUNTY as an 
additional insured.

2. Interruption of Business insurance: Lessee shall, at its sole cost and expense, 
maintain business interruption insurance by which the minimum monthly rent 
will be paid to Lessor for a period of up to one (1) year if the premises are 
destroyed or rendered inaccessible by a risk insured against by a policy of 
standard fire and extended coverage insurance, with vandalism and malicious 
mischief endorsements. 

If the Vendor/Contractor/Operator maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than 
the minimums shown above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader 
coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by the Vendor/Contractor/Operator. Any 
available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 
coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  

Self-Insured Retentions 

Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. At the option of 
Inyo County, the Vendor/Contractor/Operator shall provide coverage to reduce or 
eliminate such self-insured retentions as respects Inyo County, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers; or the Vendor/Contractor/Operator shall provide evidence 
satisfactory to Inyo County guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, 
claim administration, and defense expenses. The policy language shall provide, or be 
endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named 
insured or Inyo County.  

Other Insurance Provisions 



Attachment B 

The General Liability, Automobile Liability, Pollution Legal Liability and Remediation, 
policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  

1. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of work or operations
performed by or on behalf of the Vendor/Contractor/Operator including materials,
parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General
liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s
insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10, CG 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20
26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used).

2. For any claims related to this project or use of facilities, the (Contractor / Vendor /
Operator’s) insurance coverage shall be primary insurance coverage at least as
broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its officers, officials,
employees, agents, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, agents, or volunteers shall be excess of
the Vendor/Contractor/Operator insurance and shall not contribute with it.

3. Each insurance policy required shall provide that coverage shall not be canceled,
except with notice to Inyo County.

The Automobile Liability policy shall be endorsed to include Transportation Pollution 
Liability insurance, covering materials to be transported by Vendor/Contractor/Operator 
pursuant to the contract. This coverage may also be provided as part of the Pollution Legal 
Liability and Remediation policy.  

If the Airport Liability, General Liability, Pollution Legal Liability and Remediation policy 
and/or Errors & Omissions coverages are written on a claims-made form:  

1. The retroactive date must be shown, and must be before the date of the contract or
the beginning of contract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at
least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made
policy form with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective date, the
Contractor must purchase an extended period coverage for a minimum of five (5)
years after completion of contract work.

4. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to Inyo County for
review.

Acceptability of Insurers 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a 
current A.M. Best rating of no less than A:VII.  



Attachment B 

Verification of Coverage 

Vendor/Contractor/Operator shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of 
Insurance including all required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable 
policy language effecting coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations 
and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County 
before work begins. However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work 
beginning shall not waive the Vendor/Contractor/Operator obligation to provide them. 
Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required 
insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time.  

Waiver of Subrogation 

Vendor/Contractor/Operator hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of subrogation which 
any insurer may acquire against Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and 
volunteers, from Vendor/Contractor/Operator by virtue of the payment of any loss. 
Vendor/Contractor/Operator agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to 
affect this waiver of subrogation but this provision applies regardless of whether or not 
Inyo County has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  

The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor 
of Inyo County for all work performed by the Vendor/Contractor/Operator, its employees, 
agents, and subcontractors. This provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo 
County has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 

Subcontractors 

Vendor/Contractor/Operator shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain 
insurance meeting all the requirements stated herein, and Vendor/Contractor/Operator 
shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured on insurance required from 
subcontractors. For CGL coverage subcontractors shall provide coverage with a format 
least as broad as CG 20 38 04 13.  

Special Risks or Circumstances 

Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4111  

 

Support for Caltrans' Reconnecting Communities: 
Highways to Boulevards Grant Application 

County Administrator 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Eastern Sierra Council of Governments Elaine Kabala 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Consider the Concept Application for the State of California, Caltrans, Reconnecting Communities: 
Highways to Boulevards Grant (Cal RC:H2B Grant); 
B) Approve Resolution No. 2023-28 authorizing the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments to submit an 
application for the California Department of Transportation Reconnecting Communities: Highways to 
Boulevards Grant; and 
C) Authorize the Chairperson to sign a Letter of Support as a grant Co-Applicant for the California 
Department of Transportation Reconnecting Communities: Highways to Boulevards Grant. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
From the grant guidelines: “An application will include the full projected lifecycle of a project(s) from 
concept to final completion, but may not have defined scope, schedule, and budget for all phases at 
time of application. A project may include multiple phases and components. The potential for 
concurrent or expedited delivery of project components or phase components may be considered, as 
determined prior to the start of each project phase.”   
 
Project work is expected to be completed in 2026. The tight timeline, paired with the complexity of 
implementation across numerous partners and geographies will limit the ability to implement physical 
infrastructure: however, the grant presents an opportunity to move many of the larger visions of the 
communities on the 395 corridor from planning to “shovel ready” projects, which each jurisdiction and 
Caltrans can leverage to expedient implementation through other funding sources in the future. 
 
Awarded funds can also be used as a match for the Federal Infrastructure Bill Highways to Boulevards 
program, allowing this opportunity to be a catalyst for larger project opportunities in the future. 
 
Description of Proposed Project Scope: 
 
If a grant is awarded, the first phase is a mandated “Community Readiness” phase, in which all partners 
and Caltrans Headquarters would audit existing plans for project readiness. It is during this phase that 
the scope, schedule, and budget would be finalized.  The outcomes and deliverables of the Community 
Readiness phase will be the preparation of a preliminary outline or vision of the projected future phases 
and components, including a draft financial plan, identification of community stakeholders/ partners and 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

their role(s), and a plan to address the applicable Program Goals and efforts proposed in the application. 
A detailed scope, schedule, and budget will also be developed for the next phase of the project. Prior to 
initiating work on each phase, or a component of each phase, the awardee shall work with Caltrans to 
prepare a PSA that includes the scope, schedule, and budget. 
 
The scope is broadly proposed as the following: 
 
Phase 1: Consolidate already completed plans into a single corridor plan. Staff has been working with 
Caltrans and regional partners to develop a library of existing planning documents and previous visioning 
efforts. 

• Confirm public support for the concepts proposed in past planning efforts. The ESCOG and its 
consultants will work with partner agencies to confirm the adopted plans are still relevant and 
desirable. 

• Identify planning gaps for achieving the broader corridor vision. Several communities do not have 
plans in place documenting the communities’ concerns regarding Highway 395 and a vision to 
mitigate those concerns in their central business district. These communities include 
Independence, Big Pine, and some Tribal communities. (see Attachment C). 

• Identify common themes for incremental project implementation. Analysis of existing plans has 
identified similar traffic calming solutions identified in each community, including standardized 
gateway signage for each community with a consistent Eastern Sierra branding, consistent 
speeds coming into communities, enhanced crosswalk visibility, streetscaping, and street trees. 

 
Phase 2: Conduct planning studies for identified gaps. Several communities do not have individual 
downtown community or specific plans in place documenting the community’s vision. The ESCOG and 
its consultants will work with partner agencies to develop a vision specific to the scope of this funding 
opportunity to address Main Street enhancements. 
 
This phase can also be leveraged to implement identified next steps from other planning efforts if desired 
by the community in Phase 1 without committing to full design and engineering. For instance, the Bishop 
Area Access and Circulation Feasibility Study includes recommendations for an alternative truck route 
and improved City circulation which can be advanced by determining community support for a preferred 
alignment and conducting initial feasibility studies. 
 
Phase 3: Prepare design / engineering for projects identified for near-term and long-term implementation. 
This phase will be informed by the Community Readiness Phase and Phase 1 to determine the status of 
existing planning projects, which can be implemented within the term of the grant funding, and which can 
move into design and engineering phases to become “shovel ready” projects. 
 
Phase 4: Implement incremental projects. Projects that can be moved through design, engineering, and 
encroachment within the funding timeline may be advanced for implementation. Such projects may 
include the implementation of the 2010 Highway 395 Corridor Enhancement Project (gateway signage, 
the 2021 Sustainable Tourism and Recreation Initiative Scenic Byway Analysis, and streetscaping 
projects within each community. 
 
Project implementation would occur through each partnering jurisdiction through encroachment permits 
from Caltrans. The infrastructure improvements would be owned and maintained by the implementing 
agency unless otherwise agreed upon. 
 
If ESCOG and D9 are awarded Cal RC:H2B Grant funds, the moneys would be used to hire a consultant 
to refine and advance select ideas previously explored and identified in the many planning studies and 
bring them to a “shovel-ready” status.  If the grant schedule allowed, it may even be possible to start 
construction on several of the projects.  Also, even if this grant schedule does not allow us to fund the 
construction of projects, the monies would have brought several projects through final design, making 
them “shovel ready” and then eligible for construction grants through the Federally funded Reconnecting 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Community: Highways to Boulevard grant program which is also generously funded.  Cal RC:H2B Grant 
funds could also be used as a match for the similarly named Federal program.  Caltrans Headquarters 
and D9 staff will also help find funding sources to complete the projects that are initiated with the Cal 
RC:H2B Grant. 
 
Conceptual Budget: 
 
As described, the H2B proposal does not require a finalized budget. The conceptual budget below is for 
consideration and is subject to change. 
 

Phase Amount 
Phase 1 $750k 
Phase 2 $1.5M 
Phase 3 $8M 
Phase4 $30M 

Total $40.25M 
 
Lead Applicant / Co-Applicant / Partner Responsibilities: 
The ESCOG would serve as the lead application for the project and would be the primary grant 
administrator responsible for the program, hiring and managing contractors, and fiscal reporting. Caltrans 
and partner jurisdictions (such as Federal Tribes, Counties, and incorporated cities) would serve as co-
applicants with implementation authority. 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 

 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
No budget impacts are associated with the consideration of the grant application. Caltrans has 
generously provided staff to assist with writing and coordinating the application. 
  



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

If the grant is awarded, there is no matching grant requirement nor is there a requirement to submit a 
budget to be considered for a grant award.  Grants will be awarded based on need and the quality and 
completeness of the application.   Budgets and grant scope will be established after the grant is 
awarded.   Also, the unique nature of this grant program is set up with the understanding that small 
communities do not have the financial assets to lay out funds of this magnitude, even for a short period 
of time. The RC:H2B is a reimbursement program for eligible costs incurred to the designated 
implementing agency for each individual phase.  Payments to contractors and consultants will be paid 
directly from funds from the State of California, through the co-applicant, Caltrans District 9 on behalf of 
the winning grantee. Staff salaries for those working directly on the project are an eligible expense. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose to not execute the resolution, which would prevent the ESCOG from being 
empowered to apply for the grant. By not applying, the Eastern Sierra would forgo the opportunity to 
apply for significant funding to holistically address safety and beautification treatments along the 
Highway 395 corridor. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
The ESCOG would serve as the lead application for the project and would be the primary grant 
administrator responsible for the program, hiring and managing contractors, and fiscal reporting. Caltrans 
and partner jurisdictions (such as Federal Tribes, Counties, and incorporated cities) would serve as co-
applicants with implementation authority. Other agencies involved include: 
•    The ESCOG 
•    Mono County 
•    The City of Bishop 
•    Caltrans District 9 
•    The Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe 
•    The Fort Independence Tribe 
•    The Big Pine Paiute Tribe 
•    The Bishop Paiute Tribe 
•    The Mono Lake Kutzadika’a 
•    The Bridgeport Indian Colony 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Attachment A: Draft Resolution No. 2023-28 
2. Attachment B: Co-Applicant Sign-on Letter 
3. Attachment C: RC H2B Overview Map 
4. Attachment D: Regional Plan List 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 8/24/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/24/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/24/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/24/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 8/30/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-28

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 
INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

AUTHORIZING THE EASTERN SIERRA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS TO 
SUBMIT AN APPLICATION FOR THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION RECONNECTING COMMUNITIES: HIGHWAYS TO 

BOULEVARDS GRANT

WHEREAS, on January 7, 2020, the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments convened as 
an established Joint Powers Authority as ratified by the votes of the governing bodies of 
its individual Member Agencies, understanding that it is necessary and desirable for the 
Eastern Sierra Council of Governments as a Joint Powers Authority to speak and to 
function on behalf of the region and to collectively identify and deliver opportunities to 
benefit the interests of Member Agencies’ constituents; and

WHEREAS the Member Agencies agreed that the creation of a regional Joint Powers 
Authority that functions as a separate and discreet legal entity from individual Member 
Agencies would enable the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments to maximize and take 
advantage of opportunities for the region; and

WHEREAS, the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments Joint Powers Authority 
(ESCOG) was organized to identify and apply for funding resources and receive funding 
for the planning and implementation of programs of regional impact or significance, and 
to implement such programs upon approval of the governing bodies of each Member 
Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments is an 
eligible applicant for the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 
Reconnecting Communities: Highways to Boulevards grant funding opportunity; and

WHEREAS, the Caltrans Reconnecting Communities: Highways to Boulevards grant 
would have inter-jurisdictional benefits in Inyo and Mono Counties, which would 
enhance regional collaboration, advance the vitality of Eastern Sierra communities, and 
reinforce the regional identity of the iconic Eastern Sierra; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
that the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments is authorized to submit a Caltrans 
Reconnecting Communities: Highways to Boulevards grant on behalf of the Eastern 
Sierra Council of Governments.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of September, 2023 by the following 
vote:

AYES:    



NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

_________________________________
Chairperson Jennifer Roeser

ATTEST: Nate Greenberg
  Clerk of the Board 

BY: ___________________________
       Assistant Clerk



Sample Co-Applicant Sign-On Letter

Dear Highways to Boulevards Grant Selection Committee,

For 50+ years U.S. Highway 395 in Mono and Inyo Counties has been engineered with singular goal of 
moving goods and traffic quickly and efficiently through the communities we call home.  Sadly, this 
highway-oriented design focus has rarely considered the negative impacts fast-moving passenger and 
freight highway traffic has on the communities U.S. 395 bisects.  While Highway 395 serves as Main 
Street as it runs through the heart of our Eastern Sierra communities, its highway focused design has 
been at the expense of pedestrian safety, alternative modes of transportation, and the overall livability 
of our communities. Highway 395 is a barrier between children and their schools, causes significant 
noise and air pollution, and makes properties along 395 undesirable for both commerce and residential 
uses alike.  

For these reasons and more, AGENCY have joined the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments (ESCOG) 
and Caltrans District 9 (D9) as a co-applicant for the State of California Reconnecting Communities: 
Highways to Boulevards (RC:H2B) Grant as a “Corridor” applicant.   “Our community (replace with your 
community’s name)” has suffered the ill effects caused by freeway-style highway construction on U.S. 
395 and endeavors through this opportunity to advance the vision of our community for a safer and 
more vibrant downtown.  (Please insert some examples here if you can).  

This is a catalytic opportunity for our community and the Eastern Sierra region, and we are grateful for 
the opportunity to work with our communities to envision and design solutions to address their 
concerns.  As a co-applicant, we are ready to commit our support (in-kind contributions, staff resources, 
project engagement) through to the end of the RC:H2B process should ESCOG, D9 and its co-applicants 
be awarded the grant.  We believe this grant presents a rare opportunity to advance the vision of 
Eastern Sierra communities located on the U.S. 395 corridor to live in safe and beautiful neighborhoods, 
complete with vibrant and prosperous downtowns. 

Sincerely,



K I N G S

M A R I P O S A

F R E S N O

M A D E R A

|}168168 |}168168

|}120120

|}120120

|}203203

|}270270

|}266266

|}182182|}108108

|}158158

|}136136

|}167167

|}190190

£¤6

£¤395

£¤395

MONO

INYO

CAL I FORNIA

NEVADA

Nevada
Sacramento

San Francisco

Las Vegas
Fresno

Los Angeles

San Diego

Utah

Arizona

Salt Lake City

Phoenix

Caltrans
District 9

Proposed RC:H2B Grant:
Reclaiming US 395 Main Street Communities

Bridgeport
Indian Colony

Bishop Paiute Tribe

Fort Independence
Indian Community

Big Pine
Paiute Tribe

Lone Pine Paiute-
Shoshone Tribe

Coleville
Walker

Bridgeport

Lee Vining

Bishop

Big Pine

Independence

Lone Pine

Cartago
Olancha

/

0 10 20
Miles

Grant Scope

Community US 395

Vicinity Map

Mono Lake
Kootzaduka'a Tribe

T U O LU M N E

A
LP

IN
E

F R E S N O

T U L A R E

0 100 200
Miles

Attachment C



Regional Plan List
Project Name Year Agency County

1 Fort Independence Paiute Tribe: Tribal Transportation Safety Assessment (SafeTREC Report) 22/23 Fort Independence Paiute Tribe Inyo
2 City of Bishop Commercial Mixed-Use Overlay Zone 20/21 City of Bishop Inyo
3 Eastern Sierra Transit Authority Electrification Feasibility Study 21/22 ESTA Both?
4 North Sierra Highway Sustainable Corridor Plan 15/16 Inyo County Inyo
5 Olancha-Cartago Corridor Study 17/18 Inyo County Inyo
6 Lone Pine PPEC project 2020 Inyo County Inyo
7 Lee Vining Rehab PPEC 2018 Mono County Mono
8 Bridgeport US 395 Main Street Plan 2013 Mono County Mono
9 Eastern Sierra Corridor Enhancement Plan 2010 Kern COG EKern    Inyo    Mono

10 City of Bishop Commercial Mixed-Use Overlay Zone 19/20 City of Bishop, Inyo County Inyo
11 Bishop Paiute Tribal Transportation Planning Project 16/17 Bishop Paiute Tribe Inyo
12 Lone Pine Safety Evaluation 2005 Inyo
13 Caltrans District 9 Origin-Destination Study 2019-2020 19/20 District 09 Caltrans Inyo    Mono
14 The Inyo County Regional Transportation Plan 2019 Inyo County Local Inyo
15 Big Pine Paiute Clean Mobility Needs Assessment 2021 Big Pine Paiute Tribe Inyo
16 Corridor Management Plan - Highway 395 Scenic Byway 2018 Mono County Mono
17 Character Inventory & Design Guidelines for Highway 395 Scenic Byway Corridor Communities, Mono County CA 2015 Mono County Mono
18 Caltrans District 09 Active Transportation Plan (CAT plan) 2021 Caltrans D09 EKern    Inyo    Mono
19 Eastern Sierra Freight Study 2019 Caltrans D09 EKern    Inyo    Mono
20 Bishop Area Acess and Circulation Feasibility Study 2007 City of Bishop, Inyo County Inyo

Page 1 of 1Exported on August 10, 2023 8:32:28 AM PDT

Attachment D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4059  

 

Letter to Housing and Community Development on 
Veterans Housing Program 

County Administrator 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer Jeff Griffiths 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the letter to the state Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) raising 
concerns about the Lead Service Provider Requirements of the Veterans Housing and Homelessness 
Prevention Program (VHHP) and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Inyo County has long sought to support reasonably priced and accessible housing for all residents, 
including our local Veterans.  Veteran-specific funding sources for housing are available through the 
state Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD), and the County, in partnership with 
the City of Bishop, Mammoth Lakes Housing, Visionary Home Builders and a workgroup of interested 
local citizens recently sought to apply for funding for Veterans Housing, potentially to be included in the 
Silver Peaks Affordable Apartment complex in Bishop.  During the process of reviewing the application 
requirements, it was noted that the application requires that the local agency providing services at the 
HCD-funded Veterans Housing complex have several years of experience providing services at existing 
Veterans supportive housing or transitional housing projects.  Because Inyo County does not have any 
existing Veterans supportive housing or transitional housing projects, an experience requirement that 
requires that our local agencies to already have experience with Veterans supportive and transitional 
housing projects serves as an insurmountable barrier to Inyo County's participation in this program.  This 
letter draws HCD's attention to the discriminatory nature of these requirements, which prevent the 
counties with the least amount of housing infrastructure or existing affordable housing programs from 
being able to access HCD funds.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could decide not to approve the submission of this letter to HCD.  This is not advised, as the 
requirements of the VHHP program's Lead Service Provider experience requirements will likely continue 
to prevent Inyo County from ever participating in the program, unless we are successful in drawing 
attention to these unfair anti-rural conditions.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Mammoth Lakes Housing, City of Bishop, CSAC.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Veterans Housing Letter to HCD 
  
APPROVALS: 
Meaghan McCamman Created/Initiated - 8/8/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/9/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/9/2023 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 8/30/2023 
Meaghan McCamman Final Approval - 8/30/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards St. | Independence, CA 93526
(760) 878-0373

            

 
 
August 15, 2023

California Housing & Community Development
2020 West El Camino Avenue
Sacramento, CA 95833

RE: Veterans Housing and Homelessness Prevention Program Guidelines, Lead Service 
Provider Requirements

To Whom it May Concern: 

On behalf of Inyo County, I write today to express my concerns with the Lead Service Provider (LSP) 
requirements in the Veterans Housing and Homelessness Prevention Program (VHHP) Final 
Guidelines published on May 18, 2023. The high bar for experience set out in Section 201(l)(1)(A) and 
(B) makes it impossible for rural and frontier counties like Inyo to participate in the program, leaving 
our Veteran populations without access to VHHP funded housing, further exacerbating the disparities 
in services and care experienced by rural Veterans in California.  

Inyo County is a vast landscape encompassing more than 10,000 square miles, making it the second 
largest county by landmass in California. The population is only about 19,000 people with an estimated 
1,000 Veterans – 19 of whom were homeless as of the 2020 Point in Time (PIT) count. Inyo County 
has no permanent supportive housing within its borders, and only a limited transitional housing 
program that serves foster and group home children when they reach the age of 18. Inyo County is 
extremely remote, with major cities offering additional services a minimum of 4 hours’ drive in any 
direction.  

In a county with such limited services and no nearby metropolitan areas to call upon, meeting the LSP 
requirements in Section 201(l)(1)(A) and (B) is essentially impossible. Section 201(I)(1)(A) of the 
VHHP Final Guidelines require that an eligible project must:

“…utilize a LSP with at least four years of experience providing services to individuals and 
households experiencing Homelessness that includes … two (2) years of experience providing 
services that include comprehensive case management to Veterans experiencing Homelessness in 
Permanent Supportive Housing or Transitional Housing … This experience must have occurred … in 
at least 2 projects of 10 or more units.” 

The Final Guidelines Section 201(I)(1)(B) then goes on to state:
“The experience requirements in subsection (A)above can be met in one of the following ways:

i. Providing comprehensive case management in either Project-based or tenant-based 
Permanent Supportive or Transitional Housing restricted to Veterans experiencing 
Homelessness … organizational experiencing must be documented … for services 
provided to at least 10 households at any one time ...

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL  •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards St. | Independence, CA 93526
(760) 878-0373

ii. Providing comprehensive case management in either Project-based or tenant-based 
Permanent Supportive or Transitional Housing not restricted to Veterans experiencing 
Homelessness but in which Veterans comprise at least 20 percent of residents …

iii. If the LSP does not meet the requirements in either subsections (B)i. or ii. above, an 
executed agreement with a partner agency that meets the qualifications in subsection (B)i., 
above, must be submitted with the application. The agreement between the LSP and the 
partner agency must have a term of at least five years and must specify that the partner 
agency will collaborate to provide services to Veterans residing in the project …”

In a frontier County with no permanent supportive housing at all, and only a few transitional units 
serving foster and group home children, there is no way for any agency working in Inyo to meet the 
experience requirement in Section 201(I)(1)(A) and (B). Inyo’s only option to meet this requirement 
would be to contract with an agency with the required experience from elsewhere in California and 
partner with that agency to serve our local Veteran population – with the contractor driving a minimum 
of 4 hours in both directions to provide services. Contracting with a remote agency to provide 
comprehensive case management for Inyo County Veterans is an unworkable solution and would 
drive up the cost of services to a point that is impossible for an affordable project to afford.  This 
requirement imposed by HCD on a frontier housing project makes the project infeasible.  

Inyo County’s own Health and Human Services Agency has been providing comprehensive case 
management and support for decades to our Veterans experiencing homelessness – though we have 
been forced to do so without HCD funding for permanent supportive housing and transitional housing. 
Experience requirements like those in the VHHP Final Guidelines ensure that Inyo County will be 
forced to continue serving our Veterans on the streets, by blocking our ability to fund the very same 
supportive housing that we must have in place in order to get the experience required under these 
guidelines. The requirement that we must already have permanent supportive units or transitional 
units for Veterans in place in order to receive HCD funding for permanent supportive units or 
transitional units serves as an insurmountable barrier to entry for Inyo County, leaving our Veterans 
falling further behind as this funding grows already-existing capacity in larger and better-resourced 
counties. 
 
For rural, remote, and frontier counties that cannot meet these experience requirements, there must 
be an exception in the VHHP Final Guidelines LSP experience requirements outlined in Section 
201(l)(1)(A) and (B). Even better would be to ensure equity of access for rural Veterans by creating a 
VHHP round that allocates noncompetitive funding to rural counties who have no existing permanent 
supportive housing or transitional housing for veterans.  

Finally, while this letter is specific to the program requirements of the VHHP, these discriminatory 
requirements are true of HCD programs across the Board. Inyo County strongly recommends that 
HCD convenes a rural task force or rural-specific advisory board, or even offer a slate of rural-specific 
housing funding programs to ensure that every program is accessible even to the most frontier of 
communities.  

Don’t let the perfect be the enemy of the good.  

Sincerely, 

Chairperson Jennifer Roeser,
Inyo County Board of Supervisors



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4054  

 

Request to Change Ownership for Commercial Cannabis 
Permit 000140 

Agricultural Commissioner 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Nathan Reade, Ag Commissioner Nathan Reade, Ag Commissioner 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve a request a change in ownership for commercial cannabis business license number 000140, 
NanoFarms, LLC. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Your Board approved this license, located in zone 5G for the cultivation activity type, on January 8, 
2019.  On June 30, 2023, the licensee submitted a request to change ownership, which must be 
approved or denied by your board pursuant to Inyo County code section 5.40.130.  The Permit Change 
Request and an attached letter supplementing this request are included in the agenda packet. 
 
The request being made is that ownership be allowed to transfer from the original ownership of 100% 
Vincent Lin to 100% Larry Lai.  Mr. Lai has completed the required LiveScan process successfully.  The 
request was to transfer both a cultivation in excess of 5,000 square feet license type as well as a 
manufacturing level 2 license type.    
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Cannabis Budget, Non-General Fund Budget Unit 023301 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code  
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
This will have no fiscal impact as transferring the license would fall within our normal operations. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
None 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Your Board could choose to deny this request for ownership change. This would have unknown 
consequences to the viability of this license. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Inyo Ownership Change Request 
2. Change of Ownership Letter 
  
APPROVALS: 
Nathan Reade Created/Initiated - 8/11/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/16/2023 
Nathan Reade Approved - 8/18/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/18/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/23/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 8/30/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

COUNTY OF INYO 
 

COUNTY COMMERCIAL CANNABIS PERMITTING OFFICE 
207 WEST SOUTH STREET 
BISHOP, CA 93514 
760.873.7860 

COMMERCIAL CANNABIS BUSINESS PERMIT CHANGE REQUEST

SECTION 1 – TYPE OF PROPOSED CHANGE 

   Modification of Premises (may require CUP review, attach supporting documentation) 

   Change of Ownership (complete attached page 2) 

   Add/Change Medical or Adult-Use Designation (complete section below) 

   Add/Change License Type for Microbusiness (complete section below, may require CUP review) 

   Other Change 

Provide a short description of proposed changes below: 

RETURN  TO: INYO COUNTY COMMERCIAL CANNABIS PERMIT OFFICE 
207 W SOUTH STREET 
BISHOP, CA 93514 

For license type change or addition, indicate desired type below: 

Cultivation (5,000 ft² or less) Testing Laboratory 

Cultivation (greater than 5,000 ft²) Retailer (If checked, do you plan to make deliveries?      Yes /     No)

Manufacturing Level 1 (non-volatile extraction/infusion, etc.) Distributor 

Manufacturing Level 2 (volatile extraction) Microbusiness (check all activities that apply) 
For license designation change, indicate desired type below: 

 Medical            Adult-use 



2 
 

PAGE 2 - CHANGE IN BUSINESS OWNERSHIP 

Licensee Information 
Primary Owner Name  Percent Ownership 

 % 
Physical Address City State Zip Code 

Mailing Address (if different than physical address) City State Zip Code 

    
Primary Phone Number Secondary Phone Number Email Address 

  
List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 

          YES                     NO 

 

Other Owner Information 
Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

 



June 30th, 2023 
Commissioner Inyo County 
 
Subject: Request for Transfer of Cannabis License Ownership 
 
Dear Commissioner, 
 
I am wri/ng to formally request the transfer of ownership of our cannabis license to Larry Lai, a 
trusted business owner, and qualified individual. I would like to provide you with a 
comprehensive overview of our inten/ons and the qualifica/ons of the prospec/ve new owner. 
Due to personal health issues and pressing family maAers, I find it necessary to transfer 
ownership of our business.  
 
These circumstances demand my full aAen/on and presence, making it challenging for me to 
con/nue managing the opera/ons effec/vely. AEer careful considera/on, we believe that 
transferring ownership to Larry Lai will ensure the con/nued success and growth of our 
business while priori/zing the well-being of our stakeholders. 
 
Larry Lai brings a wealth of experience and exper/se that will contribute to the con/nued 
success of the business. I would like to outline his professional background to assure you of his 
qualifica/ons: 
 
Financial Industry Experience: Larry has accumulated morn than 30 years of experience working 
in the financial industry, including posi/ons at esteemed ins/tu/ons such as Ci/Group. This 
exposure has provided him with a solid founda/on in finance, risk management, and business 
growth strategies. His financial acumen will be instrumental in maintaining the stability and 
profitability of our business. 
 
Management Skills: Over the course of his career, Larry has consistently demonstrated 
excep/onal management skills. He has successfully led teams, coordinated opera/ons, and 
implemented effec/ve business strategies that have resulted in streamlined processes, 
increased produc/vity, and overall organiza/onal success. Larry's strong leadership abili/es will 
ensure a smooth transi/on and con/nued growth for our business. 
 
Regulatory Compliance: Larry understands the significance of maintaining strict compliance with 
all relevant laws and regula/ons governing the cannabis industry. He is fully commiAed to 
upholding the highest ethical standards and ensuring that our business operates within the 
boundaries of the law. With his me/culous aAen/on to detail and dedica/on to regulatory 
compliance, we are confident that our opera/ons will con/nue to meet and exceed all 
requirements. 
 
We are fully commiAed to facilita/ng a seamless transi/on that minimizes disrup/ons and 
maintains business con/nuity. Our priority is to safeguard the interests of our employees, 
customers, suppliers, and all other stakeholders. We will work closely with Larry to ensure that 



all contractual obliga/ons are met and that our opera/ons con/nue to run smoothly under his 
leadership. 
 
If you require any addi/onal informa/on or have any specific inquiries regarding this transfer of 
ownership, please do not hesitate to contact us. We are more than willing to address any 
concerns and provide any further documenta/on that may be required. 
 
Thank you for your aAen/on to this maAer, and we sincerely appreciate your support and 
guidance throughout this process. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Vincent Lin 
Nanofarms Group 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4121  

 

Emergency Medical Services Update 
County Administrator 

 NO ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
This is an informational item, however, the Board may provide direction to staff as appropriate. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On July 24, 2023 Inyo County signed a 30-day agreement for 911 Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
with REACH Air Medical Services (Cal-Ore Life Flight dba Sierra Lifeflight). This agreement comes on 
the heels of a 90-day EMS agreement with Coast 2 Coast Public Safety (C2C), which was the winning 
responder to a Request for Proposals (RFP) released by the County in March. The RFP itself was 
developed in response to longtime EMS provider Symons Ambulance ceasing its operations for the 
Bishop area and relinquishing its hold on an Exclusive Operating Area agreement with the Inland 
Counties Emergency Medical Agency (ICEMA). 
 
The 90-day agreement with C2C expired July 23, 2023 – a week before the company announced it could 
not continue providing EMS services to the greater Bishop area without a subsidy. A C2C representative 
told the Inyo County Board of Supervisors at its July 18, 2023 meeting that the company was not able to 
bring in the revenue it had initially anticipated, due to the newly non-exclusive nature of the Operating 
Area around Bishop. Prior to C2C’s announcement, the County was prepared to renew the C2C EMS 
contract through December, 2024 while the search for and analysis of long-term options were in 
progress. However, C2C’s announcement came with the news that it could only continue to operate with 
some form of financial assurance – effectively $60,000/mo. –  which would cover their operating costs 
and payroll. 
  
The Board of Supervisors discussed the situation at length during its July 18, 2023 – receiving feedback 
from volunteer ambulance providers, hospital emergency department heads, and others in the process – 
and made clear its bottom line was maintaining ambulance service for its constituents. Given the time 
constraints, County staff underwent the informal bidding process outlined in the County’s Purchasing 
Policy, seeking bids from parties interested in stepping in to provide EMS for a 30-day period while a full 
RFP could be developed and released. Both of these activities took place on July 20, 2023. 
  
The County received two bids: one from C2C and one from REACH/Sierra Lifeflight. While C2C 
submitted the preferred proposal, the firm ultimately withdrew its bid upon learning of competition for the 
contract. The County subsequently entered into a 30-day agreement with the other respondent, REACH, 
for a cost of $25,000. This contract was active through August 22, 2023.   

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
Responses to the RFP for interim EMS service (from August 22, 2023 - December 31, 2024) were 
received on August 7th. Since then, County and City officials have reviewed proposals and initiated 
contract negotiations. However, given the nature and complexity of the agreement, the parties need 
additional time to answer key questions which will allow for the further refinement of terms for service 
delivery. 
 
On Tuesday, August 15th, 2003, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors authorized a 30-day contract 
extension with Sierra Lifeflight for an additional 30 days - through September 22, 2023 - for $15,000. 
 
Staff has been working to bring an item forward for this Board of Supervisors meeting to more fully 
discuss the proposals as well as a recommendation, though due to ongoing negotiations being 
overwhelmed with other emergent priorities, a more complete discussion will be coming back at a future 
Board meeting. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit N/A 

Budgeted? N/A Object Code N/A 
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
N/A 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
N/A 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
This is an informational item only.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Nate Greenberg Created/Initiated - 8/30/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/30/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/30/2023 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4122  

 

Tropical Storm Hillary Update 
County Administrator 

 NO ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer, 

Mikaela Torres, Emergency Services Manager, Tim 
Bachman, Lieutenant, Shannon Platt, Deputy 
Director - Roads, Anna Scott, HHS Deputy Director 
- Public Health 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
This is an informational item, however, the Board may provide direction to staff as appropriate. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On Saturday, August 19th, Hurricane Hiillary (since downgraded to a Tropical Storm) began impacting 
Inyo County with localized rain and flooding. By the early hours of Monday, August 21st, the storm had 
created widespread impacts throughout the southern and eastern portions of Inyo County. Highway 395 
was closed for nearly 24 hours between Bishop and Pearsonville due to flashflooding, causing the 
County to reduce services in many of locations. Extreme runoff in several Sierra Nevada creeks 
exceeded flows realized during the spring and runoff season, causing significant flooding and associated 
infrastructure impacts around the Lone Pine community and Tribal lands, as well as destroying nearly a 
mile of Whitney Portal Road. Additional impacts to major travel routes into Death Valley National Park 
stranded the communities of Keeler, Darwin, Panamint Springs, and the entirety of Park. Though much 
of the response efforts have subsided at this point, the County (and other partner agencies) are very 
much in recovery mode.  
 
This item will allow staff to provide the Board and public with an informational overview of our response 
and recovery efforts over the past week, and the anticipated path ahead. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit N/A 

Budgeted? N/A Object Code N/A 
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
There is no immediate fiscal impact from this item. Future item(s) will be brought forward with respect to 
appropriating funds to cover recovery efforts. 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
This is an informational item only. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Nate Greenberg Created/Initiated - 8/30/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/30/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 8/30/2023 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4051  

 

Presentation on Regional Air Service and the Bishop 
Airport from Inyo County Airport Management, Mammoth 

Lakes Tourism, and Airplanners Consultants 
Public Works 

 NO ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Ashley Helms, Deputy Public Works Director - 
Airports 

Ashley Helms, Deputy Public Works Director - 
Airports 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive joint presentation on regional air service and the Bishop Airport. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
This joint presentation will include a historical summary of air service to the eastern Sierra region, a case 
study of air service at the Montrose Regional Airport, and a look forward to growth 
opportunities.  Mammoth Lakes Tourism Director John Urdi and representatives from the Airplanners will 
participate in the presentation and be available to answer questions.  The Airplanners consultants have 
extensive air service development experience in our region as well as in similar markets throughout the 
mountain west. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

 Budget Unit  

Budgeted?  Object Code  
Recurrence   
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:  
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Mammoth Lakes Tourism 
Mammoth Mountain Ski Area 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Air Service Presentation 
  
APPROVALS: 
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 8/7/2023 
Ashley Helms Approved - 8/7/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/8/2023 
Ashley Helms Approved - 8/31/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 8/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





2005-2010

Inyo County works with DWP and 
receives an airport easement in 

2010, which guarantees the land 
can be used as an airport 

indefinitely.  

This allows BIH to receive AIP grants 
to begin making much needed 

facility upgrades. 

2012 – 2014

Inyo County recognizes the need for 
reliable air service to the region to 
facilitate economic development 

(unmet need). IC reaches out to the 
FAA to discuss the potential of 

commercial air service at BIH. FAA 
recommends coordination with 

TOML on a regional solution.

2015

Coordination between IC and TOML 
begins.  The Eastern Sierra Council 
of Governments (ESCOG) discusses 

and supports working towards a 
regional solution for air service.  IC 
completes FAA funded signage and 

lighting upgrades at BIH.

2016

Upon request, FAA visits in 
7/2016.  ESCOG creates MIAWG 
(Mammoth Inyo Airport Working 

Group) to discuss regional air 
service solutions. IC completes FAA 

funded pavement rehabilitation, 
runway and taxiway markings and 

security fence project.

2017

In February Allegiant Air sends FAA 
a Letter of Interest regarding 

potential commercial flights to 
BIH. Later in the year Mammoth 

Lakes Tourism (MLT) hires a 
consultant to complete a 10 year 

“Eastern Sierra Strategic Air Service 
Plan”.

2018

In January IC and TOML adopt and 
sign a Statement of Intent for 

Reliable and Expanded Commercial 
Air Service. It is sent to the FAA, and 
the FAA returns to visit each airport. 

Shortly after this visit, MMSA voices 
support for commercial service at 
BIH, with financial support from 

MLT and the TBID.

2019

United Airlines submits a Letter of 
Intent to start commercial air 

service at BIH.  Monthly meetings 
begin with TOML, IC and FAA (both 
ADO’s and Regional Office) to work 
towards commercial service at BIH, 
EA started, AIP grants for taxiway 

and Runway 12-30 pavement 
rehabilitation projects at BIH.

2021

United Airlines shifts its service 
from MMH to BIH starting 

December 2021.

 

Inyo County – BIH Evolution



Historical Timeline of Winter Service to MMH (2008 – 2016)

Winter ‘08/09

Alaska:

LAX 2x daily

SJC daily

Winter 
‘09/10

Alaska:

Adds RNO daily

Winter 
‘10/11

Alaska:

Drops RNO

United:

Adds SFO daily

Subsidy:  $71,590

Winter 
’11/12

Alaska:

Drops SJC

United:

Adds SNA 4x/week 

Subsidy:  $623,818

Winter 
‘12/13

Alaska:

LAX only 2x daily

United:  

Adds SAN daily

Subsidy:  $2,791,160

Winter 
‘13/14

Alaska:

Adds SAN daily

United:

Drops SAN, ups

SFO to 11x/week

Subsidy:  $2,957,303

Winter 
‘14/15

Alaska:

Adds LAS 2x/week

United:

Drops SNA

Adds DEN (Sat only)

Subsidy:  $1,731,231

Winter 
‘15/16

Alaska:

Drops LAS

Keeps LAX & SAN

United:

SFO daily + 

DEN (Sat only) 

Subsidy:  $607,058



Historical Timeline of Winter Service to MMH/BIH (2017 – 2023)

Winter       
‘16/17

Alaska:

LAX & SAN

United:

Drops DEN

Continues SFO daily

JSX:

Adds BUR 4x/week

Subsidy:  $1,086,255

Winter 
‘17/18

Alaska:

LAX & SAN

United:

SFO Daily

JSX:

BUR 4x/week.

Subsidy:  $1,694,783

Winter 
‘18/19

Alaska:

Exits MMH Nov 30

United:

Adds LAX Dec 1

Adds DEN daily 

JSX:

Adds SNA

Subsidy:  $1,480,000

Winter 
‘19/20

United:

Continues LAX, SFO 
& DEN.

JSX:  

BUR & SNA

All flights 
suspended March 
2020

Subsidy:  $2,144,376

Winter 
‘20/21

Winter service was 
loaded but then 
dropped due to the 
pandemic / state 
health orders.

Winter 
’21/22

United:

Moves all flights 
(LAX, SFO & DEN) 
to BIH.

Advanced Air:

Adds HHR, BUR & 
CLD into MMH.

 

Subsidy: $2,199,720

Winter 
‘22/23

United:

Drops LAX 

Keeps DEN daily + 
SFO 5-7x/week.

Advanced Air:

Continues HHR, 
BUR & CLD into 
MMH.

Subsidy:  $2,207,310

Winter 
‘23/24

United:

To continue daily 
DEN & SFO to BIH, 
expected aircraft 
upgrade to E175.

Advanced Air:

Plans to drop BUR 
but continue HHR & 
CLD into MMH.



Historical Timeline of Spring, Summer, Fall (SSF) Service to 
MMH/BIH (2009 – 2023)

2009

Alaska:

LAX daily 
year-
round

2010

Alaska:

LAX daily 
year-
round

Subsidy:  
$591,000

2011

Alaska:

LAX daily 
year-
round 

Subsidy:  
$849,000

2012

Alaska:

LAX daily 
year-
round

Subsidy:  
$775,000

2013

Alaska:

LAX daily 
year-
round

Subsidy:  
$854,114

2014

Alaska:

LAX daily 
year-
round

Subsidy:  
$865,264

2015

Alaska:

LAX daily 
year-
round

Subsidy:  
$641,192

2016

Alaska:

Reduces 
spring to 
4x/week, 
keeps LAX 
daily thru 
summer & 
fall.

Subsidy:  
$672,207

2017

Alaska:

LAX daily 
year-
round

Subsidy:  
$845,009

2018

Alaska:

LAX daily 
until Nov 
30, 2018

Subsidy:  
$1,193,677

2019

United:

LAX daily 
year-
round 

Subsidy:  
$721,568

2020

All service 
suspended
due to 
pandemic.

2021

All service 
suspended 
until mid-
December

2022

United:

SFO-BIH 
6x/week 
summer

Advanced:

HHR/CLD 
to MMH

Subsidy:  
$1,441,483

2023

United:

SFO-BIH 
daily 
summer

Advanced:

HHR/CLD 
to MMH

Subsidy:  
TBD





Key Factor for BIH’s Success – 
SUPERIOR RELIABILITY!

 Until ~2020, the two worst mountain airports for reliability were SUN & MMH.
 SUN used satellite-based navigation to improve reliability starting in 2020; United Express 

relocated operations to BIH starting in December, 2021.



MMH/BIH TRENDS – 
Winter (Q1-Jan-Mar) 
Load Factors

 Total seats on United into BIH 
was fully restored to pre-
pandemic levels at MMH in Q1 
2022, but one-third of those 
seats were lost last winter when 
LAX was cut.

 Yet total passengers flown was 
still comparable to 2019, 2020 
& 2022.

 Importantly, last winter saw 
United’s best overall load 
factors ever into MMH or BIH.



MMH/BIH TRENDS – 
Summer (Q3 – Jul-Sep) 
Load Factors

 LAX-MMH was marginally 
successful with load factors in 
the mid-50’s when flown by 
either Alaska in 2018 or United 
Express in 2019.

 SFO-BIH has been struggling 
these past two summers with 
load factors in the low-40’s.



MMH/BIH TRENDS – 
Winter Load Factors

 This is how Q1 load factors at 
MMH/BIH have compared to 
nine other peer airports.

 The good news is that BIH has 
nearly caught up to the pack 
Yet total passengers flown 
was comparable to 2019, 
2020 & 2022.



MMH/BIH TRENDS – 
Summer Load Factors

 This is how Q3 load factors 
at MMH/BIH have compared 
to nine other peer airports.

 Unfortunately, this level of 
performance is considerably 
behind those of other 
mountain airports.



A REGIONAL COOPERATION

Eastern Sierra Air Alliance



CASE STUDY: MTJ & BIH

Montrose Regional Airport 

Located in Montrose County

68 miles from Telluride Ski Resort (San 
Miguel County)

10 miles from Black Canyon National Park

36 miles to world class climbing (e.g.
Ouray, Via Ferrata)

Telluride Regional Airport 10 minutes to 
Telluride

Larger regional airport 2.5 hours away 
(GJT)

Eastern Sierra Regional Airport

Located in Inyo County

45 miles to Mammoth Mountain Resort 
(Mono County)

160 miles to Death Valley National Park 

18 miles to world class climbing (e.g.
Owens River Gorge)

Mammoth Regional Airport 10 minutes to 
Mammoth

Larger regional/metro airport 3 hours 
away (RNO) 



CASE STUDY: 
MTJ & BIH

• In the early 1990’s, the 
Telluride destination was looking 
to expand air access to the 
region. 

While still prioritizing but 
recognizing aircraft  and 
reliability limits of the mountain 
Telluride Airport, stakeholders 
engaged and began focusing 
resources to the Montrose 
Airport, 68 miles up the road in 
the neighboring county, with the 
ability to take mainline aircraft 
and long-haul flights.



• Over the next 30 years, TEX 
ran into the forecast aircraft 
challenges while still remaining 
a key player, and MTJ grew into 
the primary regional airport in 
the region.

CASE STUDY: MTJ & BIH



• Concerns were voiced that 
Montrose County was not 
realizing the benefit of the 
growing air service, with the 
passengers and revenues flowing 
up to the resort that was initially 
driving service and traffic.
• A study was undertaken that 
demonstrated otherwise

• RRC and CU Leeds School of Business

CASE STUDY: MTJ & BIH



CASE STUDY: 
-MONTROSE COUNTY & TELLURIDE 
-INYO COUNTY & MAMMOTH

• Though Direct and Indirect Effects, it was discovered that 
approximately 30% of economic benefit and job creation 
remained or flowed back to the airport’s host county.



• The overall tax trends in 
Montrose County mirror almost 
exactly that of the air service, 
showing its contribution to the 
broader economic base outside 
of tourism.

CASE STUDY: MTJ & BIH



GOVERNMENTAL

Town of Telluride

Town of Mountain Village

City of Montrose

San Miguel County

Montrose County

STAKEHOLDERS

Telluride Lodging Association

Restaurants & Retail

Telluride Association of Realtors

Activities & Events

Transportation

OPERATING

Montrose Regional Airport

Telluride Regional Airport

Telluride Ski & Golf

Telluride Tourism Board

REGIONAL

Ouray

Ridgway

Norwood

Gunnison/CB

A REGIONAL COOPERATION



The Colorado Flights Alliance supports economic sustainability and vitality on Colorado’s 

western slope through air service development and corresponding programs.

Structure

• Public/private partnership (501c6)

Guiding Principles

• Generate consistent and sustainable air service for the region.

• Optimize air service for regional stakeholders, residents and guests.

• Manage spending to prioritize return-on-investment and overall economic benefit.

• Be responsive to participating communities.

Funding

• 2% Lodging and Restaurant Excise Taxes (Resort Share)

• Government General Fund Contributions

• Public and Private Business Contributions 

Governance

• Board of Directors

• 7 appointed: 3 town government, 2 county or airport, DMO, Resort

• 2 at large: generally focused to contributing industries

.

A REGIONAL COOPERATION



MTJ 
COLLABORATION

• County Funding:

The counties handle the 
capital improvements and 
operations of the airports.

• MTJ Airport recently undertook 
a $47 million expansion and 
renovation, with significant 
federal support.

• The return on investment for 
the county and region is direct 
and immediate.



BUILDING TO 
YEAR-ROUND

• Build service with your core 
driver in your core seasons

• Extend seasons as demand 
and local usage grow

• Diversify the traffic drivers 
by season, local, 
destination, industry

• Success begets success: as more service options come online, more local and 
destination passenger use the flights throughout the year



INYO COUNTY 
ECONOMIC OUTLOOK
• With Leisure and Hospitality already generating 
the largest share of Inyo County revenue and 
employment base, CA’s second largest county is 
perfectly positioned to generate additional direct 
economic benefit from added air traffic with its world 
class attractions, as well as indirect traffic from 
visitation headed to Mono County, Yosemite, etc.

• World Class Rock Climbing

• Mt. Whitney

• Death Valley National Park

• Kings Canyon and Sequoia National Park

• Manzanar

• The added benefit of these attractions to the county is that 
they run counter to the heavy demand periods of winter for the 
mountain resort. This will help sustain air service to more seasonal 
year-round and eventual year-round service, which in turn helps 
accelerate air service growth.

• Climbers visiting Bishop/Inyo 
County currently spend an 
estimated $15.6 million 
dollars annually in Bishop and 
Inyo County in a typical year.

• Death Valley will see 1.2 
million visitors this year. 



BIH AVIATION 
& ECONOMIC 
FORECAST

• The graph to the right
provides rough estimates
of economic benefit for
Inyo with growing air
service at BIH

• Factors include an adjusted BIH
aviation forecast, spending 
generated by surveys at BIH, and 
ratios from the MTJ case study

Year Enplanements
Estimated Regional 
Economic Benefit

Estimated Benefit to 
Inyo County/Bishop

2022 10,652 $28,930,832 $8,679,250 

2023 11,000 $29,876,000 $8,962,800 

2024 16,000 $43,456,000 $13,036,800 

2025 25,000 $67,900,000 $20,370,000 

2026 35,000 $95,060,000 $28,518,000 

2027 45,000 $122,220,000 $36,666,000 

2028 50,092 $136,049,872 $40,814,962 

2029 51,160 $138,950,560 $41,685,168 

2030 51,265 $139,235,740 $41,770,722 

2031 51,655 $140,294,980 $42,088,494 

2032 51,921 $141,017,436 $42,305,231 

2033 52,480 $142,535,680 $42,760,704 



The Future at BIH

• Through long-term collaboration among local 
partners, new satellite-based systems go live 
October 5 …

• …and the E175 is expected to start serving 
BIH in December.

• BIH now set up to realize growth similar to 
MTJ and other mountain airports. 



NEXT STEPS: BIH & the FAA

 Fantastic support and collaboration with the FAA

 FAA Airport Terminal Program (ATP)
• Allocating $1 billion annually for 5 years
• Up to 95% federal funding with 5% local match
• Last chance to apply in fall 2025
• Very competitive – “Shovel Ready” projects preferred
• Doesn’t count against $20 million cap for FAA terminal funding

 Next step $2 million for the Project through the 2023 
Appropriations Bill
• Grant for the planning phase: Demand study, environmental 

assessment, preliminary design

 Future Need  Local match for construction



A REGIONAL COOPERATION

THANK YOU



August 17, 2023

Inyo County Board of Supervisors
P.O Drawer N
Independence, CA 93526

Re:   Printed Copies of the Fishing Regulations Booklet

Dear Board of Supervisors

The Inyo County Fish and Wildlife Advisory Commission requests the Board consider asking the California Fish 
and Wildlife Commission to reinstate the printed copies of the California Fishing Regulations Booklet.  The 
Commission recognizes that the Department eliminated the printed booklets several years ago.  Since the 
decision, individuals and businesses in the Eastern Sierra have recognized a need for printed booklets.   The 
Commission could consider printing fewer quantities of the booklet and make it available to people and 
organizations that request them.  They could charge mailing costs similar to the California Dept. of Motor 
Vehicles method of providing hard copies of their driving practice test booklets to individuals who request them.

The Commission, by taking this step, will fill a void which is affecting populations of California citizens and 
tourists that don’t have or can’t access the necessary electronic devices required to get the Regulations digitally.   

The Inyo County Fish and Wildlife Advisory Commission believes this is a matter that should be addressed by 
the State Department of Fish and Wildlife to ensure that the California residents and visitors, who enjoy fishing 
have the best fishing experience.  
   

 

Sincerely,

ES

Doug Brown, Chairperson

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
DOUGLAS BROWN   

STEVE IVEY    
WARRAN ALLSUP

G A Y E  M U E L L E R
J A R R O D  S M I T H

A L T E R N A T E  M E M B E R
N I C K  L A R A

 
 

INYO COUNTY
FISH AND WILDLIFE COMMISSION

787 NORTH MAIN STREET STE 220 
BISHOP, CA 93514

REPLY TO:     

Pat Gunsolley, Secretary
4801 Alison Lane
Bishop, CA  93514
pgunsolley@gmail.com



Amy Shepherd
Auditor- Controller

ashepherd@inyocounty.us

(760) 878-0343
(760) 872-2700
(760) 876-5559

FM: (760) 878-0391 CoururY oF lruvo

CHRISTIE MARTINDALE
Assistant Auditor-Controller
cmartindale@inyocou ntv. us

HEATHER WLLIAMS
Management Analyst

hwilliams@rnyocounly. us

KORTNIGIRARDIN
Payroll Manager

kqirardin@inyocountv.us

SHIELA WARD
Administrative Analyst
sward@invocou ntv. us

RUSTY HUERTA
Office Technician lll

rhuerta@invocountv. us

CYNTHIA OROZCO
Office Technician ll

corozco@inyocou ntv. us

MARISSA SILVAS
Office Technician lll

msilvas@invocou ntv. us

GRAE BIGGS
Office Technician i

qbiqq@invocountv. us

Orrtce oF THE Auotron-CoNTRoLLER
P. O. Drawer R

Independence, California 93526

August 24,2023

Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Inyo
Independence, Calif. 93526

Honorable Board Members:

In Accordance with Section and26920 of the Government Code and your

orders of February 5, 1950 and January 3,1956, an actual count of money in the

hands of the Treasurer was made on this date. The count showed the funds to be

in balance, pending written verification of inactive accounts.

Very Truly Yours,

Amy Shepherd
Auditor-Controller

Deputy
Marissa vas
By:



STATEMENT
MONEY IN COUNTY TREASURY

FOR MARCH 22, 2023-JUNE 30, 2023

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF INYO
The undersigned, County Auditor, having counted the money in the County Treasury of said
county, as required by section 26920 of the Government code, and being duly sworn on oath,
makes the following report for the period ending June 30, 2023

Amount of money that should be in the treasury on June 30, 2023

County Auditor

Subscribed and ba+r A*g*, AoAa.day of

of Supervisors

is s189.093 815.06
Recei pts Ir om 032223-063023 s87.889.435.30
(Less paid warrants) Amouni actuallv therein is ($62.376 227.s3\
Active Balance s12.479 094 49
BANK DEP ON HAND s0.00
BMO MONEY MARKET s5.004.623 29
LAIF s35.000.000.00
UBS MONEY MARKET s3 500 000 00
LOCAL AGENCY DEBT $228.979 68
FEDERAL AGENCIES s127 000.000.00
FA-TREASURY NOTES/BONDS s0 00
COMMERICAL PAPERS $17.436.490 00

ORPORATE OBLIGATION $2.000.000.00
CD $6.941.000.00
US BANK MONEY MARKET $6.372.583.29
CHECKS
CURRENCY $28.697.00
SILVER $35.12

214.607.022.83 s215.991.502.87

O3/21i23 REMOTE DEPOSIT IN TRANSIT ($1 .040 928 41 )
03121 123 ED97O3: POOLED DEPOSIT TXFER-cK#216'l

06/30/23 AUD PY: PIONEER PERS-PEPRA 2745e ($406.1 2)
06/30/23 AUD PY: PIONEER PERS-CLASS|C 969 rs1 930 88\
06/30/23 AUD PY: PERS-PEPRA 26010 114.69'1.26)
06/30/23 AUD PY: PERS-CLASSIC 20 1$68 973 01 r
06/30/23 AUD PY: PERS-CLASStC 21

06/30/23 AUD PY: PERS,PEPRA 25015 $12.744.06\
06/30/23 AUD PY: PERS SIP ($15.1 73.57)
06/30/23 CUSIP #31 846V567.SETTLEMENT ($86.250,00)

06/01/23 US BANK: CK#137.10 PROCESSED AS DEBIT AD $49.76
DIFFERENCE TOTALS ($1.384.480.04)

{
c Assistant

NTY



ACTIVE ACCOUNTS

BANK OF MONTREAL
US BANK
EASTERN SIERM COMM BK
EL DORADO SAVINGS BANK
EL DORADO SAVINGS BANK

INACTIVE ACCOUNTS
BANK DEP ON HAND
LAIF
BMO MONEY MARKET
UBS MONEY MARKET
LOCAL AGENCY DEBT
FEDERAL AGENCIES
FA.TREASURY NOTES/BONDS
COMMERICAL PAPERS
CORPORATE OBLIGATION
CD
US BANK MONEY MARKET
CHECKS
CURRENCY
SILVER

CTJRRENCY: DRAWER

$5,663.896.60
$1,718,506.95
$4,985,906.44

$10,000.00
$1 00,784.50

VAULT

2.700.o1
500.00

24.600.00
100.00
225 00

2'S,125.00

DATE
BALANCE

RECE'FTS r RAM 1221 A4S212e
SUBTOTAL

LESS PAID WARMNTS
LESS PAID WARRANTS DATED 0312123

TOTAL

06130123

$189,093,81 5.06
$87,889,435.30

$276,983,250.36

BANK BALANCES VERIFIED
OUTSIDE SOURCES

BANK OF MONTREAL
ACCT#2070407

$9,1 17,915.52

US BANK
ACCT#1 583001 80045
800-798-6466
FAX#800-898-2329
INTERNET PRINT OUT

s1 ,700.561.81

El Dorado Savings Bank
ACCT#24-32-O29703

$101,063.50

El Dorado Savings Bank
ACCT#24-30-52107

$10,000.00

Eastern Sierra Comm BK
ACCT# 6'106463

s5.032.1 19.51

GRAND TOTAL

100's
50's
20's
10's
5'S
2'S
1'S

360.00
100.oo

85.00

27.Ot

572.00

$20.

$10.90
$2.60
${. 1l

SUB TOTAL:
SILVER:
DOLLARS
HALVES
QTRS
DIMES
NICKELS
PENNIES

SUB TOTAL:

GRAND TOTAL:

$35.12 go.o0

607.12 28,{25.00

502.87



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 5, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3923  

 

Treasurer-Tax Collector - Treasury Status Report for the 
Quarter Ending June 30, 2023 

Treasurer-Tax Collector 
 NO ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Moana Chapman Alisha McMurtrie, Treasurer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Review Treasury Status Report for the Quarter Ending June 30, 2023, and direct any questions to the 
County Treasurer. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The report is provided pursuant to the provisions of Section 53646(b) of the Government Code. The 
primary purposes of the report are to disclose the following: 
 

• the investments and deposits of the treasury; 
• the cost basis and market value of the investments; 
• compliance with the County Investment Policy; 
• the weighted average of the investments; and 
• the projected ability of the treasury to meet the expected expenditure requirements of the 

treasury's pooled participants for the next six months. 
 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Pursuant to Section 53646(g) of the Government Code, copies of this report, while no longer mandated, 
will continue to be provided to the members of the Treasury Oversight Committee. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 06-30-2023 Treasury Status Report 
  
APPROVALS: 
Moana Chapman Created/Initiated - 6/28/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/1/2023 
Moana Chapman Approved - 8/4/2023 
Alisha McMurtrie Final Approval - 8/9/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
TO:                 Honorable Members of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
FROM:           Alisha McMurtrie, Treasurer-Tax Collector 
SUBJECT:     Report of the Status of the Inyo County Treasury as of: June 30, 2023  
DATE:           July 14, 2023 
 
The following status report of the County Treasury as of 06-30-2023 is provided pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 53646(b) of the Government Code. 
 
The attached copy of the “Treasurer’s Daily Reconciliation” provides a breakdown of the dollar 
amount of the Treasury assets by depository for monetary assets and by issuer for securities. 
 
The attached copy of the custody statement from TRACKER, a Division of C2, LLC reflects, 
among other things, the following information regarding each security held: issuer, maturity date; 
CUSIP number; face amount; cost basis; and market value (calculated by Merrill Lynch). 
 
The weighted average maturity of the investments of the Treasury was 556 days. 
 
The latest PARS/OPEB investment statement is attached for reference. 
 
It is anticipated that the County Treasury will be able to meet the liquidity requirements of its 
pooled participants for the next six months. 
 
The investment portfolio is in compliance with the Inyo County Treasury Investment Policy. 
 
NOTES:  Regarding Inyo County’s monetary assets held outside the County Treasury:     

 Various Inyo County Departments and treasury pool participants maintain and 
administer bank checking accounts outside the County Treasury. 

 Inyo County’s PARS relationship for our OPEB investment began in June 2010. To 
date: the PARS balance as of:  06/30/2023 was $10,329,375.97 (Principal: 
$10,018,306.55 plus Contributions:  $00.00 plus Interest: $313,507.77 less Fees:        
$-2,438.35) 

 
 
 
C: Members of the Inyo County Treasury Oversight Committee 

 
 

COUNTY OF INYO 
TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 

168 NORTH EDWARDS STREET 
POST OFFICE DRAWER O 

INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526-0614 
(760) 878-0312  (760) 878-0311 FAX 

ALISHA McMURTRIE 

TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 

 
 

 



$220,472,159.13

$519,250.54

6/29/2023 $0.00
($179,571.44)

$0.00

($5,163,211.99)

$215,648,626.24

Drawer $607.12
Vault $28,125.00

CHECKS ON HAND:
Date:
Date:
Date:
Date:
Date:
Date:
Date:

Bank of Montreal #0407 General Account $5,663,896.60

U.S. Bank #0045 General Account $1,718,506.95

$4,985,906.44

$10,000.00

$100,784.50

Agency Limit
$35,000,000.00 50,000,000
$5,004,623.29 2.32% of 5.00%
$3,500,000.00 1.62% of 5.00%
$6,372,583.29 2.96% of 5.00%
$6,941,000.00 3.22% of 30.00%
$17,436,490.00 8.09% of 15.00%
$2,000,000.00 0.93% of 30.00%

$127,000,000.00 58.89% of 100.00%
$0.00 0.00% of 100.00%

$228,979.68 0.11% of 100.00%
$203,483,676.26

112,430,421.56$ 52.14% of 60.00%

$215,991,502.87

$342,876.63

$406.12
$1,930.88

$114,691.26
$68,973.01
$42,757.49
$12,744.06
$15,173.57
$86,250.00

($49.76)

$342,876.63

Moana Chapman

06/30/23 CUSIP #31846V567 SETTLEMENT

06/30/23 AUD PY: PERS PEPRA 26010
06/30/23 AUD PY: PERS CLASSIC 20
06/30/23 AUD PY: PERS CLASSIC 21

06/01/23 U.S. BANK: CK#13710 PROCESSED AS DEBIT ADJUSTMENT
AND NOT AS POSITIVE PAY. REJECTED 06/02/23. AWAITING RESPONSE
FROM U.S. BANK FOR CORRECTION.

06/30/23 AUD PY: PERS SIP

Local Agency Investment Fund
BMOMoneyMarket

El Dorado #2107 Directs Account

INVESTMENTS:

CDs

UBS MoneyMarket

CASH ON HAND:

Federal Agencies Treasury Notes/Bonds
Local Agencies

Commercial Paper

Federal Agencies
Corporate Obligation

Prepared By:  

Explanation: 06/30/23 AUD PY: PIONEER PERS PEPRA 27459
06/30/23 AUD PY: PIONEER PERS CLASSIC 969

06/30/23 AUD PY: PERS PEPRA 25015

06/30/2023 SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A" FOR OUTGOING
DEBIT DETAILS

TREASURER'S DAILY RECONCILIATION
For the Business Day of:

6/30/2023

AUDITOR BALANCES:

Beginning "Claim on Cash in Treasury"

Checks Paid on:

Deposit Authorizations

Outgoing Debits:

U.S. BANK
BMOHARRIS BANK

Journal Entry:

TREASURER BALANCES:

Ending "Claim on Cash in Treasury"

BANK ACCOUNTS:

Eastern Sierra CB #6463 General

El Dorado #9703 Cash Account

NOTES

Grand TTL Investments

Treasury Over/Short:

GRAND TOTAL TREASURY BALANCE:

Maturities > 1 Year

RECONCILIATION

U.S. Bank MoneyMarket



Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($2,178.86) TREASURER'S DAILY RECONCILIATION
Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($5,281.16) For the Business Day of 
Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($647.24)
Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($397.96)  6/29/2023
Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($7,640.50)
Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($683.20)
Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($254.50)
Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($4,073.83)
Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($893.30)
Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($616.12)
Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($287.78)
Aud PY SD Federal Taxes ($788.64)
Aud PY Special District PY ($63,118.76)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($23.26)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($30.00)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($22.98)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($28.53)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($557.09)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($281.10)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($562.29)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($16.36)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($14.21)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($924.76)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($21.21)
Aud PY SD State Taxes ($14.21)
Aud PY CASDU ($1,763.51)
Aud PY EMPOWER ($1,960.00)
Aud PY VALIC ($2,280.00)
Aud PY ORION ($5,275.39)
Aud PY MISSION SQUARE ($6,737.14)
ICOE PY College Bridge Academy ($5,859.89)
ICOE PY The Education Corps ($5,792.36)
ICOE PY College Bridge Academy ($1,595.60)
ICOE PY The Education Corps ($1,497.24)
ICOE PY The Education Corps ($57,511.21)
Auditor Vendor Payment ($13,891.39)
Aud PY Payroll ($14,024.52)
Administration ($39,927.72)
Aud PY State Taxes ($67,782.23)
ICOE PY State Taxes ($101,626.05)
Auditor Corporate Vendor Pmt ($154,244.14)
ICOE PY Youthbuild Charter ($77,315.25)
ICOE PY Youthbuild Charter ($19,506.91)
ICOE PY Youthbuild Charter ($4,530.16)
Aud PY Federal Taxes ($372,276.38)
ICOE PY Federal Taxes ($469,393.97)
Aud PY Payroll ($987,656.41)
ICOE PY PAYROLL ($2,404,730.28)
Aud PY PERS ($15,173.57)
Aud PY PERS ($12,744.06)
Aud PY PERS ($42,757.49)
Aud PY PERS ($68,973.01)
Aud PY PERS ($114,691.26)
Aud PY PERS ($1,930.88)
Aud PY PERS ($406.12)

$0.00
TOTAL ($5,163,211.99)

Prepared and attached by:  Moana Chapman

EXHIBIT "A"
OUTGOING DEBIT DETAILS



1ST FINANCIAL BANK USA 0.45 8/19/2025 32022RNT0 8/19/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 223,204.96 8/19/2025 781
AMERICAN COMMERCE BANK 0.9 3/27/2024 02519TBA3 3/27/2020 0.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 239,992.08 3/27/2024 271
BEAL BANK USA (FKA NEVADA) 2.8 7/26/2023 07371DDC8 7/27/2022 2.800 248,000.00 248,000.00 247,546.16 7/26/2023 26
BMO HARRIS BANK NA 2.75 7/21/2023 05600XHF0 7/21/2022 2.750 248,000.00 248,000.00 247,625.52 7/21/2023 21
CAPITAL ONE BANK USA NA 1.1 11/17/2026 14042TDW4 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 215,586.40 11/17/2026 1,236
CAPITAL ONE NA 1.1 11/17/2026 14042RQB0 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 215,586.40 11/17/2026 1,236
CELTIC BANK 1.85 11/27/2024 15118RTC1 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 235,900.08 11/27/2024 516
CENTERSTATE BANK 1.25 4/30/2025 15201QDE4 4/30/2020 1.250 250,000.00 250,000.00 231,937.50 4/30/2025 670
Citibank National SD 3.4 1/9/2024 17312QZ36 1/9/2019 3.400 245,000.00 245,000.00 242,608.80 1/9/2024 193
EAST BOSTON SAVINGS BANK 0.45 8/12/2025 27113PDP3 8/12/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 223,641.44 8/12/2025 774
ENERBANK USA 1.8 11/22/2023 29278TMN7 11/27/2019 1.800 248,000.00 248,000.00 244,619.76 11/22/2023 145
FIRST CAROLINA BANK 0.45 8/20/2025 31944MBB0 8/20/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 22,292.72 8/20/2025 782
FLAGSTAR BANK 1.15 4/29/2025 33847E3D7 4/29/2020 1.150 245,000.00 245,000.00 226,284.94 4/29/2025 669
GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA 1.1 11/17/2026 38149MK51 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 223,026.40 11/17/2026 1,236
GREENSTATE CREDIT UNION 0.4 8/18/2023 39573LAP3 8/18/2020 0.400 248,000.00 248,000.00 246,405.36 8/18/2023 49
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK NA 3 7/26/2023-23 46593LDJ5 7/26/2022 3.000 248,000.00 248,000.00 247,593.28 7/26/2023 26
LIVE OAK BANKING COMPANY 1.85 11/27/2024 538036GU2 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 235,900.08 11/27/2024 516
LUANA SAVINGS BANK 0.6 5/8/2025 549104PQ4 5/8/2020 0.600 245,000.00 245,000.00 224,290.15 5/8/2025 678
MEDALLION BANK 1.2 4/30/2024 58404DGU9 4/30/2020 1.200 250,000.00 250,000.00 241,500.00 4/30/2024 305
MORGAN STANLEY PRIVATE BANK NA 1.9 11/20/2024 61760A3B3 11/27/2019 1.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 236,274.56 11/20/2024 509
NORTHEAST COMMUNITY BANK 0.45 8/20/2025 664122AF5 8/20/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 223,172.72 8/20/2025 782
PACIFIC WETERN BANK 1.25 4/30/2025 69506YRL5 4/30/2020 1.250 250,000.00 250,000.00 231,937.50 4/30/2025 670
SAFRA NATIONAL BANK OF NEW YORK 2.9 7/27/2023-23 78658RJV4 7/27/2022 2.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 247,561.04 7/27/2023 27
SOMERSET TRUST CO 1 3/19/2025 835104BZ2 3/19/2020 1.000 248,000.00 248,000.00 229,972.88 3/19/2025 628
TEXAS EXCHANGE BANK SSB 2.9 7/21/2023-22 88241TNT3 7/22/2022 2.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 247,667.68 7/21/2023 21

Market Value Maturity Date Days To 
Maturity

Inyo County
Portfolio Holdings
Compliance Report | by Investment Policy
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Category
Average By: Face Amount / Shares
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 6/30/2023

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date YTM Face Amount Cost Value

Certficate of Deposit - 30 %



UBS BANK NA 1.1 11/17/2026 90348JW97 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 215,333.44 11/17/2026 1,236
VIRIVA FCU 1.85 11/27/2024 92823NAA9 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 235,900.08 11/27/2024 516
WELLS FARGO BANK NA 3 7/28/2023 949763X43 7/29/2022 3.000 248,000.00 248,000.00 247,548.64 7/28/2023 28
Sub Total / Average Certficate of Deposit - 30 % 1.569 6,941,000.00 6,941,000.00 6,350,910.57 520

CREDIT AGRI CIB 0 10/16/2023 22533UXG3 1/20/2023 5.086 3,000,000.00 2,890,158.33 2,951,430.00 10/16/2023 108
CREDIT AGRI CIB 0 10/26/2023 22533UXS7 3/30/2023 5.182 5,000,000.00 4,853,291.67 4,911,350.00 10/26/2023 118
MUFG BANK LTD 0 8/24/2023 62479MVQ3 1/20/2023 4.985 6,000,000.00 5,825,760.00 5,954,160.00 8/24/2023 55
NATIXIS NY BRANCH 0 11/22/2023 63873KYN1 3/30/2023 5.213 4,000,000.00 3,867,280.00 3,910,840.00 11/22/2023 145
Sub Total / Average Commercial Paper - 15 % 5.107 18,000,000.00 17,436,490.00 17,727,780.00 101

CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS 3.75 7/20/2023 17330PSX8 7/20/2022 3.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,993,260.00 7/20/2023 20
Sub Total / Average Coporate Obligation - 30 % 3.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,993,260.00 20

FFCB 0.44 11/4/2024-21 3133EMFP2 11/4/2020 0.440 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,806,560.00 11/4/2024 493
FFCB 0.47 1/27/2025-21 3133EMER9 10/27/2020 0.470 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,783,250.00 1/27/2025 577
FFCB 0.52 10/21/2025-21 3133EMDZ2 10/21/2020 0.520 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,718,180.00 10/21/2025 844
FFCB 0.53 10/22/2025-21 3133EMEC2 10/22/2020 0.530 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,718,570.00 10/22/2025 845
FFCB 0.53 8/12/2025-22 3133EL3P7 8/12/2020 0.530 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,647,200.00 8/12/2025 774
FFCB 0.55 9/16/2025-21 3133EL7K4 9/16/2020 0.550 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,546,650.00 9/16/2025 809
FFCB 3.875 4/26/2027 3133EPGT6 4/26/2023 3.875 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,960,820.00 4/26/2027 1,396
FFCB 4.88 1/24/2024-23 3133EN6X3 1/24/2023 4.880 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,990,600.00 1/24/2024 208
FHLB 0.52 1/28/2025-22 3130ANEJ5 7/28/2021 0.520 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,642,000.00 1/28/2025 578
FHLB 0.55 7/30/2024-20 3130AJUN7 7/30/2020 0.550 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,844,990.00 7/30/2024 396
FHLB 0.7 3/16/2026-22 3130ALEP5 3/16/2021 0.700 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,486,050.00 3/16/2026 990
FHLB 0.75 1/29/2025-21 3130ALY65 4/29/2021 0.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,863,500.00 1/29/2025 579
FHLB 0.75 6/30/2025-21 3130AMX31 6/30/2021 0.750 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,758,350.00 6/30/2025 731
FHLB 1 12/30/2024-22 3130AQFN8 12/30/2021 1.000 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,808,660.00 12/30/2024 549
FHLB 1 12/30/2024-22 3130AQ4Z3 12/30/2021 1.000 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,812,620.00 12/30/2024 549
FHLB 1 6/30/2026-21 3130AMT28 6/30/2021 1.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,587,440.00 6/30/2026 1,096
FHLB 1 9/30/2024-22 3130AQD59 12/30/2021 1.000 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,730,950.00 9/30/2024 458
FHLB 1.2 12/22/2025-22 3130AQ5D1 12/22/2021 1.200 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,665,320.00 12/22/2025 906
FHLB 1.2 4/28/2026-21 3130ALXP4 4/28/2021 1.200 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,811,320.00 4/28/2026 1,033
FHLB 1.55 12/22/2026-22 3130AQ5C3 12/22/2021 1.550 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,716,980.00 12/22/2026 1,271
FHLB 5 7/28/2026-23 3130AUMR2 1/30/2023 5.000 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,957,280.00 7/28/2026 1,124

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date YTM Face Amount Cost Value Market Value Maturity Date Days To 

Maturity

Commercial Paper - 15 %

Coporate Obligation - 30 %

Federal Agencies - 100 %



FHLB 5.1 4/24/2028 3134GYQ54 4/24/2023 5.100 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,915,150.00 4/24/2028 1,760
FHLB 5.125 1/26/2024-23 3130AVR87 4/26/2023 5.125 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,990,730.00 1/26/2024 210
FHLB Step 6/16/2026-21 3130AMR46 6/16/2021 8.316 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,708,220.00 6/16/2026 1,082
FHLMC 0.6 11/12/2025-21 3134GXBM5 11/17/2020 0.600 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,722,530.00 11/12/2025 866
FHLMC 0.6 9/30/2025-21 3134GWTG1 9/30/2020 0.600 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,546,150.00 9/30/2025 823
FHLMC 0.62 12/1/2025-21 3134GXDM3 12/1/2020 0.620 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,618,760.00 12/1/2025 885
FHLMC 0.625 8/19/2025-21 3134GWQN9 8/19/2020 0.625 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,739,300.00 8/19/2025 781
FHLMC 0.625 9/23/2025-20 3134GWP75 9/23/2020 0.625 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,551,550.00 9/23/2025 816
FHLMC 5 12/26/2025-23 3134GYAK8 12/30/2022 5.000 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,964,870.00 12/26/2025 910
FHLMC 5.05 1/28/2028-23 3134GYF64 1/30/2023 5.050 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,933,480.00 1/28/2028 1,673
FNMA 0.55 11/4/2025-22 3135GA2N0 11/4/2020 0.550 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,535,100.00 11/4/2025 858
FNMA 0.56 8/21/2025-23 3136G4N74 8/21/2020 0.560 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,721,540.00 8/21/2025 783
FNMA 0.58 10/28/2025-22 3135GA2A8 11/17/2020 0.580 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,720,370.00 10/28/2025 851
FNMA 0.625 7/21/2025-22 3136G4ZJ5 7/21/2020 0.625 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,662,840.00 7/21/2025 752
FNMA 0.7 7/21/2025-21 3136G4ZG1 7/21/2020 0.700 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,657,520.00 7/21/2025 752
Sub Total / Average Federal Agencies - 100 % 1.625 127,000,000.00 127,000,000.00 117,845,400.00 849

LAIF LGIP LAIF4000 9/30/2018 3.167 35,000,000.00 35,000,000.00 35,000,000.00 N/A 1
Sub Total / Average Local Agency Investment Fund - $ 50M 3.167 35,000,000.00 35,000,000.00 35,000,000.00 1

U.S. Bank MM USBANKMM 8/3/2021 4.970 6,372,583.29 6,372,583.29 6,372,583.29 N/A 1
Sub Total / Average U.S. Bank Money Market - 5% 4.970 6,372,583.29 6,372,583.29 6,372,583.29 1

BMO HARRIS BANK NA MM BMO0670 5/23/2023 3.750 5,020,048.50 5,020,048.50 5,020,048.50 N/A 1
UBS Financial MM UBSMM9591 6/30/2018 4.970 3,500,000.00 3,500,000.00 3,500,000.00 N/A 1
Sub Total / Average UBS Money Market - 5 % 4.251 8,520,048.50 8,520,048.50 8,520,048.50 1
Total / Average 2.431 203,833,631.79 203,270,121.79 193,809,982.36 556

U.S. Bank Money Market - 5%

UBS Money Market - 5 %

Local Agency Investment Fund - $ 50M

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date YTM Face Amount Cost Value Market Value Maturity Date Days To 

Maturity



COUNTY OF INYO

PARS OPEB Trust Program 6/1/2023 to 6/30/2023

Nathan Greenberg

County Administrative Officer

County of Inyo

P.O. Drawer N

Independence, CA 93526

Source 6/1/2023 Contributions Earnings Expenses Distributions Transfers 6/30/2023

OPEB 1001 $10,018,306.55 $0.00 $313,507.77 $2,438.35 $0.00 $0.00 $10,329,375.97

Totals $10,018,306.55 $0.00 $313,507.77 $2,438.35 $0.00 $0.00 $10,329,375.97

Source

OPEB

Source

OPEB

Source 1-Month 3-Months 1-Year 3-Years 5-Years 10-Years

OPEB 3.13% 3.05% 7.62% 4.76% 5.05% 5.88% 6/16/2010

Information as provided by US Bank, Trustee for PARS;  Not FDIC Insured;  No Bank Guarantee;  May Lose Value

                                            Headquarters - 4350 Von Karman Ave., Suite 100, Newport Beach, CA 92660     800.540.6369     Fax 949.250.1250     www.pars.org

The dual goals of the Moderate Strategy are growth of principal and income. It is expected that dividend and interest income will comprise a 

significant portion of total return, although growth through capital appreciation is equally important. The portfolio will be allocated between equity 

and fixed income investments.

Plan's Inception Date

Investment Objective

Account Report for the Period

Beginning Balance 

as of 

Investment Selection

Account Summary

Moderate HighMark PLUS

Ending                

Balance as of

Account balances are inclusive of Trust Administration, Trustee and Investment Management fees

Annualized Return

Investment Return:  Annualized rate of return is the return on an investment over a period other than one year multiplied or divided to give a comparable one-year return.

Past performance does not guarantee future results.  Performance returns may not reflect the deduction of applicable fees, which could reduce returns.  Information is deemed reliable but may be subject to change.

Investment Return



State of Galifomia-Transportation Agency GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor

DEPARTMENT OF CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL

469 South Main Street
Bishop, CA 93514
(760) 872-5150
(800) 735-2929 (TT/TDD)
(800) 735-2922 (Yoicel

August 23,2023

File No.: 825.17092.20010

@

ffiCErtExt

AU6 tg,e023

lnvo CuntY Admln8ltalor' 
Clert ol the Boatd

Inyo County Board of Supervisors
P.O. DrawerN
Independence, CA 93526

Dear Board of Supervisors:

The enclosed report is submitted pursuant to Flealth and Safety Code Section25l80.7

(Proposition 65). The report documents information regarding the release of hazardous material

which could cause substantial injury to the public health and safety. The report is submitted on

behalf of all designated employees of the Department of California Highway Patrol.

Sincerely,

C. W. HAMILTON, Captain
Commander
Bishop Area

Enclosure

ffiSafety, Service, and Security An Internationally Accredited Agency



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT OF CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL

INCIDENT ACTION PLAN/SITE SAFETY PLAN
CHP 4071 (New 5-15) OPI 062 Refer to HPM 84.2, Chapter 2

OES CONTROL NUMBER

23-5298

INCIDENT DATE (MM/DDNYYY)

0811912023
INCIDENT OCCURRED ON

INCIDENT Tll,rE (HOURS)

1630

f] nr trurensecroN wrH

X on North of
Dixon Lane

Bishop Creek Canal
AREA DESCRIPTION

Rural area canal waterway owned by Department of Water & Power (LA County)
INCIDENT COMMANDER

B. Gentry, Sergeant, ID 20010

SITE SAFETY OFFICER

CHP Officer L. Roberson, ID 23021

INCIDENT ACTION PLAN

GENERAL INFORMATION o PROTECT LIFE, ENVIRONMENT, AND PROPERTY.

o COMPLY WTH SECTION 5192(q), TITLE 8, CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS.

r IDENTIFY THE INCIDENT COMMANDER AND SAFEry OFFICER.

PROCEDURES FOR HANDLING EMERGENCY INCIDENTS:

X ldentify all hazardous substances or conditions present.

X Based upon identification, implement appropriate operations, and assure use of proper personal protective equipment

I Ensure personnel exposed to inhalation hazard wear a self contained breathing apparatus.

X Limit the number of personnel on-site, but use the buddy system.

I Ensure back-ups and standby emergency medicalservices are available.

fi Designate a safety officer with knowledge of safety operations.

X lmplement appropriate decontamination.

SITE SAFEW PLAN

GENERAL INFORMATION: r PROTECTION OF LIFE lS THE HIGHEST PRlORlry.
o ENSURE ALL PERSONNEL ARE BRIEFED ON OPERATIONS AND SAFEry BEFORE WORK BEGINS.

o NO PERSON SHALL EXCEED THEIR LEVEL OF TRAINING, CAPABILITIES, OR RESOURCES.

Petroleum Crude Oil

CHEIVIICAL./TRADE NAIVIE

CONTAINER TYPE

Other (explain in Comments)
CHEMICAL/TRADE NAME

CONTAINER TYPE

MEDICAL SIGNS OF EXPOSURE:

I NauseaA/omiting

! Dehydration

I Trouble breathing

X Skin irritation

LEVEL OF CONTAINER

Above ground

PHYSICAL STATE
RELEASED

Liquid

PHYSICAL STATE
RELEASED

LEVEL OF CONTAINER

I Dizziness

! Confusion

! Other sym

! Coughing

E Tingling/Numbness of extremities

! Diarrhea

I Unconsciousness

I Anxiety

! Blurred/Double vision

1267

UN
NUMBER

DOT HAZARD
CLASS

J

QUANTITY RELEASED
(LBS_, GAL., ETC.)

l+ Quarts

EXTENT OF RFLEASE

Undetermined

PHYSICAL
STATE STORED

Liquid
coNTAINER CAPACTTY (LBS., GAL., ETC.)

6 Quarts

CONTAINER MATERIAL

Plastic, rigid (includes fiberglass)
UN
NUMBER

DOT HAZARD
CLASS

QUANTITY RELEASED
(LBS., GAL., ETC.)

EXTENT OF RELEASE PHYSICAL
STATE STORED

coNTATNER CAPACTTY (LBS.. GAL., ETC.) CONTAINER MATERIAL

Page 1 of 2 An lnternationally Accredited Agency Chp407l_031 5.pdf



GONTROL ZONES (ESTABLTSH AS AppROpRIATE):

fiHot (Exclusion) Zone:Immediate 5 foot area encompassing the front of the Ford pickup within the waterway

X Warm (Contamination reduction) Zone:Larger 20 foot area e

X Cold (Support) Zone:Larger 50 foot area encompassing the waterway and the dirt path adiacent the canal.

WHEN REQUIRED, ADDRESS THE FOLLOWING:

! Decontamination

! Evacuation Plan

Demobilization Plan:

I Communications

n Medical Assistance Plan

! Emergency Procedures Plan

not to SKETCH
INDICATE NORTH

r.s nof

SAFEry BRIEFING COMPLETED ('IME) INCIDENT COMMANDER NAME, RANK, AND ID NUMBER

B. Gentry,ID 20010

DATE

Page 2 ol 2

1930 HOURS

An lnternationally Accreclited Agency

08/2312023

chp407l_031 5.pdf



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT OF CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INCIDENT REPORT
CHP 407E (Rev. 3-15) OPI 062 Refer to HPM 84.2, Chapter 2

COLLISION REPORT

Yes Nurvrern9825-2023-00224 nruo
OES CONTROL NUMBER

23-s298
HAZIVAT CASUALTIES

AGENCY PERSONNEL

OTHERS

INCIOENT D Af E (M Ml D D/YYYV

08119t2023
INCIDENT OCCURRED ON

Bishop Creek Canal
MILEPOST INFORMATION

N/A
NAME (F/RSI, MIDDLE, LAST)

Jalen Casey Watterson
STREET ADDRESS

939 N. Barlow Lane
CITY/STATE/ZIP CODE

Bishop, CA93514
HOI\iIE PHONE

(760) 920-4971
HMMAT IDENTIFICATION SOURCES (CHECK ALLTHAT APPLY)

n On-site fire services

! Private info source

! off-site fire services

n On-site non-fire services

! on-site non-fire services

! Computer software

n Chemist

AT lNrERSEcrloN wrH 
Dixon LaneoR North ol

PHOToGRAPHS BY I r'tOnr

HAZIVIAT PLACARDS DISPLAYED

! Yes XNo
STATE HIGHWAY RELATED

! Yes XNo

1-ex611L,ps -l 18 .415661'
STATE

STATE

STATE

DOT NUMBER

GPS COOROINATES

LAlruDE 37.393581"

CARRIER

None
REGISTEREDOWNER N SAMEAS DRIVER

Sharon Chavez
OWNER'S ADDRESS

n Chemtrec

n Poison Control Center

! satety Data Sheet

fl Placards/Signs

fl Shipping papers

! Emergency Response Guidebook

I No reference material used

! snve ns ontven

Big Pine, CA 93513

CA

P.O. Box 128
VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION NUIVBER

Other Driver
CHEMICAL/TRADE NAME

CONTAINER TYPE

Other in Comments)
CHEMICAUTRADE NAME

CONTAINER TYPE

PROPERTY USE

Lake/Pond/River
RELEASE FACTORS

Collision/Overturn

CITATION ISSUED OR COMPLAINT TO BE FILED

I Yes n ruo f] Not determined

n Otner Code violation

I other cause

LEVEL OF CONTAINER

Above ground

PHYSICAL STATE
RELEASED

Liquid

PHYSICAL STATE
RELEASED

LEVEL OF CONTAINER

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

HMMAT CONFIRMED

[Yes nNo
OTHER HAZARDOUS MATERIALS VIOLATIONS (NON-CAUSANYE)

Yes X ruo

DID WEATHER CONTRIBUTE TO CAUSE OR SEVERITY OF INCIDENT?

Yes X No WEATHER

ELEMENTS (OUTLINE THE FOLLOWING ON A CHP 556. INCLUDE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS NECESSARU

Xsequenceofevents IEvacuationdetails ICleanupactions X CHPOn-scenePersonnel (name,rank,lD

I Roao closures I Environmental impact I Actions of other agencie. 'umber' 
function' exposure' hours)

NO. EXPOSED/
DECONNED

NO.
INJURED

NO.
KILLED

CITY

Unincorporated
JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Inyo Superior
0 0 0

0 0 0

COUNTY

Inyo
NCtC

9825
INCIDENT TIME

1630 HOURS

TIME CALTRANS/COUNTY ROADS NOTIFIED

l9l5 HouRS

TIME O.E.S. NOTIFIED

1943 HOURS

DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER

Y77812270

STATE

CA
VEH. YEAR

2002

MAKE

Ford

LICENSE NUMBER

6X68797
VEH. YEAR MAKE LICENSE NUMBER

VEH. YEAR I\4AKE LICENSE NUMBER

BUSINESS PHONE

None

VEHICLE TYPE

22

CA NUMBER

UN
NUMBER

1267

DOT HAZARD
CLASS

3

QUANTITY RELEASED
(LBS., GAL., ETC.)

l+ Quarts

EXTENT OF RELEASE

Undetermined

PHYSICAL
STATE STORED

Liquid
coNTAtNER CAPACTTY (LBS., GAL., ETC.)

6 Quarts

CONTAINER I\4ATERIAL

Plastic, rigid (includes fiberglass)
UN
NUMBER

DOT HAZARD
CLASS

OUANTITY RELEASED
(LBS., GAL., ETC.)

EXTENT OF RELEASE PHYSICAL
STATE STORED

CoNTATNER CAPACTTY (LBS., GAL., ETC.) CONTAINER MATERIAL

SURROUNDING AREA

Open land

Vehicle fuel system

EQUIPMENT TYPE INVOLVED

PRIMARY CAUSE OF INCIDENT

X Violation 231

COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING

X lncident Action Plan I Site Safety Plan ffi Proposition 65 Letters: County Health/County Board of Supervisors
DATE AND TIME SCENE DECLARED SAFE BYWHOM ('VA'I'E, TITLE AND AGENCV

HOURS

PREPARER'S NAME, RANK, AND ID

B. Gentry, Sergeant, 20010

DATE

08/23/2023

REVIEWER'S NAME, RANK, AND ID NUMBER

Destroy Previous Editions

Pending

An lnternationally Accredited Agency

DATE

Chp407E_051 5.pdf


	 Call to Order (Unless otherwise specified by time, items scheduled for either the morning or afternoon sessions will be heard according to available time and presence of interested persons.) 
	1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s) Comments 

	 Closed Session
	2) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursu

	 Open Session
	3) Pledge of Allegiance
	4) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law
	5) Introductions - The following new employees will b
	6) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	7) County Department Reports

	 Consent Agenda
	8) 2023-2024 GANN Appropriation Limit
	Agenda Request Form
	GANN Limit 2023-2024 -Attachment A
	GANN Limit 2023-2024 -Workbook 2023 Attachment B GANN Calculation
	GANN Limit Resolution 2023-2024

	9) 2023-2024 Property Tax Rates
	Agenda Request Form
	Tax Rate Resolution 2023

	10) Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft August 15, 2023 Minutes
	Draft August 25, 2023 - Special Meeting

	11) Mt. Whitney Cemetery District Appointments
	Agenda Request Form
	Irene Kritz - Whitney Cemetery 2023
	Donna Gruenewald - Whitney Cemetery 2023
	Marlene Cierniak - Whitney Cemetery 2023

	12) Certified Unified Program Agency (CUPA) Agreement 
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County Environmental Health Contract

	13) CDA Digital Connections No-Cost Agreement
	Agenda Request Form
	CDA Standard Agreement
	Exhibits A, A1, B, D
	Contractor Certification Clauses
	Information Integrity and Security Statement
	California Civil Rights Laws Certification

	14) Correction to Board Order and Minutes Regarding Fo
	Agenda Request Form
	Board Order - Fountainhead Consulting Agreement Amendment No. 4 - AMENDED
	February 21, 2023 Minutes - AMENDED
	Fountainhead Amendment No. 4  

	15) Construction Contract for the Lone Pine Airport Ta
	Agenda Request Form
	LP Taxiway A Resurface Bid Tabulation
	Maxwell Asphalt Contract
	FAA Construction Grant
	Resolution - Matching Grant

	16) Commercial Hangar Lease Agreement with REACH Air M
	Agenda Request Form
	REACH Air Medical Lease


	 Regular Agenda
	17) Support for Caltrans' Reconnecting Communities: Hi
	Agenda Request Form
	Attachment A: Draft Resolution No. 2023-28
	Attachment B: Co-Applicant Sign-on Letter
	Attachment C: RC H2B Overview Map
	Attachment D: Regional Plan List

	18) Letter to Housing and Community Development on Vet
	Agenda Request Form
	Veterans Housing Letter to HCD

	19) Request to Change Ownership for Commercial Cannabi
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo Ownership Change Request
	Change of Ownership Letter

	20) Emergency Medical Services Update
	Agenda Request Form

	21) Tropical Storm Hillary Update
	Agenda Request Form

	22) Presentation on Regional Air Service and the Bisho
	Agenda Request Form
	Air Service Presentation


	 Correspondence - Action
	23) Request from Inyo Fish & Game Commission
	2023 Letter to Board re Hard Copy Fishing Regulations


	 Additional Public Comment & Reports
	24) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	25) Board Member and Staff ReportsReceive updates on r

	 Correspondence - Informational
	26) Auditor-Controller - Actual count of money in the 
	Actual Count 08.24.23

	27) Treasurer-Tax Collector - Treasury Status Report f
	Agenda Request Form
	06-30-2023 Treasury Status Report

	28) California Highway Patrol - Report regarding the r
	Prop 65 Report



	Title 2: 
	Date 2: 
	Signature 4: 
		2023-08-17T13:28:03-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


	ContractorBidder Firm Name Printed: 
	Federal ID Number: 
	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 
	Date Executed: 
	Executed in the County of: 
	Authorized Signature: 
	Is: Off
	Contract Number: 
	Isnt: Off
	compliance by: 
	ContractorVendor Printed Name and Title: 
	SigDate: 
	CDA ProgramProject: 
	ContractorVendorSig: 
	Date Executed1: 
	Executed in the County and State of: 
	Contractor Name: 
	Fed: 
	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing1: 
	AP: Off
	FA: Off
	HI: Off
	MI: Off
	MS: Off
	SP: Off
	TV: Off
	Signature: 
	Opening Paragraph: 
	1: 
	2: 
	Certification: 
	Modification of Premises may require CUP review attach supporting documentation: Off
	undefined: On
	undefined_2: Off
	AddChange License Type for Microbusiness complete section below may require CUP review: Off
	undefined_3: Off
	Cultivation 5000 ft² or less: Off
	Cultivation greater than 5000 ft²: On
	Manufacturing Level 1 nonvolatile extractioninfusion etc: Off
	Manufacturing Level 2 volatile extraction: On
	Testing Laboratory: Off
	Retailer If checked do you plan to make deliveries: Off
	Distributor: Off
	Microbusiness check all activities that apply: Off
	undefined_4: Off
	Medical: On
	Adultuse: On
	Provide a short description of proposed changes below 1: 100% Ownership change from the original owner (Vincent Lin) to the new owner (Larry Lai) for the below Cannabis Business Licenses:
Nanofarms Group, Inc. 
377 Rosemary Ln, Sandy Valley, CA, 89019
048-350-15

License Type: Manufacturing, Volatile
License Category: M & A
Effective Date: 7/01/2022 - 6/30/2023
License Number:   5G-010

License Type: Cultivation >5,000 Sq Ft
License Category: M & A
Effective Date: 7/01/2022 - 6/30/2023
License Number:   5G-009


	Primary Owner Name: Larry Lai
	Mailing Address if different than physical address: 
	City_2: 
	State_2: 
	Zip Code_2: 
	Secondary Phone Number: 
	Email Address: nafmgp1@gmail.com
	List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County: n/a
	Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County: Off
	NO: On
	Mailing Address: 
	City_3: 
	State_3: 
	Zip Code_3: 
	List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County_2: 
	Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County_2: Off
	NO_2: Off
	Name: 
	Percent Ownership: 
	Mailing Address_2: 
	City_4: 
	State_4: 
	Zip Code_4: 
	List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County_3: 
	Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County_3: Off
	NO_3: Off
	Name_2: 
	Percent Ownership_2: 
	Mailing Address_3: 
	City_5: 
	State_5: 
	Zip Code_5: 
	List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County_4: 
	Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County_4: Off
	NO_4: Off
	Name_3: 
	Percent Ownership_3: 
	Mailing Address_4: 
	City_6: 
	State_6: 
	Zip Code_6: 
	List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County_5: 
	Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County_5: Off
	NO_5: Off
	Name_4: 
	Percent Ownership_4: 
	Mailing Address_5: 
	City_7: 
	State_7: 
	Zip Code_7: 
	List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County_6: 
	Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County_6: Off
	NO_6: Off
	Name_5: 
	Percent Ownership_5: 
	Mailing Address_6: 
	City_8: 
	State_8: 
	Zip Code_8: 
	List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County_7: 
	Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County_7: Off
	NO_7: Off
	Text1: 100
	Name0: 
	Text3: 


